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2000 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:
AGENDA

. Call to order, welcome to new membets and guests, introduction of Board and staff,

5:30 p.m

. Approval of Agenda

. Minutes of 1999 Annual General Meeting

31 Errors/Omissions
32  Adoption
33 Business arising from Minutes

Opening remarks from the Chair

. Financial Report

5.1 Presentation of 2000 Budget

. Question Period

. Adjournment
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SECRETARY—.TREASURER’S REPORT

At the last Annual General Meeting in
November 1999, we reported that 1999
registrant fees would initially apply for
2000. This was to allow the Board fto
address a-number of issues, get some
expetience under the Health Professions
Act, and conduct soine necessary Teviews
before coming back to the new acm date
in May 2000 with an adjustment to the
annual fee that better reflected the actual
costs associated with running the College
for the year 2000 Inaddition, we reported
on a set of financial budgeting principles
passed by the Board to guide future
Boards in setting budgets. The Finance
Committee has initiated steps to examine
and alter the cycle of annual fee increases
and special levies with future increases
being based upon a rigorous examination
of the College’s needs in accordance with
the application of the budgeting
principles.

The ability of the College to achieve a
satisfactory contingency fund has been
hampered by year-end statutory costs that
have drawn back from new year T€Venues
from registrant fees For example, in 1999
for the fitst time in many years, the College
had a surplus, but $35,000 was drawn back
into 1998 to cover debts due largely to
statutory costs But for the thorough
application of budgeting principles and a
high standard of management in the
financial affaits of the College in future we

could have the dubious distinction of

having the highest fee structures on a
comparative basis in Canada. The prime

cost drivers for the College budget are staff

salaries and legal fees. Since the inception
of the College, thete have been regular

calls at aGMs for a comprehensive review
of legal costs. This has been a repeated
theme that is being addressed by the
Board in the form of an independent
administrative review of statutory costs.
This review will provide the Board with
recommendations regarding  different
options to ensure the various legal services
that the College requires are delivered on
a cosl-effective basis and mandate-
effective basis.

The preparation of the 2000 budget has
been unique in that it involved all staff
from the College, suggestions from
commmittees, and all Board members. The
composition of the Finance Cormnmittee
was enlarged to include more Board
members and to recognize the direct
jmpact of human resources costs as a
growing part of the College budget. The
College auditor and independent
bookkeeper were also involved to ensure
that as many perspectives as possible were
included in this budget building process to
ensure accuracy and completeness. All
budgetary items were reviewed on a line-
by-line basis by the entire Board with
adjustments, reductions, and amendments
before any conclusions were made for the
registrant fee adjustment necessary to
carry the College budget for the
remainder of the year.

Amajor change in the budget process for
2000 is that the College has moved from
an estimated costs/income basis to an
actual cashflow basis. The College will
know its position to the budget on a
monthly basis and have an ear ly warning
system of any budget problems Variance
niotions at Board meetings are required to
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fund any exceptional costs or unbudgeted
costs. The Finance Committee has been
designated the last stop on financial
matters before proceeding to the Board as
a whole. The College must effectively
manage both its staff costs and manage its
legal costs to adequately protect the public
interest. Public protection requires a
fiscally sound and well managed College.

The audit of the 1999 year will result in
new financial policy improvements. A
timely complaint process will assist the
College in managing statutory costs New
procedures for the consolidation of legal
opimions, tracking of penalties and Court
decisions to College committees and
Board members will make for more
efficient, informed, and cost-effective
processes, These will also empower the
committees to fulfill their duties, eliminate
cost duplication, and support the privilege
the profession has been given to self-
regulate.

Volunteers contribute to the broader
participation in the College affairs while at
the same time favourably impacting the
College’s finances. Although the Health
Professions Act allows fees to be paid to
Board and committee members, given the
desire of the Board to move forward on a
number of public and registrant
information resources (a new website, the
Directory of Registered Psychologists,and
regular publications of the Chronicle), the
Board has decided to forego honorariums
for Board members at this time
Notwithstanding the Board’s decision, we
are moving to recognize the time intensive
nature of the work of volunteets from the
profession to the Inquiry Committee and

the Discipline Committee with an
apptoptiate honorarium. In addition, the
Board acknowledges that it wants to
recognize the efforts of other volunteer
committees and has budgeted for an
annual appreciation dinner to recognize
and say thanks in a very special way to
volunteets who have generously come
forward to donate their time, energy, and
commitment to the College and the
profession.

The advancement of technology for the
College staff through the provision of new
computers, the creation of a new database,
and the prospect of a new website are
important developments in the College’s
efforts to communicate with registrants on
an ongoing basis.

The Finance Committee is in the process
of producing new financial procedures
and policy to assist the College in regularly
reviewing investment options, to regularly
review any variances in the budget, to
track all financial expenditures and ensure
compliance with policy

The Financial Statement for 1999 is
attached for your review The audit for
1999 is the earliest and most thorough
ever undertaken in the College’s history.
Given the transition to new legislation and
the new approach to the complaint
process, the audit has been helpful in
identifying areas of cost
monitoring procedures, and additional
accountability measures that can assist the
Board in the future.

The Board has decided after reviewing
the entire budget on a line-by-line basis
that the adjustment in the annual
registrant fee for the year 2000 will be

controls,
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$200 for full registrants and s100 for other
registrants As discussed earlier in this
report, these fees will assist the College in
improving its systems, communication
with registrants, and recognizing the
sntensive work of the volunteers who serve
on cormumittees. My preference is not to
have this year’s fee level assumed as a
baseline for next year’s fees As the College
gains expetrience under the new
legislation, and implements stractural
improvements from the reviews the Board
has commissioned, it is entirely possible
and ought to be our objective in my view
that next year’s fee structure will be less
onerous

It has been rewarding and challenging to
serve asa Laymember of the Boardand Td
like to thank the College and membets of
the profession for the earnest support and
appreciated encoutagement you have
given me over the past six years. This is my
last terim with the College as a L ay member
and T will be stepping down from the
Secretary-Treasurer position later this
year The past year in particular has been

—

the most time-intensive and demanding
volunteer position I've ever had. My
colleagues on the Board have given
tirelessly of their personal time, often
donating their evenings and weekends to
research, debate, and decide important
issues facing the College structure,
finances, and complaint process under the
Health Professions Act While we may not
always agree, the Board strives consistently
for the betterment of the College and the

profession of Psychology The members of

the Finance Committee — Bill Borgen,
Stephen Flamer, and Anastasia Mirras
have worked very hard to make this year’s
budget address the needs of the College
during a crucial transition. The
Committee’s  efforts  have  been
supplemented by the expertise of Paul
Brun, auditor and independent
bookkeeper Marie Brown as well as
College staff The Committee welcomes
volunteer involvement I look forward to
seeing you at the Annual General Meeting.

Blake Williams,

Secretary-Treasurer

ANNUAL REPORT = 2000

PAGE 6




COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF
BRITISH COLUMBIA

BUDGET SUMMARY FOR FISCAL PERIOD 2000

PAGE 7

RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES
Membership Fees 677,000 Audit and Consultation 8,560
External Relations 10,000
Amended Fees: Exams and Workshops 22,000
865 @ $200 173,000  Services for Registiants 48,900
157 @ $100 15,700  Statutory Functions 209,000
Administration 57,160
Application and Exam Pees 59,000  Operations 62,000
Interest 9,000 Wages 360,000
Other 2,000  Board Expenses 47,000
Discipline Committee 24,200
Total Receipts 935,700 Fmafnce F}ommlttee. 14,100
e Registration Committee 6,800
Inquiry Committee 25,000
Quality Assurance Committee 2,300
AGM 2,500
Capital Expenditures 3,000
Contingency Reserve 20,000
Advertising for New Registrar 4,000
Total Expenditures 926,520
Net Surplus 9,180
REGISTRATION FEES
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TOTAL BUDGET/STATUTORY FUNCTIONS
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 1999
10 ITHE MEMBERS OF THE COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISIS OF BRITIISH COLUMBIA!

I have andited the statement of financial position of the College of Psychologists of
British Columbia as at December 31,1999, and the statements of operations, changes in
net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the College's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted anditing standards. Those
standards require that T plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presemation. _

In 1ny opinion, these financial statements present faitly, in all matetial respects, the
financial position of the College as of December31,1999,and the results of its operations
and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with that of the
preceding year:

PAUI BRUN
Certified General Accountant, North Vancouver, B C., 25 March, 2000

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

TOR 1HE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1908

ASSETS 1999 1598
CURRENT
Cash $27,916 $13,947
Short term investments 64,237 125
Accounts receivable 1,096 900
Special levy 1eceivable 13,200
Prepaid expenses 5,053 2,678
111,502 17,650
CAPITAL (note 3) 20,968 14,734
132,470 32,384

b
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TIABILITIES AND NET ASSEIS (DEFICIENCY)

CURRENT 1999 1998
Accounts payable 38,316 47,274
Employee remittances payable 8,283 7,625
PST payable 24 202
46,623 55,101
NET ASSETS (DEFICIENCY)
Capital assets 20,968 14,734
Unrestricted 64,879 (37,451}
85,847 (22,717)
132,470 32,384
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999
1999 1998
RECEIPTS
Membership dues $ 679,061 $ 628,673
Special levy 113,853 -
Application and exam fees 62,971 63,800
Interest 9,112 7,805
Other 2,066 5,774
867,063 706,052
EXPENDITURES
Administration 343,452 315,734
Operations 75,341 64,957
Board 10,196 8,780
External relations 8,054 13,964
Andit 4,167 3,900
Member services 41,510 58,313
Statutory functions 269,623 212,330
Commiittee meetings and travel 6,156 7,809
758,499 685,787
FXCESS (DEFICIENCY)
OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES 108,564 20,265

Refer to the accompanying notes

ol
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR IHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999

INVESIED
IN CAPITAL
ASSEIS UNRESIRICIED 1999 1998

BALANCE - Beginning of the year$ 14,734 $(37,451) $(22,717) $ (42,982)
Excess (deficiency) of receipts

over expenditures 6,234 7 102,330 108,564 20,265
BALANCE - End of the year 20,968 64,879 85,847 (22,717)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999
1999 1998
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (deficiency) $ 108,564 $20,265
of receipts over expenditures
Amot tization, an item not involving cash 6,857 4,659
Changes in non cash wotking capital
Accounts receivable (196) {297)
Special levy receivable {13,200) 10,433
Prepaid expense (2,375) -
Accounts payable (8,958) (47,426)
Employee remittances payable 658 779
PST payable (178) 202
91,172 {11,385)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets 13,091 3,048
INCREASE (DECREASE) 78,081 {14,433)
IN CASH FOR THE YEAR
CASH - Beginning of the year 14,072 28,505
CASH - End of the year 92,153 14,072
CONSISTING OF:
Cash $27916 $ 13,547
Short term investmerts 64,237 125
92,153 14,072

Refer to the accompanying notes

0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR IHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1999

1. OPERATIIONS
The College was incorporated under the Psychologists Act of British Columbia, to
pérform those statutory functions required under the Act.

2. SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POIICIES
Capital assets are recorded at cost Furniture and equipment are amortized on a
declining balance basis at the rate of 20%.

Computers are amortized on a declining balance basis at the rate of 30%
Membership dues are recognized as income in the fiscal year due Expenditures are
recognized as incurred.

Claims involving costs against the College, arising from disciplinary proceedings, are

recognized upon settlement, (please refer to note 4).

3. CAPITAT ASSETS
Capital assets consist of the following:

1999 1998
ACCUMULATED NEI BOOK NEI BOOK
COSI  AMORIIZATION  VAIUE VALUE
Furniture & equipment $47,732  $38,214 $9,518 $ 9,265
Computers 55,071 43,621 _ 11,450 5,469
102,803 81,835 20,968 14,734

Capital assets are recorded at cost Office furniture and equipment are being amottized
on the declining balance basis at the rate of 20%.
Computers are being amortized on the declining balance basis at the rate of 30%.

4., CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31%, 1999, there was one legal claim outstanding against the College for
costs arising from disciplinary proceedings

p
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March 26, 2000

Coilege of Psychologists of British Columbia
Suite 404 - 1755 West Broadway

Vancouver, BC

V6] 455

Attention: Audit Committee

Dear Sir or Madam:

Re: Audit Letter

Notes and Recommendations

Referring to the audit of the College of Psychologists of British Columbia financial
staterments for the year ended December 31,1999, I note the following:

A CONTROL ENVIRONMENT - GENERAL

1

2

b

A current accounting procedures manual should be developed.

Accounting records should be reviewed on a monthly basis by management This
should include:

reviewing monthly and year to date financial statements

reviewing financial statements and budget variances

ensure that variances to budget are fully explained and recommendations made to
the Finance Committee

reviewing and initialling monthly bank reconciliations

teviewing accounts payable Hstings

reviewing all wages paid during the month

teviewing short term investments and the management of same

forward repotts to the Finance Committee within 21 days of month end

Financial information should be reviewed by the Finance Committee on a monthly
basis. This should include:

reviewing financial statements and budget variances

approving any overtime pay

reviewing changes to staff wages and making any necessary recommendations to the
Board

teviewing shert term investments and the management of same

monthly review of statutory costs with information of files identified to have
considerable cost exposure

. The financial staterents, (noted in 2 and 3 above), should be reviewed both to

comparable prior year periods as well as to the budget.

ANNUAL REPORTI -~ 2000
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5 Both from a management and an audit perspective, it is essential that the recording
of membership dues, special levies and other sources of income, be accrued and
payments be applied against the applicable account. This will facilitate the timing
of the income recognition and the management of receivables

This system, once in place, will also be cost effective when future dues are invoiced.

6 One back up of the accounting system and data base should always be maintained
outside of the College office so as to protect the integrity of College financial data

. Matie Brown has been engaged as the external bookkeeper. The external bookkeeper
position, (tesponsible to the Finance Committee), is very important from a
management and an audit per spective.

3. There should be an organizational chart developed which cleatly outlines lines of
authority and responsibility.

9. My understanding is that a directory was not completed in 1999 and this should be
reviewed

10.A policy should be instituted relative to the Coliege Newspaper and the timing
requirements for same

11 Thete appears to be a lack of control over billings for membership dues This
primatily consists of not sending all BC psychologists an ‘Tnformation Form and Fee
Statement but only those who paid last year’s fees ot who updated their information.
This aspect should be fully reviewed by the Finance Committee There is also no
apparent follow-up, (on a sample basis), to ensure that the assessments between ‘full
fee’ members and ‘partial fee’ membexs is correct This aspect should be reviewed to
ensure that all psychologists are mailed a form annually and that sampling reviews
are undertaken to ensure that the fee assessments are correct.

B. CASH

1 Duting the year substantial cash balances were maintained m the bank account
There should be a policy that substantial cash balances in the bank should be
invested. :

2 Management should review bank reconciliations monthly and initial same as
evidence of their review This review should occur no later than 21 days after the end
of the month.

3. A member of the Finance Committee ot other designated Board membet should
be required to countersign all College cheques

4 Thebudget of the College should include a cash flow forecast so that cash and short
term investments may be approptiately managed and subject to constant review.

iy
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C. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

1

Management should review the balance in short term investments each month and
such should also be reviewed by the Finance Cominittee.

A representative from Scotia McLeod should periodically review the account with

the Finance Committee, {at least annually).

. ACCOUNIS RECEIVABLE

As previously noted, it is essential that the reporting of income switch fromn a ‘cash’
to an ‘accrual’ method of income recognition. This means that dues and levies wilt
be recognized as income as the invoices are mailed and accounts receivable will be
recognized until payment is received.

Management and the Finance Committee will have to monitor accounts receivable
on a monthly basis and ensure that proper follow up actions are being initiated for
outstanding accounts.

Tt will also be necessary to ensure that all members are receiving their invoices and
are reporting their fee status in an appropriate manner

Tt will be necessaty to ensure that directories are prepared annually

Management and the Finance Committee will also be required to review the status
of the College ‘Newspaper’ and advertising income -

It should be the College policy that payments must be made by cheque and that cash

will not be accepted, (this is for internal control reasons) Any var iations to this policy
should be fully documented REFER 10 AT TACHMENT B’ IHIS POLICY IS FOR
INTERNAL CONTROL PURPOSES.

. PREPAID EXPENSES

The Finance Committee should review all insurance policies so as to ensure adequate
fire, liability, office overhead and director liability insurance are in place and
constantly reviewed. The insurance confirmation letter which was received from
McFarlan Rowland Insurance Itd relative to Association liability is indicated to cover
the period September 26,2000 to September 26,2001 This aspect should be reviewed
Please ensure that any changes in insurance coverage provide for continuous coverage
during any transition. REFER TO ATTACHMENT 4’

CAPITAL ASSETS

Please ensure that the Board approves all capital expenditures

 Please ensure that the budget and cash flow projections include provision for capital

expenditures estimated for the year 2000.

il
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Page 4

G. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

1.

Please ensure that accounts payable listings are reviewed by management monthly
and the review noted by initialling the listing.

Please ensure that all subcontractor arrangements are approved by the Finance
Committee and supported by a contract which has had a legal review, (this would
relate to subcontractor arrangements for a significant amount say, in excess of
$5,000 per year). Ihe auditor should also be forwarded a copy of these contracts.

Payments for ‘statutory costs’ should be fully analyzed by day of service rendered,
file or category of legal expense and invoices should be requested from solicitors on
a monthly basis. Monthly monitoring of legal expenses should be made by
management and reviewed by the Finance Committee and subsequently, the Board.

a current listing of all active complaint files should be maintained

such should be reviewed monthly by management and Board representatives

costs, (investigation, legal and disbursements), should be allocated to specific files
completed files should be reviewed by management and Board representatives and
a periodic report prepared for the Board so as to evaluate the resolution of cases and
the cost effectiveness of College procedures

H. MISCEL LANEOUS ITEMS FOR REVIEW WITH AUDIT COMMITTEE

1

Attachment ‘C is a cheque with only one signature. While such was the only cheque
which I noted which was not countersigned, it should be emphasized that all cheques
must be signed by two parties and that for the year 2000, itis recommended that one
of the signatures be that of a Board Member.

Attachments ‘D’ are samples of payroll cheques which were issued for dates prior to
the completion of the relative payroll period. This practice should be cancelled
immediately.

Overtime should only be recognized upon approval by the Finance Comrmittee

Daily employee time sheets should be prepared in a manner appropr fate to the
Finance Committee. Summary reports should be reviewed periodically by the
Pinance Comimittee.

The Finance Committee should meet periodically with the Human Resource
Committee to ensure the efficient management of personnel

I look forward to reviewing the December 31,1999 financial statements and this letter
with you.

Yours truly,
PAUI BRUN, CGA
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MINUTES OF
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOVEMBER 04,1999

The Annual General Meeting of the
College of Psychologists of British
Columbia was held on November 4, 1999
at the Fxecutive Inn, Richmond, with the
Clation Gtand Pacific Hotel in Victoria
linked by teleconference. President Verna
Amell, acting as chair called the meeting
to order at 6:02 pm with 30 members
present in Vancouver and 11 members
present in Victoria, Lay board member
Blake Williams was present at the
Vancouver meeting and Barbara Passmore
at the Victoria meeting,

Michael Joschko chaired the meeting in
Victoria, where they were prevented from
joinming the meeting at the outset due to
technical  difficulties  with  the
teleconferencing  system. Dr. Amell
introduced the board members, Dr.
Stephen Flamer, Dr. Lorne Meginbir, Dr.
Marvin McDonald and Ms. Anastasia
Mirras and lay board member, Blake
Williams Regrets were given for the
Registrar, Dr. Ed Kramer, who hasbeen on
sick leave since September, board member,
Dr. Bill Borgen, and lay board member
Larty Kahn.

Staff members present were Deputy
Registrar, Vicki Huxtable, Membership
Secretary, Lyn Hellyar, and Recording
Secretary, Judy Clausen.

AGENDA

The circulated agenda was xeviewed It
was moved by Anmeliese Robens and
seconded by Robert Leonard that the
agenda be adopted as circulated. Carried.

MINUIES

Errors or Omissions - On page 21, Rule
9 6(f) there was no indication that the
motion carried.

It was moved by Hemty Harder and
seconded by Evelyn Corker that the
Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of
November 19, 1998 be adopted as
amended. Carried

Business Arising from the Minutes:
None,

ANNUAIL REPORTS: PRESIDENT

Dr. Amell reviewed her written report
with particular  emphasis on  the
implications for change as the College
comes under the Health Professions Act
She outlined the work that has been done
in drafting the new bylaws and the two
major differences which will result when
the College comes under the Act. These
are: (a) the classes of registrants and (b)
the broader protection of the public. The

new bylaws could enable the College to

regulate and monitor the services of

Masters-level providers and persuade
government to remove the exemptions

from the Act for cutrent school
psychologists and mental health
psychologists

Another major factor facing the College
Dr. Amell outlined was the Agreement on
Internal Trade The Federal Government is
pushing to have the bariers to job
mobility for professionals moving to
different jurisdictions within Capada
removed British Columbia has done a lot

ANNUAI REPORT ~= 2000

PAGE 18




of the work on a competency based model
to facilitate this process.

A Prelimipary Report on the
Psychologists Scope of Practice has been
citculated by the Health Professions
Council. The reserved for
psychologists as set out in this document
is the act of diagnosis The oral
examination would be used to decide
competency and the Coilege would have
control over who had access to the
reserved act of diagnosis '

act

DEPUIY REGISTRARS REPORI

Vicld Huxtable reported briefly on the
functioning of the College during the past
year, particularly with respect to statutory
issues; decisions of the Supréme Court
won by the College and how the
disciplinary process will be carried out
under the Health Professions Act.

The Deputy Registrar expressed her
thanks to the outside investigators for the
hard work they put into investigating
complaints, to all the volunteers who serve
on committees and to Brenda Kosaka and
the membership committee for their work
on the new Supervision Standards.

The teleconference with Victoria was
established

SECRETARY-1REASURE R'S REPORT

Blake Williams rteviewed the 1998
Auditor’s Report and responded to
questions regarding the contingency fund
and the deficiency in the 1997 special levy.
It was moved by Paul Peel and seconded by
Julian Gray that the 1998 Auditor’s Report
be accepted. Carried in Richmond.
Carried in Victoria

It was moved by Carol Solyom and
seconded by Bvelyn Corker that the

College reappoint Paul Brun as auditor for
the 1999 fiscal year. Cartied in Richmmend.
Carried in Victoria,

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

COMMII IEE :
Verna Amell reported that she is now
chairing the Professional Standards

Committee following the resignation of
Doteen Kilpatrick. The comumittee is a
very hard working group of individuals
who have developed a protocol to ensure
that complaints are reviewed thoroughly
and competently.

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS
APPEAL COMMIIIEE

In Larry Kahn's absence, Verna Amell
and Vicki Huxtable reported on this
committee. They have had a few appeals
this year where complaints were dismissed
because their was not sufficient evidence
to proceed. One of the. appeals was
returned to the Professional Standards
Committee for further 1eview.

MEMBERSHIP COMMII IEE _

Stephen Flamer referred the attendees to
his report on Page 12 of the Annual Reportt.
He 1eported on how the Membership
Comnmittee will become an expanded
Registration Committee under the Health
Act and urged  the
membership to get involved in
determining standards on registration
The eppp scores were discussed and the
difficulty of the April exam When the new
bylaws are approved, the pass 1ate for the
eppp will go from 65% to 70%.

Stephen Flamer thanked Victor Colotla
who had also contiibuted substantially to
the Supervision Standards and Ed Xramer
for his work on the new bylaws

Professions

1
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QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITIEE

In Bill Borger's absence the membership
was referred to his report in the circulated
materials This is a hard working group
doing a great deal of detailed work on the
self-assessment document. It is almost
ready for circulation. After registrants
complete the self-assessment they will be
required to sign an attestation to that fact
It is imperative people know that they have
to take this self-assessment sexiously.

NEW BUSINESS

The two new elected Board members
and one new lay member were welcomed
to the meeting. Marvin McDonald’s term
expires December 1, 2000 and Anastasia
Mirras’ term expires December 1, 2001
Their backgrounds and personal histories
are included in the Chronicle.
Appointment of the new board is done by
the government for the first year after the
Health Professions Act comes into effect.
Barbara Passmore, the new lay Board
member, was appointed too late to include
information about her but she spoke to the
Membership from the Victoria meeting,
outlining her background and her
willingness to work hard.

ADOPTIION OF THE BUDGEI
FOR 2000

Blake Williams reported that it has been
a very busy year and thanked his
colleagues on the Finance Committee The
membership was referred to the Budget
principles listed on page 11 of the report.
This is the first time that the Board has
actually said how the budgeting process

would work Because of the many
variables involved in coming under the
Health Professions Act, the committee
opted to present a budget to the
membetship which leaves the registration
fees unchanged for January 2000 The
College will hold another Annual Gener al
Meeting in May 2000 when the fees will be
adjusted. This will allow the Finance
Committee to come back with more
accate figures based on a completed
audit for 1999 and more information on
changes tequired under the Health
Professions Act. It will also set the College

up for an aGM in May 2001 instead of

November

Questions were received from the
membership with respect to the budget
presented It was moved by Paul Peel and
seconded by Carol Sclyom that the 2000
budget be accepted as presented Carried
in Richmond. Carried in Victoria with 1
abstention

The balance of the meeting was devoted
to questions and comments on the Health
Professions Act and Health Professions
Council Many of the questions involved
Masters registration and a competency
based model of registration.

Membership agreed that because of all
the changes being planned, there is a real
necessity for increased commumications
between the College and the membership.
The development of a web site for the
College was discussed

It was moved by Carol Solyom and
seconded by Julian Gray that the meeting
be adjourned at 8:02 p.m. Carried in
Richmond, Carried in Victoria.

I
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2000 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
AGENDA

1 Registration: 5:00 to 5:30 p.m

2. Call to ordet; welcome to registrants and guests, introduction of the Board:
5:30pm

3. Minutes of May 11, 2000 General Meeting
31 Eirors/Omissions
32 Adoption
33 Business arising from Minutes

4. Annual Reports
41 Chair, Verna Amell
42 Registiar, Andrea Kowaz
43 Deputy Registrar, Carol Solyom
44 Secretary-Treasurer/Finance Committee, Anastasia Mirras
45 Inquiry Committee, Barbara Passmore
4 6 Patient Relations Committee, Brenda Kosaka
4.7 Quality Assurance Committee, Bill Borgen
4.8 Registration Committee, Stephen Flamer

5. New Business
5.1 Announcement of new Board members, Verna Amell
52 Presentation of 2000 Budget, Anastasia Mirras

ANNUAIL REPORI ~ 2000 PAGE 4




:\.._//;

REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE CHAIR

As many of you know the College held

two Special General Meetings one in

September and a second meeting on
November 9th. The Annual General
Meeting is on December 13,2000. The
meeting will include a summary of the
work of the Comumittees, a budget
review and proposed fee, and a welcome
and introduction to your new Boaid of
Directots for the year 2001,

The Coliege has been through
significant transitions in the past several
years the most dramatic being the
change in our governing legislation to
the Health Professions Act We have the
opportunity and obligation to develop
new Bylaws that wotk for us in the self
regulation of out profession and in the
interests of public protection. You
received a draft of the Bylaws in the
summer. At the recent SGM we had two
guest speakers, D1. Lotraine Breault from
the Psychology Sectoral Work Group on
the Agreement on Internal 'Trade
(PSWAIT), and M1 Stuart Clarke from
the BC government tepresenting the

labor mobility chapters in the
Agreement.  They  provided a
comprehensive ~ overview of the

Agreement, what it means for mobility
in our profession across the country, the
establishment of entry standards for the
profession, and the obligation to reduce
barriers, revising cutrent bylaws o1
legislation, if necessary. On November
11 at the BCPA Annual Conference, Dr.
Breault, Mt Brendan Walsh from the
Federal Government Interest Group on
Labor Mobility and I gave a further

elaboration on these matters I would
like to take the opportunmity hete to
provide you with the background
1ationale for the proposed categories of
registration which were included in the
draft Bylaws and some recent revisions
that can be viewed on the College website

(www.collegeofpsychologists.be.ca)

Theze are a number of issues which are
being addressed in the categories of
Registrant These include:

- maintaining the current standards for

entry to the profession,

- national consensus on the proposed
PsyD. or doctoral
ptofessional psychology programs,

«recognition of the knowledge, skills
and competency approach to
credentialing which is being endorsed
by every jurisdiction that regulates
psychologists in Canada,

raccommodation of psychologists
from other jurisdictions who are in
good standing and practice within
their competency who have maste1s
level education,

stemoval of exemptions
governing legislation, which currently
permits persons to practice without
meeting the College’s standards of
entry and ethical and professional
standaids of practice,

- inclusion of practitioners who want
the support standards of
professional practice of the College in
order to maintain ethical practice,

-maximum protection of the public
through broader regulation of
practitioners,

training in

in our

and

iy
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The category Psychologist (full
registration} is the current standard It
continues to require a broad range of

educational knowledge, acquisition of

skills, and competencies In the approach
endorsed by the Council of Provincial
Associations of Psychologists and the
PSWAIT group, the new registration
process will include review of transciipts
and educational coutses, achieving a
minimum score on the EPPP, approved

internships, thousands of hows of

supetvision and supervisor references,
declaration of competencies for
intended practice (and supporting
documentation and references), an oral
exam of professional judgment,
determination of access to the reser ved
activity of diagnosis (if this is an
intended practice component) and a
written jurisprudence exam on current
legislation affecting the practice of
psychologists The Registration
Committee needs to develop forms for
the Declaration of Competency, the oral
exam needs to be standardized, and the
jurisprudence exam needs to be
developed. Some of this work has been
done by other colleges and we can
benefit from their experience We are the
only College in Canada that does not
currently require post doctoral
supervision before being licensed for
independent  practice.  Required
supervision hours may need to be
extended, and we may have a temporary
or provisional license for those new
applicants  completing  supervised
practice. We would need a roster of
qualified psychologists willing to provide

the necessary supervision for this final
component of professional
credentialing Current registrants would
continue to be 1ecognized as
Psychologists and would not require

examination, a declaration of areas of

competence to practice would need to be
completed, and an indication of whethez
the registrant carries out the reserved
activity of diagnosis would be noted on
the Register

The categories of Institutional
Psychologist (Health) or (School)
(limited 1egistration) were proposed to
remove exemptions under the Act, to
provide better protection to the public,
and to support those persons currently
working in these settings to practice
ethically and not be improperly
constrained by employers in the effective
performance of their duties,. The
Institutional Health category is a sunset
clause which means it is intended only
for those persons currently employed
under this exemption. The College is
proposing that we would register persons
who have had a five year record without
discipline by their employer, they would
be required to take an ethics and
jurisprudence coutse offered by the
College, their practice would be limited
only to their employment setting. They
would not be required to meet or take
other exams. Work for the College
includes discussion with unions and
employers of these current exempted
persons

The Institutional School psychologists
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would be similarly accommodated with
the limitation that they confine their
practice to the school system. The
rationale is that they are under
supervision and responsible to other
professionals and are not sole
practitioners, Thisis also a sunset clause.
Work includes ongoing consultation
with the Association of School
Psychologists, and needs discussion with

the unions, employers and Ministry of

Education.

The “Practitioner in Psychology”
category (eliminated in the revision) was
intended to capture individuals whose
educational training is at the masters
level, who do not have the broader
acquisition of knowledge and skills and
whose competencies are more narrowly
citcumscribed by their training. This
category would capture the cuirent
practitioners who are exempted and wish
te branch out into independent practice,
the current unregulated “counsellors”
whose  training  is  primarily
psychological in natuze, and the mobility
requests from outside of BC. It is

expected that with the development of

Psy.D. progiams and opportunities for
upgrading (please see the CPA website
on proposals from Quebec and Alberta)
this category will eventually be retired.
In the new revisions these persons would
have to qualify under full registiation for
independent practice. They would have
to submit transcripts, pass the EPPP,

submit references, make a declaration of

competency, and pass an oral exam, and
write a jurisprudence exam. The period

of professional supervision may be
longer, as these applicants typically have
not completed extensive internship
hours Successful applicants in this
category would be able to provide
independent or autonomous practice
Applicants could request the designation
of access to the reserved activity of
diagnosis, they would have to
demonstrate the required knowledge
base, skill acquisition and training and
super vision to support this designation
Most current mastets programs would
not meet this tequirement This category
allows for the mobility of psychologists
from othet jurisdictions who have been
registered with masters level educational
transcripts. Also of note however, is that
every jurisdiction currently has
substantial supervision hours required
for independent o1 autonomous practice
for these practitioners.

Work for the College in this category
includes developing a list of approved
educational training sites (again other
colleges in Alberta, and Ontario have
reviewed this), and dialogue with the
current  Association of  School
Psychologists. (The Task Force on
Counselling has presented a proposal to
government to regulate counsellors with
mastets training, this category may
subsume some of those practitionets
who qualify, it would not capture all of
that group ) '

The interjurisdictional category
(temporary  registtant) is  for
psychologists who expect to conduct

[
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tempotary work in our province but
who do not intend to move here or
practice here frequently. An example is
Alberta psychologists who are giving
testimony in cross border custody and
access cases.

The other categories (1etired, non-
practicing) are straightforward. They
permit a person to remain on the
Register while not providing services and
to pay a reduced fee

Our College is expected to sign a
reciprocity agreement with  othex
Colleges regulating psychologists in July
2001 With the proposed Bylaws we can
accomimodate requests  for
mobility avoiding costly legal challenges.
If we do not have an accommodation in
place we will have to defend on the basis
of competency (not just educational
attainment) any refusal to registex (both
from outside and from within the
province). The above categories permit
us to meet this without loss of standards
for our profession, they capture the
broad range of scrvices provided by
practitioners, and they eliminate
exemptions which do not serve the
public and erode the reputation of
psychologists ~ Please consider this
thoughtfully as you vote to support ox
not suppott the Bylaws.

most

1 would like to remind you to vote on
whether you support or do not support
the Bylaws You may also wish to
photocopy the Registration section of
the Bylaws and write in your approval or

teservations on specific categories. If

you have other particular concerns on
the Bylaws please submit them to Dr.
Carol Solyom as we are incorporating
many specific recommendations in the
final draft. The College will then be able
to send the Bylaws to the government
with an indication of the degree of
support from the Registrants

Once again it has been a privilege to
serve the College during these very
demanding times . I wonld like to express

my sincere thanks to the dedicated staff

at the College for their many houts of
service and good humor at times of
significant stiess. In particular 1 have
been most impressed with the
innovation, vision, leadership and skdlls
of Dr. Andrea Kowaz. My only regret is
not having the opportunity to work
longer with her We all owe a significant
thank you to Dr. Kramer, Mr Tobin, the
past Board of directors and Dr Solyom

for all their efforts in the many drafts of

the Bylaws And finally, thank you to all
the registrants who have participated so
vocally, and passionately in the last few
months We are a self regulating
profession and your patticipation
matters!

Sincerely,

Dr. Verna-Jean Amell
Chair of the Board

il
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2000 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Verna Amell
Bill Borgen
Stephen Flamer
Brenda Kosaka
Art Kube
Marvin McDonald
Anastasia Mirras
Barbara Passmore

Blake Williams (Resigned Oct )

2001 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Robert Colby
Emily Goetz
Henty Hardet
Art Kube
Justin O’Mahony
Barbara Passmore
Derek Swain

Larry Waterman
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REGISTRAR'S REPORT

This has been an interesting year The
College today is a very different place
than it was a year ago and most of the
changes have been very positive.

Changes have occurred in every area
of College functioning including:

- staffing positions and staff
relationships,

- physical layout of the office and
office proceduzres,

» workload and special projects,

« filing systems and file management,

» the registiation process,

+ complaint tracking and complaint
processing,

+ tracking and monitoring of letters
of undertaking,

+ the nature of ethical consultation
with registiants,

« involvement with other local health
and other professional regulatory
organizations

While further change is necessary, we
know what needs to be done. This
process has involved the very hard work
of the entire staff, College counsel and an
outside consultant who is an expert on
organizational change. If we stay on
track this process of change should start
to stabilize in another two
Examples of changes are outlined in the
context of the various areas of college
functioning discussed below:

years.

Staffing  Positions  and
Relationships: EBach position at the
College has been evaluated in terms of
work flow and wotk load. We eliminated

one full time permanent staff position

Staff

and have replaced it with a part time
contract position of two days a week,
supplemented by an office helper
position of approximately 2 days per
week on average The Board of Directors
endorsed the ongoing need for a Deputy
Registrar. At the moment this position is
equivalent to that of “special projects”
coordinator, ably filled by Dr. Carol
Solyom. This position will likely evolve
into a more discrete set of functions as
we complete the immediate tasks of
bylaw development and compliance
with AIT. Role clarity and areas of work
overlap was targeted as a priority for
change this year. The guiding principle
for change was that there should be
acceptance of multi-tasking and equality
among the three full time support staff
positions. A new position of “Complaint
Coordinator” has been developed This
position is held by Mrs, Vicki Huxtable
who is in her 9% year of loyal service to
the College. Ihis position is designed to
be equivalent in function and 1ole to
that of the “Registration Coordinatos”
position enthusiastically filled by Ms.
Lyn Hellyar The position of
Receptionist/Board Secretary, cheerfully
filled by Mrs Judy Clausen, is still in an
evolving stage as the volume of phone
calls and committee activity has
significantly increased over the past year.

Physical Layout and  Office
Procedures: Those of you who have
visited the office of Jate will have noticed
some dramatic tearrangements These
changes have been made with safety and
confidentiality of sensitive materials in

0
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mind. There were two incidents this year
that brought the issue of safety to the
fore We hope that the budget approved
by the Board will include funds for a
safety gate if not a fuller renovation to
allow for a proper waiting area and gate
to keep anyone from walking right
through into the heart of the office area
In response to these events we requested
a consultation from a member of the

,,,,,,

and oifice J.d.)r’O at

P

RCMPF on security
The constable was clear that our office
setup made the staff vulnerable and
proper protection. As a
temporary step, we have moved the
waiting area to the hallway and placed a
table to block antomatic entry. These
changes have also been made with
regard to concern for the confidentiality
of much of the office material

without

Workload and Special Projects: The
volume of work handled by the College’s
capable staff has been astronomical over
thie past year Special demands on
College during the past year include:
dealing with the “backlog™ of complaint
files, a complete revamping of complaint
correspondence including changes. in
ftequency, format and style, increased
correspondence (mote than 970 formal
pieces of correspordence xelated to
statutory functions alone), preparing for
and arranging two Special General
Meetings aud two “Aunual” General
Meetings, increased mail outs, sigmficant
staff transitions, extia Board meetings,
meetiugs of the Iuquiry
Committee, preparation of several drafts
of the draft bylaws, the draft Self-

extra

Assessment documents from the Quality
Assurance Committee, changes in
process and forms due to the new
legislation, transfer of data fiom the old
Register to the new Register database,
verification of the data, and the
introduction of the website and e-mail,
making it easier for an even greater
number of people to make requests of
staff time. These and other projects have
pushed capacity to its limits and beyond
The dedication of our office staff is
worthy of high praise. We now hold staff
meetings on a weekly basis. This allows
for early intervention and problem

‘solving, as well as mutual support.

Filing Systems and Information
Management: There have been some
significant changes in
documentation of College business We
have established a database for each
aspect of College functioning for which
information retrieval and tracking is
useful and /or important. This includes
a new Register, a Complaint Tracking
Database, Applicant Tracking Database,
Closed File Database, FIPPA Request
Database, Ombudsman Investigation
Database, Letter of Undertaking
Database, Appeals Database, Complaint
Inquiry Database. Specific databases are
described in the relevaut sections of this
teport. The generic issue is that we are
making every attempt to have up-to-
date  information for
registiants aud the public when they call.
We have also increased the confidence
level of the accutacy of the iuformation
entered into the system with attention to

our

available
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verification and cross-checking of

information. We have addressed the
mannet in which we log incoming and
outgoing documents and the division of
information into privileged and
confidential, working documents and
original document file We are in the
process of developing a policy for Boatd
approval on file storage and destruction
which we anticipate for implementation
in the new year. We are also engaged in
a process of reviewing all registrant’s files
to assess which documents the College
needs to maintain on file and for what
period of time.

The Register of the College has been
completely updated and redesigned. A
total of approximately 850 registrants
have completed and returned the update
form mailed out in August. We now

have more confidence in the accuracy of

information in the Register as well as
clarity with regard to information that is
to be provided to the public. This
updating process was necessary for a
number of reasons including the update

to a new software program, issues of

completeness of information, and a
reliable system for tracking registrant
status It also involves verification of the
computer information with that in the
paper file kept for each registrant. This
process has been useful in identifying
areas of document tracking for the
registration process itself.

The Registration Process: The
Registration  process  will receive
significant atiention in the coming year

The AIT process is having an impact on
regulatory bodies across the country and
we are no exception The Registration
Committee and office staff will be
woiking hard to ensure that our
admission criteria and standards are in
Tine with the teciprocity agreement to be
signed by participating jurisdictions on
July 1,2001. During the course of the past
year we have done extensive review of
our carrent registration process and have
identified target arcas for change There
is a tremendous amount to do but we
are confident that we know what needs to
be accomplished.

Statistics representing the regisiration
process may be found in the report of
the Registration Committee chair.

Complaint Tracking and Complaint
Processing: Many of the changes in this
area have been previously described.
The changes have been significant.
Changes extend from the nature and
timing of first  contact with
complainants, a system of regular
updates for  complainants and
respondents, tracking of contact with
complainants and respondents in the
Tracking Database, integration and
linkage of information from word
processing and database programs,
presentation and discussion of all
complaints with the Inquiry Committee
(and the requirement under the Health
Professions Act that all complaints be
investigated), to implementation of
informal means of complaint resolution
(including mediation, without prejudice

b
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meetings and other voluntary options)
At the point of initial contact, the
complaint process is described to
complainants and expectations of this

process are reviewed Our tracking of

initial contact with complainants and
potential complainants indicates that
this process has likely reduced the
number of complaints received this yeat
by20% The number of complaints has
traditionally increased year by year
Sixty-six complaint form packages were
requested as of Nowv. 30,2600,

The challenge of developing and
implementing these systems in the face

of a backlog of close to 100 open
complaint files was enoxmous and
continues to impact on workload and
work stress. The processes implemented
will facilitate a more accurate and
efficient tracking of our progress and as
we continue to bring the older complaint
files to a close, will translate into more
efficient complaint management from
start to finish.

To illustrate the current process I am
reproducing here a draft version of a
flow chart (see Figure 1) depicting our
working imodel of the complaint
management process.

r
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FIGURE 1

CoMPLAINT PROCESS FLow CHART

INITIAL CONTACI TO INQUIRY COMMII TEE

+ By Telephone
« Signed Letter of Complaint

-

A. By Telephone
+ Complaint
package sent

B. Signed Letter of
Complaint
» Complaint numbez

L

assigned

+ Logged into
Maximizer

+ Original document,
working papers and
privileged and-
confidential
(if necessary)
files prepared

+ Log of documents
prepared

» Letter to complainant
acknowledging receipt
of complaint

+ Tetter to respondent
advising complaint
has been received

+ Files given to Registrar
and Complaints
Coordinator fot review

» File triaged for:
W Public protection

issues
W Needfor legal
consultation

A Initial Review

by Registrar

+ Registrar’s Summary
prepared outlining
facts of case and
recommendations

« File delivered to the
Inquiry Committee

B, Preparation for

Inquiry Committee

» Files included on
agenda

+ Prepatation of files

for committee
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CoMPLAINT ProOCESS FL.ow CHART

g

INQUIRY COMMITTEE
ACTS

INQUIRY COMMITTEE
DECISION

A Directs Registrar to:

+ Obtain more
specific
information

+ Arrange interviews
if indicated

+ Obtain clinical files

+ Further investigate

+ Writes requesting

] clinical files
_ )+ Logs clinical files
- « Compiles
information
and agenda items
for meetings

B Inquiry

Committee may:

+ Directly make
decision

- Assign Case to
managet

» QOther

. Registrar is

directed to:
+ White 33(5) lettet
to respondent

. Committee may:

+ Decide not to
proceed

+ Dismiss

+ Proceed to Letter
of Undertaking
or other
disciplinary
action

» Othex

C. Following decision

in the Registrar is

directed to:

» Coordinate
preparation of letters
of undestaking

o Notify complainant and
respondent of decision

+ Advise complainant and
respondent of appeal
procedures

+ Prepare files for appeal
to the Discipline
Committee

+ Close file and
coerdinate archiving
procedures
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The table below provides complaint statistics for the past 5 years

Figure 2 Coraplaint Statistics 1996-2000

Year Total #of total # # of files File closures
of complaints complaint files brought forward | during the year
closed (resolved | tothenextyear | 2000 from each
or dismissed) by year year
during each year
1996 38 not available 35 8
1997 45 5 74 4
1998 47 24 97 16
1999 55 54 98 26
2000 53 67 84 13
(As of 11/30) {plus 4 closings (Open files
in progress) as of 11/30)

As shown in the table, we have closed a
total of 67 files this year. Of the files
closed to date _

- 63% (n=42) were dismissed because
there was no ethical violation (n=20)
ot a decision was made not to proceed
d (because of loss of jurisdiction,
withdrawal of the complaint by
complainant or insufficient
information (n=22).

Decision Not To Proceed —

Dismissed - No Violation —

Resolved —

. 37% (n=25) were 1eviewed by the
Inquiry Committee and closed because
the ethical violations were addressed
through a letter of undertaking
negotiated with the tespondent (n=15)
or resolved through a mediated
resolution (n=10).

These numbers are depicted in Figure

3 below

0 5

10 i5 20 55

FIGURE3. RESOLUILON OF CLOSED FILES

b
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Of the 98 files that were open on
January 1,2000 we have closed 54 at the
time this report went to print

Of the 44 1emaining files:

« 14 remain under active review,

+in 12 cases a letter is being prepared
under Section 33(5) of the Health
Professions Act ot a response to this
letter is awaited, in three instances we

33(5) —

Citation Under Preparation — §
Closed —

Closing in Progress —
Information Negotiation —
LU in Progress —

Negotiation —

Special —

Under Active Review —

are negotiating a letter of undertaking

- 12 cases are in formal or informal
negotiation and in one case a citation
is being considered

The status of all complaint files as of
November 30,2000 is depicted in Figure
4 below.

13 | 1 I

o 10

FIGURE4 COMPIAINI STATUSOF ALI FILES AS OF NOVEMBER 30,2000

We have conducted a number of
practice inspections during the past year
The Health Professions Act is similar to
the Psychologists Act in providing this
authority to the College This authority
is important in instances of serious
concein about protection of the public

Without Prejudice Meetings with
Respondents: A number of without
prejudice meetings have been held this
year with respondents. To date we have
had 6 such meetings Three of these
meetings led to resolution of the
complaint matters, one meeting set the

20 30 40 50 60 70 80

direction for resolution and this is in
process, and two involved discussions of
the terms of letters of undertaking (one
led to mutual agreement and the signing
of aletter of undertaking and one is still
in process}) We are pleased with these
outcomes. This experience has been a
learning process for myself and the
members of the Inquiry Committee and
we look forwatd to being able to use this
option with increasing effectiveness aud
success.

Tracking and Monitoring of Letters of
Undertaking: One of the major tasks of

PAGE 17
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the past year has been the compilation
and tracking of Letters of Undertaking
signed by registrants with the College.
The following is a summary of all
Undertakings signed since 1996 This
summary reflects a careful review of
college files and compilation of all
Undertakings signed during the past 5
years, There are Letters of Undertaking
which predate the list below. These have
not yet been reviewed, another project
for the coming year. It is also my hope
that presentation of this information
will help to provide a clear and

informative and objective description of

this aspect of the statutory responsibility
of the college
Undertakings signed during each of the
past five years is as follows: 1996-6; 1997-
3; 1998-7; 1999-5; 2000-10 (to date}
These Undertakings are summarized
below.

1. Suspended, signed a Letter of

Undertaking describing conditions
for reinstatement for registration
Original complaint involved a dual
relationship with a female client.

2 Registrant with a medical disorder,
signed a Letter of Undertaking
monitoring the registrant’s practice
for 5 years and has agreed to
continue medical tegimen This
Undertaking will be complete next
spring.

3. Custody and access complaint led to
agreement with registrant to have
next three reports supervised

4. Investigation of a complaint about
dual relationships with a client led to

The number of

10

an Undertaking requiring defertal of
application for one year plus
conditions including supervision of
certain aspects of the registrant’s
ptactice

Inadequacies in a custody and access
report inctuding blurred boundaries
between therapist and assessor roles
led to an Undertaking including a
literature review, and super vision of
next three subsequent custody and
access or sexual abuse assessments.
Custody and access report with
insufficient detail, disregard of
testing standards and Letter of
Undertaking included letter of
apology to complainant, written
submission to the College on
importance of collateral information
and validity and reliability of
psychological tests.

Issues of competence and practicing
outside of area of expertise led to
signing an Undertaking restricting
the registrant from practicing in
custody and access area.

Tssues of informed consent and
professional judgement led to a
signed I etter of Undertaking which
included a letter of apology to the
complainant
Practicing
competence led to an Undertaking
restricting registrant from practice in
that area until  conditions
(supervision  and additional
training) are met.

Inadequacies of a custody and
access report and inappropriate
billing practice led to an Undertaking

outside  area  of

0
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11.

12,

13.

14

15.

16

including a letter of apology, correct
the report, and write a paper

A registrant
Independent medical assessment and
agreement to comply with a medical
regime for a two year period as a
result of a period of impaired ability
to practice.

Released without
appropiiate consent led to an
Undertaking including a letter of
apology and submission of a letter
to be used for obtaining informed
consent in third patty situations
Practicing outside of area of
competence and insufficient grounds
for providing a diagnosis led to an
Undertaking restricting registrant’s
use of cettain test instruments until
relevant couwrsework is completed.
Registrant also had to write a report
to the College on appropriate test
use.

Registrant made recommendations
regarding custody and
without having conducted a custody
and access assessment. The signed

agreed to an

information

access

Letter of Undertaking involved a -

letter of apology to the Court and
withdrawal of Ther
concerning custody and access.
Registrant made recommendations
regarding custody and access based
solely on information provided by
one parent who was a therapy client.
Letter of Undertaking restricts
practice in custody and access and
letter of apology.

Registrant found guilty by the courts
of sexual assault signed Undertaking

statements

17.

18.

19.

20

21

22.

suspending practice for three years
followed by assessment of fitness to
practice, training in ethics and a two
year period of supervision.
Information was released without
proper consent by a registrant who
signed an Undertaking agreeing to
write a report to College on child
protection and ethical standards
relating to confidentiality and
weifare of the client

Registrant met with children and
prepared report and presented report
in court concerning their custody
without permission of children’s
guardian. ZIetter of Undertaking
stipulates that woik in arca of
custody and access be conducted
under supervision until conditions
are met. .

Tack of corroborative information
and inadequate procedures in
conduct of a custody and access
teport led to an Undertaking
involving providing copies of three
custody and access reports, and

acknowledgment  of  1elevant
standards
Registrant  signed ILetter of

Under taking with regard to proper
handling, security and storage of files
after having moved to a new
location, leaving confidential files
behind.

Registrant agreed to a letter of
undertaking involving supervision of -
practice and a written report,
following a complaint involving
breach of confidentiality.

Registrant agreed to a Letter of

B
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23.

25

26

27

28.

29

Undertaking stipulating conditions
under which mediation may be
conducted and  appropriate
procedures for informed consent
following a complaint regarding
inappropriate conduct and lack of
consent in the mediation process.

Registrant has agreed to a restriction
on practice in area of custody and
access as the result of a complaint.

- Registrant has agreed to a restriction

on practice in area of custody and
access until competence  is
demonstrated in that area as a result
of a complaint.

Resulting from a complaint
involving professional misconduct,
practicing  outside area  of

competence, responsibility and other
ethical viclations, registrant signed a
Letter of Undertaking agreeing to
undergo assessment of fitness to
and and

practice competence

restriction of practice to area of

training

Registrant agreed to restriction on
practice in avea of custody and
access as a result of a complaint
Registrant signed Undertaking
agreeing to suspend conduct of child
assessments unless supervised as a

result of a complaint involving use of

outdated test, incorrect data and
incompleteness of arepott.
Registrant agreed not to practice in
area of custody and access as a result
of complaint

Registrant agreed to write a repott
and bave practice inspected with
regard to proper handling, storage

and security of files following a
complaint in which the registrant
had lost the file.

Registrant undertook to wiite a
paper with regard to confidentiality
and dual relationships following a

30

complaint involving dual
relationships and  breach of
confidentiality.

31, Registrant signed a Letter of
Undertaking suspending all practice

pending appeal of criminal
convictions for assault.
In combination with complaints

resolved through other means, the ten
undertakings signed during the past year
mean that the College has avoided costly
hearings and incusred significant savings
asaresult.

Title Issues: The College has conducted
10 investigations into misuse of title
during the past yeat.

Nature of Ethical Consultation with
Registrants: The College continues to
provide clarification about ethical
standards and guidelines as well as
tesource information to callers with
questions about appropriate practice
As stated previously, it is inapproptiate
for the College to provide specific advice
to registrants currently involved in an
ethical situation We are always prepared
to provide decision-making guidelines
Thete are other ways the College intends
to tespond to the responsibility of
providing ethical ~consultation to
registrants including the use of practice

i
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advisories. Currently the Inquiry
Committee is working om drafting
practice advisories in the following areas:
contents of an informed consent form to
sign with clients, informed consent in the
correctional system, practice guidelines
for practice from one’s home, critiquing
reports of other psychologists, definition
of a psychological assessment, among
others. When these drafts are completed
they will go to the Board for appioval
and then be mailed out to the registrants.
[hese practice advisories will have the
status of ethical standards. The College
will be sending out a binder along with
the mew 2001 Directory.
convenience, the binder will have a
section for compiling the Practice
Advisories as they are issued .

For your

Ombudsman Investigations: Our
activities continue to be scrutinized by
the Ombudsman who investigates
complaints against the College with
regard to our handling of complaints.
We have had a total of 6 investigations
this year Those concluded to date have
been decided in our favor.

FIPPA Requests : It is becoming more
commonplace for respondents and
complainants to request copies of the
complaint file subsequent to (and
sometimes during) the complaint
process. The processing of such requests
is exceedingly time consuming, given the
specificity of the Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act, the rights
of the multiple parties involved in a
complaint and the requirement that a

“line by line” review of all documents to
be severed takes place. We have had a
total of 9 requests during the year 2600, 2
were denied, in 3 cases we disclosed all or
some of the documentation, and 4 ate
still under review.

Involvement with other Local Health
and other Professional Regulatory
Bodies: The Deputy Registrar and L have
begun to attend the meetings of the
Health Regulatory Organizations of
British Columbia and that of the
Secretaries and  Registrars  of
Professional Oiganizations of British
Columbia . This interaction has been
both intetesting and useful At our
recommendation the Health Regulatory
Organization has begun to collect
documents from its membexs that may
be of use to other members. This
documentation includes board
orientation materials, conflict of interest
guidelines, etc It has been helpful as well
to hear of the similarity of 1egulatory
issues actoss the different professions.

Annual General and Special General
Meetings: The first “Annual” General
Meeting of the College this year was
held on May 11, 2000 consistent with
plans announced by the Board in
November 1999 that annual general
meetings would be held in May of each
year While we are now undex the Heglth
Professions Act we are still governed by
existing Bylaws and rules which stipulate
that an Annual General Meeting is to be
held in October, November or December
Thus a second Annual General Meeting is

U
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being held on December 13, 2000 The
timing of the Annual Meeting can be
readdressed by the new Board once we
have new bylaws

The Budget : At the time this report
went to print the budget for the year
2001 is still under preparation The
budget will be available as attachment to
this report. It will be available at the
AGM and mailed out te Registrants
The budget T have proposed to the Board

provides the minimum support
necessaty to sustain the changes
underway at the College.

The College on Line: This is the first
yeat that the College is “on line”. Our
website is still under development but
has alteady proven useful in facilitating
and increasing our ability to quickly
provide information to registtants ‘We
are still in the process of developing a
policy to cover the use of e-mail in the
complaint and registration process and
are evaluating encryption options.

A Word of Thanks: The dedication
and caring of the office stafl is
unparalleled. They have been
participants in and witnesses to a large
number of significant changes in
personnel, procedure and policy, some
of which took place in a short petiod of
time. We have weathered some very

i

challenging petiods over the past year. It
was a privilege to negotiate the rough
seas with this dedicated and competent
crew. Thank you also to those registrants
who take a moment to express their
appreciation for the hard work and
diligence of the staff

A word about the Inquiry Committee.
When faced with the backlog of
complaints, the committee doubled theix
aiready daunting workload Even more
impressive is their integrity and fairness,
care and competencé. The path for
navigating through the backlog and
contending with a myriad of
challenging issues was illuminated by the
wise counsel of Anthony Tobin.

The Process of Change : Many things

have changed or are in the process of

changing at the College. Some of the
change is due to external pressures such
as AII compliance or coming under
new legislation. Much of the change is
necessary because additional structure

and systems are needed in many areas of

College functioning. We are confident
that these changes will lead to
improvements in our ability to
safeguard the public interest while
ensuring fairness and due process to
registrants

Andrea Kowaz, Registrat
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DEPUTY REGISTRAR’S REPORT

The main focus of my duties at the
College throughout the year has been
development of the new bylaws. There
had been several drafts with initial efforts
of the previous registrar, the board and a
lawyet retained specifically to provide
imput on the bylaws There had also
been input from the Ministry of Health.

An early assumption--that each bylaw
had already been thoroughly consideted
by the board--was put to rest by mid-
February. We implemented a new
approach to reconsider each and every
bylaw, conferring with other psychology
jurisdictions in Canada and with othet
Health Regulatory bodies in BC  Several
meetings were held with the full board
and in May the board approved the draft
that was disseminated to registrants,
other psychology groups - eg, the
university depar tments of psychology -
and to health regulatory organizations
{from whom the government would
ultimately seek feedback).

Responses to the draft bylaws were
many and varied. BCPA made an
extensive 1esponse which was partially
discussed by the board November 17,
2000. The hot button item was the
proposed class of registrant--Registered
Practitioner in Psychology--and the
issue of masters level registration,
generally. Individual responses to
comments and queries were provided.

The registrants petitioned the board for
an SGM to discuss the bylaws. Two
SGMs were held - September 21 and

November 9. The first meeting was
concerned with the issue of governance
under the Health Professions Act and the
issue of masters level registration. At the
second meeting additional information
was provided by the board to clarify the
steps that had led to the College coming
under the HPA and to the proposal for
masters level registrants; Stuart Clarke,
co-chair and the BC representative to the
Labour Mobility Cootdinating Group
under the Agreement on Internal Trade--
clarified what regulators as agents of
government must do to comply with the
agreement. At the BCPA Annual
Convention, a panel on AIT discussed the
current state of development at the
Psychology Sectoral Woiking Group on
AIT. The six core competencies were
described as well as the deadline for
compliance, July 1, 2001

The most recent draft of the Mutual
Recognition Agreement to which
Canadian Regulators will be signatories
has been consulted, a complete review of
all bylaws by the registrar, legal counsel
and myself has begun. The most recent
revisions will be posted on the Website
and a vote of support will be sought
from registrants.

In addition to the above, I have been
involved with the Chronicle, writing
policy and procedutes, collecting
information to revamp the registration
process, upgrading forms, helping the
Quality Assurance Committee complete
its self-assessment questionnaire, and
planning for new board member
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orientation. I have also attended two
meetings on behalf of the College--
PSWAIT in March, and ASPPB’s Fortieth
Annual Meeting in October.

The year has been extremely busy The
staff took on the extra workload my
position placed on them with grace and
the expenditure of moxe hours of their
free time. I want to thank each and
everyone for their efforts and for putting
up with my frequent interruptions -
Vicki Huxtable, Lyn Hellyar and Judy
Clausen.

The registrar, Dz. Andrea Kowaz, shared
my experience daily of being a
newcomet who had to speedily catch up
with history and unfolding events Tam
grateful for her ongoing support and
friendship

1 commend the board, where 1 once
resided, for their hard wotk and heroic
efforts in dealing with multiple
challenges and demands. I wish them a
restfill 2001.

Carol Solyom, Deputy Registraz

INQUIRY COMMITTEE REPORT

It has been a little over a year since I

accepted an appointment to the Board of

the College of Psychologists, and
following that, the position as Co-Chair
of the Inquiry Committee. As a Lay
Member, appointed by the Government
to protect the public, I am aware that the
paramount function of a regulatory
body is to regulate the profession that it
governs. That s, to thoroughly
investigate and to fairly adjudicate
complaints from the public A profession
is only as good as its public relations

When 1 became a member of the
Inquiry Committee there was a
tremendous backlog of complaints; there
were many questions surrounding the
process (o1 lack of process) in place at
the time and there were a lot of unhappy
people, which included members of the

public, College registrants, and the
Government of B.C

It was obvious that some things had to
change. The Inquity Committee, in
conjunction and major consultation with
the Registrar, Andrea Kowaz, and College
Counsel, Tony Tobin, began to tackle the
problems. Some of the recent

accomplishments are:

+ anew tracking system fot complaints;

- anew set of consistent procedures fot
communicating with complainants
and respondents which take into
consideration due process and

procedural fairness;

a new set of procedures for the

investigation and adjudication of

complaints;
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efforts to provide quarterly updates
on file status to complainants and
respondents;
. the drafting of Practice Advisories in
various important practice areas;
the closing of 42 complaints, either
because there was no ethical violation,
the complaint was vexatious, there
was insufficient information, or the
complainant withdrew the complaint;
and
« the resolution of many compiaints
through Letters of Undertaking and
informal communications.

.

1 wishto praise all the membets of the
Inquiry Committee for their selfless
dedication to their profession and to the
public, and their willingness to work
many volunteered houss. For the first

five months of this year the Committee
met twice per month and discussed and
investigated an enormous number of
complaints Each individual probably
averages at least 40 hours of work per
month on your and the Colleges behalf

Let’s give them a big Thank You!

Barbara Passmore, Chair

INQUIRY COMMIT TEE MEMBERS
Fva Allan

Mary Ann Cartex

Flsie Cheung

Trish Crawford

Marion Fhrenberg

Marvin McDonald

Barbaza Passmore

Donald Read

PATIENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE

Under the Health Professions Act, the
College must form a Patient Relations

Committee which makes
recommendations to the Board with
regards to:

a) the establishment of specific

procedures by which the College deals
with complaints of professional
misconduct of a sexual nature;

b) monitot and periodically evaluate
the opesation and procedures established
in “a”;

¢) develop and coordinate for the
College, educational programs dealing

with professional misconduct of a sexual
nature for registrants and the public as
required;

d) establish a Patient Relations
program  to professional
misconduct, including professional
misconduct of a sexual nature; and

¢) develop guidelines for the conduct

of registrants with their patients.

prevent

T have suggested to the Board that three
phases be dome in organizing this
committee Phase 1 has been completed
by the mail-out of 28 letters to different

—{
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colleges of psychology and other health
profession organizations to benchmark
policies and procedures from other
groups. We received some
documentation and feedback Phase 2,
to be done next, is to gather together
interested volunteers including a lay
person to be a part of the committee
and to begin reviewing the information

have

received. I am pleased to report that
some excellent psychologists have
expressed interest in working on this
committee. Phase 3 will be the writing
and organizing of policies and teaching
materials to be used by the College.

Brenda Kosaka, Chair

QUuALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

The putpose of the Quality Assurance
Committee is to develop procedures and
processes that assist psychologists in
and enhancing their

The committee was

maintaining
competency.
previously known as the Continuing
Education committee The change in
the name of the committee to Quality
Assurance was approved by the Boaid in
July of 1998. It represented a shift in
activities of the committee from
approving and documenting
professional development activities of
psychologists, to developing a selt-
assessment guide as a basis for creating a
professional development plan to
maintain and enhance competence in
their areas of practice The process will
also require registered psychologists to
sign a yeatly declaration attesting to the
completion of a self-assessment process,
in order to maintain their registration as
psychologists.

During the past two years the
committee has been actively engaged in

creating the self-assessment guide using
codes of ethics and standards of practice
from a variety of sources, including the
Canadian Psychological Association, the
American Psychological Association and
the Association of State and Provincial
Psychology Boards. The self-assessment
document was circulated to a strategic
sample of 1egistered psychologists in
September, 2000 Changes were made on
the basis of the feedback received. The
self-assessment guide should be ready for
circulation to registrants of the College
early in 2001

It has been a pleasure for me to work
with the committee on the challenging
and interesting task of creating the seif-
assessment guide. I would like to express
my thanks appreciation to
committee members fot their hard work
and good humour in approaching and
completing this important task. On
behalf of the committee I would also like
to express my appleciation to Judy
Clausen for all of her woik in formatting

and

bl
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and typing the guide and questionnaire
and at times decipheiing the
indecipherable.

Bill Borgen, Chair

QUALIIY ASSURANCE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Bill Borgen

Sheollagh Fitzgerald
Angela Gedye

Emily Goetz

Julian Gray

Ronald I aTorze

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Since the last report of November 1999,
tollowing is a list of the activities of the
Registration Committee:

+ 43 applicant files were reviewed for
1egistration

+ 50 candidates wiote the EPPP
(Examination for the Piofessional
Practise in Psychology)

+ 59 candidates were assessed by oral
examination

+ 7 reviews of coursework and/or
supervision arrangement plans were
conducted

- 63 files presently are awaiting review
for eligibility to proceed to written or
oral examinations

+ 56 registrants were entered in the
Register of the College

+ 1,069 registiants are cutrently in the
Register
25 individuals ceased to be registered

due to resignation or non-payment of

dues.

The trend observed the previous year
of an increasing number of pre-

application coursework and/or

supervision  arrangement 1eviews
continued during this year as well. This
tfrend will undoubtedly continue,

particularly with the likelithood of
change in registration categories.

In addition to its basic activities
involving a review of College application
materials and decision-meking with
respect to an applicant’s registration
status, the Committee provided input
and consultation into the development
of the draft bylaws under the Health
Professions  Act, with respect to
registration issues. The committee also
initiated an ongoing review and
evaluation of the procedures and
processes involved in the application/
registration process in order to
restructure some of these; in order to
make the process more efficient and

reliable. Also continuing is a review of

oral examination and appeal procedures,
and and coursework
requirements. New activities to be
potentially initiated in the very near
future include the development of a
jutisprudence examination, guidelines to

supervision

(4
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help standaidize the oral examinations,
standards of entry for new registrants in
new tegistration categories, and the
development of training or orientation
materials and workshops

Duiing this past year the Registration
Committee gained two new members--
Di. Rosemary Alvaro, and Dr David
Johnston--and thiee members “tetited”
at the end-of their mandates ~Dr. Colleen
Wiikie, Dr Randy Paterson, and Di
Leonard George I wish to thank these
individuals and the other continuing
committee members for their work and
commitment on behalf of the College

~and its registrants.

The Committee expresses its
appreciation to those members who
volunteered as oral examiners or in
other capacities. We especially wish to
thank the Registration Committee Co-
otdinatot, Lyn Hellyar, for her ongoing
work and support of the activities of the
Committee, as well as the Registrar and
Deputy Registrar for their assistance
during this past year.

Stephen Flamer, Chair

REGISTRATION COMMIT TEE
Rosemary Alvaro

David Eveleigh

Stephen Flamer

Leonard George

David Johnston

Gerry Koe

ArtKube

Alla Nikonova

Randy Paterson
Colleen Witkie

ORAL EXAMINERS
Eva Allan

Don Allen
Rosemarie Alvaro
Randy Atkinson
Michael Barden
Keith Barnes

David Batstone
Barbara Beach
Carole Bishop
Douglas Boer
Michae! Boissevain
Contad Bowden
Leigh Bowie
Roland Bowiman
Jim Browning
Barbara Burnside
Geofirey Carr
Mary Ann Carter
Elsie Cheung
Robert Colby
Michael Coles
Evelyn Cotker
Susan Cross

Yaya de Andrade
Anthony Dugbartey
Dorothy Edgell
Greg Fechan
Sheollagh Fitzgerald
Angela Gedye
Gwyneth Gilliland
Julian Gray

Gerald Guest
Henry Harder

Clair Hawes

Eileen Hendry
Steven Horvath

i
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Elizabeth Huntsman
Matk Jackman
Owen James

Anne Matie Jones
Charlotte Johnston
Michael Joschko
Lesley Joy

Don Knowles
Martha Kellex
Deborah Kerr
Krystyna Kinowski
Beverley Kort

Larry Krywaniuk
Leora Kuttner
Jocelyne Lacroix
Ronald LaTotre
Barry Ledwidge
Douglas Lee

Robert Leonard
Wolfgang Linden
Stephen Lustig

John MacDonald
Mary Ann MacDonald
Anne MacGregot
Joanne MacKinnon
Barbara Madani
Ronald Manley
Patricia Manly
Kenneth Maish
Anne Matshall
Jeffrey Martzke
Laura-Lynne McBain
Jane McEwan
Kimbetley McEwan
Marilyn McVicar
Stephen Milstein
Kathleen Montgoinery

Janice Nelson

Joan Pinkus
Charles Pirsel*
Donald Ramer
Gordon Reid
Barbara Rosen-Harris
Maribeth Ruckman
Deborah Samsom
Danielle Savasta
Jon Schwabach
Heather Scott
Martin Shoemaker
Ruth Sigal

Carson Smiley

Cec Smith

Frank Spellacy

Paul Swingle

Astrid Stec
Roxanne Still

Paul Sungaila
Karen Tallman
Steven Taylor

Joyce 'Ternes
Georgia Tiedemann
Jean Toth

Max Uhlemann
Noelle Vogel
Tertance Wapshall
Chetyl Washburn
Gayle Way

Rene Weideman
Penelope Whillans
Marshall Wilensky
Patricia Wilensky
Rosematy Wilkinson
Ted Wormeli

Steve Welch

*In memoriam: Chatles will be sadly missed for his kindness and generosity to the
Registration Committee and his profession. He passed away, the result of a diving

accident, in October.

[
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MINUTES OF THE GENERAL MEETING,
MAY 11,2000

The General Meeting of the College of
Psychologists was held on May 11,2000
at the Executive Inn, Richmond, and the
Clarion Grand Pacific Hotel in Victotia
linked by teleconference. Chair Verna
Amell called the meeting to order at 5:46
pm with 55 members piesent in
Vancouver, and 29 membets presentin
Victoria,

Dr. Amell welcomed the registrants to
the meeting and thanked them for their
support. Dr. Doreen Kilpatrick chaired
the meeting in Victoria Dr Amell
introduced the Board members D1 Bill
Borgen, Dr. Stephen Flamer, Mr. Art
Kube, Dr Marvin McDonald, Ms.
Anastasia Mirras, Ms. Barbara Passmore
and Mr Blake Williams,

Staff members present were Registrar,
Dr. Andrea Kowaz, Deputy Registrar, D1
Carol  Solyom, Assistant Deputy
Registraz, Vicki Huxtable, Registration
Coordinator, Lyn Hellyat, and Recording
Secretary, Judy Clausen.

AGENDA

The circulated agenda was reviewed. It
was moved by Paul Peel and seconded
by Lvelyn Cotker that the agenda be
approved as circulated. Carried

MINUTES

Errors and omissions: It was moved by
Cheryl Conant and seconded by Debbie
Samsom that the Minutes of the
November 4, 1999 Annual General

gl

Meeting be approved as circulated.
Carried

Business arising from the Minutes:
None

Because the last Annual General
Meeting was held in November, the
Chair, Dr. Amell, reported that there
would be no committee teports
presented at this meeting. She was
pleased to announce the appointments
of Dr. Andrea Kowaz, Registrat, and D1.
Carol Solyom, Deputy Registrar,
following the resignation of Dr Ed.
Kramer. Dr. Amell also advised that the
College had come under the Health
Professions Act effective January 1, 2000,
and reported on the Scope of Practice
Hearings.

The Secietary Treasurer, M Blake
Williams, presented the financial report
and announced that the adjustment to
registration fees as discussed at the
November 1999 meeting would be
$200 00 for full registiants and $100.00
for non-practicing and out-of-province
registrants, Support was given fox fully
funding the activities of the College.

Motion to receive the financial report.
Moved by Paul Peel and seconded by
Julian Gray Carried.

Motion to receive the auditors report
Moved by Angela Gedye and seconded
by Evelyn Corker. Carried

The meeting adjourned at 7:38 p m.
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1418
1419
1420
1421
1422
1423
1424
1425
1426
1427
1428
1429
1430
1431
1432
1433
1434
1435
1436
1437
1438
1439
1440
1441
1442
1443

PsYCHOLOGISTS ADDED TO
THE REGISTER

(BE1 WEEN NOVEMBER 1999 AND NOVEMBER 2000)

Mark Davies, Ph D
Wallace Dudley, Psy.D
Catherine Foin, Ph.D.
Don Hutcheon, Ed D.
Julia Jacobson, PhD.
Michael Anderson, Psy.D.
7ohreh Behboodi, Ph D
Grant Bogyo, Psy D
Dale Brocks, Ph D.
Colleen Cannon, Ph D.
Charu Chopra, Ph.D
Rita Dunn, Ed.D
Damon Elgie, Ph D.
Wayne Emery, Psy. D.
Deborah Forrest, Ph D
Ingrid Friesen, Ph D.
Christina Grant, Ph D.
Sheila Haegert, PhD
Lauta Hanson, Ph.D.
Diana Hartel, Ph D
James Hill, Ph D
Dawn Knapton, PhD
Katherine Kot, Ph D.
Allison Krause, Ph D
Lara Robinson, Ph D
Joel Rosenberg, PhD.

1444 John Taylor, Ph D
1445 Tnna Vlassev, Ph.D.

1447 Brian Worth, Ph.D.

1448 Jan Gordon, Ph D,

1449 Todd Kettner, Ph.D.

1450 Elisabeth Lang, Ph D
1451 Deveda Mah, Ph.D

1452 Deidre O’Sullivan, Ph D.
1453 Susan Simpson, PhD.
1454 Meagan Smith, Ph.D
1455 Marie Achille, Ph.D

1456 Matilyn Allison, Ph D.
1457 Susan Baum, Ph.D
1458 Sherri Bxuce, Ph.D
1459 Joanna Chung, Ph.D
1460 Jeff Drugge, Ph D.

1461 David Erickson, Ph.D.
1462 Heather Gretton, PhD.
1463 Zender Katz, Ph D.

1464 Russell King, PsyD.
1465 Deborah Kors, Ph.D.
1466 Christine Lilley, Ph D
1467 Lyne Piche, Ph.D.

1468 Suzanne Popham, PhD.
1469 Roger Wells, Ph.D.

1470 Karen Whittemnore, PhD.
1471 Sylvain Boies, Ph.D
1472 Maureen Godfrey, Ph D.
1473 Nancy Mevyet, PhD.
1474 Sheila Woody, Ph D.
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Report from the Chair

This last year has proved to be a
most exciting and dynamic time for the
Board. We have worked at formulating
and completing a large number of tasks
that had been ongoing for an extended
period of time. In the process of doing
this, we were also well aware of Federal
and Provincial Government initiatives
and plans which presented a challenge
for the College as we attempted to
maintain the role of protecting the public
while furthering the integrity of the
profession of Psychology. The process
led the College into the position of
making changes to the categories of
registration. We recognize the categories
do not have the universal acceptance
of our Registrants. We have proceeded
in this process while keeping an eye
towards movement of the profession
in British Columbia to a national and
international standard.

This Board has brought to
culmination a large number of
documents within a limited time frame
and has responded to the Federal
Agreement on Internal Trade by signing
the Mutual Recognition Agreement
between the Provinces. \We have worked,
in conjunction with the Association of
State and Provincial Psychology Boards,
to develop international transportability
of psychologists in British Columbia
under the Certificate of Professional
Qualification (CPQ). The standards for
mobility provide a limited window for
the transportability of Registrants who
have been grandfathered both with and
without Doctorate Degrees. Under the
Agreement on Internal Trade there is
transportability between provinces with
a grandfathering period and recognition
of psychologists who are registered in
good standing in their home province.

Under our Federal obligation, we have
established an extended scope of title by
entering into an agreement between the
Provinces and Territories for a two tiered
registration system. It is the role of the
profession to educate the public about
this differentiation while supporting the
qualifications and experience of our full
registrants. This will be an ongoing
challenge. With the closing of the
grandfather clause and with the review
of the credentials for transportability,
the competency requirements will place
extremely heavy academic responsibility
on those individuals who seek to be
recognized in other provinces. This,
again, is done in order to ensure the
integrity of the profession.

This Board has moved forward in
establishing bylaws under the Health
Professions Act. While there were model
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bylaws presented to the College by the
Ministry of Health, we have proceeded
as far as possible to ensure that the
College bylaws meet the needs of our
profession. This framework reflects the
two classes of registration and, again, the
Board has made every effort to ensure,
within that framework, maintenance of
as strong a standard of professional
qualifications and competencies as
possible. The core competencies present
us a model for education which is at the
highest level of educational standards.
We are establishing aregistration process
to assess candidates for registration
on the core competencies. It is the
profession’s role to ensure that the
public is informed of the differences
between the two registration categories
while at the same time ensuring that the
rights, responsibilities and professional
recognition of all of our registrants are
known to the public.

We have attempted to maintain
our current fee structure in a very
unpredictable environment. As aBoard,
we cannot accurately predict what the
expenses or revenues are in relationship
to an expanded body of registrants or
of a two tiered system. Further we
have been successful in the last year
of avoiding costly legal hearings which
previously had looked inevitable. There
is a possibility that either a levy may
have to be established or that additional
costs may be offset by new income.
This presents an unpredictable factor in
our immediate financial future, but by
going through this experience we will
be able to re-engage in long-term fiscal
and economic planning.

One of the factors that has been
most difficult to deal with is the
change that has been underway since
the separation of the British Columbia

Psychological Association into the
College of Psychologists of British
Columbiaandthe professional advocacy/
societal body. The College of
Psychologists of British Columbia is,
as with all regulatory bodies, a quasi-
judicial arm of government. The budget
is set by the Board and, although we can
consult with the registrants on this, they
do not have direct say in the budgetary
process other than through specific
bylaw provisions. Further, the matter
of the regulation of the profession is
the sole responsibility of the Board.
Although we have sought feedback
and input, the administration of the
profession under the Health Professions
Act, provides the registrants with a
more focused and smaller mandate in
the decision-making process. Registrants
elect two-thirds of the Board (i.e. the six
psychologists on the Board), and entrust
the Board to act in their interest to
the greatest possible extent. This Board
has taken a strong stand in addressing
these concerns. In this regard, the Board
has produced not only the bylaws of
the College, but the documentation to
support the bylaws and to assist in the
registration process. Other documents
developed include a quality assurance
document for personal review but not a
part of the regulatory process; a Code
of Conduct to assist psychologists in
establishing criteria for their functioning
within their professional responsibilities;
and a jurisprudence exam for all new
applicants to assist in the process
of registration and transportability of
psychological credentials.

The process of dealing with ethics
complaints over the last two years to
include an alternate dispute resolution
model which allows both the public
and profession to address the issues
that are before it, in a less adversarial

manner. This also becomes less costly to
the profession as a whole, and to the
respondents in the process.

We face the challenge of attracting
and holding onto lay Board members
and volunteer lay committee members
in order to fulfil the mandates imposed
upon us by provincial regulations within
a very limited budget.

We have dealt with the concerns,
ambiguities and requirements that were
placed before this new Board at the
beginning of the year. We look forward
to the next year where we can proceed
with  implementing ~ matters  of
transportability, professional entrance,
and professional regulation in a manner
that both provides for public protection
and assures professional and responsible
delivery of psychological services at the
highest level.

The Board looks forward to your
future support and involvement, both
within the committee structure and with
your communications to the Board. The
College’s website will allow for better
availability of up to date information for
registrants in the new year.

| would like to express my
appreciation to the members of the
Board, College Counsel and to College
staff for their support and hard work on
behalf of the profession.

Respectfully submitted,
Robert Colby, M.S., R.Psych.
Chair
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Report from the Registrar

The concept of “fundamental
justice” is the Canadian term commonly
used to describe the fairness principles
which are essential underpinnings of the
actions of administrative or regulatory
bodies such as the College of
Psychologists. In the U.S. this term
is often referred to as "due process”.
Whatever descriptor is used the concept
at hand is one of fairness. Key elements
from the legal perspective are that of
notice and hearing. Anindividual whose
rights may be affected by a decision of
the administrative body should be given
adequate notice of the subject matter
of the proceeding in order that he or
she may respond to the matters at issue.
Additionally, there must be some form of
an opportunity to make submissions and
express their point of view before any
final decision is made. These principles
underlie the systems and procedures of
the College’s statutory, regulatory, and
administrative functions.

As you know the College of
Psychologists has undergone a series of
changes over the past few years, not
the least of which has been a concerted
effort at developing and articulating
the processes to be followed in dealing
with the mandate of regulating the
profession of psychology in British
Columbia. In addition to clarity, the
changes made have ensured, at every
step that applicants or registrants are
given the opportunity to be heard and to
make submissions prior to any decision
being made by the College. There are no
exceptions and this rule applies equally
to issues of application and registration
as to complaint matters. These efforts
are paralleled by providing members of
the publicinformation about the College
and its mandate of public protection in
a supportive and timely fashion.

The sections below provide informa-
tion with regard to Registration matters
(applications, renewals, reinstatement),

Box 1- Summary of Registration Activity

complaint matters (complaints, appeals),
and College administration (bylaw devel-
opment and the development of the
Code of Conduct, Freedom of Infor-
mation Requests, and Ombudsman
Investigations, staff issues).

REGISTRATION MATTERS

The flow chart (Figure 1) which
follows depicts the application process
as approved by the Registration
Committee. You will notice the
opportunities presented to the applicant
for submissions. This opportunity
includes being presented with the
content matter to be decided by the
Registration Committee and the request
for submissions. Where the committee
faces a choice among several options,
the individual is provided with this
information as well.

The chart below summarizes
Registration Activities at the College
over the past year:

Activity

Number

Inquiries from Registrants

780 (average of 15 per week)

Application/Registration Inquiries

1560 (average of 30 per week)

Requests for Mobility Applications 32
Application Packages Requested 52
Number of applications received 26

Number of applicants who wrote EPPP

48 (29 passes, 2 fails, 17 awaiting results)

Number of Oral examinations (42 applicants)

44 (32 pass, 6 retake, 3 limited register,
3 deciding to retake or be placed on limited

register).
Number of applications for temporary registration 3
Number of applications withdrawn 1
Number of applications refused 2
Number of applicants registered during the year 35
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Note the high number of inquiries
fielded by College staff over the past
year. This reflects the number and the
significance of the changes taking
place at the College - most notably
the signing of the Mutual Recognition
Agreement and the ways in which the
College is preparing for and adapting
to the necessary changes in registration
categories and processes. The new
categories of registration as articulated
in the bylaws will come into effect
once the bylaws have received Cabinet
approval. The numbers above also
reflect the reality of the new application
process outlined in the flow chart. One
major difference in this process is the
step by step interaction between the
Registration Committee and applicants.
However, unlike the previous "lock step”
model (once you get through a step
no further questions may be asked
about it), this process is centralized
(the Registration Committee can ask
applicants questions at any stage of the
process).

The new "mechanism” of the
Limited Register is also now in place.
At this point, individuals on the Limited
Register are those individuals needing
to complete a period of supervision or
other specific task under the Registration
Committee. Once they have satisfied
the committee that the conditions or
limitations on their practice have been
met, they will be eligible for placement
on the Register. Registrants in the
previous categories of “out of province”
and "nonpracticing” will now be placed
on the Limited Register as well.

COMPLAINT MATTERS

The chart below (figure 2) specifies
the process followed upon the College’s
receiving a complaint. In terms of the

complaint process, the issue of notice is
central.  Upon receipt of a complaint,
registrants are so notified. A registrant
about whom a complaint has been
received is called a “respondent”. After
the initial review by the Registrar, the
complaint is brought to the Inquiry
Committee. If the committee decides
to proceed on the complaint (i.e.,
jurisdiction is not an issue) the
respondent may be requested to provide
their clinical file. Review of the clinical
file is an important aid to the committee
in deciding whether the complaint
investigation needs to continue further.
Once the clinical file has been reviewed,
the committee may decide not to
proceed or to dismiss the complaint.
Alternatively, if concerns have been
identified by the Inquiry Committee,
these concerns are articulated in a letter
from the College to the respondent.

For all complaints that reach this
stage, the respondent is provided with
a full copy of all of the documents upon
which the Inquiry Committee will be
basing their decision. The respondent is
provided with details of the complaint at
this point. The respondent is requested
to provide any information he or she
believes the Inquiry Committee should
consider in rendering a decision. This
request provides the respondent with
the opportunity to make submissions
directly to the Inquiry Committee.

As mentioned above, the clinical
file is typically requested before the
registrant is provided with a copy of the
documents upon which a decision of the
Inquiry Committee will be based. Some
registrants have asked the question why
they do not receive all of the complaint
documents as soon as they are received
by the College. One of the reasons for this
is that sometimes a review of the clinical
file precludes the necessity of going any

further. At other times, review of the
clinical file presents additional questions
to which the Inquiry Committee will
want to ensure the registrant has the
opportunity torespond. Oncethelnquiry
Committee has identified the issues then
the registrant can be notified of the
committee’s concerns and provided with
the opportunity to express his or her
point of view.

Some registrants have been
unwilling to provide clinical files for
fear of breaching client confidentiality.
This is not an issue, as has now been
made explicitly clear in the new Code
of Conduct. The cooperation with the
request of the Inquiry Committee to
provide a true copy of the clinical file is
the leastintrusive means of providing this
information. However, under Section 28
of the Health Professions Act, the Inquiry
Committee can appoint an inspector
to inspect the practice records of a
registrant and make copies.

An example of a real complaint
recently handled by the College may
be useful. This is a true case but with
some details altered. A complainant
sent in a letter of complaint along with
three indexed binders and a list of 124
allegations.  The initial letter to the
registrant informed him that a complaint
had been received and from whom. In
addition the registrant was informed
that the complaint had to do with an
assessment the registranthad completed
onherson. Theclinical file was requested
and reviewed. The letter sent to the
registrant after the committee had
reviewed the materials outlined three
concerns of the Inquiry Committee. In
addition, accompanying this letter, the
registrant was sent a complete copy
of the three binders of material as
well as the other original complaint
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continued from page 8
documents. The registrant called to  that the committee had narrowed their  page letter. The committee was satisfied

inquire if he needed to respond to  concerns to the three issues he was  with hisresponse and the complaint was
the 124 allegations. He was informed  askedtoaddress. Herespondedinaone  closedbecause ofinsufficientevidence of

Figure 2 — The Complaint Process

STAGE ACTION POSSIBLE OUTCOME INFORMATION
AVAILABLE TO REGISTRANTS
1. ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND Acknowledge complaint and ALL
COMPLAINT BROUGHT initial complaint review by PROCEEDINGS
FORWARD TO INQUIRY Registrar/Deputy Registrar-Inquiry, OF
COMMITTEE then to Inquiry Committee. THE
INQUIRY
2. COMPLAINT REVIEW Initial complaint review Earliest point at which complaint could COMMITTEE
be dismissed for jurisdictional reasons ARE
CONFIDENTIAL
3. CLINICAL FILE REQUEST Clinical file request
4. CLINICAL FILE REVIEW Review of clinical file Earliest point at which complaint

could be dismissed because of lack
of evidence of ethical violation.

5. 33(5) LETTER AND Letter outlining concerns of Inquiry
PROVISION OF FILE Committee and requesting
TO REGISTRANT submissions sent to registrant along

with complete copy of all documents
upon which committee will be
making any decision (under section

33(5) of the Act.
6. REVIEW OF 33(5) LETTER Review of response to 33(5) letter
7. DECISION Inquiry committee decision For all files remaining open at this
stage the decision options include: (a) None
(a) Decision not to proceed (b) Restrictions or limitations are
(jurisdictional issues/problems) or submitted to ASPPB database
decision to dismiss (insufficient and made available to public
evidence of ethical violation). on request, unless protection
(b) Issue Letter of Undertaking to concerns, in which case
address Inquiry Committee it may be published.
concerns. (c) None unless restrictions or
(c) Informal resolution. limitations.
(d) Refer to Discipline Committee (d) Issuing of a citation for a
for a hearing. hearing and the citation itself
are public documents, decision
of the hearing is public and the
hearing is open to the public.
8. PRACTICE FEEDBACK On occasion, the Inquiry Committee None, nothing entered in
LETTER TO REGISTRANT decides to share observations Registrar’s file.

thought helpful to the registrant,
although no violation is found.

9. APPEALS A.If complainants are dissatisfied with| Appeal heard by Board of College (As above under Decision)
A. COMPLAINANT the decision of the Inquiry Committee| The Board may:
not to issue a citation (i.e. go to a (a)Refuse the appeal
hearing), they may file an appeal (b)Direct Inquiry Committee to act
within 14 days of notification. under Section 16 HPA

(c) Direct Registrar to issue a

citation under Section 37 HPA
B. RESPONDENT B. Registrant may appeal to Supreme
Court if Inquiry Committee acts
under Section 35(1).
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an ethical violation. Both the respondent
and the complainant were notified.
There is no record of this complaint in
the respondent’s registration file with
the College.

THE COMPLAINT "BACKLOG"

The College has made tremendous
progress in dealing with the “backlog”
of complaints that existed on January 1,
2000. As shown in Table 1, of the 97
files which were open as of that date, 78
are now closed (6 of these are awaiting
the final written report but they have
been closed by the Inquiry Committee).
Of the remaining 19 files, seven belong
to one individual (no longer a registrant)
who has left the province and with
whom the College is attempting to
negotiate, letters of undertaking are
being prepared to cover four files; a
citation is being prepared relating to
4 of these files (one registrant); one
file is undergoing informal resolution;
two files are awaiting response from
the registrant under section 33(5), and
one file has been sent for an expert
opinion in order to resolve the issues at
hand (as agreed between the College
and the registrant). This means that
the "backlog” of files has essentially
been cleared. We currently face the
challenge of continuing to develop the
systems and resources to dealing with
the current high numbers of new and
increasingly complex complaints in order
to stay “on track”.

STATUS OF ALL COMPLAINTS
PROCESSED BY THE COLLEGE
UNDER THE HEALTH PROFESSIONS
ACT.

Since the College of Psychologists
came under the Health Professions
Act, the College has processed 211
complaints, including the 97 complaints
that were open on January 1, 2000.

FILE STATUS - “BACKLOG FILES"

Negotiation —

L/U in Preparation —
Informal Resolution —

Exp. Opin. for Resolution —

Closed, Await. Written Dec. —

Closed —

Citation —

33(5)

Table 1-N =97 0

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

FILE STATUS - ALL FILES PROCESSED
SINCE JANUARY 2000

Special

Practice Inspection ]

On Hold Pending Litigation —|
Negotiation

L/U in Preparation

Informal Resolution

Expert Opinion for Resolution
Closed, Await. Written Dec. ]

Closed

Clinical File Requested
Clinical File Requested-P/I
Citation

Awaiting Review

Active Review in Progress

33(5) 1

Table 2 - N =211

The file status of these complaints
is depicted in Table 2. As shown in
the Table 4, 15 complaints are awaiting
response from registrants [33(5)], 16 are
being reviewed at an initial stage (14
active review or awaiting review), and
four are the subject of a citation to be
issued before the end of the year. For

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

five files the committee has requested
the clinical file; 138 complaints are
closed (closed or closed awaiting written
decision). For one file an expert opinion
has been requested to facilitate
resolution, and for three files an informal
resolution process is underway. There
are ten files for which letters of
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MAIN ALLEGATION -

COMPLAINTS FROM

JANUARY 1999 - OCTOBER 31, 2001

Violation of Law
Provision of Services
Professionalism/Obligations
Informed Consent
Impairment

File Access and Security
Fees and Statements
Dual Roles
Confidentiality
Competence

Client Welfare
Assessment Procedures

Table 3-N = 164

1 ‘

I I
I I I I I I I
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

AREA OF PRACTICE -

COMPLAINTS FROM

JANUARY 1999 - OCTOBER 31, 2001

School/Educ. Psychology -
Rehabilitation Psychology —
Neuropsychology

Forensic/Correctional -

Custody and Access

Clinical Psychology -

Counselling Psychology -
I
T

Table 4 - N = 164

undertaking are being prepared, eleven
files (belonging to one former registrant)
are being negotiated, two files are on
hold pending completion of litigation,
five files are the subject of a practice
inspection, and one file resulting from
a criminal conviction is under review as
the conviction was appealed.

We are in the process of developing
new categories to capture the nature of

10 20 30 40 50 60

allegations made by complainants and
to relate these allegations to the new
Code of Conduct. These new categories
are still being refined but are presented
here for their information value. Table
3 illustrates the new categories and
depicts how the 164 complaints received
by the College since January, 1999
(with the exception of four files which
were the only 1999 files closed before
January 2000) are distributed among

the categories. The vast majority of
allegations have to dowithissues relating
to assessments (for example- custody
and access, worker's compensation,
insurance claims, forensic assessments).
In the majority of these , the allegations
have to do with factual inaccuracies
in reports, offering custody and access
recommendations without conducting
a custody and access evaluation, and
bias. The next two main categories are
client welfare (examples- allegations of
rude or disrespectful behavior toward
the client ) and professionalism (late
reports, interactions with colleagues).
Confidentiality, informed consent, dual
roles and competence are also frequent
main allegations. As we develop and
enhance this system, we will be able
to provide information on how the
main allegation relates to any findings
made (i.e. decisions that specific ethical
standards have been violated) by the
Inquiry  Committee.  For  present
purposes, this category was developed
to provide a dimension independent of
the area of practice in which the alleged
violation occurred. The practice areas
for the 164 complaints are depicted
in Table 4. In terms of the practice
areas, custody and access and forensic/
correctional, while typically a subset of
clinical psychology practice, are depicted
as “stand alone” areas for information
and tracking purposes.

New categories being developed
include complainant type (e.g. client,
client relative, colleague, other), and
complaint context (assessment,
intervention, and other). Table 5 shows
complainant type. Most complaints,
as would be expected, come directly
from clients (especially clients in third-
party situations such as court ordered
assessments). The most problematic
context (as shown in Table 6) appears to
be assessment.
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Our interest in developing such
complaint categories and reviewing the
complaint files is to be able to provide
information to registrants about ways
to improve practice in particular areas
where complaints appear to be more
common. Forexample, while speculative
at this stage, the information
summarized above suggests preventive
strategies for consideration for those
registrants involved in  third-party
evaluations would be worthwhile. Third
party situations are those where
someone other than the individual(s)
being assessed has a key interest in the
outcome. Special care should be taken to
ensure that informed consent and other
parameters effecting the evaluation
are carefully articulated and explained
before commencing the assessment.

NEW COMPLAINTS

A total of 51 complaints were
received by the College during the
current year through October 31, 2001.
In terms of number of complaints for
the whole year the numbers are likely
to be similar to the past few years. The
63 complaints received in the 2000 year
included two multiple-respondent (one
complainant) complaints.

COMPLAINTS CLOSED OVER
THE PAST YEAR

Table 7 presents a summary of all
files closed over the past year. There
was a total of 69 files closed up to
October 31,2001. 51 of those files (74 %)
were not proceeded on for reasons
of jurisdiction, insufficient evidence
of ethical violation or administrative
reason (opened in error, withdrawn).
Of the remaining 26% (n=18), 14
were resolved through informal means
and four involved signing letters of
undertaking. These numbers reflect an
increase over last year in terms of the

proportion of complaints which were
not proceeded upon or dismissed. Last
year 63 percent were in that category
with 37% resolved through informal
or other means. Of the letters of
undertaking signed during the past year,
one involves agreement to supervision
of practice records to be reviewed by
College after a six month period, one
involves specific steps to address dual
relationship issues, one involves the
registrant agreeing to a restriction on
practicein the area of custody and access
and child sexual abuse allegations, and
one involves a registrant agreeing to
assessment for fitness to practice. In
terms of the main allegations for these
four files, three involved dual roles
and one had to do with assessment
procedures. For the files which were
resolved through informal means, the
main allegation had to do with
assessment procedures in five cases, four
cases involved issues of client welfare,
one case was with regard to fees, one
had to do with professionalism, and one
with provision of services.

It is interesting to note commulative
statistics for all files closed since January
2000. The total number of files closed
since that date is 138. Table 8 presents
a summary of the reasons for closing
the file. In 19 cases there was a decision
not to proceed. In 55 cases the Inquiry
Committee found insufficient evidence
of an ethical violation. Four complaints
have been referred to the Registration
Committee as they relate to individuals
who were either applicants in process
before the Health Professions Act or are
no longer registered with the College.
Another 10 complaints were either
withdrawn or were opened in error.
Two complaints reflected an attempt
by an unhappy complainant to resubmit
a former complaint and the Inquiry

committee determined that there was
no new information to be considered.
Thus a total of 95 out of 138 (69%)
complaints closed since January 2000
were not proceeded on for the reasons
outlined. Of the remaining 43 files
(31%), 25 were resolved through
informal means, 16 resulted in a signed
letter of undertaking addressing the
concerns of the Inquiry Committee
and agreed to by the registrant, and
two files resulted in the registrant
being suspended from the College of
Psychologists.

Box 2
Main Number Letters
Allegation | of Resolved | of
Complaints | Undertaking
record
keeping 1
confidentiality 1
fees and
statements 3
provision of
services 3
dual roles 1 4
client welfare 4
assessment
procedures " 10
professionalism 3
TOTAL 25 16
APPEALS

When complainants are dissatisfied
with the decision of the Inquiry
Committee not to issue a citation, they
may file an appeal within 14 days of
notification of the decision. Of all the
files closed over the past year (N=69)
by the Inquiry Committee, nine were
appealed. The appeals were heard by
the College board under the Health
Professions Act. The decision of the
Inquiry Committee was upheld in each
case.

RESOLVED COMPLAINTS AND
LETTERS OF UNDERTAKING SINCE
JANUARY 2000

Of the files that were resolved since
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COMPLAINANT TYPE - ALL FILES RECEIVED
JANUARY 2000 - OCTOBER 31, 2001

Other —

Inquiry Committee -

Colleague

Client Relative —

Client Direct — ‘

Client[3rd Party Situation —

Table 5-N =115 0 10 20 30 40 50
COMPLAINT CONTEXT -
COMPLAINTS RECEIVED

Other —
Intervention (TX) —
Assessment —| ! ! ! ! ! !
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Table 6 -N =113

Complaint numbers over the past few years are presented in the chart below.

Chart 3 - Complaint Closures

January 2000, they break down into the
following areas in terms of the main
allegation made by the complainant.

The chart below presents the files
processed by the College since January
1, 2000. The most meaningful numbers
are those from 1999 onward. All but five
of the 1999 files were open as of that
date. The numbers for the prior years are
confounded by the fact that the more
complex complaints were among those
remaining open as of January 1, 2000
and that these files were of a length
and complexity that our best efforts
to bring them to appropriate resolution
took time as well.

Administrative Matters
FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION REQUESTS

The College processed six requests
under the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act over the past
year. Two of these requests come from
one registrant, both on files which were
dismissed by the Inquiry Committee.
These requests require far more than the
photocopying of documents by College
staff. Since most of the requests that
the College receives are for copies of
records related to complaints, and given
the confidential nature of many of those
documents and the various provisions
of the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act that have to

YEAR | # OF COMPLAINTS| # OF COMPLAINT FILES CLOSED AVERAGE TIME TO CLOSE # OF COMPLAINTS REMAINING
FROM JAN. 1, 2000 FROM EACH | COMPLAINTS # OF COMPLAINTS | OPEN ON OCT. 31, 2001 FROM
YEAR (BRACKETED NUMBER - DIVIDED BY # OF MONTHS EACH YEAR
FILES OPEN AS OF 1/1/00 FROM RECEIPT TO CLOSURE

1993 N/A 2 (2) N/A 0

1995 43 1(1) 65 MONTHS (n=1) 0

1996 38 7(8) 46 MONTHS (n=7) 1

1997 45 6(7) 35 MONTHS (n=6) 1

1998 45 25(29) 27 MONTHS (n = 25) 4

1999 55 37 (50) 15 MONTHS (n = 37) 13

2000 63 47 (not applicable) 7.8 MONTHS (n =47) 16

2001 51* 13* (not applicable) 5.4* (n=13) 38

(*TO OCT.31)
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FILES CLOSED FROM
JANUARY 2000 - OCTOBER 31, 2001
CLOSING REASONS

Withdrawn —

Resolved -

Repeat Complaint —
Referred to RC
Opened in Error —

No Jurisdiction —

L/U Signed —

Insufficient Evidence —

Decision not to Proceed —

Table7-N =115 0

|
I
5 10 15 20 25 30

FILES CLOSED SINCE
JANUARY 2000 - CLOSING REASONS

Withdrawn —
Suspended

Resolved —

Repeat Complaint
Referred to RC
Opened in Error -

No Jurisdiction —

L/U Signed

Insufficient Evidence —

Decision not to Proceed —:t:l
1

Table 8- N = 138 0

be applied, not only in relation to each
documentbutalsoin relation tolinesand
sentences within each document, such
requests are a considerable resource cost
to the College.

OMBUDSMAN INVESTIGATIONS
The College has met with the
Ombudsman at his request to discuss
complaint matters pertaining to issues
relating to a backlog file. The College
continues to have discussions with that

20 30 40 50 60

office with regard to old complaints
and new processes. In addition there
have been four investigations of the
Ombudsman on behalf of former
complainants and there were no findings
against the College in these matters.

BYLAW DEVELOPMENT

Much effort was devoted to the
process of developing the bylaws and
at press time, a final draft had been
prepared. The final draft includes a copy

of the new Code of Conduct. The new
Code of Conduct will come into effect
once the bylaws have been approved by
Cabinet.

A NOTE OF APPRECIATION

The new Board of the College
had little idea of the vast volume of
issues awaiting them. They have met
the challenge with inquisitiveness and
enthusiasm. The amount accomplished
over the past year is no small tribute to
the manner with which they took on
their responsibilities. Members of the
various committees with whom | have
had the pleasure to work over the past
year should take great pride in the fruits
of their hard work. It is most rewarding
to work hard with others who share an
appreciation for the importance of the
task.

The dedication and hard work of
College staff remains unparalleled. This
past year was made all the more pleasant
with the company of the two half-time
Deputy Registrars, Colleen Wilkie and
Rafael Richman and the addition of
Maria Doyle, Inquiry Coordinator, new
Bookkeeper, Kalia Zalel and office
assistant, Avigail Cohen in addition
to continuing and most valued staff
members Lyn Hellyar, Registration and
Office Coordinator and Judy Clausen,
Communications Coordinator. The wise
counsel of Mr. Tobin continues to
be of immeasurable value. The pace
of work and the importance of the
tasks before us are very high but
they continue to be managed with
competence, thoughtfulness and caring
by our staff members all of whom have
my sincerest appreciation.

Respectfully submitted,
Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D. R.Psych.
Registrar
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Inquiry Committee Report

This has been a year of change
for the Inquiry Committee. Barbara
Passmore, our Lay member and myself
have Co-chaired this Committee since
January 2001. While always demanding
in terms of time and the issues that
need to be addressed, it has been a
pleasure working with the members of
the committee. | would like to extend
my sincere appreciation to Eva Allan,
Elsie Cheung, Marion Ehrenberg and
Trish Crawford for all the hard work
that they did during their terms on
the Committee. | would also like to
extend my ongoing thanks to the
current committee which consists of
Donald Read, Mary Ann Carter, John
MacDonald, Mel Kaushansky and
Rebecca England. Their continued
involvement and dedication has made
working with this Committee both
stimulating and rewarding.

No report on the work of this
Committee would be complete without
expressing my gratitude to the office
personnel who work closely with the
Committee members. Certainly, the
contributions of Andrea Kowaz, our
hard working Registrar, can never be
overestimated. lamalsoveryappreciative
for the dedication and involvement of
Rafael Richman, our Deputy Registrar-
Inquiry, and Maria Doyle, our Recording
Secretary and Inquiry Coordinator.
Having them come “on board” has
helped to decrease Andrea’s extensive
work week and has allowed us to pursue
many of the initiatives that have resulted
in the Inquiry Committee functioning
more efficiently and effectively than it
did previously.

| wanted to extend a special note
of appreciation to Anthony Tobin, our

Legal Counsel to the College. As many
of you know, Tony attends the Inquiry
Committee meetings and is often called
upon to offer legal opinions about
various matters. | believe (and the
statistics support this conclusion) that
having Tony available for immediate
consultation provides for more effective
functioning by the Committee. It also
in the long run saves us a considerable
amount of money. Part of what we have
been dealing with over the past year
since | began Co-chairing the Committee
are historical situations which have had
to be addressed. If legal advice in many
of these situations had been obtained or
followed, the matters could have been
handled in a very different and probably
more effective manner. We continue to
strive to ensure that procedures are putin
place which allow current complaints to
be addressed more promptly, effectively
and efficiently than they have in the
past. Tony’s advice and suggestions are
an integral part of that process.

As one of the primary Committees
of the Board, you may be interested
in our activities from January 1, 2001
through October 31,2001. The following
statistics were provided by the College
staff and | appreciate their input into
this report:
¢ Total number of complaints

processed since January 1, 2001.. 139
¢ Total number of new complaints

received since January 1, 2001 ...... 51
¢ Total number of open files............. 73
¢ Files awaiting review ....................... 2
e Files under active review ............... 14

* Practice inspections pending/in
Progress......cccccvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicices 5

e Files in which some action is in
Progress........cccccvviiiiiiiniininiiinnennnns 70

¢ Files closed since January 1, 2001.. 69

Asyou can see from these numbers,
the Inquiry Committee deals with a huge
volume of information. Thanks to the
office staff, the Committee is now
able to deal with each complaint in
a more effective manner than was
previously possible. When a complaint
is received, the office staff responds
to the complainant, tries to clarify the
issues involved to some extent, and
brings the information forward to the
Inquiry Committee to be assigned to
a Committee member. The information
is then reviewed by the Committee
member and is brought back to the next
meeting. A decision is made based on
a discussion of the findings about how
to proceed (close the file for various
reasons, request the complete file for
review, etc.). Once further information
has been obtained, itis reviewed in detail
and recommendations are brought back
to the Committee for discussion and
decisions. At that point, the registrant
may receive a 33(5) letter requesting
specific information in response to the
complaint. Information is not shared
with the registrant prior to that time
since no decision has been made by
the Committee about whether or not to
proceed with the investigative process.
Until specificissuesrelated to the relevant
legislation have been identified, it is not
possible to have the registrant respond
since specific questions have not been
formulated.

There is no doubt that much of the
work which has been done by the Board
and other Committees is going to have
an impact on the future functioning
of the Inquiry Committee. For example,
the clarification which is inherent in the
new Code of Conduct will help the
Committee identify potential problems

page 17

[

2001 —~ ANNUAL REPORT



much more easily than was possible
under the old Psychologists Act and
other legislation. The Health Professions
Act is similarly clear in terms of what
the expectations are as far as the
overall legislation is concerned. The
changes that are in the process of
being implemented by the Registration
Committee should also help to decrease
potential problems in the future which
would have come to the attention of the
Inquiry Committee sooner or later.

At the same time, there is always
going to be a need for an informed,
reasonable, and committed group of
Committee members to deal with the
complaints that are received by the
College. This is one of the foundations

of our ability to function as a self-
regulating profession. | urge any of you
who have an interest in contributing
to the activities of the profession of
Psychology in BC and to the College to
consider volunteering for a term on the
Inquiry Committee. If you do, I know you
will learn a great deal both personally
and professionally, have an opportunity
to make a definite contribution to the
functioning of the College, and gain a
better appreciation for what constitutes
"good practice” in our profession. |
can tell you from personal experience
that | have definitely benefitted from
being a member of the Committee
and participating in the thoughtful
discussions around the many issues that
must be addressed.

Finally, | would like to thank our Lay
Board Member, Barbara Passmore, for
her ongoing participation as Co-chair of
the Inquiry Committee. For a variety of
unhappy and tragic personal reasons,
Barbara has not been able to be as active
on the Committee as | know she would
have liked. However, she was certainly
presentin spiritif not always in body. We
appreciate her dedication to the work
of the College and the Committee and
value her perspective as a representative
of the public. I look forward to working
with all of the Committee members over
the coming year.

Respectfully submitted,
Dr. Larry W. Waterman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Chair, Inquiry Committee

Quality Assurance Committee Report

The direction and focus of the
Quality Assurance Committee has
changed since the Health Professions
Act came into effect for the College
of Psychologists of British Columbia.
Unlike some other standing committees,
e.g., Inquiry and Discipline, that derive
direction, duties and power directly from
the Health Professions Act, the mandate,
duties and responsibilities of the Quality
Assurance Committee are delegated to
the Committee through the College
Bylaws.

Additionally, an entirely new College
Board was voted into place.
Consequently, a significant amount of
effort this year has been given to
ensuring continuity with past Quality
Assurance efforts and compliance with
new legislation.

This year the Quality Assurance
Committee prepared a Self Assessment
Guide. This document was approved by
the Board. The Guide is to be mailed to
all registrants by the end of the calendar
year. The purpose of the Guide is to
educate and assist the self-reflective
clinician, teacher and researcher in order
to promote high standards of practice
among registered psychologists. There
is a marked place for the Guide in
the purple binder. The Guide represents
a cornerstone for the continuing
competency program that the Quality
Assurance Committee continues to
develop for approval by the Board, and
by registrants.

The members of the Committee
have worked long and hard. The
co-chairs acknowledge and thank

Committee members BillBorgen, Angela
Gedye and Julian Gray. The committee
also welcomes three new members:
Leora Kuttner, Joan Pinkus and Karen
Tee. Aswell, the Committee appreciates
and acknowledges the advice and/or
assistance of the Registrar, Andrea
Kowaz, Deputy Registrar, Colleen Wilkie,
and College Counsel, Tony Tobin. The
Committee  has been  especially
appreciative of the hard work and
assistance provided by College staff
member, Judy Clausen.

Respectfully submitted,
Emily Goetz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Co-Chair and Board Representative

Ron LaTorre, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Co-Chair and Board Representative
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Legislation Committee Report

| am pleased to announce that the
long and arduous process of creating
the first set of bylaws for the College
of Psychologists of British Columbia
appears complete. The Board is hopeful
that this document will receive cabinet
approval within the next few weeks,
thereby providingaclearandfirm process
for the regulation of the profession. The
establishment of this document has been
asignificant challenge forvarious Boards,
staff members, and psychologists.
Several drafts of this document have
received helpful feedback and, on behalf
of the Board, | would like to thank
the numerous colleagues who have
contributed to the process.

A first document of this type is by
nature likely to be contentious. And the
context in which it has been written
has been significant. One of the major
issues which has confronted us all is
the historical shift from a collegial
organization to that of a regulatory
body, the latter having the sole mandate
to protect the public. Secondly, the
provincial government’s refusal to permit

updating of the old Psychologists Actand
the subsequent inclusion of the College
underthe Health Professions Actresulted
in some urgency in writing modern
and workable operating principles which
would conform  with  government
expectations. A coincidental third issue
has been the need to revise the
registration process in order to comply
with federal legislation regarding the
Agreement on Internal Trade and the
resultantMutual Recognition Agreement
between the regulatory bodies of all
Canadian psychology jurisdictions. A
fourth issue has been the need to comply
with provincial HPA requirements for
updated and complete appendices of
these bylaws, requiring rethinking and
defining College forms, fee schedules,
and Codes of Conduct. In particular
regard to the latter, our Registrar, Dr.
Kowaz, undertook the writing of a made
in B.C. Code of Conduct which has
drawn on the most recent principles
established by the Association of State
and Provincial Psychology Boards, the
American Psychological Association, the
Canadian Psychological Association, and

Registration Committee

Let me begin by thanking the
members of the Registration Committee
(Cheryl Bradley, Dale Brooks, Colleen
Haney, Jerry Koe, Anne-Marie Jones,
Marvin McDonald, Cheryl Washburn),
the Registrar (Andrea Kowaz) and
Deputy Registrar-Registration(Colleen
Wilkie), the Registration Coordinator
(Lyn Hellyar) as well and college counsel
(Anthony Tobin) who have worked so
hard in the last year. Thanks also go
to Dr. Jim Ogloff for his work on the

jurisprudence exam. The huge volume
of work facing the committee was
matched by the spirit of cooperation
and teamwork with which it was
accomplished, and as validated by the
achievements of the past year:

(@) acompletely revised oral
examination process including:
e oral examiner training
e scoring system
¢ development of vignette-

other jurisdictions. While considerable
staff and collegial effort has gone
into the various drafts of the bylaws,
the Board has had the good fortune
and wisdom to engage legal counsel,
Bonita Thompson, who has been able
to rework the format and language
of the document in order to facilitate
government approval.

The Board is confident that these
bylaws will provide a stable platform
for the effective regulation of the
profession. The appendices are more
readily changed and are expected to
be modified according to circumstances
and feedback. We trust that while
fulfilling the mandate of protecting the
public, the bylaws will prove respectful
of registrants and will also provide
protection of the profession.

Thanks again to all who have
contributed.

Respectfully submitted,
Derek A. Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych.

Report

based examinations in each
practice area

(b) anew application process
including:
¢ new application form
¢ new reference forms and
procedure
* new criteria for required
internship experience

() anew registration renewal process
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including:
e new renewal form
* new reinstatement process and
form

(d) a written jurisprudence
examination:
o including a process for
ongoing development and
validation.

(e) anew process and procedure for
temporary registration

The new application process
including  the  opportunities  for
submissions to the Committee from
applicants, is depicted in Figure 1 in this

Report. The Registrar has also prepared
a summary of registration activities over
the past year which are included in
her report. These specific achievements
have occurred within the context of
the Registration Committee working
within the new legistalation, the Health
Professions Act and in recognition of the
provisions of the Mutual Recognition
Agreement. The overall resultis however
nothing less than a rew paradigm
under which the college now processes
applications for registration and renewal
of registrants. The amount of work
tackled by the Registration Committee
over the past year would be hard to
overestimate.

It is likely that actual meeting
time exceeded 50 hours. The issues
and decisions were made carefully,
thoughtfully and thoroughly. We are
confident that these new processes
will provide fairness to applicants and
registrants as well as public protection.
Plans for the future include work on
finalizing doctoral level admission
criteria, master’s level criteria, mobility
registration and continuing efforts to
engage in dialogue with representatives
of the university training programs in
the province.

Respectfully submitted,
Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Chair
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AUDITORS" REPORT

To the Members of
The College of Psychologists of British Columbia

We have audited the statement of financial position of The College of Psychologists of British Columbia as at
December 31, 2000 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the College’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
College as at December 31, 2000 and the results of its operations and the changes in its net assets for the
year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent
with that of the preceding year.

Meyer A. Mattuck
The Raber Mattuck Group
Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
February 26, 2001

[
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2000

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Special levy receivable
Prepaid expenses

CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 2)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank indebtedness

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Employee remittances payable

PST payable

Deferred revenue (Note 3)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIENCY)
CAPITAL ASSETS
UNRESTRICTED

Approved by the Board

RECEIPTS

Membership dues

Special levy

Application and exam fees
Interest

Other

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Audit
Board

Commitees (meetings, travel and honorarium)

External relations (dues)
Member services
Operations

Statutory functions

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2000 1999
$ $
- 27,916
85,994 64,237
19,935 1,096
2,690 13,200
8,485 5,053
117,104 111,502
18,508 20,968
135,612 132,470
4,486 -
20,308 38,316
- 8,283
- 24
5,06 -
29,854 46,623
18,508 20,968
87,250 64,879
105,758 85,847
135,612 132,470

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

2000 1999
$ $

897,041 679,061
- 113,853
59,167 62,971
11,787 9,112
6.598 2,066
974,593 867,063
471,508 343,452
8,827 4,167
57,316 10,196
17,429 6,156
15,716 8,054
74,670 41,510
85,885 75,341
223,331 269,623
954,682 758,499
19,911 108,564

[
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

Balance, beginning of year

Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures

Fund Balances, end of year

Invested
In Capital
Assets Unrestricted Total Total
2000 2000 2000 1999
$ $ $ $
20,968 64,879 85,847 (22,717)
(2.460) 22,371 19,911 108,654
18,508 87.250 105,758 85,937

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Excess of receipts over expenditures
Adjustments for:

Amortization

Accounts receivable

Special levy receivable

Prepaid expense

Accounts payable

Employee remittances payable

PST payable

Deferred revenue

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets

Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Consisting of:

Cash (Bank Indebtedness)
Short-term investments

2000 1999
$ $
19,911 108,564
6,307 6,857
(18,839) (196)
10,510 (13,200)
(3432)  (2,375)
(18,008)  (8,958)
(8,283) 658
(24) (178)
5,060 -
(6.798) 91172
(3.847)  (13,091)
(10,645) 78,081
92,153 14,072
81,508 92,153
(4,486) 27,916
85994 64,237
81,508 92,153

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

[

page 24

2001 —~ ANNUAL REPORT



THE COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2000

Significant Accounting Policies

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution. Amortization is provided on a declining balance basis at the following rates:

Office furniture and equipment
Computer equipment and software

In the year of acquisition, only one-half of the normal amortization is recorded.

- 20% per year

- 30% per year

Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Asset Fund.

Revenue and Expense recognition

Membership dues are recognized as income in the fiscal year due.

Capital Assets

Expenditures are recognized as incurred.

2000 1999

Cost Accumulated | Net Book Net Book
Amortization Value Value
Office furniture and equipment $49,587 $40,489 $9,098 $ 9,518
Computer equipment 57,064 47,654 9,410 11,450
106,651 88,143 18,508 20,968

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents membership fees for the 2001 calendar year received in advance.

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2000 there was one legal claim outstanding against the College for court costs arising from

disciplinary proceedings.

[
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Minutes of the 2000 Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the
College of Psychologists was held on
December 13, 2001 at the Renaissance
Harbourside Hotel, Vancouver, and the
Ocean Pointe Resort, Victoria, and Dr.
Heather McEachern’s Office, Kelowna,
linked by teleconference. Chair Verna
Amell called the meeting to order at
5:26 p.m. with 53 members present
in Vancouver, 27 members present in
Victoria and 7 members present in
Kelowna.

Dr Amell welcomed the registrants
to the meeting. Lay Board Member,
Barbara Passmore, chaired the meeting
in Victoria. Dr. Amell introduced the
Board members, Dr. Stephen Flamer,
Mr. Art Kube, Dr. Marvin McDonald,
and Ms. Anastasia Mirras. Regrets were
given by Dr. Bill Borgen and Dr. Brenda
Kosaka.

Staff members present were Dr.
Andrea Kowaz, newly appointed
Registrar, Dr. Carol Solyom, Interim
Deputy Registrar, Vicki Huxtable,
Assistant  Deputy, Lyn  Hellyar,
Registration Coordinator and Judy
Clausen, Administrative Assistant. Vicki
Huxtable’s retirement was announced
and the College made a presentation to
her with thanks for her many years of
service.

The new elected Board members,
Mr. Robert Colby, Dr. Emily Goetz,
Dr. Henry Harder, Dr. Justin O’'Mahony,
Dr. Derek Swain, and Dr. Larry Waterman
were introduced.

AGENDA

The circulated agenda  was
reviewed. It was moved by Derek Swain
and seconded by Emily Goetz that

the agenda be approved as circulated.
Carried.

MINUTES

Errors and omissions: It was moved
by Larry Waterman and seconded by
Emily Goetz that the Minutes of the
May 11, 2000 Annual General Meeting
be approved as circulated. Carried.

Business arising from the Minutes:
None

ANNUAL REPORTS

The Report from the Chair was
delivered by Dr. Verna Amell. Her
report dealt with the manner in which
the bylaws were written, the classes of
registration and the work being done
by the College to have the exemptions
removed from the regulations.

The Registrar, Dr. Andrea Kowaz,
gave highlights of her report given in
the Annual Report. She reported on the
systems being put in place the work that
has been done and what still needs to
be done. This included:

(f) Filing system and information
management systems being initiated,
including data bases for each aspect of
College functioning,

(g) Changes made to the
Registration process and how this will
be a major focus for the coming year,

(h) A report on the complaint
tracking systemand a flow chartshowing
the steps taken in the processing of a
complaint,

(i) The increase in, and complexity
of requests for information made under

the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act, and

(j) Changes in the layout of the office
because of the confidential nature of the
work and incidents with complainants,

BYLAW REPORT

Dr. Carol Solyom advised that her
report was as written. She also
commented that in the feedback
received from registrants on the bylaws
the main concern was the classes of
registrants.

Inquiry Committee, Patient Relations
Committee and Quality Assurance
Committee Reports were as included in
the written submissions.

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dr. Stephen Flamer reported on
the number of challenges facing the
Registration Committee. He thanked the
registrants for the honour and privilege
of serving on the Board for the past five
years.

FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Anastasia Mirras presented the
budget. She reported on the work
being done to tighten up line items
and postings, the appointment of a
new auditor and bookkeeper and gave
a breakdown of all the figures in the
budget. Registrants were advised that
the registration fee for the coming year
would be $1,100.00.

[t was moved by Carol Solyom
and seconded by Rosemary Wilkinson

that the budget be received. Carried.

The meeting adjourned at 8:57 p.m.
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2002 Annual General Meeting
Agenda

Sign-in and Socializing (5:00 p.m. - 5:30 p.m.)

Call to order (5:30 p.m.)

2.1 Welcoming rem arks, introduction of the Board
(Dr. Henry Harder, 2003 Board Chair)

Approval of Agenda

Minutes of the 2001 Annual General Meeting

3.1 Errors/Omissions
3.2 Adoption
3.3 Business arising from the Minutes

Annual Reports
4.1 Chair of the 2002 Board, Mr. Robert Colby
4.2 Registrar, Dr. Andrea Kowaz
4.3 Reports of Standing Committees
4.31 Inquiry Committee (Dr. Larry Waterman, Ms. Barbara Passmore,
2002 Co-Chairs)
4.32 Patient Relations Comm ittee (No Rep ort)
4.33 Quality Assurance Committee (Dr. Emily Goetz, 2002 Chair)
4.34 Registration Committee (Dr. Henry Hard er, 2002 Chair)
4.35 Finance Committee (Dr. Derek Swain, 2003 Chair)

New Business

Adjournment
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Board, Staff, and Committee Members

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, 2002

Robert Colby, Chair
Larry Waterman, Vice Chair - Board, Chair, Inquiry Committee
Michael Elterman, Chair, Patient Relations Committee
Emily Goetz, Chair, Quality Assurance Committee
Henry Harder, Chair, Registration Committee
Barbara Passmore, Public Member, Co-chair, Inquiry Committee
Derek Swain, Chair, Legislation and Finance Committees

STAFF MEMBERS

Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych., Registrar
Rafael Richman, Ph.D., R.Psych., Deputy Registrar-Inquiry
Colleen Wilkie, Ph.D., R.Psych., Deputy Registrar-Registration
Judy Clausen, Assistant to the Registrar
Avigail Cohen, Office Assistant
Lyn Hellyar, Registration Coordinator
Maria Doyle, Inquiry Coordinator

COMMITTEE MEMBERS, 2002

DISCIPLINE COMMITTEE

Henry Harder, Chair Rosemary Alvaro

Linda Harrison Henry Hightower (Public Mem ber)
Michael Joschko William Koch

Janet Strayer Susan Turnbull

Max Uhlemann

INQUIRY COMMITTEE

Larry W aterman, Chair Barbara Passmore, Co-chair (Public
Rebecca England Member)

Jill Hightower (Public Mem ber) Mel Kaushansky

Pippa Lewington Shirley Louth

John M acDonald Maureen Olley

Don Read

QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

Emily Goetz, Chair Leigh Bowie
Julia Hass (Public Mem ber) Leora Kuttner
Ron LaTorre Joan Pinkus
Karen Tee
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REGISTRATION COMMITTEE

Henry Harder, Chair

Dale Brooks
Colleen Haney
Marvin McDonald

Verna Amell
Carole Bishop
Michael Coles
Jacqueline Douglas
Angela Haig
David Jones
Brenda Kosaka
Anne MacGregor

Martin Phillips-Hing

Erica Reznick
Heather Scott
Cec Smith

Lynn Superstein-Raber

Malcolm W einstein

Cheryl Bradley

Helen Cook (Public Member)
Anne Marie Jones

Cheryl Washburn

ORAL EXAMINERS

Randall Atkinson
Geoffrey Carr
Evelyn Corker
David Eveleigh
Jordan Hanley
Margaret Kendrick
Randall Kropp
Barbara Madani
Joan Pinkus
Anneliese Robens
Ruth Sigal

Rhona Steinberg
Paul Swingle
Maureen Whittal

Barbara Beach

Elsie Cheung

Trish Crawford
Brian Grady
Elizabeth Huntsman
Brenda Knight
Pippa Lewington
Jane McEwan
Donald Ramer
Barbara Rosen-Harris
Kathleen Simas

Paul Sungaila

Joyce Ternes
Marshall Wilensky

Report from the Chair

Having completed my maximum
two year term as Chair, I feel this
has been one of the most
exhilarating experiencesin my
almost forty year professional
career. In conjunction with the
staff at the College and with the
hard work, diligence, and
knowledge of our Registrar, Dr.
Kowaz, the Board proceeded to
retool the profession in accordance
with the changing national and
international standards and
government regulations. I
appreciate all the cooperation and
hard work we have had from our
staff and committee members
which enabled us to develop a
Code of Conduct, quality
assurance documents, registration
procedures and documents and
the complaint management pro-
cess. This allows us to responsibly
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meet the needs and concerns of the
public while maintaining the
integrity in our changing
profession. The changing
requirements for entrance, and the
establishment of proced ures to
accommodate those changes, took
a tremendous amount of
cooperative effort. The changing
dynamics in relationship to the
Inquiry C ommittee working in
close conjunction withlegal
counsel with the development of
an alternate dispute resolution
model, has made us more
responsive to the public while also
enhancing the profession of

psychology.

We have made every attem pt to
maintain an open communication
with our Registrants and hopefully
we have been able to keep

psychologists informed of the
requirements of the professional
dynamics in relationship to the
delivery of services.

I must admit I am still surprised
where information is
misinterpreted ornot received,
and encourage our registrants to
attend meetings, to volunteer for
committees, and to keep current
with information from the website
and College new sletter.

I look forward to my next year on
the Board as I can take a more
active role in discussions around
the Board table.

Respectfully,

Robert L. Colby, R. Psych.
Registered Psychologist
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Inquiry Committee Report

This was my second and lastyear
of co-chairing the Inquiry
Committee. As I look back over
what has been accomplished in the
past two years, | am reminded that
it was at times a difficult but also
very reward ing experience for me.
I had the privilege of working with
Dr. Kowaz, our very capable
registrar; our hardworking and
under-appreciated office staff;
Tony Tobin, our very helpful and
articulate legal counsel; Barbara
Passmore, our outspoken public
member on the committee; and the
very articulate and hard-working
members who made up the
Inquiry Committee. I can honestly
say that I learned a great deal over
the two years. It was both
satisfying and exciting to see the
melding of the Health Professions
Act and our Code of Conduct as
they were put to the test of actually
being applied.

At the same time, I am well aware
that there are some registrants who
are still unhappy at what has
transpired over the past several
years. From my perspective, that
is an unfortunate but probably
unavoidable result. As I (and I
suspect most of us) have learned
over our lives, you simply cannot
please everyone no matter how
worthwhile the endeavour. There
continue to be some registrants
who want to return to what they
see as a “kinder era” and continue
to resist the clarity, focus and
direction provided by the new
regulations. I can tell you from
someone who worked both under
the old system twelve years ago
and the new system now in place
is much superior in every way.
While not perfect, it does make the
regulatory component of the
College much easier to apply. In
my mind, it's more comprehensive
and equitable than we have ever
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had in our history. I think what
those of you who do notlike the
new sy stem don’t appreciate is
that it allows for more consistency
and fairness in the decisions that
have to be made about the
complaints that are received.

Does this mean thatl don’t think
improvements could be made?
Definitely not. For example, in
Ontario the regulations provide
discretionary power to the
Registrar thatallows some

comp laints that are obviously
vexatious and frivolous to be
dismissed relatively easily. Under
our regulations, all complaints
have to be sent to the Inquiry
Committee. As time goes on, there
will probably be other changes
identified that would improve the
current system but that does not
detract from the fact thatit isan
immense improvement over what
we had before.

Finally,I can’t emphasize enough
the incredible work that has been
done by everyone associated with
the Inquiry Committee. The vast
backlog of cases has been all but
dealt with, our new Code has been
fully implemented with the very
competent assistance of Tony
Tobin, and new complaints can
now be dealt with in a far more
efficient and effective manner.
Unfortunately, as muchas we
would like to believe that all
psychologists are wond erful,
competent and extremely ethical
human beings, thatis simply not
the case. Untilsuchtime as we
reach that state of utopia, I am
grateful for those registrants who
understand the importance of
good regulation and are willing to
donate their time and ex pertise in
pursuing that goal. Finally, Iwant
to thankall of you who have
supported me both inelecting me

to the Board and in my work
during my two-year term.

Respectfully submitted,

Larry W aterman,
Chair, Inquiry Committee

The Inquiry Committee has had a
very interesting and successful
year. Unfortunately we lost a very
able Co-Chair as Dr. Larry
Waterman has stepped down to
spend more time at his practice.

The last 12 months have seen the
Inquiry Committee settle many
outstanding complaints, hold
numerous without prejudice
meetings, as well as panel two
extraordinary hearings.

From a public protection
perspective, the new systems put in
place to deal with the complaint
backlog from 1999 are working
very well and the majority of those
cases have been settled. Concerns
such as lack of natural justice
caused by delay and procedural
fairness have been addressed and
steps have been taken to ensure
that the past problems don’t
happen again. Current comp laints
are dealt with in a timely and
appropriate manner.

The committee members are a very
dedicated and hard working group
of people who do not hesitate to
take on arduous tasks. Praise
should also go to the office staff
who are also dedicated, hard
working, and extremely
supportive.

Respectfully submitted,

Barbara Passm ore, Co-Chair
Inquiry Committee
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Quality Assurance Committee Report

Throughout the pastyear, the
Quality Assurance Committee has
focussed on:

(a) developing a web page; and

(b) drafting a program for
required continuing
competency based on the
Committee’s mandate under
the College of Psychologists
Bylaws.

The informational web page
contains examples of informed

Registration Committee

The step by step interaction
between the Registration
Committee and applicantsis a key
feature of the new process. This
has resulted in a multifold increase
in the amount of correspondence
generated by and needing
response from the College. It has
also increased applicants
awareness and clarity about where
they are in the process and what
further steps lay ahead. The
Limited Register was
implemented several times during
the past year asa mechanism for
dealing with applicants whose
acceptance into the College
includes a requirement to complete
a period of supervision or other
specific task under the Registration
Committee. We continue with the
policy of assuring that every
individual placed on the Limited
Register is provided with clear
information on steps necessary for
placement on the full Register.
This policy applies to Inquiry
Committee actions, as well.
Registrants in the categories of
“out of province” and
"nonpracticing” are placed on the
Limited Register as well.

Page 6

consent forms as well as questions
registrants might ask themselves
before conducting various kinds of
assessment and treatment.

The proposed program for
required continuing competency
has been p osted on the Quality
Assurance webpage and mailed
out to all registrants so that
registrants may provide feedback
by July 1, 2003. The proposed
date of implementation is January
1, 2004. A gradual implementa-
tionis planned.

Below is an accounting of the work
of the staff and registration
committee. It is presented by
month to give registrantsa flavour
of the work flow of the College.
This list isnot all-inclusive but
does attempt to cover major
activities.

January

The Registration Committee
focussed on the development and
approval of policies regarding the
way in which individuals on the
Limited Register should identify
themselves to the public,
procedures for taking the Written
Jurisprudence Examination,
management of the new
computerized system of

comp leting the EPPP examina tion,
renewal issues such as proof of
insurance, area of practice,
differentiation of register address
from practice records address and
the address for publication in the
directory, implementation of new
criteria for temporary registration,
registration fees prorated for first
time applicants, wording for
Limited Register certificates, the
management of renewal questions

Many thanks to the committee
mem bers for their ideas and their
carefully researched contributions.
Special thanks to College staff for
putting com mittee input into
workable form.

Respectfully submitted

Emily Goetz, Chair
Quality Assurance Committee

Report

and challenges from re gistrants
(approx. 150) including: necessity
of insurance, need to be actively
practicing, definition of “practice”
of psychology, insurance waivers,
review of previous com passionate
waiver policy, and the
development of policy regarding
oral examiners and supervisors.

February

During this month the focus of the
Registration Committee was on the
development and approval of
policiesregarding movement
between categories of registration,
reinstatement onto the register
after an absence, clarification of
the inactive practice category,
approval/revision of policy
regarding the criteria and selection
process of oral examiners and
supervisors, the vetting procedure
to ensure indemnification, (see
Section 24 of the Health Professions
Act), initial discussions with the
BC Association of School
Psychologists (BCASP), the
development of plans for anew
applicant tracking database and
revision and conduct of oral
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examiner and examinee
workshops.

March

During the month of March,
discussions were held with UBC
counselling psychology faculty
regarding registration for faculty
not currently registered, with SFU
faculty regarding the new
registration requirements,
discussions regarding
accommodations for students who
completed the old program, and
discussions with BCASP
continued. In addition, the
committee approved requirem ents
for reciprocal ap plication, as well
as the new reciprocal application
forms and procedures. The new
applicant database was approved,
allowing updates to the committee
on the monthly status of each of
the open application files. A new
reference form was developed and
approved, policies were developed
with regard to required
documentation on application,
and the committee endorsed the
policy of placing the onus on
applicants to argue or provide
proof of equivalence to criteria,
and the committee clarified the
Out of Province registration
category and to whom it applies.

April

During April the new applicant
database was fully implemented,
the committee finalised their views
regarding the relative breadth of
various areas of practice such as
clinical and counselling and the
supervision requirements for
psychological associates were
review ed.

May

In addition to participating in the
inter-committee meeting, the
Registration Committee concerned
itself with issues of Limited
Register supervision, minimum
pass points for the EPPP paper and
computerized tests, the issue of
equivalence of coursew ork in
CPA/APA programs to the
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College’s coursework
requirements, development of the
reciprocal flow chart and
questionnaire, and how to manage
the issue of registrants wanting
higher academic credentials
reflected on their registration. It
was decided that in order for a
degree to be reflected in the
Register, the degree must meet the
current requirements.

June

For the month of June, work
included responding to requests
from other jurisdictions requesting
our forms as examples, ongoing
website development, issues
regarding reinstatement including
the provision that those who had
been of f register for less than six
months who were then reinstated
would be able to retain title,
whereas those individuals off the
register for a longer period would
have to meet current criteria in
order to do so.

July

During the July meeting the
committee focussed on issues
pertaining to applicants who meet
the criteria for reciprocal
registration and their length of
time in BC prior to application.

September

In September the committee was
concerned with proposed changes
to the Health Professions Act, the
development of a task force to deal
with implications of the Degree
Authorization Act, continued
discussions with BCASP, and a
meeting with faculty from the UBC
counselling program regarding
accreditation and areas of practice.

October

In October the Committee
reviewed the practice area of
forensic/corrections psychology,
as well as review of
respecialization certificates, the
issue of supervision during the
application process, and
development of a policy of

charging a $100.00 processing fee
for registrants who fail to properly
notify the College about change fo
address. This will be implemented
once registrants have been
properly informed.

November

Discussions continued with
BCASP and others, it was decided
to discontinue provision of the
oral examination reading list, new
accreditation standards from CPA
were reviewed, and criteria for
master’s level registration were
developed. The committee
endorsed the principle of the post
degree supervision year and
information meetings on changes
in registration process and criteria
were held.

December

In Decem ber issues pertaining to
registrants in the research/
academic category werereviewed,
along with out of province
registration. Policies and eligibility
criteria were elaborated in light of
a decision of the Registration
Committee to offer an
“extraordinary registration
period”. This period, planned for
the first quarter of 2002, is
targeted towards psychology
practitioners with five years of
membership in a quasi-regulatory
or other professional organization
who may now be eligible for
registration with the College under
the new bylaws.

The Chair would like to recognize
the vision and hard work of the
staff, the integrity and
commitment of committee
members, and the collaborative
efforts of both. The amount and
gravity of work produced over the
past year attests to the calibre and
success of this collaboration.

Respectfully submitted,
Henry Har der, Chair

Registration Committee
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Finance Committee Report

As this report is being prepared,
the Finance Committee continues
to be hopeful that another year can
be completed without calling upon
registrants for an additional fee
assessment. If we are successful in
this endeavour, it will mean that
fees willhave remained stable for
a total of three years, despite
considerable instability in key
factors which imp act the budget.
Revenue is particularly impacted
by changes in number and
registration category of registrants.
Expenses are impacted by legal
consultation costs, which vary
according to the complexities of
both government legislation,
specifically the Health Professions
Act, the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act, the
Ombudsman’s Act, and the Mutual
Recognition Agreement, and the
inquiry process in which the
College is obliged to investigate all
complaints brought before it, and
the application review process
now in place for new registrants.
An asset which has helped to offset
expenses has been the growing
expertise and confidence of
committees and staff around
complex legal issues, which has
resulted in consid erable success in
resolving both recent and
outstanding complaints. Expenses
have been further impacted by
changes in College office space and
security requirements.

Many of the line-items in Revenue
are simply cost-recovery issues
which vary according to the
number of applicants seeking
registration. The primary source
of revenue is registrant fees, which
have dropped significantly,
approximately $1 07,000 since last
year, representing a decline in
registration of approximately 97
active registrants. (For further
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discussion, see the report of the
Registration Com mittee).

Legal expenses, the biggest cost to
the College beyond wages and
benefits, reflect the complex issues
which the College must address in
regulating the profession in order
to both protect the public and
maintain the integrity of the
profession.

A number of legal firms are
consulted on a variety of issues
according to expertise and
experience in a particular area,
always mind ful of cost
effectiveness. The Board is
committed to proactive legal
consultation in order to address
issues expeditiously and to
minimize the threat of later
expenses which might be incurred
by the mishandling of files which
often involve the competing
agend as of legislation,
complainants, respondents, and
the profession itself. Accordingly,
staff and the board consult counsel
on an ongoing basis. With the cost
of a discipline hearing well in the
$100,000 range, we are pleased
with our successes in alternate
dispute resolution over the past
year. There were no discipline
hearings in 2002, for the third year
inarow.

Over the past three years, legal
counsel has also been engaged to
work on College bylaws and to
consult on responses to proposed
changes in the Health Professions
Act. Counsel is also consulted in
order to protect the interests of
complainants, respondents, and
the College regarding an
increasing number and comp lexity
of Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act requests.
Likewise, counsel is asked for

advice in addressing issuesraised
by the Office of the Ombudsman,
often as a result of complainants’
dissatisfaction with the inquiry
process. And Counselis being
increasingly consulted regarding
registration issues in which the
College must carefully scrutinize
the credentials of applicants who
may be eligible for registration as a
resultof the criteria determined by
the Mutual Recognition Agreement.

To follow are two tables and
accompanying charts. The first
table (Table 1) provides a
comparison of budgeted and actual
statutory expenses for the past 7
years. The 2002 year w as the only
year, aside from 1998 where
statutory expenses were lower than
the amount budgeted. Table 2
provides the relative percentage of
total expenses for wages and
statutory expenses, the two most
expensive college costs.

It is notable thatstatutory expenses
are remaining similar to previous
years in absolute amounts. These
costs reflect a declining proportion
of total College expenses. Given
increases over time to hourly rates
for legal fees, this is particularly
notew orthy.

The proportion of expenses for
wages, while higher for 2002 than
2001, is very close to the percentage
in 1996, 1997 and 1998. The Board
has under review the current
demands on staff time and
resources and additional staffing
may be required to meet ever
increasing demands. The future
remains uncertain.

Respectfully submitted,

Derek Swain, 2003 Chair
Finance Committee
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Table 1: Comparison of Budget/Actual Statutory Expenses

Year Budgeted Actual
1996 120,000 165,282
1997 145,000 260,816
1998 243,000 212,330
1999 233,000 269,623.
2000 209,000 242,725
2001 260,000 284,161
2002 317,000 278 ,128

Figure 1: Budgeted/Actual Statutory Expenses
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Table 2: Expenses

Year Wages and Benefits Statutory Expenses Percent of Total Expenses
Amount % Amount %
1996 219,693 39 171,528 31 558,824 70
1997 262,099 38 276,641 40 687,688 78
1998 280,683 37 212,330 28 758,499 65
1999 225,278 24 269,623 28 954,682 52
2000 396,422 40 242,725 25 978,860 65
2001 380,312 35 284,161 27 1,071,386 62
2002 423,012 38 278,125 25 1,106,904 63

Figure 2: Wages and Benefits/Statutory Expenses/Total Expenses
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Registrar’s Report

I am pleased to provide a report on
the activities of the College for the
year 2002. My report is divided into
4 major sections; Section I talks
about the overall objectives of the
College for the past year, Section II
provides a summary of registration
and application activities, Section III
reports on our complaint
management system including
examples of complaints received in
2002, and SectionIV summarizes
our activities under the Ombudsman
and Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Acts.

. OBJECTIVES FOR 2002

While much of the work of the
College isnecessitated through the
mand ate set by the Health
Professions Act, there are s pecific
objectives set out for each year
which articulate the means for
achieving the end of protection of
consumers of psychological services
provided by registrants.

Good w orking relationships with
Other Psychology R egulatory
bodies

One objective was to ensure that
policy decisions of the board and
committees are based on current
information and make use of the
experience and expertise of other
jurisdictions, as well as our own.
Hand in hand with this objective is
the development of good working
relationships with other jurisdic-
tions and active participation on the
national and international levels.
BC is an active participant in
national and international meetings
of psychology regulatory bodies.
There are two main groups with
which we are involved. The Council
of Provincial Associations of
Psychology (CPAP) meets twice a
year. Itis comprised of all the
regulatory bodies and professional
associations in Psychology in
Canada. Meetings include joint
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sessions and individual sessions
where the associations and
regulators meet separately. The
current focus for BC in our
involvement in such meetings is on
the interpretation of the Mutual
Recognition A greement. While in
full agreement with the principles
of the document, BC has been
concerned about interpretation
issues, a concern shared with some
of the other provinces. BC is also a
likely “recipient” province as it is
an attractive location to many
practitioners located in other areas.
Meetings have clarified thatthe
five year mobility provision is
meant for those individuals
actively practicing in the juris-
diction in which they arelicensed,
who wish to move to another
jurisdiction. The second major
group is the A ssociation of State
and Provincial Psychology Boards
(ASPPB). In addition to hosting bi-
yearly meetings on various
regulatory topics, the ASPPB runs
a databank on disciplinary cases
from all the 62 member
jurisdictions

Relationship with Government

We have also worked hard on
increasing our input into
government d ecision-m aking.
During 2002 the Ministry of Health
Planning was focussed on
amendments to the Health
Professions Act as part of their
implementation of the

recomm endations of the Health
Professions Council. The College
made major submissions on each
draft of the Act during the year
and had several major successes in
doing so. One major achievement
was in helping the Ministry to
understand the process involved in
negotiating a letter of undertaking
between the College and a
registrant as an effective means of
resolvingissues raised in a
complaint. The first draft of the

amended Act would have required
that all terms of an undertaking be
available to the public and
published on the College Register.
This has been changed, largely
through our efforts. A second
major concern had to do with the
amount of information provided to
complainants. There is no debate
that the com plainant is entitled to
know w hat the decision was with
regard to issues raised in his or her
complaint. Many times, however,
the issues as framed by the
complainant are not necessarily
those issues which end up being
investigated by the Inquiry
Committee. The Ministry
recognized this distinction in the
revised draft of the Act. There
were a large number of other
issues addressed. A copy of each

of the College’s submissions may
be found on the College website.
The College had inputon a
number of other pieces of
legislation and was involved in
consultation regarding the Worker’s
Compensation Amendment Act and
the Motor Vehicle Act. An amended
Health Professions Act is anticipated
in the late Spring of 2003.

Overhaul of the Registration
Process

In 2001, the major focus of the
College wason developing a com-
plaint management system. For the
year 2002 the major focus was on
an overhaul of the College’s
registration process. While this
process certainly had be gun in
2001, in 2002 the process was fully
implemented, including the
introduction of the Written
Jurisprudence Examination. Please
see the reportof the registration
committee and the subsequent
section in this report which
summarizes specific application
and registration activities.
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Inter-committee Relationships

The College held a meeting for
members of all standing College
committees. The purpose of the
meeting was to facilitate and
reinforce the importance of
communication between
committees on issues of mutual
concern. The efforts of the Quality
Assurance Committee over the past
year provide an example of such
information exchange. After
previous reports summarized the
number of complaints arising over
informed consentissues, the
Quality Assurance Committee
developed “sample” informed
consent forms. The hope is
registrants will use these forms as a
handy reference and conduct their
practice in a way to avoid
complaints on informed consent.

The College Office

Steps were taken during the 2002
year to enhance staff and file
security. The Board decided to
take advantage of the availability
of the adjacent offices for College
use. The renovations include a
large room (which holds 50-70
people for a meeting) which can be
used for hearings as well as
meetings, a smaller meeting room,
two small breakout rooms and a
hallway waiting area.

In addition, College files are now
allstored ina secured file room.
There continue to be incidents from
time to time which confirm the
importance of the security
entrance.

College Bylaws

The Bylaws of the College under
the Health Professions Act were
approved on February 21, 2002.
The Budget

The College continued its work on
developing a process for annual
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budget development and ensuring
that budget categories facilitate
providing communication to
registrants about college finances

The Domain of Psychology
Practice

The College explored the interest of
the College of Physicians and
Surgeons in gaining protection
over “psychotherapy”. As they
were not interested in a joint
pursuit on this issue, the College is
pursuing its concerns about the
proper communication to the
public of skills and credentials in
psychology through other means.

The College Website

This is the first year we have
actively relied on the website to
increase com munication with both
registrants and applicants.

Board Elections

Elections were held in November
of 2002 and Michael Joschko and
Michael Elterman were each
elected for a three year term on the
Board.

Il. APPLICATIONY
REGISTRATION

Applications in Process

A total of 83 application files were
processed during the 2002 year. Of
these 53 were new applicants and
30 were applications received
previously. A total of 19 applicants
were registered in 2002. A much
larger number is anticipated for
2003. In terms of area of practice,
the table below (Table 3) shows
the breakdown for the 83 open
application files. The newly
implemented Applicant Tracking
Database will facilitate the
accumulation and presentation of
descriptive data related to the
processing of application files.

EPPP Examinations

Nine applicants completed the
EPPP examination during 2002
which isnow administered by
computer. The examinations are
scheduled by applicants so that
there is no potential delay in the
application process due to
scheduling of the EPPP. The test
administrator, the Association of
State and Provincial Psychology
Boards, who instituted this
convenience to applicants, has
noted that the number of
individuals taking the examination
went down sharply, suggesting
that the twice yearly sched ule
seemed to encourage applicants to
“put off” taking the examination as
appears to be happening currently
across North America.

Oral Examinations

As shown in Table 4 below, a total
of 13 oral examinations w ere
administered in 2002. All
examinations were passed, with
one individual being placed on the
Limited Register until certain
requirements are met. Of the 13
examinations, 10 were completed
by individuals taking the exam for
the first time, while three were
repeat examinations at the choice
of the applicant.

Written Jurisprudence
Examinations

Twenty-one written jurisprudence
examinations w ere ad ministered in
2002. Of these, four were
reciprocaland 17 were regular
applicants. While the scores of the
regular applicants are not counted
(as we are establishing the
psychometric properties of the
examination), the average score
was 36.7 with a range of 33 to 48
out of 50. Forreciprocal
applicants, a passing score is 40.
Two reciprocal applicants passed
on the first try, one was successful
on a second try, and the fourth has
yet to schedule a repeat exam.
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Table 3: Area of Practice for Application files open during 2002.

Area of Practice Number Percentage

Clinical Psychology 53 64
Counselling Psychology 23 28
Clinical Neuropsychology 4 5
School Psychology 2 2
Forensic/ Corrections 1 1

Totals 83 100

Table 4: Application Activity Summary
Activity Number 2001 2002

Inquiries from Registrants

780 (avg.15 per week)

1072 (21-22 per wk)

Total Application/Registration Inquiries*

1560 (avg. 30/ week)

2356 (avg. 47 /wk)

Requests for Mobility Applications 32 12
Application Packages Requested 52 72
Number of applications received 26 53
Number of applicants who wrote EPPP ( passes, fails, 48 9
awaiting results)
Number of Oral examinations 44 13
Number of Written Jurisprudence Examinations 0 21 (4 reciprocal
applicants).
Number of applications for temporary registration 3 0
Number of applications withdrawn 1 0
Number of applications refused 2 0
Number of applicants registered during the year 35 19
Total number of application files which were open 82 83 (regular - 75,
during the year reciprocal -8)
Correspondence (Number of letters to applicants and 500 2500

registrants on registration matters

Average number of months to get registered from time of
application (to reflect the “new” system).

9 months for 16 individuals who applied after January 1, 2001

subsequently registered during 2001 or 2002.

The range was 6-16 months.

* Based on telephone records.
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Length of Time from
Application to Registration

A handful of applicants who
applied prior to 2001 were
“caught” in the transition to the
new application process and
experienced some delay. The more
recent experience of app licants
over 2001 and 2002 is that the
process can be completed in a
relatively short time. For 16
applicants (the total number of
applicants from 2001 and 2002
who passed the oral examination
on the first try), the average length
of time to registration was 9
months, with a range of 6 - 16
months. In each instance where
the process took longer than 1 year
- decision-making by the applicant
(e.g. delaying the EPPP or Oral
examination) was a factor. Other
factors which typically impact the

length of the application process is
response time of applicants to
questions from the Registration
Committee.

Correspondence with
Applicants

It is estimated that over 2500
letters were sent out in 2002,
compared with approximately 500
letters in 2001. All queries are
responded to, with every attempt
to do so in a timely manner.
Typically, all letters are
acknowledged within 10 days of
receipt and a response is provided
within two weeks, or within two
weeks of the Registration
Committee meeting if the matter
was brought forward for the
Committee’s review. The number
of application and registration

inquiries fielded by College staff
over the past year remains high.
For 2001, the high number
reflected the number and
significance of the changes taking
place at the College with the
signing of the Mutual Recognition
Agreement and the ways in which
the College is preparing forand
adapting to the necessary changes
in registration categories and
processes. With the approval of the
bylaws in February 2002, the large
number of inquiries now reflect the
implementation of the new
application process, which was
outlined in a flow chart included in
last years annual report and now
available on the website.

Table 5: Register
Category 2001 2002
Full Register 873 866
Limited Register - Inquiry Committee - 14
- Inquiry Committee-Non-Practicing 1
- Registration Committee 2
Number of Active Registrants on Fulland Limited Register 873 891
Limited Register - Out-of-Province 57 57
Limited Register - Non-Practicing 51 60
Limited Register - Retired 19 17
Totals 1017 1000

As indicated in the table, there
was a total of 866 individuals on
the full register for 2002 and a
total of 891 active registrants
practicing psychology in B.C.
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The College bylaws ap proved in
February 2002 included a
provision for a Limited Register.
Individuals may be on the
Limited Register by virtue of

decisions of the Inquiry or
Registration Committee, or
being in the “Out-Of-Province”,
“Non-Practicing” or “Retired”
category.
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1. COMPLAINT
MANAGEMENT
SUMMARY FOR 2002

The College continues its efforts to
document and describe the
complaint process to registrants
and the public. Below is a
summary of the six segments on
various aspects of complaint
mana gement in 2002:

[ Section 1 provides a summary
of the status of all complaint
files - including “backlog” files;

[»] Section 2 provides a summary
of aspects of the complaint
management process including
without prejudice meetings,
appeals, discipline hearings
and citations, and
extraordinary hearings.

[>] Section 3 provides a description
of complaints managed by the
College under the Health
Professions Act including a
summary of primary
allegations, complainanttype,
context, closing reasons and
length of time to close files.

[>] Section 4 summarizes
complaint correspondence.

] Section 5 includes examples of
complaints received in 2002 as
well as a complete description
of all letters of undertaking
signed in 2002 as a means of
resolving complaints.

[ Section 6 provides some
preliminary and exploratory
statistics on descriptive
complaint variables and a
summary of the history of
complaints at the College since
1992.
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SECTION 1: Complaint
File Status

Complaint file Status for 2002
Complaint Files (n=54)

A total of 54 complaints were
received in 2002, down from 60
complaints in 2001. The decrease
may in part reflect our increased
skill in early discussions with
potential complainants about their
expectations of the College’s
complaint process and their
involvements in other arenas -
such as legal proceedings.

As shown in Table 3 , almost 43 %
of the 54 complaints received in
2002 were closed by the end of the
year. The remainder of complaints
are spread out throughout the
other file status categories. The
files in the “awaiting review”
category are those received atthe
end of the year.

Status of All Complaints
Processed by the College under
the Health Professions Act.

Since the College of Psychologists
came under the Health Professions
Act, the College has processed 274
complaints, including the 97
complaints that were open on
January 1, 2000.

Complaint File Status-Overall

The College is successfully
managing a large number of
complaints. Complaint file status
is described below in Table 6 for
the 2002 year, for com plaints
received in 2001, and for all
complaints received under the
Health Professions Act - that is, all
complaints received after January
1, 2000. In addition, file status for
the “backlog” complaint files is
described in a separate section.

Complaint file status for 2001
Complaint Files (n=60)

Almost 72% of files received in
2001 were closed by the end of
2002. Of the 17 files remaining
open at that time, 3 files were the
subject of an extraordinary hearing
held in 2002, two were on the
verge of being closed as a signed
letter of undertaking had been
received, and the remainder in
other status categories.

Complaint file status for 2000
Complaint Files (n=63)

The only files remaining open on
December 31, 2002 are 4 files
belonging to a former registrant,
(this registrant has a total of 11
complaint files), two files which
were part of a 2002 extraordinary
hearing, and one file in which a
letter of undertaking was being
prepared.

All file received under the
Health Professions Act -
Between January 2000 and
December 2002. (N=177)

Overall, for the 177 comp laints
received by the College under the
Health Professions Act, 69% are
closed, 6% were awaiting a
response from the registrant, 8
were under active review, 6 were
the subject of an extraordinary
hearing. Please note that being in
the category of “Extraordinary
Hearing” signifies that the Inquiry
Committee had decided to have
such a hearing, not that the hearing
had in fact taken place. In some
cases the issuing of a citation for
such a hearing led to complaint
resolution. A total of two extra-
ordinary hearings have been held,
both in 2002 covering a total of 6
files.
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Table 6: Complaint File Status

“Backlog” Year 2000 Year 2001 Year 2002 Complaints Complaints
Status Complaints Complaints Complaints Complaints Jan. 2000 - Pprocessed
Dec. 2002 since January
2000
# % # % # % # % # % # %
Awaiting Review 4 7.4 4 23 4 1.5
Active Review 1 1.7 7 13 8 45 8 29
Citation in Preparation 6 10 1 1.9 7 4 7 2.6
Clinical File Request 5 9.3 5 2.8 5 1.8
Clinical File Received 1 1.7 2 3.7 3 1.7 3 11
33(4) 1 1.9 1 0.6 1 0.4
33(5) 7 7.2 4 6.3 7 13 11 6.2 18 6.6
Practice Inspection 1 1.7 2 3.7 3 1.7 3 11
Without Prejudice 1 1.7 1 0.6 1 0.4
Meeting
Letter of Undertaking 1 1.6 1 1.7 1 1.9 3 1.7 3 1.1
in Preparation
Letter of Undertaking 2 3.3 2 11 2 0.7
Received
Extraordinary Hearing 2 3.2 3 5 1 1.9 6 3.4 6 22
On hold 1 1.7 1 0.6 1 0.4
Closed 90 92.8 56 88.9 43 71.7 23 42.6 122 68.9 212 774
Total 97 100 63 100 60 100 54 100 177 100 274 100
“Backlog” Complaint files Appeals

(n=97)

The College continued progress in
dealing with the "backlog” of 97
complaints that existed on January
1, 2000. Last year we reported
that 78 of the 97 backlog files had
been closed.

As of December 2002, that
number has risen to 90. The
remaining 7 files that were in

the “backlog” group belong to
one respondent.
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SECTION 2: Summary of
Aspects of the Complaint
Management Process.

Without Prejudice Meetings

During the year without prejudice
meetings were held with 7
registrants in the attem pt to
informally resolve a total of 9
complaints. Out of these nine
complaints, all were later

resolved on the basis of these
meetings.

A total of 10 appeals were heard
by the Board during 2002. When
complainants are dissatisfied
with the decision of the Inquiry
Committee not to issue a citation,
under the Health Professions Act
they may file an appeal within 14
days of notification of the
decision. For files closed over the
past year (N=70) by the Inquiry
Committee, nine were appealed.
The appeals were heard by the
College board under the Health
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Professions A ct. The decision of the
Inquiry C ommittee was upheld in
each case.

Discipline Hearings &
Citations

No discipline committee hearings
were held in 2002. This is the
third year in a row that ma tters
for which a citation had been
issued or which wereserious
enough to warrant a citation for a
hearing, that have been
successfully resolved without
necessita ting this costly legal step.

In the year 2002 the Inquiry
Committee decided to issue
citations dealing with a total of 25
files (4 different respondents with
11,7, 5 and 2 complaints
respectively). Simultaneously
efforts continued to achieve a non-
hearing resolution. By December
31, 2002 over half of these files
had been closed with voluntary
resolution (in one instance a
senior practitionerretired from
practice accounting for5 files, and
another registrant signed an
undertaking, resolving two
complaints. An additional 11
complaints were moving toward
resolution with the Inquiry
Committee issuing a letter under
section 33(5) to the respondent. In
the fourth instance, the Committee
was preparing the citation as the
year closed.

As of May 15, 2003 all of these
files are on their way to informal
resolution. In each of these four
instances the Committee thought
the matters under investigation
wereserious enough from a
public protection perspective to
proceed to a hearing. The cost
savings in achieving alternate
means of resolution are enormous.

The last full discipline hearing at

the College cost in excess of $111,
000 w hich was in 1999.
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Multiplied by 4 with additional
cost for increased costs of such
proceedings and the College likely
saved in excess of $500,000 in
resolving these matters.

Extraordinary Hearings

Two extraordinary hearings were
held in 2002. This preventive
measure enables the Inquiry
Committee to act swiftly when
issues arise of sufficient public
protection concern that the
Committee believes a restriction on
practice may be warranted. There
is no testing of evidence at an
extraordinary hearing - but a
decision on whether the available
evidence supports action by the
Inquiry Committee. A discipline
hearing is the equivalent of a full
trial on all issues and a finding of
fact ismade at the end of the
hearing.

SECTION 3. Descriptive
Complaint Summary

This is the first year we are able to
describe complaints under the
categories of the new Code of
Conduct. This categorization is
descriptive only as only com plaints
received after the Code came into
effect (February 2002) are
evaluated on the basis of the Code
of Conduct rather than the
previous Stand ards.

The descriptive variables are:
primary allegation made by the
complainant, complaint context,
area of practice, complainant type,
and length of time to closefiles

A . PRIMARY ALLEGATION

The trend across the previous three
years is the same, with roughly
50% of all complaints in the area of
assessment procedures such as
allegations of bias, unfair

proced ures and the like.
Reviewing all complaints

processed under the Health
Professions Act, 50% are in the
assessment procedure category,
followed by client welfare (12%),
professionalism/obligations
(9%), and confidentiality (7%).
See Table 7.

B. COMPLAINT CONTEXT

As shown in Table 8, nearly 60%
of all complaints received by the
College under the Health
Professions Act were in the
assessment context, compared
with 25 % in intervention, 23% in
various other contexts and 2% in
consultation. This distribution
holds for complaints received in
the 2002 year as well.

See Table 8.

C. AREA OF PRACTICE

For complaints received since
January 2000, we have been
assigning a general practice
category to describe the area of
practice in which the complaint
occurred. These terms are
descriptive only. As the table
illustrates, 45% of the 177
complaints were in the broad
area of Clinical Psychology, with
an additional 23% in a subset of
clinical psychology - custody and
access.

See Table 9.

D. COMPLAINANT TYPE

As shown in Table 10, 31% of
complaints received in the year
2002 came from third party
situations, such as court-ordered
or WCB assessments. Fifteen
(15%) came directly from clients
and 17 % from client relatives. A
total of 11% of complaints were
registrants lodging complaints
regarding
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the cond uct of another registrant. “backlog” complaints were made

These percentages are similar for by a much higher percentage of
complaints received in 2000 and clients directly. (71%).
2001. The

TABLE 7: Primary Allegations for 2002 complaints

Primary “Backlog” Year 2000 Year 2001 Year 2002 All All complaints
Allegation Complaints | Complaints | Complaints | Complaints [ Complaints processed
Jan. 2000 - since January
Dec. 2002 2000
# % # % # % # % # % # %

Advertising & 1 1 2 3.7 2 1.1 3 1.1
Public
Statemen ts
Assessment 57 58.7 28 44.4 28 46.7 24 44 4 80 45.2 137 50
Procedures
Client Welfare 9 9.3 10 15.9 9 15 4 7.4 23 13 32 11.7
Competence 6 6.2 2 3.2 1 1.7 3 5.6 6 3.4 12 4.4
Confidentiality 8 8.2 2 3.2 3 5 5 9.3 10 5.6 18 6.6
Dual Roles 7 7.2 2 3.2 1 1.7 2 3.7 5 2.8 12 4.4
Fees and 6 9.5 1 1.7 7 4 7 2.6
Statemen ts
File Access and 1 1 1 0.4
Security
Impairment 1 1.7 1 0.6 1 0.4
Informed 5 7.9 4 6.7 3 5.6 12 6.8 12 44
Consent
Professionalism 6 6.2 6 9.5 8 13.3 6 11.1 20 11.3 26 9.5
/ Obligations
Provision of 1 1.6 3 5 1 1.9 5 2.8 5 1.8
Services
Relationship 1 1.7 3 5.6 4 2.3 4 1.5
with Clients
Violation of 2 2.1 1 1.6 1 1.9 2 1.1 4 1.5
Law
Total 97 100 63 100 60 100 54 100 177 100 274 100
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Table 8: Complaint Context

“Backlog” 2000 2001 2002 Complaints All
Complaints complaints complaints complaints received complaints
between processed
Jan. 2000 - since January
Dec. 2002 2000
# % # % # % # % # % # %
Assessment 64 66 36 57.1 36 60 33 61.1 105 59.3 179 65
Consultation 1 1.6 3 5 4 2.3 4 15
Intervention 21 22 20 31.7 15 25 10 18.5 45 25.4 66 24
Other 12 12 6 9.5 6 10 11 20.4 23 13 25 9.1
Totals 97 100 63 100 60 100 54 100 177 100 274 100
Table 9: Complaint Area of Practice
Complaint Area 2000 2001 2002 Complaintsreceived
of Practice Complaints Complaints Comp laints Jan. 2000 - Dec. 2002
# % # % # % # %
Clinical Psychology 27 42.9 25 41.7 28 51.9 80 45.2
Custody and Access 15 23.9 22 36.7 14 25.9 51 28.9
Counselling Psychology 2 3.2 8 13.3 2 3.7 12 6.8
Forensic/Correctional 12 19 2 3.3 5 9.3 19 10.7
Industrial/ organizational 1 1.9 1 0.6
Neuropsychology 3 4.8 1 1.7 4 2.3
Rehabilitation Psychology 1 1.6 1 1.7 2 1.1
Research/ A cademic 2 3.7 2 1.1
School Psychology 1 1.6 1 1.7 2 1.1
N/A 2 3.2 2 3.7 4 2.3
Totals 63 100 60 100 54 100 177 100

E. LENGTH OF TIME TO CLOSE
FILES

“Backlog Files”

The backlog files represent a varied
group of files, some of which had
been extensively investigated at
some point in a complaint
investigation, others of which had
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not yet been investigated as of
January 2000. Some of the
investigations had taken place
some time before January 2000
and some were investigated closer
to that date. Bringing these files to
a close has involved consid erable
efforts and resources. The
average time to close the 90 of
these 97 files which are now

closed was 25.29 months (median,
24 months, mode 19 months, with a
range of 4-72).

All Files Closed since January
2000

The average time it took to close a
file received after January 2000 is
7.6 months.

See Table 11.
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Table 10: Complainant Type

“Backlog” 2000 2001 2002 All All
Comp laints Complaints Comp laints Comp laints Complaints Comp laints
received processed
between since
Jan. 2000 - January
Dec. 2002 2000
N=274
# % # % # % # % # % # %
Client - 3™ 9 9 23 36 29 48 17 31 69 39 78 28
Party
situation
Client - direct 69 71 17 28 10 17 8 15 35 20 104 38
Clientrelative 1 1 6 9 9 15 9 17 24 14 25 9
Colleague 13 13 13 21 9 15 6 11 28 16 41 15
Inquiry 2 2 2 3 2 3 4 7 8 4 10 4
Committee
Other 3 2 2 3 1 2 10 18 13 7 16 6
Totals 97 100 63 100 60 100 54 100 177 100 274 100

F. CLOSING REASONS
Complaints Closed in 2002

The pattern observed for files
closed in 2002 was similar to that of
the previous 2 years. The majority
of complaints closed during the
year 2002, roughly two-thirds,
were not proceeded on by virtue of
proceeded on by virtue of
insufficient evidence (50%), a
decision notto proceed (sometimes
due to administrative or
procedural reasons - 10%) or
withdrawn (3%), for a total of 63%
of the 62 files closed during the
year. Of the remaining 23 files, 16
were resolved through the
registrant agreeing to take certain
steps to satisfy the Inquiry
Committee that identified concerns
had been addressed. As a review
of the table indicates, this is a
relatively high percentage and is an
encouraging trend. Eight (8%) of
the files were resolved when the
registrant retired from the practice
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of psychology and an additional
3% were resolved through
informal means.

“Backlog Files”

For “backlog” files -44 files (49%)
were either dismissed because of
insufficient evidence that an
ethical standard had been
violated, withdrawn or a decision
was made not to proceed (likely

due to loss of jurisdiction in these
older files).

Forty of these files were resolved
through the voluntary actions of
the registrant: a signed letter of
undertaking, resignation from the
College or other informal
resolution. The remaining 6
complaints include two
complaints for one respondent
who agreed to have his
registration cancelled and four
complaints were referred to the
Registration Com mittee. This
latter referral accomplished the

establishment of expectations for
the individuals involved should

they reapply for registration at a

future d ate.

All Files Closed since January
2000

A review of the total of 212 files
closed since January 2000 shows
that 67% (142) of the 212 closed
files not proceeded on forreasons
of insufficient evidence, procedural
issues or the complainant
withdrawing the complaint and the
Inquiry Committee deciding that
there

were no public protection concerns
warranting proceeding on the
complaint on their own motion. Of
the remaining files,

16% were resolved with letters of
undertaking, a total of 12% were
resolved through informal means,
and the remaining 3% either
resigned or agreed to the
cancellation of their registration.

See Table 12.
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Table 11: Time to Close Files

Complaints Comp laints Comp laints Total
Closed in 2000 Closed in 2001 Closed in Comp laints
2002 Closed

Total number of complaint files closed 56 43 23 N=122
during the year for files received after
January 2000.
Average length of time in months to 9.61 7.26 3.39 7.6
close file during the calendar year for
complaints received after January 2000. N=56 N=43 N=23 N=122
Average length of time in months to 18.1 14.1 14.2 15.31
close file for complaints closed during
that calendar year including “backlog” N=70 N=80 n=62 N=210*
complaints.
Total number of complaints remaining 7 17 31 62
open as of December 31, 2002

* Two complaints from 1993 which were opened for administrative reasons and later closed are not included in

this computation.

Table 12. Closing Reasons

Closing Reasons “Backlog” Files Closed Files closed | Files Closed | Complaints
Complaints in 2000 in 2001 in 2002 Closed
between
Jan. 2000 -
Dec. 2002
# % # % # % # % # %
Decision Not to Proceed 9 10 11 15.7 16 20 6 9.7 33 15.6
Withdrawn 2 2.2 5 7.1 2 2.5 2 3.2 9 4.2
Insufficient Evidence 33 36.7 28 40 41 51.2 31 50 100 47.2
Letter of Undertaking Signed 19 211 13 18.6 4 5 16 25.8 33 15.6
Referred to Registration 4 4.4 1 1.4 3 3.8 4 1.9
Committee
Resigned from Practice of 4 44 5 8.1 5 24
Psychology
Resolved 17 18.9 10 14.3 14 17.5 2 3.2 26 12.3
Registration Cancelled 2 2.2 2 2.9 2 0.9
Totals 90 100 70 100 80 100 62 100 212 100
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During 2002 we developed and
issued a new com plaint brochure
to help to inform complainants
about realistic expectations about
the complaint process. The

emphasis of such interactions is to
ensure comp lainants that their
concerns will be heard and
addressed within the framework of
due process and administrative

fairness and the Code of Conduct.
A copy of the brochure is available
on the College website or through
the College office.

Table13  Complaint Correspondence
Type of Correspondence Number of Letters

Complaint Acknowledgment 54
Respondent Notification 54
Complaint Package Requests 86
Ongoing Complaint File Correspondence 430
Clinical File Request 41
Letters Written Under Section 33(5) of the Health Professions Act 35
Without Prejudice M eeting Requests 14
Correspondence regarding letters of undertaking 20
Decision Re ports 27
Decision Report Correspondence 47
Appeal Correspondence 20
Miscellaneous Complaint Correspondence 40
Title issue correspondence 32
Supervision Agreem ents 5
Supervision Correspondence 5
TOTAL 907

As shown in Table 13, the SECTION 5. EXAMPLES OF Example1. [relevant section

comp laint management process in COMPLAINTS RECEIVED IN of Code - Assessment

2002 necessitated over 900 letters 2002 AND LETTERS OF Procedures]

from the College to complainants UNDERTAKING

and registrants.

The objective of keeping
complainants and respondents
informed about the status of
complaints accounts for almost
half of all correspondence.
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Examples of Complaints
Received During the Year 2002

To follow are examples of eight
complaints received during the
2002 year.

This is a complaint where the
respondent provided a
professional opinion about a
mother, withouthaving directand
substantial in-person contact with
the mother. The College resolved
the complaint through negotiating
a letter of undertaking where the
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respondent agreed to comply with

the sections of the code pertaining to

providing opinions only after
substantial directin-person contact
with an individual, and stating
limitations when providing
opinions.

Example 2. [relevant section of
Code - Assessment Procedures and
Custody and Access Standards]

This complaintinvolved allegations

that the respondent offered custody
and access recommendations
without conducting a thorough and
complete custody and access
evaluation.

Example 3. [relevant section of Code

- assessment procedures]

This is a complaint where it is
alleged thatthe respondent wrote a
report providing an opinion about
alleged childhood sexual abuse,
without conducting a thorough
evaluation of all the involved
parties.

Example 4.[relevant section of Code
- assessment procedures]

This is a complaint where the
complainant alleged that the
respondent did not com plete his
report in a timely manner, and that
the respondent’s report contained
factually inaccurate information.
Following correspondence between
the Inquiry Committee and the
respondent, a practice feedback
letter was issued to the respondent
suggesting ways that clients could
be informed about possible delays
to receiving a report.

Example 5 [relevant section of Code
-relationship with clients -
informed consent]

This is a complaint where the

respondent allegedly did not
adequately clarify the nature of her
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role, when working with multiple
clients. [The respondent provided
psychological services to her
primary client, and then
conducted a joint session with her
client and her client's father]. The
complaint was resolved by way of
a letter of undertaking where the
respondent wrote a paper
discussing the importance of
obtaining informed consent when
workin g with multiple clients.

Example 6. [relevant section of
Code - relationship with clients;
confidentiality]

The complainant alleged that the
respondent breached confidential-
ity and acted “inappro priately
and unprofessionally” in her
interactions with her therapy
client. Following the Inquiry
Committee’s review of the
respondent’s clinical file,
correspondence with the
respondent, and without
prejudice discussions with the
respondent, the committee
determined that there was
insufficient evidence of an ethical
violation and dismissed the
comp laint.

Example 7 [relevant section of
Code - client welfare; relationship
with clients]

This isa complaint about
psychological services (i.e., family
sessions) provided by the
respondent to the complainant
and the complainant’s parents.
The complainant alleged that he
was misled by the respondent.
Following a review of the
documents provided by the
complainant and the respondent’s
practice records, the Inquiry
Committee determined that there
was insufficient evidence of an
ethical violation and dismissed
the complaint.

Example 8 [relevant section of
Code - informed consent}

This complaint was received from
a lawyer alleging that the
consultation provided by two
psychologists to the RCMP
interrogating an individual facing
criminal charges was a violation
of informed consent. The Inquiry
Committee dismissed the
complaint on the basis that there
was no evidence of an ethical
violation.

Letters of Undertaking Signed
during 2002:

Fourteen Letters of Undertaking
were prepared and signed in 2002
pertaining to a total of 23
complaints.

To follow isa summary of the
issues addressed in this voluntary
means of complaint resolution.

1. With regard to a complaint
regarding confidentiality and
dual relationships in a parental
capacity context, a registrant
agreed to provide a written
paper addressing practice
records, parental capacity
opinions, confidentiality and
dual relationships and to
demonstrate knowledge and
understanding of the Code of
Conduct with regard to these
issues. The terms of this
undertaking were met within 5
weeks of signing the
undertaking. No restrictions
were placed on the registrants
practice.
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A registrantagreed to writea
letter of apology to acoworker
and to complete courses
regarding prevention of
harassment. The terms have
all been met.

A registrant with two
complaints raising issues of
competence in dealing with
personality disorders agreed to
supervision of her practice
until such time as the
supervisors were satisfied that
there was no risk to the public.

A registrantsigned a
subsequent undertaking
providing for supervision of
her practice for a minimum of
18 months subject to the report
of the supervisors to the
College.

A registrantagreed to having
three custody and access
reports conducted under
supervision resulting in a
limitation on practice.

A registrant agreed to
voluntarily stop practicing in
the area of custody and access.

A registrant agreed to
apologize and express regret

8.

10.

A registrant agreed to
voluntarily stop practicing in
the area of psychological
assessments until such time as
the Inquiry Committee was
satisfied about her competence
to do so. Further in the area of
custody and access, she agreed
that if she were toresume
practice in this area after
Inquiry C ommittee approval,
she would conduct the first
three such assessments under
supervision.

A registrant agreed to ensure
he used up to date versions of
psychological tests and to
provide a paper to the
satisfaction of the Inquiry
Committee regarding dualand
multiple relationships in the
context of professional
psychological practice in both
assessment and treatment
contexts.

A registrant agreed to a
restriction on his practice not
to conduct custody and access
assessments after having
“inadvertently” provided an
opinion on custody and access
without having conducted a
proper assessment and without
trainingin this area of practice.

11.

A registrant agreed thathe
had ceased conducting
custody and access
assessments and hasno
intention of doing so in the
future.

12. A registrant wrote a letter of

13.

14.

apology to the father of a client
and a paper for the Inquiry
Committee on informed
consent and on the steps she
would take in her practice to
avoid misund-standings about
her role.

A registrant alleged to have
provided the wrong (someone
else’s) test results to aclient
among other allegations,
agreed to nullify a bill of a
client, to write a paper
outlining proced ures taken in
her practice to avoid potential
mix-ups of test results and to
inform all clients and third
parties of the estimated
completion time of all work
undertaken.

Subsequent to an
extraordinary hearing, the
Inquiry Committee required
that the registrant’s practice of
psychology be supervised
pending final resolution of

for comments made in a
courtroom

complaint matters.

SECTION 5. Complaint History and Preliminary (Descriptive) Statistical Analyses

The records available at the
College document receipt of 480
complaints since 1992, which was
the first year such records were
kept by the College of
Psychologists - subsequent to the
separation of regulatory

and advocacy services, the latter
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of which were taken over by the
BC Psychological Association
which had previously handled
both regulatory and advocacy
functions. The number of
complaints received each year is
listed in Table 14 below and
illustrated in Figure 3. Figure 4

illustrates the number of
registrants receiving at least one
complaint during each year and
the number of com plaints
received by registrants. There is a
range from 19 complaints in 1992
to a high of 63 complaints in the
year 2000.
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Table 14: Number of Registrants with Complaints from 1992 - 2002

Year No. of Com plaints No. of Registrants Distribution within Each Year *
1992 19 13 11=1, 1=2;, 1=6

1993 31 21 16=1;, 4=2; 1=3;, 1=4

1994 26 22 18=1; 4=2

1995 43 35 29=1; 4=2; 2=3

1996 38 30 18=1;, 5=2; 1=3; 7

1997 45 39 33=1; 2=2; 2=4

1998 47 32 25=1; 2=2; 3=3; 4, 1=5
1999 53 37 29=1; 5=2; 1=3; 5 1=6
2000 63 48 38=1;, 6=2; 3=3; 1

2001 60 42 30=1;, 9=2; 2=3; 6

2002 54 38 27 =1, 8=2; 2=3; 5

Total 480 -

Figure 3: Number of Complaints
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Figure 4: Number of Registrants with Complaints
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A common misconception is that
the College receives complaints on
only a relatively small number of
practitioners. For example, it is
commonly voiced that only a very
small percentage of registrants ever
receive formal complaints.

\ \ \ \ \
95 96 97 98 99

D No. of Registrants

A review of complaintdata from
the past 11 years (1992 - 2002)
suggests this is not the case. (See
Table 15 below) Com plaints
have been received for 20% of
registrants currently on the
register (172/856). This
percentage is slightly higher

'00

\ \ \
'01 '02

when individuals previously
registered are included. A total of
195 registrants have received one
or more complaints. Of these 120
had a single complaint and the
remainder had two or more
complaints and 7 have received 10
or more complaints.

Table15  Number of Complaints Per Registrant
Number of Com plaints Number of Registrants Total Com plaints
1 123 120
2 32 64
3 12 36
4 8 32
5 5 25
6 5 30
7 3 21
8 1 8
9 2 18
10 2 20
11 1 11
12 1 12
20 1 20
22 1 22
41 1 41
Total 195 480
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Figure 5: Number of Complaints/Registrant
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PRELIMINARY STATISTICAL
ANALYSES (DESCRIPTIVE AND
EXPLORATORY)

The description of com plaints into
the categories described in the
preceding sections allows for
some interesting, albeit
preliminary and exploratory,
statistical analyses. For example,
one interesting question is
whether or not the resolution of a

Page 27

4 5 6 7 8 9

D No. of Complaints/Registrant

complaint file (the “closing
reason”) isrelated to the

comp lainant’s main allegation. A
Chi-Square performed on the
table below was significant. >
(df=84) = 193.32 (p<.01). These
statistical analysis will become
more useful and informative as
we continue to track com plaints
on these key dimensions. Another
interesting question is whether or
not the length of time it takes to

10 11

\ \ \ \
12 20 22 41

bring a complaint to resolution is
related to the primary allegation.
Again a significant result (
(df=84) = 237.76; p < .01) was
obtained.

See Table17 which follows
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Table 16  Closing Reason and Primary Complaint Allegation

Closing Reason

Primary

Allegation Insuff- Decision | With- Letter of Resolved | Resigned | Registration Referred Total
icient Not to drawn Undertaking/ from Cancelled Registration
Evidence | Proceed Consent Practice Committee
Agreement
Advertising 3 3
Public
Statements
Assessment 47 16 3 21 10 3 101
Procedures
Client Welfare 12 4 1 3 8 1 29
Competence 3 1 1 1 2 1 9
Confidentiality 10 1 1 2 14
Dual Roles 2 1 4 2 1 10
Fees and 3 1 2 6
Statements
File Access and 1 1
Security
Informed 9 9
Consent
Professionalism 9 6 1 2 1 19
/ obligations
Provision of 2 2 1 5
Services
Relationship 2 1 3
with Clients
Violation of 1 2 3
Law
Totals 100 33 9 33 26 5 2 4 212
Table17: Closing Reason and Length of Time to File Closure
Time to Close Com plaint (Months)
Primary
Allegation N/A Total
0-4 5-9 10 -14 15-19 20-24 25-29 >30

Advertising and Public Statements 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3
Assessment Procedures 21 10 15 10 19 10 16 0 101
Client Welfare 7 10 5 3 2 0 2 0 29
Competence 2 0 1 2 0 1 3 0 9
Confidentiality 3 2 6 2 0 0 1 0 14
Dual Roles 1 1 1 3 0 0 4 0 10
Fees and Statements 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
File Access and Security 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Informed Consent 3 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 9
Professionalism/ obligations 5 7 0 3 2 0 2 0 19
Provision of Services 3 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 5
Relationship with Clients 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Violation of Law 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 3
Totals 51 39 34 23 23 11 29 2 212
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SECTION 1V.
ADMINISTRATIVE
MATTERS

Court Proceedings

The College was brought to court
by a registrant. The registrant
contended that he had not been
provided with information about
the “charges against” him. It was
explained to him that he had been
provided with an op portunity to
respond to the concerns of the
Inquiry Committee along with a
complete copy of all complaint
documentation. He persisted in his
contention even after the Inquiry
Committee had dismissed the
complaint due to insufficient
information. The court agreed
with the position of the College
and ordered the registrant to pay
$1000 to the College.

Freedom of Information
Requests

During the 2002 year the College
received 8 requests under the
Freedom of Information and Protection
of Privacy Act. It remains typical
that these requests are time
consuming and complex - factors
which increase when the requests
are made with regard to older files
or files on which there is very
extensive documenta tion.
Expenses for 2002 include

over $20,000 spenton responding
to these requests including legal
consultation. In one instance the
College prepared a lengthy
submission to the Information
Commissioner on a 1996 file in
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which the complainantsought
documents the College decided
not to disclose. The College had
several compelling reasons for
doing so. This matter remains
before the Information
Commissioner.

Ombudsman Investigations

The College was involved in
numerous discussions with the
Office of the Ombudsman during
the year with regard to their
decision to conduct an “audit” of
the College’s com plaint file. This
was challenged by the College
with regard to matters of
Ombudsman jurisdiction.

Bylaw Approval

The bylaws, along with the Code
of Conduct were approved by
Order in Council on February 21,
2002.

A Word of Thanks

There is a solid team of
individuals who work in the
College office. This group of
people helped enorm ously in both
the creation and and
implementation of a large number
of significant changes in policy
and procedure at the College.

Their dedication, their
appreciation of the importance of
the work they do, the constant
search for greater efficiency and
economy are impressive and
without equal.

It is a privilege to work with Judy
Clausen, Lyn Hellyar, Maria Doyle,
Colleen Wilkie, Rafael Richman,
and Avigail Cohen. They each
have my personal appreciation and
admiration. The various law yers
who provide consultation to the
College are each to be thanked for
their expertise, availability and
efforts in support of the regulatory
and professional concerns of the
College. The successes
documented in thisreport are a
tribute to the calibre of their
contributions. In particular credit
is due with regard to our
submissions to government on the
Health Professions Act and in our
achievements in alternate dispute
resolution.

A fine working relationship has
been established between College
staff and the Board and
Committees of the College. The
activities described in this Annual
Report are a product of these
relationships. I would also like to
take this opportunity to expressmy
personal gratitud e to the support,
caring and thoughtfulness of
Robert Colby in his role as Board
Chair over the past two years.

Respectfully Submitted,

Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Registrar
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AUDITORS REPORT

Tothe Members of
College of Psychdogists of British Columbia

We have audited the statement of financial position of the College of Psychologists of British
Columbiaas at December 31, 2002 and the statements of oper ations, changesin net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the College's

management. Our responsibility isto expressan opinion on thesefinancial statementsbased on our
audit.

Weconducted our auditin accor dancewith Canadian gener ally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statementsarefreeof material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis,
evidence supporting theamountsand disclosuresin thefinancial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting prindaples used and significant estimates made by management, aswell as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Inour opinion, thesefinancial statementspresent fairly, in all material respects, thefinancial position
of the College as at December 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and the changes in its net
assetsfor theyear then ended in accor dancewith Canadian gener ally accepted accountingprinciples
applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

Chartered Accountants
The Raber Mattuck Group

Vancouver, Britih Columbia
April 10, 2003

Page 31 2002 ANNUAL REPORT



COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTSOF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT DECEMBER 31, 2002

2002 2001
ASSETS $ $
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 607,647 30,603
Short-term investments - 181,621
Accounts receivable - 3,679
Prepaid expenses 4,539 9,769
612,186 225,672
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 2) 79,991 29,674
692,177 255,346
LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 98,330 39,938
Employee ramittances payable 7,755 8,123
PST payable 47 230
Deferred revenue (Note 3) 413,900 57,475

520,032 105,766

NET ASSETS (DEFICIENCY)

CAPITAL ASSETS 79,991 29,674
UNRESTRICTED 92,154 119,906
172,145 149,580
692,177 255,346
Approved by the Board
, Director
, Director
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTSOF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

2002 2001
$ $
RECEIPTS
Membership dues 1,056,324 1,052,361
Application and exam fees 51,450 51,317
Interest 15,687 20,777
Other 6,008 14,931

1,129,469 1,139,386

EXPENDITURES

Administration 528,532 476,017
Audit 4,039 4,815
Board 68,620 74,607
Committees (meetings, travel and honorarium) 38,072 33,803
External relations (dues) 7,290 8,780
Hearings

Discipline - -

Extraordinary 33,260 -
Operations 124,975 99,257
Registrant / Applicant services 23,988 89,946
Statutory functions 278,128 284,161

1,106,904 1,071,386

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES 22,565 68,000
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COLLEGE OF PSY CHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

Invested Unrestricted Total

In Capital

Assets

2002 2002 2002

$ $ $
Balance, beginning of year, as previously reported 29,674 119,906 149,580
Less: Correction for understatement of expenditures (Note 4)
Balance, beginning of year, as adjusted 29,674 119,906 149,580
Invested in Capital Assets 65,306 65,306
Amortization (14,989) (14,989)
Excess of Revenue Over Expenditures (27,752) (27,752)
Fund Balances, end of year 79,991 92,154 172,145
Page 34 2002 ANNUAL REPORT

Total

2001

105,758
24,178

81,580

68,000

149,580



COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Excess of receipts over expenditures
Adjustments for:

Amortization

Accounts receivable

Special levy receivable

Prepaid expense

Accounts payable

Employee remittances payable

PST payable

Deferred revenue

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets
Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year
Consisting of:

Cash
Short-term investments

2002

22,565

14,989
3,679

5,230
58,392
(368)
(183)
356,425
460,729

(65,306)
395,423
212,224

607,647

607,647
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607,647
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2001

68,000

7,190
16,256
2,690
(1,284)
(4,548)
8,123
230
52,415
149,072

(18,356)
130,716
81,508
212,224
30,603

181,621
212,224



COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2002

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assetsare recorded atfair value at the d ate
of contribution. Amortization is provided on a declining balance basis at the following rates:

Office furniture and equipment - 20% declining balance
Computer equipment and software - 30% declining balance
Leasehold improvements - 5years straight line

In the year of acquisition, only one-half of the normalamortization is recorded.
Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Asset Fund.
Revenue and Expense recognition

Mem bership dues are recognized as income in the fiscal yeardue. Expendituresare recognized as incurred.

2. Capital Assets
2002 2001
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $
Office furniture and equipment 79,111 47,507 31,604 11,281
Computer equipment 73,404 57,101 16,303 13,910
Leasehold Improvements 40,706 8,622 32,084 4,483
193,221 113,230 79,991 29,674
3. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents membership fees for the 2003 calendar year received in
advance.
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Minutes of the 2001 Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of
the College of Psychologists of
British Columbia was held on
November 29, 2001 at the
Renaissance Harbourside Hotel,
Vancouver, and by internet
broadcast to seven other locations
throughout the province. The
Chair, Robert Colby, called the
meeting to order at 5:11 p.m. with
79 registrants present in
Vancouver.

Mr. Colby welcomed the
registrants to the meeting and
introduced the Board members,
Henry Harder, Justin O’'Mahony,
Derek Swain, and Larry
Waterman. Regrets were received
from Emily Goetz and Barbara
Passmore. Staff members present
were Dr. Andrea Kowaz, Registrar;
Dr. Rafael Richman, Deputy
Registrar-Inquiry; Dr. Colleen
Wilkie, Deputy Registrar-
Registration; Lyn Hellyar,
Registration Coordinator; Maria
Doyle, Inquiry Coordinator; and
Judy Clausen, Recording Secretary.

Agenda

The circulated agenda was
reviewed. It was moved by
Anneliese Robens and seconded by
Rebecca England that the agenda
be approved as circulated.

Carried.

Minutes

Errors and Omissions: Column 1,
Line 3, the date should read
December 13, 2000, not December
13, 2001. It was moved by Rebecca
England and seconded by Susan
Turnbull that the Minutes of the
December 13, 2000 meeting be
approved as amended.

Business Arising from the

Minutes:
None
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Report from the Chair

The Chair, Robert Colby, referred
the attendees to his report in the
Annual Report circulated to
registrants. He thanked the Board
members and staff for their work
during the year, particularly the
completion of the Bylaws and
Code of Cond uct for the College.
The highlights of the year
nationally and internationally were
summ arized.

A written reportreceived from the
public Board member, Barbara
Passmore, was read by the Chair.

Registrar’s Report

Dr. Andrea Kowaz, the Registrar,
prepared an extensive report on
registration, complaint, and
administrative matters for the
Annual Report. The clear and
consistent processes put in place
for registration and complaint
matters were outlined. The
Registrar responded to questions
regarding complaints, registration
and freedom of information.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
Inquiry Committee

Dr. Larry Waterman, Chair of the
Inquiry Committee, thanked the
committee members present and
past for their service on the
committee. The impact of the
Health Professions Act and the Code
of Conduct on the complaint
process was described and
questions from registrants were
responded to.

Patient Relations Committee
Dr. Justin O’Mahony, Chair of the
Patient Relations Committee,
reported that this committee is in
the start-up stage and that more

information would be forthcoming.

Quality Assurance Committee
In the absence of the Chair of the

Quality Assurance Committee, Dr.
Emily Goetz, the Co-chair, Dr. Ron
LaTorre, referred registrants to the
written report on Page 18 of the
Annual Report. He thanked the
members of the committee and
staff who worked on the Self
Assessment Guide.

Registration Committee

The Chair of the Registration
Committee, Dr. Henry Harder,
expressed his appreciation to the
members of the committee and
staff for their diligence and work.
Dr. Harder recounted the
processes implemented including a
new application form, written
jurisprudence exam, and fairer oral
exam procedure and responded to
questions from registrants.

Finance Committee

Robert Colby referred registrants
to the Audited Financial
Statements for the year 2000,
contained in the Annual Report.
The budget for 2002 was circulated
for information purposes, but
financial statements were not yet
available for the 2001 calendar/
fiscal year. Itwas agreed that
information on 2001 and 2002
statutory and other expenses
would be presented at the next
Annual General Meeting.

It was moved by Stan Blank and
seconded by Trish Crawford that
the Raber Mattuck Group be
appointed as the College’s auditors
for the year 2002. Carried.

ELECTION RESULTS

The Chair announced that Dr.
Henry Harder and Dr. Justin
O’Mahony had been reelected to
the Board of Directors for three
year terms.

The meeting adjourned at7:19
p.-m.
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2004 Annual General Meeting

Agenda

1. Sign-inand Socializing (2:00 p.m. - 2:30 p.m.)
2. Cal toorder (2:30 p.m.)
3. Welcoming remarks, introduction of the Board (Dr. Henry Harder, 2003 B oard Chair)
4.  Approval of Agenda
5.  Minutes of the 2003 Information Meeting
5.1 Errors/Omissions
5.2  Adoption
5.3 Business arisng from the Minutes
6. Annual Reports

6.1 Chair of the 2003 Board, Dr. Henry Harder
6.2 Reports of Standing Committees

6.21 Inquiry Committee (Ms. Barbara Passmore, 2003 Chair)

6.22 Patient Relations Committee (Mr. Robert Colby, 2003 Chair)

6.23 Quality Assurance Committee (presented by Dr. Michael Joschko, 2004 Chair)
6.24 Registration Committee (Dr. Michael Elterman, 2003 Chair)

6.25 Finance Committee (Dr. Derek Swain, 2003 Chair)

7. New Business
7.1  Adjournment
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BOARD, STAFF, AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS 2003

BOARD
Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair of the Board
Derek Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych.,Vice Chair, Board, Chair, Finance and Discipline Committees
Robert Colby, M.S., R.Psych., Chair, Patient Relations Committee
Michael Elterman, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, Registration Committee
Emily Goetz, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, Quality Assurance Committee
Michael Joschko, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, L egislation Committee
Barbara Passmore, Public Member, Chair, Inquiry Committee
Marguerite Ford, Public Member
Rana Dhatt, Public Member
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Report from the Chair

| welcome this opportunity to review the 2003 year and the challenges faced and achievements realized for the Board
of the College during theyear. During 2003 the systems and procedures put in place since the College became regulated
under the Health Professions Act were consolidated and validated. T hese systems and procedures provided a solid
foundation from which the College was able to manage divergent and challenging issues. Thisis a major achievement
and one which gives the Board great pleasure and comfort, giventhe need to develop and implement major changesin
every aspect of College functioning in avery short period of time.

Among the major issues facing the Board during the 2003 year were the following:

Regulation of Master's Level Practitioners

Changes to the bylaws provided an opportunity for some master's level psychology practitionersto become registered
with the College. Consequently theBoard supported the continuation of anumber of initiatives, including meetingswith
the BC Association of School Psychologists, the Canadian Counseling Association (national and BC representatives),
psychology personnel from Corrections Canada, as well as the BC Association of Clinical Counselors. Over 100
individuals from these various groups took advantage of the extraordinary period of application the College extended
to these master's level practitioners from January 1 to May 1, 2003.

The Registration Committee devoted considerable timeto devel oping policiesto cover the applications received during
the extraordinary period. Four information sessions for these applicants were held in November. A special oral
examination is being developed for these candidates. The committee is continuing to discuss how applicants in the
extraordinary period will remain accountable to the College once they are placed on the Limited Register to meet
remaining registration criteria.

Removal of Exemptions

M eetings were held during the year with Mr. Alan Moyes, Executive Director of the Office of Professional Regulation,
along with representaivesfrom theMinistry of Education, todiscussthe regul ation of school psychology practitioners.
All participants in these discussions were appreciative of theflexibility and openness of the Board to the consideration
of ways to regulate psychology professionals under the systems in place at the College. In particular, the Limited
Register and the ability to place limitations on practice in terms of both settings and activities, opens avariety of options
for theregulationof psychology practitioners. These discussionswere heldin light of the recommendation of the former
Health Professions Council to remove the exemptions from the Psychologists’ Regulation under the Health Professions
Act.

This seriesof discussions produced some excitement and broughtto light the high degreeof misnformationamong some
stakeholders. We put considerable effort into ensuring that accurate information wasaccessible and easily available.
For example, the Registrar prepared a basic “fact sheet” and FAQ’s on the website.

Implementation of the Mutual Recognition Agreement

The Registrar and Registration Committee put tremendous efforts into drafting amendments to the bylaws to ensure
consistency with the Mutual Recognition Agreement signed by all Canadian psychology regulatory bodies. The bylaw

changes were submitted to government in November 2003.

Amendments to the bylaws were also submitted to government for approval to allow for recognition of statuson the
Nationd Register of Health Service Providers in Psychology a a mobility mechanism.

College of Psychologists of British Columbia 2003 Annual Report 6



Regulation of Title and Practice of Psychology

The Board decided to pursue a matter of aformer registrant who continued to adverti se himself as a psychologist, in
explicit contravention of the Psychologists Regulation under the Health Professions Act.

Renewal Process

The Board was pleased with the response to the clear deadline set for submission of full payment and a completed
renewal form of December 31, 2003. Thisyear amuch smaller number of registrants (n=27) were taken off theregister
due to failure to submit their fees and renewal on time. Of these, 19 individuals had not intended to renew and the
remaining 8 were quickly reinstated after payment of fees and fines. This compares very favourably to the over 100
registrants taken off the register at the end of 2002 for failure to meet the deadline.

Patient Relations

The Patient Relations Committee prepared abrochure in conformity with theHealth Professions Actwith two versions,
one for registrants and one for clients.

Annual Evaluation of Registrar

We conducted a performance evaluation of the Registrar according to established objectives. All objectives had been
met or exceed ed and the board isdelighted with the achievements of the Collegestaff, under the leadership and guidance
of the Registrar. T hefollowing objectives ser ve both asthe objectives for the College asawhole in 2004 aswell as being
specific targeted objectives for the Registrar and her staff in the coming year. W hile these will serve as a means of
performance evaluation on an annual basis, the objectives are all seen to be ongoing and long term in nature. They are
as follows:

to bring the College in line with national and international standards (both substantive and procedurd) for
professional regulation;

to enhance the profile, standing and credibility of the College with government;

to develop and maintain an effective system for document control, management, filing and storage;

to maintain the efficient and timely management of complaints;

to ensure regular and effective communication with registrants about regulatory issues affecting them;

to enhance the decigon-making competencies of the Inquiry, Registration, Discipline and Quality Assurance
Committees,

to maintain theefficient resourcing and staffing of the College; and

to ensure data integrity, security, control and management.

Continuing Competency Program

W e were pleased that the Quality Assurance Committee’s continuing competency program received such afavourable
response from registrants. Over 46 registrantstook the time to provide constructive feedback. The Board is supportive
of the plan to implement the program as currently described, with an eye to amending or adjusting the program and
requirements as knowledge is gained through experience with its implementation over the next few years.

Board Elections

Elections were held in November of 2003. Robert Colby was re-elected and L ee Cohene was el ected, both for athree
year term on the Board.
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Public Mem bers

Two new public members, Marguerite Ford and Rana Dhatt, were welcomed to the Board. | cannot say enough to
convey our appreciation to these dedicated and thoughtful individuals for volunteering their time to serve the College
as public members.

Submissions to Government

During the past year the College made several major submissionsto government. The Registrar, working with legal
counsel, Anthony Tobin, and Bonita Thompson, who helped us previoudy on our bylaws, wrote major submissions to
government in response to proposed changes to the Health Professions Act. Seethe Registrar’sreport for more specific
information. The B oard was pleased with the response of government to our submissions, which validates the Board's
perception of the clarity, thoroughness and thoughtful ness of the College’s submissions. These submissions are on our
website.

The College also made a major submission in support of the recommendation of the Health Professions Council that
diagnosis be a reserved action, and that this reserved action be av ailable to registrants of our College. This submission
underscoresour view thatthe act of psychological diagnosis and theconduct of psychological assessments are facets of
the same basic skill set and competencies. Thanksto the Registration Committee members who spent many hours on the
psychological assessment submission.

The College opposed an application for Occupational Title Protection by the B.C. Association of Clinical Counsellors
to protect the title “ Registered Clinical Counsellor” under Part 10 of the Society Act as it was thought that its approval
would be contrary to the public interest. Among the arguments advanced was the acceptance by government of
recommendations made in two major reports on professional regulation (the Seaton Report and Safe Choices) against
designatingthisgroup asa health professioninitsamendments to theHPA and enacted criticalamendmentsto theHeal th
Professions Act on October 7, 2003. It would clearly be inappropriate to approve use of this title when the Government
has not been prepared to this date to designate the health profession and to grant its members an exclusive title under the
Health Professions Act. We also raised objection to theterm “clinical”. Theterm “clinical” impliesthatthe populaion
being treated is a clinical population of patients and that there is pathology or abnormality that requires diagnosis and
intervention. Thetypical population of individual swho require counseling arenor mal peoplewith normal problems such
that no diagnosis would be applicable.

Such submissionstake atremendous amount of time and add to an already overloaded workload. Itspeaksto the cdiber

of our staff, committeemembers and legal consultants that we ar e able to make such high quality submissions while all
other responsibilities are being so ably met.

Book Chapter

The Registrar wasinvited to submit achapter in abook on theregulation of psychology in Canadaby David Evans. The
Board endorsed the Registrar working on this project.

Incorporation

Registration with the College is generic and thus the College cannot approve specidty desgnations in incorporation
names. The Board endorsed the Registration Committe€ s policy on company names and confirmed that it is not
considered timely for the College to involveitself in the incorporation process. Therefore, we will not be seeking a
resolution under the Health Professions Act to regulate corporations at this time.
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Motor Vehicle Act

The College has been participating in discussons with the Superintendent of Motor Vehicles along with the Colleges
of Optometrists and Physicians and Surgeons. Patricia McFarland, R.Psych., has been participating in the meetings on
behalf of the College, along with the Registrar, and has assisted with drafting an upcoming practice advisory for
registrants. Many thanksto Dr. McFarland for her involvement and expertise.

Proposal from Marriage and Family Therapists

A proposal to form aCollege of Psychologistsand Marriage and Family Ther apists, outlined in the April 10, 2003 letter
from the B.C. Association of Marriage and Family Therapistswas discussed and dedined.

Annual General Meetings

The lack of a quorum at last year's Annual General Meeting turned the meeting into an “information meeting” and
prompted discussion around the Board table about the purpose and objectives of an annual general meeting. Since
coming under the Health Professions Act, theregistrants no longer approve abudget. The main purpose of the meeting
isfor the Board to present information to the regigrants about the conduct of College business over thelast year, and
to be accountable for decisions made. It was decided to circulate a letter to registrants asking for opinion on how to
manage this issue for the 2003 year with the choices being 1) to hold another AGM or 2) to consider the last meeting
an information meeting and not to resched ule another meeting. Very few registrants responded and those that did voted
against having another AGM in 2003.

Meetings with BCPA

Considerable time and effort was spent over the year conveying concerns to BCPA and attempting to establish a clear
understanding of mutual roles and responsibilities. A series of meetings were held, resulting in a “working group”
meeting towards the end of the year. The outcome of this meeting was a proposed “ L etter of Understanding” whichwas
approv ed by both Boards.

The key elements of this agreement are as follows:

It isrecognized that appropriate consultation and cooperation isinthe interest of the profession of psychology and
the public in British Columbia.

It isrecognized that there is a clear distinction betweenthe roles and mandates of the College (regulation) and the
Association (advocacy).

It is agreed that representatives of the College and the Association will meet on aregular basis.

On request, the College will provide brief consultation regarding compliance with governing legislation and
consistency with College Bylaws and the Code of Conduct as time and resources allow.

It is agreed that the College will, when appropriate, invite submissions from BCPA on matters that have been
identified by the College as issues of public concern that may affect the profession.

In the event of conflict or disagreement about issues, projects or concerns, the parties will initially refer all such
mattersto a meeting of joint representatives of the parties with aview to clarity of the issues and reasons why the
parties differ which will then be taken back to the respective boards.

Information Meeting/Dinner with Comm ittee Members
| was delighted to participatein the meeting between the Board and committee members prior to the information meeting
on November 3, 2003. The involvement of committee members and their contribution in terms of time and expertise

ismuch appreciated. Thismeeting providesavaluable opportunity for discussion of substantivetopicsof shared concern
as well as a chance to thank committee members for their efforts on behalf of our profession.
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Budget

Given the unpredictability of regulation and the large number of changes in legislation, bylaws and the volume of
complaintsbeing processed by the College, | am pleased to report that our expenditures and receiptsfor 2003 were very
close to projections. Many thanks to the Registrar and the Finance Committee for their efforts in this achievement.

Meeting with Sindi Hawkins

Wewereinvited to attend areception meeting with Sindi Hawkins, thethen Minister of Health Planning, to thank those
who made submissions on changes to the Health Professions Act . The Registrar and Vice-Chair, Dr. Derek Swain,
attended the meeting on behalf of the College.

Appeals 2003

A total of 11 appeals were heard by the Board during 2003. W hen complainants are dissatisfied with the decision of the
Inquiry Committee not to issue a citation, under the Health Professions Act they may file an appeal within 14 days of
notificationof the dedsion. For files closed over the past year (N= 44) by thelnquiry Committee, eleven were appeal ed.
The appeal s were heard by the College board under the Health ProfessionsAct. The decision of the Inquiry Committee
was upheld in each case.

Demographics

The Board continues to be aware of the changing demographics of our registrants with the average age of registrants
increasing year by year. Currently the mean age is approximately 54 years old. The changing demographic picture
means that in the next five to ten years we will see an increasing number of registrants retiring from practice.

Complaint Resolution

We are very pleased at our continued success in achieving negotiated resolution to complaints. At the same time, the
Board has been advised that there are a number of serious matters that may be heading towards a hearing of the
Discipline Committee. Thereis noquestionthat it is preferable to resolve matters amicably and through negotiation and
discussion. Thereisalso little doubt that some matters are of sucha serious nature that litigation is the necessary course
of action.

| encourage every registrant to read through this Annual Report carefully. Many thanks to the Registrar and her staff
for this impressive Report. |f registrants read through the report, many of the anxieties and concerns related to
complaintscould be alleviated. Take alook, for example, at theproportionof complaints which end up being di smissed.
Then look at the proportion of the complaints which are not dismissed but are resolved through negotiated resol utions.
Certainly for all but the most serious complaints, the statistics suggest that an openresponse to acomplaintinvestigation
isin the best interest of the registrant. In the typical ingance, if you receive a notification that the College has received
a complaint about your conduct, you would be well-served by asking yourself the question of whether or not thisis an
opportunity for constructive self-reflection. Approaching it from this point of view is more likely to lead to a
nonadversarial resol ution. Even when complaintsare appropriately viewed asvexatiousin nature, thereis still something
to be learned about their prevention. If the particular complaint isinvegigated and you are asked to provide a response
and/or to participate in a without prejudice discussion with your peers, the numbers suggest engaging actively in this
process isin your best interest.

The College staff, committee members, and Board are working hard at fulfilling the mandate of the College.
Respectfully submitted,

Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Chair of the Board, 2003
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Inquiry Committee Report

The Inquiry Committee met 11 times over the past year, in addition to numeroustel econferences and other consultations.
In addition to ongoing complaint investigations, the outcome of which is fully reported in the Registrar’s report, the
committee spent hours discussing a number of other critical substantiveissues related to practice. Submissions were
received from psychology practitioners at Correctional Servicesof Canadawith regard to risk assessments. The College
was asked to consider a practice advisory on thetopic of whether or not file-based assessments of risk should be exempt
fromthe Code of Conduct requirement for face-to-facecontact. After much discussion, the committeefelt that therewere
significantconcernswithrisk assessmentsin the correctional settingsuch that no such blanket exemption should be made.
Aswith other provisions of the Code, the registrant is ac countable for providing information on why he/she wasnot able
to meet a particular provision of the Code because of extenuatingcircumstances Other proposed practice advisories
were discussed, including one which is forthcoming with regard to release of test data. This is reported on in the
Legislative Committee report. The committee directed staff to review the new APA Ethics Code with aview to noting
any desirable revisions to our Code of Conduct. It was unanimously moved to indemnify officersof the College and
College counsel for acting at the direction of committees or the B oard, a motion later ratified by the Board.

Interms of complaints, the Inquiry Committee continuesto deal with atremendousvolume due to both the large number
of complaints and the amount of material of which the typicd complaint is comprised. Italso appears, from responses
from respondentsin some complaints, that many registrants do not understand the role of the Inquiry Committee. The
committee does not decide which complaints to investigate, nor are decisions made about whether or not a complaint
has merit until a complete review of the evidence has been performed. Even then, the decision options open to the
committee are as prescribed by the Health Professions Act. In brief, on receipt of a written complaint, the Inquiry
Committee must investigate. Further, the committee may open its own investigation regarding any of the following
matters: (a) a contravention of this Act, the regulationsor the bylaws; (b) afailure to comply withalimitor condition
imposed under this Act, the regulations or the bylaws; (c) professional misconduct; (d) competence to practise the
designated health profession; (e) a physical or mental ailment, an emotional disturbance or an addictionto alcohol or
drugs that impairs his or her ability to practis the designated hedth profession. For complaints on which the Inquiry
Committee determines they have jurisdiction and in which there appears to be some evidence of an ethical violation,
the committee must request theregistrant who is the subject of an investigation under this section to provide it with any
information regarding the matter that the registrant believes should be considered by the Inquiry Committee. After
considering any information provided by the registrant, the Inquiry Committee may (a) take no further action if the
Inquiry Committee is of the view that the matter is trivial, frivolous, vexatious or made in bad faith, or that the conduct
or competence to whichthe matter relates i s satisfactory, (b) in the case of an invegigation respecting acomplaint, take
any action it considers appropriate to resolve the matter between the complainant and the registrant; (c) act under section
36; or (d) direct the Registrar to issue a citation under section 37.

Information is a useful tool for registrants who may be named as respondents incomplaints. Here are some examples
of complaints drawnfrom the44 complaintfilesclosed in 2003.

A registrant assessed an individual's competence to drive, following arequest from the Superintendent of Motor
Vehicles. Thecomplaint concerned theindividual’ sdistressinthemanner in which he perceived theregistrantinteracted
with him and what he perceivedto be the registrant’ sselective attention. The relevart sections of the Code of Conduct
were determined by the Inquiry Committee as: standard 3.12 [accuracy], standard 7.7 [unprofessional behaviour], and
standard 3.3 [limits on practice]. After requestingand reviewing a copy of the registrant’s clinical records, the Inquiry
Committeeinvited the registrant’s response to the allegations, and to a question related to sensitivity to clinical issues.
The registrant responded to the questions and theresponses satisfied the committee. The complaint was closedin eight
months. Subsequently the complainant appealed the decision of the Inquiry Committee not to take this matter to a
hearing. The Board refused (i.e. denied) the appeal.

A registrant attempted to conduct a mediation session with awoman and her brothers with regard to decisions related
to thecare of their father. After the sessions and the perception on the part of the woman of an undesirable outcome
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from the sessions, the woman complained to the College alleging bias on the part of the psychologist. The sections of
the Code of Conduct relevant to the complaint are: standard 3.11 [objectivity of opinions and interventions], gandard
4.7 [avoiding misunderstandings], standard 5.1 [obligation], and standard 5.13 [multiple client§. The Inquiry
Committee reviewed the documents provided by the complainant and the registrant’sclinical records, and asked the
psychologist anumber of questions. T hese questions included asking about how the issue of the purpose of the session
had been addressed,informed consent, and the gopropriateness of thisform of mediation given the woman'’ sinterpersonal
style and personality characteristics. The respondent provided a detailed and thorough response to the Inquiry
Committeethat included relaying what he had |earned from this experience and changes that he has since incorporated
into hispractice. The committee accepted the regigrant’s response. This complaint took five months to close. The
decisionwas not appealed to the Board.

A woman and her husband attended couples counselling with aregistrant. The woman complained about her experience
of certain of the techniques used by the registrant during their sessions which she and her husband found to be indicative
of alack of caring and concern. The relevant sections of the Code of Conduct for this complaint are: standard 5.1
[obligation], standard 5.33 [avoiding harm], and standard 7.7 [unprofessional behaviour]. The Inquiry Committee
obtained and reviewed theregistrant’ sclinical records and then asked the regigrant about his therapeutic techniques and
hisresponseto the complainant’s concerns. Theregistrant responded with adescription of his treatment philosophy and
techniques and expressed his regret that the client had perceived the therapy experience as described. The registrant
agreed to provide a letter of regret to the client, which he did and the file was closed. This complaint took six months
to resolve.

A complaint was received about an assessment of awoman who claimed that she had been sexually abused by her father.
The woman later retracted this allegation. The woman'’s father complained to the College that he had been diagnosed
as “achild abuser” by the registrant without having been assessed or consulted inany fashion by the registrant. The
Inquiry Committee decided, given the serious nature of the allegations, to conduct a practice inspection and obtain a
sample of other clinical filesfromtheregistrant. Thefileswerereviewed by the committee and concemswere identified.
The relevant standards that were in effect at the time of the complaint were: standard 1 and standard 1.f [responsibility]
of the Ethical Standards of Psychologists [1985]. The committee then decided to open a complaint on its own motion,
and to ask the registrant to respond to the concerns on the files obtained during the inspection, in addition to continuing
itsinvestigation of the first complaint. After negotiations with the regigrant’ slegal counsel, an agreement was reached
and the registrant signed aletter of undertaking agreeing to the complete supervision of hispractice. Shortly thereafter
the registrant resgned from the practice of psychology. These two complaints took 21 and 17 months to investigate,
respectively.

A young woman complained to the College that she had requested a copy of her clinical records from aregistrant she
had seen some time earlier and that the registrant informed her that he could not locate therecords. She expressed feeling
distressed about the registrant’ sconduct to the registrant, who encouraged her to file acomplaint with the College. The
relevant standards of the Code of Conduct are: standard 7.7 [unprofessional behaviour], standard 13.1 [length of record
retention], standard 13.2 [legal requirements], and standard 13.3 [minor’srecords]. The Inquiry Committee asked the
registrant about his file storage practices and the steps he took to locate the file. The committee was satisfied with his
response and the file was closed after two months. The complainant appealed to the Board and the Board refused the
appeal.

Respectfully submitted,

Barbara Passmore, Chair
Inquiry Committee 2003
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Quality Assurance Committee Report

The Quality Assurance Committee’ smain focusin2003 was on thedevel opment of a continuing competency program.
In developing this proposal, the Quality A ssurance Committee was guided by the following principles:

that the proposed program is not equivalent to a continuing education program,i.e., that continuing competency and
continuing education arecomplementary, notidentical . This programisqualitativel y andquantitatively distinct from
a “continuing education” requirement in which forms must be completed following attendance at various
professional workshops and conferences;

that the program incorp orate the existing emphasis on registrants self-declaring compliance and self-assessment;
that the requirement be regulated with aview to minimizing College resources, staff time, and registrant effort;
that the program be based on minimal acceptable requirements, and emphasize freedom of choice and flexibility;
that the program is an articulation of the basic expectations as described in the Code of Conduct of the College
which sets out the standards by which registrants conduct will be evaluated.

The program was distributed to registrants and placed on the website for a three month period of regigrant review and
oppor tunity for feedback to the Quality Assurance Committee. The start date of January 2004 means that registrants
will be asked to attest to compliance with this requirement with the 2005 renewal.

Forty-six responses were received to our reques for feedback. Comments were specific, thoughtful and helpful. The
highest number of responses supported required continuing competency in principle. The next most frequent categories
were: questions regarding the audit and inspections; suggestions for making categories for hours more flexible;
suggestionsfor clarifying definitions of requirements; and suggestions for lowering cost to registrants, e.g., with online
course credit. The committee will use the first few years to fine-tune the program, with input from registrants.

A second areaof discussion stems from the interaction with other College committees and information provided by the
Registrar on issues of overlapping concern. For example, among the goals of the Quality Assurance Committeeisthe
provision of information to registrants to enhance level of practice - a goal which is also consstent with complaint
prevention. We are supportive of the College’s efforts to distribute information about common complaints and believe
that the Quality Assurance Committee hasaroleto play in translating these issuesinto prev entive practice enhancement.

It was agreed that the committee will continue to respond to feedback to the continuing competency program by way of
the “Frequently Asked Questions” available on the College website and in issues of the Chronicle.

Emily Goetz was the Chair of the Quality Assurance Committee in 2003 and the College thanks her for her hard work
on this committee.
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Legislation Committee Report

Two major issues were under review in 2003 by the Legislation Committee.
Release of Information - Secure Test Materials

Registrants are often asked to disclose test materials, particularly in the context of litigation. Several provisionsin the
Code of Conduct address the issue of disclosure of confidential documents and materials. Code of Conduct 11.15in
particular requires registrants to make reaso nable efforts to maintain the integrity and security of tests.

One of the most frequent questions registrants ask of the College is“What do | do if | have been asked to respond to a
court order requiring the provision of testmaterials”’. The practice advisory under currentreview by theCollege includes
the following elements:

Determining whether thisisaformal request (i.e., court order) or arequest anticipatingthe issuing of a court order.
Outlining registrants’ responsibilities when responding to requests for raw datain the context of legal proceedings.
These include:

a) describing the confidential nature of the documents;

b) requesting that the parties do not make copies of the documents except for purposesof the legal proceedings;

c) requesting that all persons who receive copies of the documentation be bound by the court Order;

d) requesting that the raw test data not be disclosed to or discussed withany personwho is not competent to use
or analyse the data, and if there is adisputeas to whether or not any such person is competent, the data may
be disclosed to the College which shall determine w hether such person is competent;

e) requesting thereturn of dl copiesof the documentsto the registrant by the party who obtained the Order upon
completion of those proceedings and the expiration of any appeal periods; and

f) requesting that the Court Registry not to disclose the documents unless in accordance with the terms of the
court Order.

While this matter remained under active review asof December 2003, the key elements of thedraft advisory centre on
the obligations of the registrant to advise legal counsel in writing of thenature of the documents, the relevant provisions
of the Code of Conduct, and the terms of the Advisory. This would be an advisable course of action in response to any
request for confidential information.

Privacy Legislation

The implementation of new legislation in January 2004 will create challenges for individual registrants, not unlike the
challenges faced by the Collegeas an authority under the Freedom of Information and Pr otection of Privacy Act.

On January 1, 2004, private psychology practitioners offices, medical diagnostic facilities, and non-hospital medical/
surgical facilitiesin British Columbia will be subject to privacy legislation, either through the provincial Personal
Information Protection Act (known as PIPA), or through the federal Personal Information Protection and Electronic
Documents Act (known as PIPEDA). Both statutesestablish information practices in private organizations, which can
be an individual, an agency, or anon-profit society. Most private psychology practitionersin B.C. will fall under PIPA,;
however, organizationsor individualswho transfer personal information across provincial bordersfor business purposes
will likely need to comply with PIPEDA in addition to any relevant sections of the provincial legidation.

Registrants are encouraged to read the Chronicle and to avail themselves of legal consultation and other available
resourcesin dealing with these new obligations. W hile the College will continue to make available information likely
to be useful to registrants, the College office cannot advise registrants on how to respond to PIPA or PIPEDA requests.
See for example PIPA Implementation Tool 4, available on the website of the Ministry of Management Services.
(http://www.mser.gov.bc.ca/foi_pop/Privacy/T ools/PIPA_Tool_4.htm).

Respectfully submitted,

Michael Joschko, Chair
Legislation Committee 2003
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PATIENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE

The Health Professions Act specified that regulatory bodies must have a Patient Relations Committee for the specific
purpose of establishing a patient relations program to seek to prevent professional misconduct of a sexual nature. The
duties of this committeeinclude:

recommending to the Board specific procedures for handling complaints of professional misconduct of a sexual
nature;

informing the public about the process of bringing their concerns to the College;

monitoring and periodically evaluaing the operation of procedures established;

developing and coordinating educational programs dealing with professional misconduct of a sexual nature for
registrants and the public as required,;

establishing a patient relations program to prevent professional misconduct of a sexual nature;

recommending to the Board standards and guidelines for the conduct of registrants and their patients.

This Committee hasdeveloped a pamphlet for registrants and a pamphlet for members of the public. Both documents
are currently under review by the B oard and Inquiry and Quality Assurance Committees.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert L. Colby, Chair
Patient Relations Committee 2003

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE REPORT

| am pleased to report onfour major areasof Registration Committee discussion and decision-making from 2003. The
four major areasare: extraordinary application/registration issues; general issuesrelated to applicationfor registration,
issueshaving to do with title and representation of credentials, and regigration renewal issues. Thisreview isintended
to provideregistrants with a sense of the many substantive and procedural issues which were thefocus of the Regigration
Committee over the 2003 year.

1. Extraordinary application/registration issues
Registration Exemptions

It is noted that the exemptionsin placein B.C. with regard to title appear to be among thebroadest in the country. Upon
approval of the College’s bylaws, the College initiated a series of discussions with various groups for whom eligibility
for registration with the College had been opened by means of the two dassesof registration now possible. While there
has been no formal confirmation of this, the College of Psychologists has under stood through our communication with
the Office of Professional Regulation under the Ministry of Health Planning that the government intends to continue to
implement the recommendations of the Health Professions Council, one of which was tha the exemptions would be
lifted. Discussions initiated by the College remain ongoing with various groups, and with individuals currently
practicing psychology under the existing exemptions. As part of this process, the College of Psychologists initiated
contact with the BC Association of School Psychologists and other groups to discuss issues arising from the new class
of registration as well as the possibility of the government removing existing exemptions.
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The standards adopted by the Registration Committee are consistentwith the naional standards as reflected in the M utual
Recognition Agreement in Psychology (MRA) as well as with standards adopted by the Canadian Psychological
Association, the Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards (representing 62 psychology jurisdictionsin
North A merica), and those in place in most individual Canadian psychology jurisdictions.

W e anticipate that the College will be involved in ongoing discussons with government along with the various groups
whose members may be directly affected by removal of the exem ptions.

The Extraordinary Application Period

Two major events led to the committee’s decision to implement an “extraordinary application period”. The firstisthe
implementation of the new bylaws, driven by the provisions of the MRA and the availability of registration for both
doctoral and master’slevel applicants. The second results from the recommendation of the Health Professions C ouncil
that existing exemptions as per the Psychologists Regulation under the Health Professions Act be lifted. Ongoing
discussionswith government continueto support theview the government doesintend to implement all recommendations
of the Health Professions Council. [Copies of these reports are available on the College website under thelinkssection
or at www.healthplanning.gov.bc.ca/leg/hpcireview/index.html].

During 2003 we met with representatives of the B.C. Association of School Psychologists(BCASP), the BC branch of
the Canadian Counselling Association, the BC Association of Clinical Counselors,and other groups of individuals such
asagroup of university faculty to discuss the implications of thisrecommendation. We also initiated and participated
in meetingsin Victoriawith Alan Moyes (Executive Director, Ministry of Health Planning) and representativesfrom the
Ministry of Education regarding school psychology practitioners. These meetings indicated general support for the
mechanismsthat wehave established for the extraordinary period. Both ministries hope that asimilar procedure could
be used when and if the exemptions are lifted.

The extraordinary period wasfrom January 1 to May 1, 2003. Over 100 individualstook advantage of this extraordinary
period, representing school psychology, corrections, counselling and other areas of psychology. Theregistrationcriteria
were not changed; rather, the accommodations provided an extension of time within which registration criteria would
need to be met (such as completion of the EPPP exam and the internship), and recognition of work experience in
psychology. Individual saccepted for registration under these provisgons will be placed on the Limited Register until all
registration requirements have been met. Further, someindividualswill have more ongoing restrictions on their license
to practice.

The Committeeestablished general polides, proceduresand criteriafor the extraordinaryperiod. The guiding principles
were as follows:

commitment to regulate psychology practitioners
criteria and processes to establish minimal entrance criteria for independent practice in psychology
mechanisms for accountability and support when upgrading to entrance criteria

Itisanticipated that the mechanisms used during the extraordinary period would apply to other psychol ogy practitioners
working in the school system who meet the basic eligibility criteria established by the Registration Committeeif the
exemptions are lifted.

This process is not without controversy, and there is much misinformation in the community about the interest of the
College in extending a welcome to master' s level practitioners who meet criteria, and in offering the accommodations
of the extraordinary period. Much effort was placedin devel oping fact sheets and other information documentsto ensure
that accurate information was available. See for example, the fact sheet and FAQ’s on the College website.
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The work involved in the initial review of the applications under the extraordinary period was extensive. Four criteria
were used to review extraordinary applications for degree acceptability:

Degree granted by a recognized/regionally accredited institution.
Degree granted from a psychology department.

Degree granted in psychology.

Degree psychological in nature.

N =

Much future work will berequired, including devd opment of supervision protocols and ways in which the College can
evaluate and facilitate relevant supervised experience for these extraordinary applicants.

Oral Exam for Extraordinary Applicants

It was decided that the oral exam for extraordinary applicants will cond st of two parts asfollows Part A will focus on
awareness of competence areas, limits of competence, and related ethical decision-making for the purpose of assisting
in determining limitations on scope of practice prior to placement on the Limited Register. Part B will be similar to the
current oral exam, and will be undertaken after all other requirements have been fulfilled.

Mandatory Orientation

The Registration Committee decided to require all extraordinary applicants to participate in amandatory orientation
about the functioning of the College and the responsibilities of a College registrant. Four such workshops were held
during 2003 for applicants for regigration under theextraordinary provisions. It may bethat this orientation will become
mandatory for all applicants.

2. Application for Registration Issues
Psychological Associates and the MRA

The MRA states that after July 1, 2003, all applicants will be assessed on the core competencies. Psychological
Associateswho were licensed in their home jurisdiction after that time are eligible for mobility. The MRA does not
providefor automatic eligibility of reciprocal applicants who were licensed as psychological associates prior toJuly 1,
2003. The Committee agreed that these applicationswould bereviewed on a case-by-case basisto determineif they meet
the foundational and core competencies.

Degree Authorization Act

The Registration Committee formed atask forceto deal withissuesrelated to thegovernment' s enactment of theDegree
Authorization Act (DAA). The task forceconsisted of Drs. McDonald, Bradley, Washburn and Wilkie. The DAA was
passedin 2002. T hislegislation allow sfor advanced education, including graduate training, to be offered by institutions
other than chartered universities. Its stated goal isto improve access to higher education. The Registration Committee
had a number of concerns. The Act was non-specific on a number of aspects. For example, the Act authorized the
establishment of aDegree Quality Assurance Board (DQA B) that will carry much of the policy and procedural decision-
making, and be respongble for the bal ance of access (student benefits) with quality control (public benefit). As much
of theimplementation of theAct will be determined in committee rather than through legisl ation, there was concern about
the process bywhich the new legislation would beimplemented, and potential forthe composition of the D QAB to highly
influencewhat policies and systems are developed. The most pressing concern was that there would be aloosening of
the standards for graduate-level training in psychology. There could be adiversity of institutions offering master’s and
doctorate training: public university colleges; U S-based private schools (often for-profit); locally-based private schools
(profit and non-profit). Theissue of distance education was an additional concern asit is associated both with access
and quality control issues.
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The Task Forcemet with Jim Soles, Assistant Deputy Minister in May, 2003 to better understand the government’sview
of the importance of consultation with health professions regarding the implementation of the D AA and therole of the
health professions onthe DQAB. Thiswas a successul meeting in which Mr. Soleswas receptive to our concerns about
quality issuesand indicated that the government was willing to include health professions in relevant discussions. The
College received draft documents from the Ministry in September, 2003 regarding the proposed degree quality
assessment process under the DAA and invited feedback. Based on our review of thedocument, we made a submission
that drew the M inistry’s attention to a number of steps in the review process that appeared unclear. Overall, we were
pleased that the Ministry and the Degree Quality Assessment Board wanted to collaborate with regulatory bodies to
ensure high educational and professional sandardsin BC.

The College received a second communication from the Ministry requesting feedback on draft criteriafor the use of the
word ‘university’ by private and out-of-province public post-secondary institutions. We responded with comments and
questions related to this as well.

Next steps include developing a protocol for providing feedback on new degrees/institutions being reviewed by the
DQAB and to keep our eye on the website for applications coming through the system. The turnaround time for
submissions was typically very short. This put tremendous pressure on staff and the committee to produce a thorough
and thoughtful submission together in each instance. M uch appreciation to staff and task force members for their
excellent work. Itis unclear how much of a concern thiswill be to the College in coming years, but it seems prudent to
continue to be informed and involved.

Assessment of core competencies

The process for assessing core competencies was confirmed. T he Registration Committee will continue to assess all
applicants on the core competencies and reaffirmed its expectation that the applicant will have achieved the core
competencies prior to application.

Year of post-degree supervision

The committee endorsed theintroductionof a post-degree year of supervised experience for all applicants. The earliest
date for implementation is 2006.

Coursework requirements
Three principles were confirmed with regard to coursework requirements:

the College’s registration criteria ae to be consgstent with those established by the Canadian Psychologica
Association;

the scope of practice for psychological associatesand psychologists is identical; and

applicants graduating from CPA/APA accredited programs are considered to have met the registration coursework
criteria.

The Committee reaffirmed current coursework requirements; however, it was recognized that applicants can argue
equivalence regarding senior under graduate courses for required courses in foundational knowledge in psychology,
bringing theregistration criteriainlinewith CPA accreditation standards. During the 2003 year it was decided to amend
the registration criteria coursework requirements to include two professonal practice courses, one in intervention and
one in assessment. This change ensures the registration criteria are consistent with our obligations to assess the core
competencies.
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Criminal Record Review

The committee reviewed the Criminal Record Review Act and decided that additional information may be required for
new applicants and supported a bylaw change in this regard.

Written Jurisprudence Examination

Scores on the Written Jurisprudence Exam are being closely tracked. Most applicants pass on the firstattempt. It was
decided to clarify the wording of some items of the exam.

3. Title Issues

Names of Incorporated Companies

Although the College has decided at this point not to take on the additional responsibility of regulating incorporated
companies, we do receive frequent requests to give approval to company names, a step that is required in order to
incorporate.

The Registration Committee adopted the following policy with regard to namesof incorporated companies: Thename
of the Corporation must meet the requirements set out in the College of Psychologigs Code of Conduct, the Company
Act and the Health ProfessionsAct. In addition, the Corporation must not have a number name, the corporae name
must include the words "Professional Corporation” or "Société professionnelle”, the corporate name must include the
surname of one or more Shareholders of the Corporation as the surname is set out in the College register, the corporate
name may also include the Shareholder's given name, one or more of the Shareholder's initials or acombination of his
or her given name and initials the corporate name must indicate the health profession (Psychology) practised by the
Shareholders; the corporate name must not include any information other than that permitted or required, and the
corporate name must not violate the provisions of any other Act.

In the case of company names for unincorporated companies, the Code of Conduct standardsregarding advertising must
be followed, in particular section 10: Advertising and other public statements.

Retention of Title

A policy was developed with regard to registrants whose registration has been suspended or cancelled, for aperiod of
six months or less as the result of a decision of the Board, Registration or Inquiry Committee. These individuals will
retain the title (i.e. psychologist or psychological associate) in effect at the time of their suspension or cancellation. If
the suspension or cancellation has been for longer than six months, the individual will be required to make a new
application for registration. T hisisan important condderation, especially for registrants who may havebeen accepted
for registration during agrandfathering period. For example, if apsychol ogistwho holdsa master’ s degree does not pay
their renewal feesand is removed from the Register, he or she will need to reapply asa new applicant (psychological
associate) if off the register for more than six months.

Yellow Pages/Super Pages Advertising
The Code of Conduct section 10.6 requir es that registrantsinclude their registration number in all advertisements. This
includestelephone book listings. This requirement emerged from the refusal on the part of the Super Pages to provide

any screening of individual s requesting alisting under “ Psychologists’ in theyellow pages. Identification of registrants
of the College by registraion number isboth a protection of public and protection of title issue.
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4. Registration Renewal Issues

Registration Renewal

| am pleased to report that the renewal process was much improved this year over the renewal process for the 2002 year.
Appreciation to registrants for understanding the need for one firm deadline for payment of full fees and for taking the
responsibility to ensure that all required information is provided on the renewal form. Some confusion remains with
regard to eligibility for the different categoriesof registration. The committee isfirm that if aregistrant isworking, he
or she cannot choose to be on the Limited Register by virtueof the specific nature of his or her employment. Placement
on the Limited Regiger by way of signing Declaration B on the registration renewal form is exclusively for registrants
who are temporarily not working [practising] for reason of medical, parental or maternity leave, sabbatical, or are
registered in another psychology jurisdiction (“*Out of Province”).

Reinstatement issues

The committee adopted the following policy: former regisrantswho have been off the register for six months orless may
request reinstatement; former registrants who have been off the register for alonger period would need to reapply.

Area of Practice

The College has on file the area of practise for all registrants and it is clearly indicated for all new applicants The
Registration Committee agreed that the area of practice will remain in the renewal form. The Committee discussed the
issue of registrants changing their area of practice at renewal, and reciprocal applicants changing their areaof practice
from that of their home juridiction at application. The Registration Committee decided that registrants, starting at
renewal 2005, and reciprocal applicants, beginning on form revision completion, would be required to provide an
explanation of a change in area of practise. Further policies on this issue will ensue.

Processing Fee

Bylaw 50(3) requires that registrants inform the College in writing (regular mail or fax), clearly indicating a change in
address or any other information on the Register. Due to the volume of mail handled by the College, and the cost and
timeinvolved in dealing with returned mail and making changes to this information, a $100 processing fee will be
assessed to registrants who do not ad here to this bylaw.

It was a pleasure to work with the Registrar and her staff over the past year and my gratitude is also extended to the
hardworking, insightful and dedicated members of the committee who so generously gave of their time, energy and
expertise.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael F. Elterman,
Chair
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FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Expenditures for the 2003 year were within budgeted expectations. Revenues exceeded the budgeted amounts due to
the unplanned revenues received from applications under the extraordinary provisions egablished by the Registration
Committee. This additional revenue was considered as part of 2004 budget planning. Feeswere increased by $100.00
to help provide financial stability in light of uncertainty in the number of registrants and retirement, and staffing needs
in response to increasng workload. Audited Financial statements for the 2003 year from Raber Mattuck are appended
at the end of this A nnual Report.

Table 1: Expenses as Percent of Total Expenses

Y ear Wages and Benefits Statutory Expenses % of T otal % Increase from
Expenses Previous Y ear
Amount % Amount % Amount % %
1996 219,693 39 171,528 31 558,824 70 N/A
1997 262,099 38 276,641 40 687,688 78 23
1998 280,683 37 212,330 28 758,499 65 10.3
1999 225,278 24 269,623 28 954,682 52 25.9
2000 396,422 40 242,725 25 978,860 65 25
2001 380,312 35 284,161 27 1,071,386 62 9.5
2002 423,012 38 278,125 25 1,106,904 63 3.3
2003 469,062 41 301,244 26 1,146,128 67 3.5

Figure 1: Wages and Benefits/Statutory Expenses as Percent of Total Expenses
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REGISTRAR’S REPORT

| am pleased to provide areport on the activities of the College for the year 2003. Thisreport is divided into four main
sections:

I.  Thefirst section offers abrief summary of the scope and variety of activities of the College in meeting its mandate
of regulating psychology in the public interest under the Health Professions Act.

II.  The second section provides an in depth description of activitiesin the area of registration.

1. Thethird section provides a descriptive and statistical analysis of complaint and other investigative matters.

IV. Thefourth sectionsummarizes adminigrative activities related to external relationshipsand our obligations under
the Ombudsman and Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Acts.

I. SCOPE OF COLLEGE ACTIVITIES

The mandate of the College of Psychologists of British Columbiaisto regulate the profession of psychology in the public
interest. In fulfilling this mandate, the Board has established a set of objectives which include the following:

the establishment, mai ntenance and administration of requirements for registration and continuing registraion
as a psychology practitioner in British Columbia consistent with national and international standards (both
substantive and procedural) for professional regulation in psychology;

the efficient and timely management of complaints;

the establishment and maintenance of regular and effective communication with registrants about regulatory
issues affecting them;

to enhance the profile, standing and credibility of the College with government;

the devel opment and maintenanc e of an effective system for document control, management, filingand storage,
and the assurance of data integrity, security, control and management.

The main activities which comprise the efforts to reach these objectives are described in the chart which follows. This
list isintended to be descriptive and informative, not exhaustive.
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Table 2: Scope of College Activities

REGISTRATIONMATTER S

Main Activity Area

Subactivities

Description

1. Applications a) Application Queries responding to queries regarding registration criteria
processing payment for application package
determination of eligibility for application categories [reciprocal, regular, temporary,
extraordinary]
b) Review of Applicaion review of application files for completeness, follow up on references, previous license to
Files practice, crimind record check
i. Completeness review of application for credentials and consistency, follow up on questionsregarding
ii. Credentials and consistency between traning and credentials and intended area of practice
Consistency processing application fees
iii. Evaluation of Core correspondence, review of submissions, and decision-making with regard to issues
Competencies as per arising from file review, criminal record check and references
the Mutual review of files, references, for evaluation on the core competendcies asper MRA
Recognition
Agreement (MRA)
¢) Administration, Scoring, EPPP, oral examination, written jurisprudence examination for regular applicants
Communication of written jurisprudence examination for reciprocal applicants
Results for Required EPPP, written jurigprudence examination, oral examination part A and part B for
Examinations extraordinary applicants
administration, scheduling, scoring and communication of results
rescheduling of examinations for individuals who don’t pass
correspondence, review of submissionsand decision-making for applicants for whom
failure or placement on the Limited Register is recommended
processing examination fees
d) Placement on the arranging supervision for limited regigrantsincluding training of supervisors, obtaning

Register or Limited
Register

supervision agreem ents

monitoring and support for ongoing supervison, tracking of supervis onreports, terms
and conditions

processing supervision fees, registration fees, issuance of certificates, confirmation of
insurance coverage




REGISTRATIONMATTER S (Continued)

i n Activity Arda Subactivities Descri ption
2.  Registrant a) Queries responding to queries regarding registration status, confirmation of registraion for
Activities insurance companies and other third party payers
b) Renewals processing registration renewals

review of renewal information and follow up on incomplete information
query/follow up of information asrequired
entering and tracking changes to register information

c) Registrant Services compilation and printing of directory

compilation and printing of chronicles, annual report, mailouts

Registration Committee activities

development of proposals for committee consideration, e.g., criteria for coursework
requirements

implementation of committee decisions and policies

processing address changes

processing registration status changes

provision of verification of status documents to third parties by registrant request
annual report to registrants

preparation for information meetingsand AGM

administration of continuing competency program

d) Committee and Board development of proposals for committee and/or Board consideration
Activities implementation of policy decisions by committees or Board

implementation of directions from com mittees or the Board

coordination of agenda preparation and distribution to committees

development of proposals for consideration by Board and committees

training of committee members

recruitment and training of public members

e) Policy Development ongoing policy development and review of registration requirements for compliance with
MRA and consistency with CPA, APA and other psychology regulaory and credentialling
bodies

ongoing policy development and implementation procedures for review and consideration
of Registration Committee, e.g., supervision requirements for supervised work experience
liaison/monitoring of interface with government, new |egislation




INVESTIGATIVEMATTERS

Main Activity Area

Subactivities

Description

1. Applicants a) Investigation of fitnessto investigation of title issue violations under HPA and regulations under the Act.
practice issuesfor follow up and tracking of inappropriate use of title or practice of psychology
applicants investigation of mattersrelated to fitness to practice for applicants

2.  Registrants b)  Complaints about ensuring principlesof hearing and notice

registrants

i) correspondence with
complainantsand
respond ents

i) tracking and monitoring
of all actions on
complaints

iii) inspections under S. 28
of the HPA

iv) without prejudice
meetings

V) preparation for
extraordinary hearings,
hearings

vi) tracking of limitations
and conditions

vii) coordinating with Inquiry
Committee members

viii) ongoing liaison with
College counsel

notification and updates, request for clinical records
letters under sections 33(4) and 33(5) of the Act.
drafting, delivering and tracking letters of undertaking
decision reports

logging all correspondence and clinical records
document tracking

appointment of inspector
inspection, collection and copying of files
logging, tracking and review of files

arrangements and agenda for without prejudice meetings
negotiating settlements and agreements

preparation for disclosure

preparation of hearing materials

publication of suspensions
ongoing liaison with supervisors

ensuring complaint files are up to date and available for review

ensuring delivery and receipt of complaint correspondence
coordinating committee member file review

communication with committee members on correspondence

communicating and tracking instructions to counsel
planning and conaultation




EXTERNAL RELATIONSHTIPS

Main Activity Area

Subactivities

Description

1. External a)  Other psychology meetings throughout the year
Relationships regulatory bodies implementation and clarification of Mutual Recognition Agreement
i) Canadian regulators meetings at Council of Provincial Associations of Psychologists - twice ayear
ii) North American ASPPB - twice ayear
iii) International once every 3-5 years
b)  Other psychology liaison with BCPA
organizations implementation of |etter of understanding
coordinating communication
c) Other regulatory bodies Executive Directors and Registrars
(monthly m eetings) Health Regulaory Organizaions
d) Government
i) Office of Professional liaison with office of professional regulation regarding bylaw development and approval
Regulation review and regponse to submissions from other regulaed professions
ii)  Office of the Freedom of
Information and receipt and tracking of all requests for information under FOI PPA
Protection of Privacy responding to all requests within time frame and making decisions on severing and
Commissioner withholding documents
decision-making with regard to appeals to Inquiry and seeking appropriate legal
consultation
iii) Ombudsman’s Office
timely responses to inquiriesfrom the office of the Ombudsman.
iv) Board Allocation and

Resources Office

liaison and corregpondence with regard to public appointees




II. REGISTRATION/APPLICATION MATTERS

This section reviews activities at the College to do with the Register of the College, application for registration, and
registrant matter s in the following nine sections: 1. the College Register 2003, 2. summary of application activity,

3. status of application files, 4. area of practice, 5. examinations, 6. extraordinary applicants 7. time from application
to registration, 8. registrant status issues and 9. correspondence.

1. The College Register 2003
Asshownin Table 3 below, there was a small decrease in the number of registrants for the College. With the current

demographic profile of registrants, it is anticipated that an increasing number of registrants will be retiring over the
next 5-10 years.

Table 3: The College Register 2003 as at Dec. 31, 2003

Category 2001 2002 2003
Full Register 873 863 889
Limited Register- Inquiry Committee 15 14
Limited Register- Inquiry Com.-Non-Practicing 1 1
Limited Register - Out-of-Province 57 58 43
Limited Register - Non-Practicing 51 61 17
Limited Register- Retired 19 17 15
Limited Register- Registration Committee 1 2
Limited Register- Temporary 1 2
Limited Register-Pending as at Dec. 31,2003 1
Totals 1000 1017 984

* numbers are amended/corrected from 2002 annual report.

2. Summary of Application Activity

Table 4 provides asummary of the number of applications processed during 2003 along with comparison datafor the
previous two years. Two major differences from previous years should be noted. Frst, because of the decision to
providean extraordinary registration period (described above in both Chair and Registration Committee reports), the
officewas processing adramatic increase in the number of applications during 2003. Second, asindicated inthetable,
2003 was the first year that individuals who goplied under the provisions of the Mutual Recognition Agreement
completed the registration process. A total of 4 reciprocal applicants completed the regigration process in 2003.
Fifteen (15) regular applicants completed the registration process, for a total of 19 new registrants in 2003. This
number is anticipated to be significantly higher in 2004.
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Table 4: Application Activity Summary

Activity 2001 2002 2003

Regular  Temporary Reciprocal  Extraordinary Unclassified Total
Application packages | 84 84 221
reguested
# of applications 26 53 41 14 106 2 163
received
Appl. for temporary 3 0 2 2
registration
# of applications 1 0 0
withdrawn
# of applications 2 0 9 9
refused
# of applicants 35 19 15 4 19
registered
# of application files 82 83 85 28 110 2 225*
open

* The total of 225 is the total number of application files which were processed during the 2003 year.

3. Status of Application Files

The table below (Table 5) shows the status of the225 application files as at December 31, 2003. The file indicated
as “suspended” in the table reflects adecision of the Regi stration Committee to place an application on hold as matters
related to a positive criminal record check were investigated. The large numbers of application files created an
unprecedented volumeof correspondence, document tracking and related work for the College saff. Asat December
31, 2003 a total of 82 files were at initid stages of review for completeness and submisson of all required
documentation. A further 65 fileswere under credential and consistencyreview. Thisreview isacaeful examination
of formal academic training, supervised and work experience in relation to declared areas of intended professional
activity, review of references and follow up on any issues emerging from the review.
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Table 5: Application Status as at December 31, 2003

Regular  Reciprocal Extraordinary Unclassified Total
Initial review, data entry, 13 9 60 82
completeness check
Under review for credentials and 22 3 40 65
consistency
EPPP 13 n/a 13
Written Jurisprudence Exam 4 12 16
Oral Examination 10 n/a 10
Refused/N ot eligible 1 9 2 12
Suspended 1 1
Registered 15 4 19
Expired/Withdrawn 7 7
Total 85 28 110 225

4. Area of Practice

An applicantisrequired to indicate one area of practicein psychology on theapplicationform. Thisareais expected
to be the broad area of practice which best describestheindividual’ straining and competence. Table 6 below depicts
the areaof practice indicated by the applicants in 2003.

Table 6: Area of Practice 2003

Area of Practice Regular Recipr ocal Extraordinary Unclassified Total
Clinical Psychology 52 17 25 84
Counselling Psychology 23 4 47 74
Clinical Neuropsychology 6 2 8
School Psychology 3 2 31 36
Health 1 1
Rehabilitation 1 1 2
Research/Academic 1 1
Forensic/Corrections 2 15 17
Total 85 28 110 2 225
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5. Examinations

There are three examinations for regular applicants: the EPPP, the oral exam (OE) and the written jurisprudence
examination (WJE). Reciprocal registrants are only required to complete the WJE. Table 7 below summarizes
examination results for 2003. No extraordinary applicants reached the stage in the application process to be eligible
for any of their required examinations which include EPPP (or the National Association of School Psychologists
(NASP) examination for individuals self-selecting permanent placement on the Limited Register in school
psychology), the oral exam (which has been dividedinto two partsfor these applicants) and the WJE.

Table 7: Examination results

2001 2002 2003
Number of applicants who wrote EPPP 48 9 16
Number of Oral examinations 44 13 15
Number of WJE examinations 0 21 19

The EPPP exam was taken 16 timesin 2003 with five failures. Of the three people who retook the EPPP, two passed
on the second attempt.

For oral examinations, 15 examinationstook place in 2003, one of which was a second atempt. For the 14 first time
examinees, 12 passed all eight areas, onefailed two areas and one failed 5 out of the 8 content areas. The individual
who failed intwo areas retook the exam and passed all 8 areas on the second attempt. Theindividual who failed infive
of the eight areas is planning to retake the examination.

The WJE examination was adminigered 19 timesin 2003 (16 applicants with threeindividuals taking the exam twice
during the year), 11 regular and 5 reciprocal applicants. Six applicants failed theon thefirst attempt in 2003. Three
of these retook the exam in 2003 and two of the three passed on the second attempt. While all failures are
communicated to the applicants, passing the exam is a requirement only for applicants who applied for registration
after uly 1, 2001.

We reviewed the W JE exam item by item and made some wording changes to increase clarity.

6. The Extraordinary Applicants

Extraordinary applicants compleed a mandatory orientation workshop during 2003. The orientation workshop
included sessions on the following:

introduction to professional regulation, including a history of regulation of psychology in B.C., a review of the
Mutual Recognition Agreement (MRA) and discussion of national standards, the Health Professions Act;
registrant responsibilities and relationship to the College;

preventive practice including an area-by-areareview of the Code of Conduct, common complaint areas, and
review of common legal issues and

ethical decision-making.

The 110 extraordinary applicants aretypically individuals who have worked in the field of psychology under current
exemptions and most have many years of experience. One of the eligibility criteria established by the Registration
Committee was that applicants must have been members in good standing of another regulatory or quasi-regul atory
body. The table below (Table 8) depicts the organizational affiliation of these applicants.
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Table 8: Organizations for extraordinary applicants

American Association of Marriage and Family Therapists(AAMFT) 4
British Columbia Association of School Psychol ogists (BCA SP) 32
Canadian Association of Rehabilitation Professionals(CARP) 1
Canadian Counsdling Assodation (CCA) 4
College of Teachers 2
Correctional Services of Canada 25
Equivalent* 2
Foreign License 2
National Association of School Psychol ogists (NA SP) 1
B.C. Asxciation of Clinical Counsellors (BCACC) 28
Registered Nurses 2
Board of Registration for Social Work 1
UBC Faculty* 6

* Two individuals, while not members of any specific organization, and the faculty members were determined to have
had work experiences of sufficient structure to be equivalent to membership in a quasi-regulatory body.

7. Time from application to registration

Of the 15 regular applicants one file is not included in the table bd ow (Table 9) as the application was put on hold
for an extended period by the applicant. Of the remaining 14 regular applicants who completed registration in 2003,
it took an average of 13 months from application to date of registration with a range of 11-22 months.

For reciprocal applicants completing the application process in 2003, it took an average of 9 months to become
registered, with an average of 6-13 months. This period isexpected to be shorter in the coming year.

Table 9: Length of time in months from application to registration

2002 2003
Regular Reciprocal Regular
M ean Range M ean Range M ean Range
Average # of months from 9 mo. 6-16 9 6-13 13 11-22
application to registration (n=16) (n=4) (n=14)
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8. Registrant Status Issues

A significant amount of activity occurs with regard to movement between registration categories and individual’s
moving on and off the register during the course of the year. Policies and procedures are being developed and refined
inthis aea.

9. Correspondence with Applicants and Registrants

The large number of applications had serious implicationsfor work load in 2003. One of the clearest indications of
thisisin terms of the amount of correspondence to applicants and registrants, asindicated in Table 10 below.

Table 10: Correspondence with Applicants and Registrants

2001 2002 2003

Correspondence (Number of letters to applicants 500 2500 5658* *
and registrants on registration matters)

**|t should be noted that this number includes some mailouts to groups (i.e. letters to all extraordinary or regular
applicants) but not Chronicles, renewd certificates reminder pogcardswhichwould add another 5000-6000 items
of correspondence.

III. COMPLAINT AND INVESTIGATIVE MATTERS

This section will review nine areas of complaint tracking, followed by a summary of investigation of title issue
violations and the Psychologists Regulation:

Complaintfile gatusas at December 31, 2003.

Descriptive complaint summary

Length of time from receipt to file closure

Closing reasons for closed complaints

Summary of com ponents of the investigative process

L etters of undertaking

Complaint history and number of registrants with complaints
Complaint correspondence

Investigation of title issueviolations and the Psychologists Regulation

© NN PE

1. Complaintfile status as at December 31, 2003

The College continuesits effortsto document and describe the complaint process to registrants and the public. Since
the College of Psychologists came under the Health Professions Act, the College has processed a total of 327
complaints, including the 97 “backlog” complaints that were open on January 1, 2000. Below is a summary of
complaint file status in 2003.
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File status is described for the following complaint groupings:

a. “backlog complaints” which are complaints open asat January 1, 2000.

b. complaints received in theyear 2000

c. complaints received in theyear 2001

d. complaints received in theyear 2002

e. complaintsreceived in theyear 2003

f. all complaints processed by the College under the Health Professions Act (i.e. after January 1, 2000).

a. “Backlog” Complaint files (n=97)

As of December 2002, the College had resolved 90 of the 97 files which were unresolved as of January 2000. The
same 7 files open in December 2002 remained open on December 31, 2003. These 7 files belong to one respondent,
aformer regigrant. The reppondent has obtained new legal counsel and aletter of undertaking was being negotiaed,
as at December 31, 2003.

b. Files received in 2000 (n =63)

Of the 63 complaints received in the year 2000, all have been closed except for a total of six
files which are in negotiation for a letter of undertaking.

Table 11 : Complaint File Status as at December 31, 2003

“Backlog” 2000 2001 2002 2003 All Complaints
Status
# % # % # % # % # % # %
Awaiting Review 9 17 9 3
Active Review 1 2 9 17 10 3
Citation 6 10 2 4 8 2
Clinical File 8 15 8 2
Request/Recei pt
33(4) 2 4 2 1
33(5) 4 7 8 15 12 4
HPA Section 28 1 2 1 5
Inspections
Without Prejudice 1 2 1 5
Meeting
L etter of 7 7 6 10 3 5 2 4 2 4 20 6
Undertaking
Total # open files 7 7 6 10 9 15 9 17 40 75 71 22
Total # closed 90 93 57 90 51 85 45 83 13 25 256 78
TOTAL 97 100 63 100 | 60 100 54 100 53 100 327 100
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c. Files received in 2001 (n = 60)

Of the 60 complaints received in 2001, the Inquiry Committee has moved to citation for a
discipline commi ittee hearing on six files, and three files are under negotiation for a letter of
undertaking. All the remaining files are closed, having been dismissed or resolved.

d. Files received in 2002 (n = 54)

For the 54 complaints received in 2002, 1 file remains under active review, a citation has been issued for 2 files, a
33(5) letter (aletter under section 33(5) of the Health Professions Act that requests the respondent to provide the
Inquiry Committeewith any information itwantsthe committee to consider, along with providing the respondent with
all of the documents in the complaintfile) had been issued on another 4 files, and two files were in negotiation for a
letter of undertaking as at December 31, 2003.

e. Files received in 2003 (n = 53)

There were 53 complaints received in2003. Asshownin T able 11, 25% of these 53 com plaints were closed by the
end of the year. The remainder of complaints are spread out throughout the other file status categories. Thefilesin
the “awaiting review” category w ere received towards the end of the year and had not yet been assigned for in-depth
review by D ecember 31, 2003.

f. All files processed by the College under the Health Professions Act (n=327)

Assummarized in Table 11, atotal of 327 files had been processed by the College by December 31, 2003 under the
Health Professions Act. Of these, 78% were closed as at December 31, 2003 (n=256). There were 71 openfileson
that date at various stages of the complaint process.

2. Descriptive Complaint Summary

The descriptive variables which have been tracked on all complaints received post-January 1, 2000 are: primary
allegation made by the complai nant, complaint context, area of practice, complainant type, and length of timeto close
files.

a. Primary Allegation

For complaintsreceived in 2003, asmaller percentage appear in the assessment category than in previousyear s(36%)
while thereis an increase in the percentage of primary complaint allegations related to competence (19%). The other
two main areasof primary allegations areprofessionalism/obligations and relationship with clients (17% each). T hese
numbers may represent a change in the content of complaint concerns. Alternatively they may be reflective of our
greater precision in describing primary allegations with the introduction of the Code of Conduct and our tracking of
allegations according to Code of Conduct categories. See Table 12.
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Table 12: Primary Allegations

Primary “Backlog” 2000 2001 2002 2003 All
Allegation complaints
# % # % # % # % # % # %

Advertising & 1 1 2 3.7 3 1
Public
Statements
Assessment 57 | 58.7 28 | 444 28 46.7 24 44.4 19 36 156 48
Competence 6 6.2 2 3.2 1 1.7 3 5.6 10 19 22 7
Confidentiality 8 8.2 2 3.2 3 5 5 9.3 2 4 20 6
Dual Roles 7 7.2 2 3.2 1 1.7 2 3.7 12 4
Fees/Statements 6 9.5 1 1.7 1 1.75 8 2.5
Impairment 1 17 1 .33
Informed 5 7.9 4 6.7 3 5.6 1 1.75 13 4
Consent
Record 1 1.75 1 .34
Maintenance
Professionalism/ 6 6.2 6 9.5 8 13.3 6 11.1 9 17 35 11
Obligations
Provision of 1 1.6 3 5 1 1.9 5 1
Services
Relationship w/ 9 10 10 7 9 17 45 14
Clients
Rep. of Services 1 1.75 1 .33
Violation of Law 2 2.1 1 1.6 1 1.9 4 1
Total 97 100 63 100 60 100 54 100 53 100 327 100

b. Complaint Context

As shown in Table 13, over 60% of all complaints receved by the College under the Health Professions Act were in
the assessment context, compared with 24% inintervention, 13% in variousother contexts and only 1% in consultation.
This distribution holds for complaints received in the 2003 year as well.
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Table 13: Complaint Context

“Backlog” 2000 2001 2002 2003 All
complaints
# % # % # % # % # % # %
Assessment 64 66 36 | 57.1 36 60 33 61.1 34 64 203 62
Consultation 1 1.6 3 5 4 1
Intervention 21 22 20 | 31.7 15 25 10 18.5 12 23 78 24
Other 12 12 6 9.5 6 10 11 20.4 7 13 42 13
Totals 97 100 63 | 100 60 100 54 100 53 100 327 100

c. Area of Practice

For complaints received since January 2000, we have been assigning a general practice category to describe the area
of practicein which thecomplaint occurred. These termsare descriptive only. Asthetableilludrates 45% of the 233
complaints werein the broad areaof clinical psychology,with an additional 28% in a subset of clinical psychology -
custody and access. See Table 14.

Table 14: Complaint - Area of Practice

2000 2001 2002 2003 All

Complaint Area complaints

of Practice # % # % # % # % # %
Clinical Psychology 27 43 25 42 28 52 22 42 102 44
Custody and Access 15 24 22 37 14 26 13 24 64 28
Counselling Psychology 2 3 8 13 2 4 4 8 16 7
Forensic/Correctional 12 19 2 3 5 9 5 9 24 10
Industrial/organizational 1 2 1 1
Neuropsychol ogy 3 5 1 2 2 4 6 3
Rehabilitation Psychol ogy 1 2 1 2 3 6 5 2
Research/Academic 2 4 2 1
School Psychology 1 2 1 2 4 4 6 3
N/A 2 3 2 4 4 2

Totals 63 100 60 100 54 100 53 100 230 100
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d. Complainant Type

Asshown inTable 15, 28% of complaintsreceived in the year 2003 came from third party situations, such as court-
ordered or WCB assessments. Ninecomplaints(17 %) camedirectly from clientsand 15% from client relatives. A total
of 15% of complaints were registrants lodging complaints regarding the conduct of another registrant. These
percentages are similar for complaints received in 2000, 2001 and 2002.

Table 15: Complainant Type

“Backlog” 2000 2001 2002 2003 All
Complaints
# % # % # % # % # % # %
Client - 3" Party 9 9 23 36 29 48 17 31 15 28 93 28
situation
Client - direct 69 71 17 28 10 17 8 15 9 17 113 35
Client relative 1 1 6 9 9 15 9 17 8 15 33 10
Colleague 13 13 13 21 9 15 6 11 8 15 49 15
Inquiry 2 2 2 3 2 3 4 7 6 11 16 5
Committee
Other 3 2 2 3 1 2 10 18 7 13 23 7
Totals 97 100 63 100 60 100 54 100 53 100 327 100

3. Length of Time to Close Files

The average of 15.5 months to close a file, as reported in the table below, is under the 18 month target which is
stipulated as desirable in the case law for regulatory complaints. More importantly, thereis a clear trend over the past
few years towards less time to close files.

Length of timefrom receipt to closure is only 13 months when the years 2001, 2002 and 2003 are combined, as a

number of the files closed during the year 2000 were from the “backlog” files. Many of these complaints had been
unresolved for some time. See Figure 3.

Table 16: Time to Close Files

2000 2001 2002 2003 Total
Average length of timein 18.1 14.1 14.2 11.23 15.5
months to close file for
complaints closed during that N=70 N=78* n=62 n=44 n=254*
calendar year

* Two complaints from 1993 which were opened for adminigrative reasons and later closed are not included in this
computation.
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Figure 2: Length of Time to Close Com plaints
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4. Closing reasons for complaints closedin 2003 and comparison with previous years

The tables and figures below confirm the pattern of complaint resolution reported for previous years and discussed in
various College publications. As in past years, the majority of complaints are dismissed because of insufficient
evidence, or not proceeded on (sometimes due to administrative or procedural reasons), or withdrawn. In past years
the proportion has typically been about 2/3 of closed complaints. For 2003 this proportion is closer to three-quarters
of closed complaints.

Of the remaining 12 files, 9 (21%) were resolved through the registrant agreeing to take certain steps to satify the
Inquiry Committee that identified concerns had been addressed. Of the three remaining complaints: one complaint
matter wasreferred to the Registration Committee to be addressed should the registrant ever reapply. Theregistranthad
closed her practice and left theprovince. Twofileswere closed because the registrant chose to resign from the practice
of psychology and is off the register.
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Table 17: Closing Reasons

Closing Reasons Closed in Closed in Closed in Closed in Closed
2000 2001 2002 2003 01/00- 12/03
# % # % # % # % # %
Decision Not to Proceed 11 16 16 20 6 10 7 16 40 16
Withdrawn 5 7 2 3 2 3 1 2 10 4
Insufficient Evidence 28 40 41 51 31 50 24 55 124 48
Letter of Undertaking Signed 13 19 4 5 16 28 6 14 39 15
Resolved 10 14 14 18 2 3 3 7 29 11
Referred to Reg. Committee 1 1 3 4 1 2 5 2
Resigned 5 8 2 5 7 3
Registration Cancelled 2 3 2 1
Totals 70 100 80 | 100 62 100 | 44 | 100 | 256 100

Table 18 below collapses the categories of closing reasons to illustrate the proportion of files closed through the
different means of resolution of complaints, in addition to the proportion dismissed because of insufficient evidence
of an ethical violation or procedural reasons.

Table 18: Summary of Closing Reasons: Means of Complaint Resolution

Closing Reasons Files Closed Files Closed Files Closed FilesClosed  Closed between
in 2000 in 2001 in 2002 in 2003 01/00- 12/03
# % # % # % # % # %
Decision Not to Proceed 44 73 59 84 39 63 32 73 174 68
Withdrawn/ Insufficient
Evidence
Resolved/ 23 33 18 23 18 29 9 21 68 27
Letter of Undertaking
Referred to Registration 3 4 3 4 5 8 3 7 14 5
Committee/Resigned
from Practice of
Psychology
Registration Cancelled
Totals 70 100 80 100 62 100 44 100 256 100

College of Psychologists of British Columbia 2003 Annual Report

39



A review of the 256 complaint files which were closed between January 2000 and December 31, 2003 confirms the
pattern observed in previousyears. Two-thirds (174) of the 256 closed files were not proceeded on for reasons of
insufficient evidence, procedural issues or the complainant withdrawing the complaint and the Inquiry Committee
deciding that there were no public protection concerns warranting proceeding on the complaint on their own motion.
Of theremainingfiles, 27% were resolved withletters of undertaking,including 11% resolved without need for aformal
agreement. An example of the latter is when aregistrant has dready madechanges to their practice resulting from the
complaint investigation and documents such changesto thecommittee prior aspart of aresolutiondialogue. See Tables
17 and 18 and Figure 3.

Figure 3: Means of complaint resolution
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The figure above illustrates the very amall proportion of complaints in which the outcome involved resignation of
registration by the repondent. Of the roughly 1/3 of complaints not dismissed or otherwise not proceeded upon, the
vast majority are resolved through discusson of the issues and an agreement on the terms to resolve the matters of
concern.

Complaints have been processed under the current complaint tracking process since January 2000. The summary tables
and charts in this Annual Report provide details in terms of the substance of common complaints and the typical
consequences and means of resolution for complaints. This is useful information which may dleviate concerns of
registrants who receive acomplaint for the firsttime. Asthedatasuggests, whenever possible, complaints are resolved
through a formal or informal agreement betw een the registrant and the College. W here the Inquiry Committee has
significant concerns about protecting the public interest, it is sometimes necessary to proceed further.

To date, only 14 complaints which were not dismissed because of insufficient evidence or not proceeded upon for
procedural reasons have involved the resignation of aregistrant. For example, in two instances, accountingfor 7 files,
registrants decided to resign completely from the practice of psychology rather than agree to practice supervision or
other limitations on their license. In another instance, a registrant with two complaint filesagreed to cancellaion of
hisregistration for aperiod of at least fiveyears. A further fivefiles, related to two different registrants with one and
four complaints respectively, have been referred to the Registration Committee as neither respondent is currently on
theregister. Should these former registrants decide to reapply for regigration, the complaint matterswould need to be
addressed as part of the reapplication process. All other complaints have been resolved through agreement between
the registrant and the Inquiry Committee.
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5. Other Components of the Complaint Investigation Process

There are several other special components of the complaint investigation process described below, including without
prejudice meetings, extraordinary hearings, and citations and discipline hearings

a. Without Prejudice Meetings

Without prejudice meetings provide a unique opportunity for attempting to resolve complaint matters. The term
“without prejudice” is used to indicate that nothing that occurs in awithout prejudice meeting or correspondence may
be used in any other context. If aregistrant, for example, comes to such a meeting and acknowledged that he or she
“made a mistake”, this admission cannot be used by the College as a means of obtaining agreement on a letter of
undertaking or for any other purpose. During the year four without prejudice meetings were held with registrantsin
the attempt to informally resolve atotal of six complaints. Out of these complaints, three were later resolved on the
basis of these meetings.

One meeting was with regard to resolution of a complaint involving issues of informed consent, inadequate risk
assessment and history-taking; one was a difficult caseinvolving allegations of being a“hired gun”; one was with an
individual with alarge number of complaint files and the attempt was made by the Collegeto avoid a hearing; one was
to reachresolutionand understandingwith aregistrant who provided therapy to avery disturbed personality -disordered
client who had com plained about boundary violations. Of the four, three were successful in bringing mattersto closure.

b. Extraordinary Hearings

No extraordinary hearings were held in 2003. This preventive measure enables the Inquiry Committee to act swiftly
when issues arise of sufficient public protection concern that the Committee believes a restriction on practice may be
warranted. Thereisno testing of evidenceat an extraor dinary hearing - but adecision is made on whether the available
evidence supports action by the Inquiry Committee. A discipline hearingisthe equivalent of afull trial on all issues and
afinding of fact ismade at the end of the hearing.

c. Discipline Hearings & Citations
No discipline committee hearings were held in 2003. Thisis the fourth year in a row that matters for which a citation
had been isaued or which were serious enough to warrant a citation for a hearing have been successfully resolved
without necessitating this costly legal step.
As of December 31, 2003, the Inquiry Committee had moved to issue a citation on 8 files (2 respondents with 7
complaints and 1 complaint, respectively). By December 31, 2003, one respondent signed an undertaking, avoiding
a costly hearing.
6. Letters of Undertaking
As at December 31, 2003 a total of 20 letters of undertaking were either in preparation, were under review by the
respondent or had been signed to resolve a complaint. Seven different letters of undertaking weresigned during the
year to resolv e atotal of seven complaints.
To follow is a summary of the issues addressed in this voluntary means of complaint resolution:

As ameans of addressing issues arising from criminal conviction rdated to physical assault, the registrant agreed

to complete six sessions of supervision to determine whether or not the issues that | ed to the conviction area matter
of public protection concern and fitness to practice.
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As a means of addressing concerns regarding a custody and access report, the registrant agreed to document all
efforts, successful and unsuccessful, to obtain relevant records and contact collaterals, and to document any
limitations on opinions or recom mendations.

Toresolveacomplaintinwhichconcernscentred around making adiagnosiswithout having contact, to comply with
sections 3.14, 3.17, 11.26, 11.27, and 11.40 of the Code of Conduct.

Toresolve serious matters related to assertions of sexual abuse without cond ucting an assessment, and other issues
related to competence in conducting assessments, the registrant agreed “to not provide any psychological services
of any kind including diagnosis, assessment, opinion, comment or therapy, to any person concerningissues related
to allegations of sexual abuse or to any person who has made allegations of sexual abuse or to any person against
whom such allegations have been made, or to someone who has been convicted of a sexual offense”. In the event
that the respondent wished theserestrictionsto belifted, other conditionswould apply includingaperiod of directed
learning, assessment of competence in this area and supervision of any cases in this area; and supervision for one
calendar year of all and any psychological services.

To avoid a hearing on allegationsof sexual misconduct, the registrant agreed to pay afine of $3,000.00, to provide
evidence of steps taken to prevent recurrence of misconduct, to undergo assessment of fitness to practice, three
month suspension and to have his practice supervised.

Two other complaint files belonging to one regigrant were formally closed during 2003, although the undertaking
had been underway for some time. The concerns addressed in the undertaking had to do with competence around
treatment of severe personality disorders and boundary issues.

Public Interest versus Privacy Concerns

Many undertakings now include a clause which terminates the undertaking at the point at which the Inquiry
Committee is satisfied that the terms of the agreement have been met. The purpose of such agreements is
improvement in practice and resolution of concerns.

The Collegeisclear about our responsibility to provideinformation regarding public safety and the public interest.

When necessary and where there are restrictions on practice, such information is conveyed to the public inan
appropriate manner.

7. Complaint Correspondence Sum mary

As shown in Table 19, the complaint tracking process in 2003 generated almost 1,000 letters from the College to
complainants and registrants. This does not reflect the hoursrequired to receive and |og the hundreds of letters and
documents received on complaint matters.

The objective of keeping complainants and respondents informed about the status of complaints accounts for almost
half of all correspondence.
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Table 19: Complaint Correspondence

Type of Correspondence # of letters -2002 # of letters - 2003
Complaint Acknowledgment 54 44
Respondent Notification 54 44
Complaint Package Requests 86 81
Ongoing Complaint File Correspondence 430 411
Clinical File Request 41 1
Letters Written Under Section 33(5) of the Health 35 31

Professions Act

Without Prejudice Meeting Requests 14 20
Correspondence Regarding Letters of Undertaking 20 26
Decision Reports 27 31
Decision Report Correspondence a7 79
Appeal Correspondence 20 75
Miscellaneous Complaint Correspondence 40 51
Title Issue Correspondence 32 29
Supervision Agreements 5 6

Supervision Corregpondence 5 35
TOTAL 907 984

8. Complaints per Year and Number of Registrants with Com plaints

Asdiscussed in lag year's Annual Report, itisa common misconception is that the College receives complaintson
only a small number of practitioners. The tables and figures in this section identify the number of registrants about
whom complaints were received, when aregistrant was specified in the complaint. Some amendments and corrections
to the data reported here last year have been made for the purposes of this table.
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Table 20: # of Complaints per year from 1993 - 2003 and # Registrants with Complaints

Y ear # of Complaints Corrected (# with named registrant) # Registrants
1993 31 30 21
1994 26 26 22
1995 44 44 35
1996 38 38 30
1997 45 45 39
1998 47 47 32
1999 55 53 37
2000 64 64 48
2001 60 59 42
2002 54 54 38
2003 53 53 42
Total 517 513 208*

* this figure is not a column total, as some registrants appear in multiple years.

It was decided to only include information from 1993 forward asit was on January 1, 1993 that the College began the
soleresponsibility of regulating the profession. There are someslight differencesfrom the numberspreviouslyreported
because of this, in addition to theinclusion of datafor 2003. The corrected numbersinthe table above show the actual
number of complaints with a specific registrant named as the respondent. The corrected numbers show four fewer
complaints: two complaints had to do with an applicant, and two complaints did not hav e a respondent.

Figure 4: Com plaints by Year and Num ber of Registrants with Com plaints
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Table 21: Number of Complaints Per Registrant

# of Complaints # of Current Registrants # of Former Registrants  # of Total Registrants

1 112 10 122
2 32 6 38
3 10 1 11
4 11 2 13
5 7 1 8
6 4 4
7 3 3
8 1 1
10 3 3
11 2 2
12 1 1
14 1 1
20 1 1
39 1 1

Total 188 21 209

Asshownin Table 21, 209 registrants (all but 21 of whom were on the register of the College on December 31, 2003),
have had at |eas one complant. For current regigrants thismeans tha 188/984 (19% of registrants) have had at | east

one complaint.

Figure 5: Complaints per Registrant (Current and Former)
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9. Investigation of Title Issue Violations under the Psychologists Regulation

The College is investigating an increasing number of title issues, the purpose being to inform practitioners about
appropriate use of title aswell asto enforcethe provisions of the Psychologists Regulation under the Heal th Professions
Act. A typical example of atitleissueinvestigationisasfollows. Anindividual writesaletter to the College requesting
information on registration in B.C. The stationary used and /or the dgnature shows the name of the practitioner as
follows, Sam Brown, M .A. (Psych.) Thisisaviolation of the Psychologists Regulation under the Health Professions
Act. The College sends aletter explaining thatthisisaviolation and requests corrective action. In otherinstances, the
violationis more serious such asanonregistrant placing an advertisement identifying him or herself asa psychologist.
In such instances, the College sends a letter which appropriately conveys the seriousness of the matter and the
consequences of a possible court proceeding if corrective action is not taken. The College initiated one such action
during 2003. The matter was settled in early 2004 with a clear decison in favour of the College.

There are an increasing number of such matters which arise in the course of applications, especially with the
extraordinary period of application where many of the applicants have been practicing in the field for many years.

These mattersmust be investigated according to the same principles of administrative law which govern complaint
investigations. However, they areviewed as matters related to fitness to practice, rather thanas complaints, given that
they relate to applicants not regigrants. The Registration Committee has jurisdiction over these matters while the
Inquiry Committeeinvestigates complaintsabout registrants. Thereissome overlap when an investigation commences
regarding aregistrant who later resigns.

IV. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
1. The College Office

The resource demands created by changesto the registration process necessitated an increasein staff, astep all the more
necessary with the Registration Committee’ s decision to extend an extraordinary period of application for practitioners
of psychology previously ineligible for registration with the College. W e were pleased with changes to the renewal
process which has been streamlined. We continue to do an increasing proportion of our printing and copying in-house
in order to reduce printing costs.

2. The College Website

The website continues to grow in usefulness as ameans of communicating with both applicants and registrants as well
as with the public. Applicants and registrants are encouraged to check the website from time to time for updates and
new postings. W e have track ed amodest reduction in phone call inquiries from applicants since the website came into
full use

3. Ombudsman Investigations

Dialogue with the Ombudsman’ soffice continued through 2003. Oneissue centred onthe matter of confidentiality of
complaint files. The Ombudsman’s office has authority, under the Ombudsman’s Act, to request any and all files of
the College. Inresponseto arequest for multiple complaint files, we raised the issue of confidentiality of the files and
the fact that the files contained not only the names of the respondent psychologists but also that of clients, collaterals,
etc. There was much discussion on this topic, including their suggestion that we black out the names on the files, a
process which would have taken approximately two weeks of staff time and which, in our view, would have rendered
the files themselves incomprehensible. In the end the Ombudsman’s office dropped their request for the files.

There were two matters investigated by the office of the Ombudsman in 2003 and both were closed without any
findings. Another matter which was initiated in 2002 and which continued for much of 2003 was closed by the
Ombudsman’s office with no findings. The College is obliged to respond to these matters, which consumes
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considerable time and resources. Thereis no statute of limitations on these investigations and at times, it is necessary
to revisitfiles that have been closed for a considerable amount of time and long after the membership of the inquiry
committee haschanged.

4. Requests under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act

Ten requests for information under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act were received in 2003.
The process of responding to suchrequests isvery time consuming. Typically the Collegerel eases documentsfor which
there are no confidentiality or privacy concernsto the applicant under the Act, and refuses disclosure on documentsin
which such concerns pertain. In doing so we are required to review each and every document on aline by line basis
and cite sections of the Act to justify a decision to disclose or refuse disclosure. Inmost cases, the applicant then
challenges the College onthe decision and aperiod of negotiation ensues between the Regidrar and the Freedom of
Informati on officer assigned to the case. Most applicants are former complainants dissatisfied with the decision of the
Inquiry Committee, who reviewed the complaint, and with the Board which heard the appeal. When a negotiated
settlement is not possible, the matter may be taken by the applicant to “Inquiry”. At this sage the matter becomes quite
costly as we must make a formal submission explicitly outlining the College’s position. This must be accomplished
within the time framesestablished by the Act. The College’s decisionsin these mattersare guided by a commitment
to safeguard the confidential nature of negotiated settlements with registrants on complaint matters.

5. The Health Professions Act (HPA) and College Bylaws

Major efforts continued in terms of submissons to governmentwith regard to a series of proposed amendments to the
Health Professions Act. The College was pleased with the success of its submissions and their impact on government
decision-making. Of particular noteis thecontribution that our submissions made to the differentiation of complaint
allegations made by the complainant, and matters which may end up beng the subject of an Inquiry Committee
investigation. For example, a complainant may allege that a psychologist was biased in the conduct of an assessment.
As the Inquiry Committee investigated this allegation, they became aware that the psychologist had been using an
incorrect scoring protocol for a particular test. W hen the investigation is concluded isthe complainant automatically
entitled to know about the committee’s additional concems, or only ertitled to know the outcome of the investigation
of their specific allegations? Our submission suggested the latter, and thisis reflected in the pending changes to the
Health Professions Act. Another important contribution was our successful argument to ensure that letters of
undertaking are not, by law, required to be on the public record. Further, documents such asundertakings which
successfully bring complaints to resolution, may not be used in other legal proceedings. For example, if aregistrant
apologizes to a complainant, this apology can not be used in civil litigation against the registrant.

In its submissions, the College made significant efforts directed at protecting information not related to public
protection. The first draft of the proposed revisions to the Act included a provision whereby all undertakings would
need to be published on the register of the College. Largely inresponse to our submission, this was amended. In
addition, our submission with regard to the nature of the information to which the complainant is entitled at the end of
a complaint investigation was also successful and the revised Act will clearly differentiate information to which the
complainant is and is not entitled.

The new Health Professions Amendment Act, by which changes to the Health Professions Act are and will be enacted,
is posted on the College website.
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Board. My personal thanks to the supportive and ever-caring Henry Harder, Board Chair. Working with Henry over
the past year has been a productive and enjoyable experience. The Board of the College is extremely supportive,
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Respectfully submitted,

Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Registrar

Minutes of the May 15, 2003 Information Meeting

An Annual General Meeting was scheduled for May 15, 2003 at the Arbutus Club in Vancouver. The meeting was
called to order by the Chair, Henry Harder, at 5:40 p.m., with 61 registrantsin attendance. In the absence of a quorum,
the Annual General M eeting was adjourned and the meeting was continued as an information meeting. The members
of the Board were introduced. Regrets were extended from Michael Elterman, Michael Joschko and Rana Dhatt.

Agendafor the May 15, 2003 Meeting - It was moved by Richard Dopson and seconded by Rhona Steinberg that the
agenda for the May 15, 2003 meeting be adopted as circulated. Carried.

Minutesof the November 29, 2002 M eeting - It was moved by Larry Waterman and seconded by Justin O’ Mahony that
the Minutes of the November 29, 2002 meeting be adopted as circulated. Carried.

Report from the Chair: Robert Colby, Chair of the Board for 2002, gave an overview of the work completed by the
Board during 2002 in retooling the profession. He extended his thanksto members of the B oard, staff and committees.

Report from the Registrar: Andrea Kowaz introdu ced members of the staff in attendance. Registrants werereferred to
her written report in the Annual Report for information about the working of the College during the year 2002.

Report from the Inquiry Committee: Larry Waterman and Barbara Passmore thanked the staff, College counsel and the
committeefor their work during the past year and reported on the activities of the Inquiry Committee. Questions from
registrants included whether it was the intent of the College to become more transparent about the inquiry process and
themethod used to appoint committeemembers. The Collegewill includeinformationonthe appointmentof committee
members in itsnext Chronicle

Report from the Quality Assurance Committee: Emily Goetz introduced committee members present at the meeting.
A review of the projects undertaken was discussed. Registrants responded to the recent mailout of the continuing
competency program under development by the Quality Assurance Committee.

Report from the Registration Committee: Henry H arder thank ed staff, College Counsel and committee members, and
referredregistrants to theannual report for detail s of the developmentsto theregistration process. Registrantsrequested

information on applicationsduring the extraordinary registration period.

Report from the Finance Committee: Derek Swain referred registrantsto the audited financial statements and the report
of the Finance Committee contained in the Annual Report. He responded to questions from registrants.

The meeting adjourned at 7:16 p.m.
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AUDITORS' REPORT

Tothe Members of
College of Psychologists of British Columbia

W e have audited the statement of finan cial position of the College of Psychologists of British Columbia as at
December 31, 2003 and the statements of changes in net assets, operations and cash flows for the year then
ended. Thesefinancial statementsar etheresponsibility of the College's management. Our responsibility isto
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

W e conducted our audit in accordancewith Canadian generally accepted auditing $andards. Thos standards
requirethat weplan and perfor m an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statementsare
free of material misstatement. An auditincludesexamining, on atest bass, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosuresin thefinancial statements. An auditalsoincludes assessing the accounting prindplesused and
significant estimates made by management, as well asevaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
College as at December 31, 2003 and the reaults of its operations and the changesin itsnet assets for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadiangenerally accepted accounting principlesapplied on a basis congstent
with that of the preceding year.

Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
March 31, 2004
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTSOF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT DECEMBER 31, 2003

2003 2002
ASSETS $ $
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 1,310,866 607,647
Prepaid expenses 16,226 4,539
1,327,092 612,186
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 2) 64,748 79,991
1,391,840 692,177
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 121,099 98,330
Employee remittancespayable 11,320 7,755
PST payable - 47
Deferred revenue (Note 3) 1,022,850 413,900
1,155,269 520,032
NET ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS 64,748 79,991
UNRESTRICTED 171,823 92,154
236,571 172,145
1,391,840 692,177

Approved by the Board

“Signed” Henry Harder , Director

“Signed” Derek A. Swain , Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTSOF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Invested
in Capital
Assets Unrestricted Total
2003 2003 2003
$ $ $
NET ASSETS, beginning of year 79,991 92,154 172,145
Excess of Receipts over Expenditures (15,243) 79,669 64,426
NET ASSETS, end of the year 64,748 171,823 236,571

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTSOF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

RECEIPTS
Membership dues
Application and exam fees
Interest
Other

EXPENDITURES
Administration
Audit
Board
Committees (meetings, travel and honor arium)
External relations (dues)
Discipline Committee Hearings
Extraordinary Hearings
Operations
Registrant / Applicant servioes
Statutory functions

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES

The accompanying notes arean integral part of these financial statements
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2003
$

1,060,092
124,175
20,980
5,307
1,210,554

540,762
4,654
85,207
45,822
7,059

6,859
137,141
17,380
301,244
1,146,128

64,426

2002
$

1,056,324
51,450
15,687

6,008

1,129,469

528,532
4,039
68,620
38,072
7,290

33,260
124,975
23,988
278,128
1,106,904

22,565



COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTSOF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

2003 2002
$ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of receipts over expenditures 64,426 22,565
Adjustments for:
Amortization 19,995 14,989
Accountsreceivable - 3,679
Prepaid expenses (11,687) 5,230
Accountspayable 22,769 58,392
Employee remittances payable 3,565 (368)
PST payable (47) (183)
Deferred revenue 608,950 356,425
707,971 460,729
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of cepital assets (4,752) (65,306)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 703,219 395,423
CASH, beginning of year 607,647 212,224
CASH, end of year 1,310,866 607,647

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

College of Psychologists of British Columbia 2003 Annual Report



COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTSOF BRITISH COLUMBIA
NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Capital assets
Purchased capital assetsarerecorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair

value at the date of contribution. Amortization is provided on a declining balance basis at
the following rates:

Office furniture and equipment - 20% declining balance
Computer equipment and software - 30% declining balance
L easehold improvements - bByearsstraight line

In the year of acquisition, only one-half of the normal amortization is recorded.
Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Asset Fund.
Revenue and Expense recognition

Membership dues are recognized as income in the fiscal year due. Expenditures are
recognized as incurred.

2. CAPITAL ASSETS
2003 2002
Accumulated Net Book  Net Book
Cost Amortization Vaue Value
$ $ $ $
Office furniture and equipment 80,528 53,970 26,558 31604
Computer equipment 76739 62,492 14,247 16303
L easehold Improvements 4070 16,763 23,943 32,084
197,973 133,225 64,748 79,991

3. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue representsmembership fees for the 2004 calendar year received in
advance.
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BOARD, STAFF, COMMITTEE MEMBERS, SUPERVISORS,
ORAL EXAMINERS AND NEW REGISTRANTS
FOR THE 2006 YEAR

BOARD
Michael Elterman, M.B.A., Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair of the Board
Robert Colby, M.S., R.Psych., Vice Chair, Board; Chair, Registration Committee
Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, Legislation Committee
Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair, Inquiry Committee
Michael Joschko, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, Quality Assurance Committee
Derek Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair, Finance Committee
Daniel Fontaine, Public Member, Chair, Patient Relations Committee,
Public Member, Discipline Committee
Marguerite Ford, Public Member, Inquiry Committee
Wayne Morson, Public Member, Chair, Discipline Committee,
Public Member, Registration and Finance Committees

STAFF MEMBERS

Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych., Registrar
Cheryl Bradley, Ph.D., R.Psych., Deputy Registrar
Colleen Wilkie, Ph.D., R.Psych., Deputy Registrar

Judy Clausen, Registrar’s Assistant
Avigail Cohen, Office Assistant
Wendy Harris, Registration Coordinator
Gina Rowan, Inquiry Coordinator and Director of Records

DisciPLINE COMMITTEE

Wayne Morson, Public Member, Chair Lynn Alden, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Rosemary Alvaro, Ph.D., R.Psych. Bruce Clark, Public Member

Michael Coles, Ph.D., R.Psych. (until 09/06) Daniel Fontaine, Public Member

Henry Hightower, Public Member Donna Paproski, Ph.D., R.Psych. (from 12/06)
Erica Reznick, Ph.D., R.Psych. (until 11/06) Janet Strayer, Ph.D., R.Psych. (until 09/06)
Lynn Superstein-Raber, Ph.D., R.Psych Susan Turnbull, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Cheryl Washburn, Ph.D., R.Psych. (from 12/06)

INQUIRY COMMITTEE

Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair Kirk Beck, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Yaya De Andrade, Ph.D., R.Psych. Marguerite Ford, Public Member

Jill Hightower, Public Member Russell King, Ph.D., R.Psych. (from 04/06)
Pippa Lewington, Ph.D., R.Psych. (until 04/06) Alexis Thuillier, Public Member

Hendre Viljoen, Ph.D., R.Psych. Joseph Zaide, Ph.D., R.Psych.
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QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

Michael Joschko, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair
Chris Gibbins, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Leora Kuttner, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Karen Tee, Ph.D., R.Psych. (until 09/06)

Leigh Bowie, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Julia Hass, Public Member
Joan Pinkus, Ph.D., R.Psych.

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE

Robert Colby, M.S., R.Psych., Chair
Marion Ehrenberg, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anne Marie Jones, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marvin McDonald, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Cheryl Washburn, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Catherine Costigan, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Amy Janeck, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Robert Ley, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Wayne Morson, Public Member

PATIENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE

Daniel Fontaine, Public Member, Chair
Michael Elterman, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Robert Colby, M.S., R.Psych.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

Derek Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych. (Chair)
Michael Elterman, Ph.D., R.Psych

SUPERVISORS
Lynn Alden, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Eva Allan, M.Ed., R.Psych.
Elizabeth Bannerman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michael Boissevain, Ph.D., R.Psych.
John Carter, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Kenneth Craig, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Patricia (Trish) Crawford, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anthony Dugbartey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Dolores Escudero, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lynda Grant, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lee Grimmer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lindsey Jack, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Rita Knodel, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Mary Korpach, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Barbara Madani, M.A.Sc., R.Psych.
Jennifer Mclvor, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Alison Miller, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Bruce Monkhouse, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Tavi Nicholson, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Donna Paproski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lyne M. Piché, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Donald Read, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marsha Runtz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susanne Schibler, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Martin Shoemaker, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Eric Speth, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Harilaos Stefanakis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Paul Sungaila, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Karen Tallman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michelle Worth, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Robert Colby, M.S., R.Psych.
Wayne Morson, Public Member

Victoria Alfonso, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Nicole Aubé, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Susan Baum, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Robert Carey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Sarah Cockell, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Joanne Crandall, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susan Cross, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marion Ehrenberg, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Maureen Godfrey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Joy Green, M.A., R.Psych.

Simon Hearn, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Krystyna Kinowski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
William Koch, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Leora Kuttner, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Todd Mason, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Deborah McTaggart, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Laura Mills, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marlene Moretti, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Maureen Olley, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Martin Phillips-Hing, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ann Pirolli, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anneliese Robens, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Ronald Samuda, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Edward Shen, Ph.D., R.Psych.
John Spencer, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Sujatha Srikameswaran, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Rhona Steinberg, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lynn Superstein-Raber, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Rene Weideman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
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ORAL EXAMINERS

Victoria Alfonso, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Randall Atkinson, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Mark Bailey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Barbara Beach, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susan Blake, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michael Boissevain, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Geoffrey Carr, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michael Coles, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Evelyn Corker, M.A., R.Psych.
Joanne Crandall, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susan Cross, Ph.D., R.Psych.

David Eveleigh, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Mervyn Gilbert, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Joy Green, M.A., R.Psych.

Jordan Hanley, Ph.D., R.Psych.
John Higenbottam, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Elizabeth Huntsman, Ph.D., R.Psych.

David Katz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Krystyna Kinowski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Brenda Kosaka, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ulrich Lanius, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Wolfgang Linden, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Barbara Madani, M.A.Sc., R.Psych.

Deborah McTaggart, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Nancy Meyer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Bruce Monkhouse, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Donna Paproski, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Martin Phillips-Hing, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Donald Ramer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Erica Reznick, Ph.D., R.Psych.
James Roche, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Deborah Samsom, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susanne Schibler, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Heather Scott, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Kathleen Simas, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Meagan Smith, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Runa Steenhuis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Rhona Steinberg, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Paul Sungaila, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Paul Swingle, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Joyce Ternes, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Inna Vlassev, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Rene Weideman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Maureen Whittal, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marshall Wilensky, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Sheila Woody, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Verna-Jean Amell, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Nicole Aubé, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Susan Baum, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Carole Bishop, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Douglas Boer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Robert Carey, Ph.D., R.Psych.

John Carter, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Constance Coniglio, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Kenneth Craig, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Patricia (Trish) Crawford, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Jacqueline Douglas, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Sandy Gardner, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Brian Grady, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Susan Hackett, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Simon Hearn, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Grace Hopp, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Charlotte Johnston, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Margaret Kendrick, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Brenda Knight, M.A., R.Psych.
Randall Kropp, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ronald Laye, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Anne MacGregor, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Jane McEwan, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Gregory Meloche, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Laura Mills, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Jennifer Newman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Philip Perry, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lyne Piché, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Jennifer Reiss, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anneliese Robens, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Barbara Rosen, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ronald Samuda, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Myron Grant Schimpf, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ruth Sigal, M.Ed., R.Psych.

Cecelia Louise Smith, M.Sc., R.Psych.
Ingrid Sochting, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Harilaos Stefanakis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Janet Strayer, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lynn Superstein-Raber, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Karen Tallman, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Jean Toth, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Larry Waterman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Malcolm Weinstein, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ursula Wild, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Rosemary Wilkinson, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Arianna Yakirov, Ph.D., R.Psych.
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New REGISTRANTS - 2006

Cheryl Ainsworth, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Juliette Arato-Bollivar, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Valerie Ashton, Psy.D., R.Psych.

Edward Baess, Psy.D., R.Psych.

Karen Bentley, M.Sc., R.Psych.Assoc.
Jeannette Bittman, M.Ed., R.Psych.Assoc.
Mark Bodnarchuk, Ph.D.,R.Psych.
Christina Browne, M.Ed., R.Psych.Assoc.
Heather Burke, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Bartolome Cerda Amengual, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.

Tena Colton, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Timothy Crowell, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Karen Eamon, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Nichole Fairbrother, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marlo Gal, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Saeed Ghafari, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Darryl Grams, M.Ed., R.Psych.Assoc.
Catherine Harwood, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Paola Lake, Ph.D.,R.Psych.

Kathleen Lewis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Thomas Lipinski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
David Marxsen, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Gregory McCallum, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Susan Mclsaac, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Candice Murray, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Gregory Olson, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Faye Paris, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Natalee Popadiuk, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ann Robson, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Joan Schultz, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Janet Shiell, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Sharolyn Sloat, Ph.D.,R.Psych.

Daryl Ternowski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Spencer Wade, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Shannon Wagner, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Tina C. Wang, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marvin Westwood, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Todd Willoughby, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Liesle Young, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Diana Alexander, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Kim Arkinstall, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Karianne Axford, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Simon Bazett, M.Ed., R.Psych.Assoc.
Joan Biever, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Gerald Blomme, M.Ed., R.Psych.Assoc.
Annalize Booy, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Marla Buchanan, Ph.D.,R.Psych.

Douglas Cave, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Alexander Chapman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Linda Jean Crawford, M.Sc., R.Psych.Assoc.
Barbara de Faye, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Mazen Samir Elchami, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Jennifer Ferns, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Roger Gervais, Temporary Registrant
Charlene Goldstein, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Grant Grobman, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Laurie Hashizume, M.Ed., R.Psych.Assoc.
Marie-France Lapierre, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Irene Lieban, Psy.D., R.Psych.

Teal Maedel, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.

Susan Matthews, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Kamie McConnell, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Marisol McRae, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Rami Nader, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Timothy Joseph Paré, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michelle Patterson, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Margaretha Prat, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Michael Scales, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Judith Setton-Markus, M.Ed., R.Psych.Assoc.
Marleane Sinclaire, M.A., R.Psych.Assoc.
Mary Tennant, M.Ed., R.Psych.Assoc.
Julia Ungar, Ph.D., R.Psych.

John Wagner, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Gordon Wallace, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Linda Weaver, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Audrey Wexler, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Aiko Yamamoto, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Martin Zakrzewski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
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REPORT FROM THE CHAIR

On behalf of the Board, 1 wish to express appreciation to the scores of registrants whose contributions as
committee members, oral examiners, regulatory supervisors, and as informed and involved registrants have
helped to bring to a close another year of fair and responsible regulation of our profession. The Board also
expresses its ongoing support for and appreciation to our dedicated staff. College staff manage a large volume
of complex and time sensitive matters with professionalism, competence and integrity.

Information Meetings The Board held an information meeting in Vancouver on November 16, 2006
which was attended by approximately 30 registrants, as well as public members of the Board and various
College committees. Information meetings were also held in Victoria (January 24), Kelowna (February 23),
Nelson (March 13), and Nanaimo (April 4). The Board continues to extend offers to provide “individualized”
information sessions to groups of registrants in particular work or geographic locations, given the importance
for registrants to be informed about College activities and decisions and to participate in discussions regarding
the regulation of the profession in British Columbia.

Board Elections A Call for Nominations was distributed to registrants in the fall of 2006, to fill two
elected positions on the Board. Nominations were received for four individuals. Elected for a three year term
were Lee Cohene and Rebecca St. Clere England.

Annual Evaluation of Registrar The objectives which provide the criteria for the annual evaluation
of the Registrar include the following: bringing the College in line with the national and international
standards (both substantive and procedural) for professional regulation; enhancing the profile, standing and
credibility of the College with government; development and maintenance of an effective system for document
control, management, filing and storage; efficient and timely management of complaints and applications for
registration; ensuring regular and effective communication with registrants about regulatory issues affecting
them; enhancing the decision-making competencies of the Inquiry, Registration, Discipline and Quality
Assurance Committees; maintaining the efficient resourcing and staffing of the College; and ensuring data
integrity, security, control and management. The annual evaluation involves discussion about achievement of
the objectives and the Board’s provision of sufficient resources and support for their achievement. The Board
was extremely pleased with the achievement of the Registrar and her staff with regard to these objectives.

Reviews of Inquiry Committee Decisions A total of 10 reviews of Inquiry Committee decisions on
complaints were heard by the Board in 2006. These reviews were requested by complainants under the Health
Professions Act. In each instance the Board upheld the decision of the Inquiry Committee, based on a review
of the documents before the Inquiry Committee when making its decision.

College Workshops The College’s involvement in organizing and sponsoring high calibre workshops on
ethics and professional conduct continued throughout 2006.

Participation with ASPPB The Registrar continued to chair an ASPPB task force on Model Regulations
and Legislation, and the College participated in ASPPB meetings in April in Sandestin, Florida and in October
in San Diego, California. The Registrar presented a paper in San Diego on the publication of disciplinary
decisions in Canada.

Liaison with the Professional Association During 2006 the Registrar and Board provided an
orientation workshop for the Board of the British Columbia Psychological Association.

Registrar awarded CPA Fellow Status I was pleased to submit a nomination for our Registrar for the
status of CPA fellow. The Board was delighted that the Registrar was awarded this status at the CPA Annual
Convention in June, 2006. It is notable that CPA recognized the significant contributions that our Registrar
has made to the regulation of psychology in our province, as well in Canada and North America through her
involvement with Canadian Provincial Associations of Psychology (CPAP), with the group of Canadian
regulators in Psychology, and the Association of State and Provincial Psychology Board (ASPPB).
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Strategic Planning The Board and Registrar met for a strategic planning meeting in November and
drafted a Strategic Plan for circulation to registrants for comment and feedback. The draft mission statement
is as follows: To regulate the profession of psychology in the public interest in accordance with the Health
Professions Act of British Columbia by setting the standards for competent and ethical practice, promoting
excellence and taking action when standards are not met. The strategic plan articulated the values which inform
efforts to meet the College’s mandate under the Health Professions Act: Professionalism, Objectivity,
Transparency, Accountability, Registrant involvement/participation, Clear communication. The three key
objectives outlined in the strategic plan are: 1. Fair and Effective Regulation of the Profession of Psychology
under the Health Professions Act, 2.Communication with Stakeholders and 3. Organizational Effectiveness. The
Strategic Plan will be finalized in 2007.

Legal Consultation The College’s current reliance on legal services is divided into several main categories:
A.Routine legal consultations for Inquiry and Registration Committees, including potential attendance of legal
counsel at committee meetings; B. General legal counsel (Board legal consultation, legal matters such as
lawsuits against the College); C. Legal consultation on Freedom of Information requests; and D. Special legal
consultation on discipline matters including preparation for, and the conducting of, extraordinary hearings of
the Inquiry Committee, Discipline Committee hearings, and legal consultation for hearing panels. The Board
continued to be pleased with the calibre of legal consultation provided to the College.

Practice Advisories During the 2006 year the following draft and final practice advisories were approved
by the Board for distribution to registrants:

Practice Advisory 4 Release of Psychology Records

Practice Advisory 8 Informed Consent (Draft)

Practice Advisory 9 Record Keeping in Publicly Funded and/or Multidisciplinary Settings
(Draft)

Bylaw Changes The Board submitted the following Bylaw changes to government:

July 21, 2006 To amend subsections 8.9, 10.14 and 11.8 of the Code of Conduct

September 15, 2006 To amend sections 8.8, 8.9 and 8.10 of the Code of Conduct by
renumbering them

December 11, 2006 To add Bylaws 57(5) and 59(6) and Schedules “J” and “K”

The first two submissions were deposited with the Minister and enacted in 2006. Schedules “J” and “K”, while
submitted in 2006, were deposited with the Minister early in 2007. These bylaw changes are described in
more detail in the report of the Legislation Committee.

In closing It was my privilege to serve as the Chair of the Board for 2006.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael Elterman, M.B.A., Ph.D., R.Psych.,
Chair of the Board 2006

DISCIPLINE COMMITTEE REPORT

There were no hearings of the Discipline Committee in 2006. As noted elsewhere in this report, one Citation
for a hearing by the Discipline Committee was outstanding at the end of 2006.

Respectfully submitted,
Wayne Morson, Chair

Discipline Committee 2006
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INQUIRY COMMITTEE REPORT

It was my pleasure to continue to serve as Chair of the Inquiry Committee for the 2006 year. This Committee
has closed 346 of the 370 complaints received under the Health Professions Act during the period January 1,
2000 to December 31, 2006. The total of 370 received complaints represents 168 individual registrants, each
of whom had received one or more complaints during the January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2006 time frame.
Twenty-four (24) complaints remained open as at December 31, 2006. All of the 346 closed complaints have
been resolved without the need for a hearing of the Discipline Committee, notwithstanding the readiness of
this Committee to proceed on citations when the alleged misconduct warrants proceeding. During 2006,
citations for a hearing of the Discipline Committee were issued to three registrants relating to four complaint
files. Two of these files relating to one registrant were eventually resolved through a letter of undertaking.
A second registrant resigned from the College and is no longer eligible to practice psychology in British
Columbia. At the end of 2006, the final file on which a Citation for a hearing by the Discipline Committee had
been issued remained unresolved. Summaries of consensual resolutions of complaint matters may be found
in the Registrar’s Report.

Files closed during 2006 are summarized in the table below along with the nature of the decision of the Inquiry
Committee in closing the complaint file. Please review the Registrar’s report for a comprehensive description
and breakdown of 2006 complaint investigations and resolutions.

The Inquiry Committee consists of very hardworking and dedicated professional and public members who work
in consultation and cooperation with a very competent staff team consisting of the Registrar, Deputy Registrar
and Inquiry Coordinator. It has been a pleasure to serve as Chair for the 2006 year.

Table 1: Files Closed during 2006 (N=61)

- Closing Reason

Letter of Undertaking or Consent Agreement 12 19.7

Resolved ' 10 ‘ 16.4
| Insufficient Evidence : 20 1 32.8
Decision Not to Proceed (no jurisdiction, 18 29.5

withdrawn, vexatious or frivolous)

| Referred to Discipline Committee ,‘ 1 “ 1.6

Total 61 100
* percentages in this and subsequent tables may contain rounding errors

Respectfully submitted,

Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Chair, Inquiry Committee 2006
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PATIENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

As per the Health Professions Act, the objectives of this Committee include: recommending to the Board specific
procedures for handling complaints of professional misconduct of a sexual nature; informing the public about
the process of bringing their concerns to the College; monitoring and periodically evaluating the operation
of procedures established; developing and coordinating educational programs dealing with professional
misconduct of a sexual nature for registrants and the public as required; establishing a patient relations
program to prevent professional misconduct of a sexual nature; recommending to the Board standards and
guidelines for the conduct of registrants and their patients. A pamphlet developed by the Committee for
registrants is available on the College website. Information regarding appropriate conduct is also included in
the complaints brochure available to the public, also available on the website.

Respectfully submitted,

Daniel Fontaine, Chair,
Patient Relations Committee 2006

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE REPORT

This was a significant year for the Registration Committee. A number of policies were developed, and the
College continued to dialogue with government on important issues.

Government Relations

1. The Health Professions Act The College has requested a amendment to the Health Professions Act
to enable health regulatory boards in BC to share information with each other, as the College is able to do with
other psychology regulatory boards outside of BC. The College has also voiced concerns about section
52.1(3)(b), which is not yet in force. This section, which would allow individuals to use titles from other
jurisdictions.

2. Reserved Actions and Exemptions The College received a letter from Dr. Penny Ballem, Deputy
Minister of Health, on May 1, 2006 indicating the government’s intention to maintain the exemption from
restriction on the use of the title ‘psychologist’ by public school employees “for the next three to five years
while it reviews the implementation of the HPA.” The College reminded government that we had implemented
the extraordinary application/registration process based on discussions held with government about its intent
to implement the recommendation of the Health Professions Council that the exemptions be lifted. The
College is pleased with the manner in which the extraordinary application process was achieved, and is
confident that the process developed can be further utilized as necessary in the future. The College also met
with registrants working in the school system to survey their thoughts and concerns about the practice of
school psychology. Many of the issues discussed are similar to those of registrants working in other
institutional settings, such as autonomy of decision making with regard to selection of assessment instruments
and informed consent.

3. Mobility A letter from the Ministry of Economic Development was received about the government’s
desire to facilitate the registration of foreign-trained professionals in BC. The Alberta-British Columbia Trade,
Investment, and Labour Mobility Agreement (TILMA) was signed in Edmonton on April 28, 2006. This
agreement includes provisions for enhancing labour mobility. The agreement is compatible with the MRA and
the College’s Bylaws regarding reciprocal registration.
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Feedback from Oral Examiners/Supervisors Oral examiners are routinely provided with a feedback
form on completion of an oral examination as a means of sharing observations and comments on the oral
examination process. The Committee responded to the feedback received. A monthly luncheon meeting at the
College office was initiated in 2006, open to all oral examiners and regulatory supervisors for support,
feedback, and problem-solving of common issues.

Extraordinary Applications The Committee is pleased to report that in 2006, most of the extraordinary
applicants progressed to being placed on the Limited Register. The names of these extraordinary applicants
are found in this Report under New Registrants. These registrants (and the remaining extraordinary applicants
who are nearing completion) are to be commended for their interest in becoming regulated psychology
professionals and their participation in the implementation of the extraordinary provisions.

Academic Preparation The Registration Committee continues to review applications from individuals who
have not completed CPA/APA accredited training. The Committee is of the opinion that preparation for entry
level practice in professional psychology has been clearly established by CPA and APA. Applicants from
accredited programs find the application process easier and quicker to navigate. Throughout the year the
Committee sought to further clarify the definition of residency and the criteria for evaluating graduate
degrees. A greater number of applications are being submitted from individuals who have completed
experimental degrees with varying upgrades to professional practice, and there are frequent questions
regarding whether online professional psychology programs meet the registration requirements. These remain
ongoing issues for the Committee.

Supervision During 2006, the Registration Committee announced implementation of a post-degree
supervision year for those applying to be psychologists (those applying to be psychological associates already
are required to have post-degree supervision). The Registration Committee struck a Task Force and reviewed
information from other jurisdictions regarding this issue. Supervision requirements are under review by APA,
and a number of jurisdictions are reconsidering the requirements for post-doctoral supervision. In light of
these developments, and to preserve the shortened time it takes to become registered, the Committee decided
to formalize its current expectation that all applicants practice under supervision while proceeding through
the application process, rather than initiating an entirely new supervision requirement. The Committee has
established a step-wise plan to implement the supervision requirement which was communicated in the
October 2006 Chronicle. As of January 1, 2008, all applicants will be required to submit a supervision plan for
any psychological services they are providing in B.C. Applicants can select their own supervisor, who must be
aregistrant. Further details of the requirement will be developed after the Committee has had an opportunity
to review a number of supervision plans.

Title Issues The Registration Committee sends out “cease and desist” letters to individuals who are not
registered with the College but are using the title ‘psychologist’ or its derivatives, and/or practicing psychology.
This is a significant issue with a high number of potential violations. At a meeting attended by the Chair of
the Registration Committee, College counsel, and staff, it was decided to proceed on a priority basis with title
issue concerns that have implications for public protection. The Registration Committee decided to proceed
on one potentially serious matter by way of a petition to the court.

Degree Authorization Act The Degree Authorization Act gives the Minister of Advanced Education the
power to grant university status to private institutions, and to approve new university programs. As provided
under the Act, the Registration Committee reviews proposals for new programs in professional psychology.
In some cases, the Committee has voiced concern that the program will not adequately equip students to meet
College registration requirements on completion of the program.

Areas of Practice The Registration Committee continues to discuss a number of issues related to area of

practice, including: the number of areas of practice declarable on mobility and reciprocal applications, and
required criteria to change area of practice at renewal.
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Fees The Registration Committee reviewed its fee structure and lowered the administration fee for the
Examination for Professional Practice in Psychology (EPPP), and now refunds the application package fee on
receipt of a completed application.

Application to Registration Time Frame For applications that are straight-forward, the typical time
from application to registration is 9-12 months for regular applicants (it is possible to complete the process
in 6 months), and 5-6 months for reciprocal or mobility applicants (it is possible to complete the process in
4 months).

Retirement The Registration Committee has paid careful attention to the number of individuals declaring
retired status at renewal and then requesting to return to the Full Register shortly thereafter. The Committee
decided to adapt the policy regarding returning to the Full Register, by making the policy more responsive to
the observed difficulties in decision-making regarding retirement from the profession. The Committee will
continue to monitor the decision-making of registrants considering retirement.

. New Registrants A total of 79 new registrants were added to the Register in 2006. Of these, 30 were
registered as psychological associates, including 26 individuals who applied under the extraordinary provisions.
Please see the Registrar’s report for more informative statistics regarding the College Register and statistics
summarizing the regulatory activities of the College in the application/registration area.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert Colby, M.S., R.Psych.,
Chair, Registration Committee 2006

QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

I am pleased to report on the activities of the Quality Assurance Committee during 2006. In addition to the
annual review of the Continuing Competency Program, the Committee was actively engaged in several
important initiatives. Below is a summary of the work of the Committee in 2006.

1. Continuing Competency Program Review The Continuing Competency Program review was
conducted in February, 2006. A total of 103 registrants were selected to submit their completed Continuing
Competency Activities log for 2005. The College set aside a day to respond to any questions regarding the
review, and almost 10% of the selected registrants took advantage of this consultation. The review of log sheets
for the 2005 year proceeded smoothly, and most registrants were prompt and clear in their completion of the
form. The distinctions among the different categories of activities were almost uniformly understood by
registrants. Most registrants reported far more hours than the minimum number specified by our program- this
is likely a reflection of the degree to which most registrants routinely incorporate continuing competency
activities into their professional routines. All registrants in the review were found to be in compliance with
the program.

2. Continuing Competency Program development This year, after careful deliberation and
research on policies in other jurisdictions, the Committee determined that beginning in January, 2007,
registrants may “bank” extra hours accrued for Category A of the Continuing Competency Program on a carry-
forward basis for one year. Additional hours beyond those required for the subsequent year are not eligible for
banking. An important principle that guided the Committee in making this determination was that Continuing
Competency hours be reasonably current and relevant to the registrant’s current practice. Further refinement
of the Continuing Competency Program involved the decision to use a random number generator system for
future review selection and the decision to grant an optional one-year exemption from submitting review
forms for registrants selected for review for a third consecutive year.
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3. Designation of another registrant to take care of one’s practice records in the event
of unexpected incapacity or death The Committee requested and the Board has approved a
requirement that each registrant designate another registrant to be responsible for her/his practice records in
the event of incapacity or death. The requirement will commence with renewal for the 2009 calendar year, and
will involve listing the designated registrant on the renewal form. For the 2008 renewal, registrants will be
encouraged, but not required, to designate another registrant. The Committee’s reasoning in requesting this
requirement is based in an awareness of the aging demographic of the College. In the 2007 year, the
Committee anticipates holding a series of workshops on retirement planning and the writing of a “professional
will”,

4. Ethics Workshops The Committee continued to develop workshops on ethical issues during the 2006
year, and set dates for two workshops to occur in the first half of 2007. The Committee is pleased with the
calibre of speakers we have been able to obtain, and looks forward to facilitating further informative
workshops for registrants.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael Joschko, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Chair, Quality Assurance Committee 2006

LEGISLATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Board submitted the following Bylaw changes to government during the 2006 year:

1.  That subsection 8.9 of Schedule “F”, Code of Conduct, be amended as follows:

8.9 Provision of services in sponsoring agency
Where a registrant offers psychological services or is directing the psychological services of
others within a sponsoring institution and the registrant believes that the most appropriate
services to a client is not in accord with the expectations of the sponsoring institution, the
supervising registrant must attempt to reconcile these differences with the administration of the
institution in order to best respond to the client’s needs.

The subsection as amended (by changing services to service(s)) would read:

8.9 Provision of services in sponsoring agency
Where a registrant offers psychological services or is directing the psychological services of
others within a sponsoring institution and the registrant believes that the most appropriate
service(s) to a client is not in accord with the expectations of the sponsoring institution, the
supervising registrant must attempt to reconcile these differences with the administration of the
institution in order to best respond to the client’s needs.

2. That subsection 10.14 of Schedule “F”, Code of Conduct, be amended as follows:
10.14 Fair and accurate presentation
A registrant who interprets the science or the practice of psychology or psychological services
to the general public must the present the information fairly and accurately.
The subsection as amended (removing “the” from the 2™ line) would read:
10.14 Fair and accurate presentation

A registrant who interprets the science or the practice of psychology or psychological services
to the general public must present the information fairly and accurately.
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3. That subsection 11.8 of Schedule “F”, Code of Conduct, be amended as follows:

11.8 Communicating results
When communicating the results of an assessment to a client or to the legal guardian or other
agent of a client, a registrant must provide use adequate interpretive aids or explanations and
language that is reasonably understandable.

The subsection as amended (removing the word “provide”) would read:

11.8 Communicating results
When communicating the results of an assessment to a client or to the legal guardian or other
agent of a client, a registrant must use adequate interpretive aids or explanations and language
that is reasonably understandable.

4. That Subsection 11.24 of Schedule “F”, Code of Conduct, be amended by changing the title from
Provision of raw results to Provision of raw test data.

5. That subsection 16.21 of Schedule “F”, Code of Conduct, be amended as follows:

16.21 Honoring commitments
A registrant must honour all commitments they have made to research participants.

The subsection as amended (by changing the spelling of “honouring”) would read:

16.21 Honouring commitments
A registrant must honour all commitments they have made to research participants.

AND

1. That subsection 8.8 Accountability for supervisees of Schedule “F”, Code of Conduct, be amended by
renumbering is as 8.7 Accountability for supervisees.

2. That subsection 8.9 Obligation to advise of responsibility of Schedule “F”, Code of Conduct, be amended
by renumbering it as 8.8 Obligation to advise of responsibility.

3. That subsection 8.10 Provision of services in sponsoring agency of Schedule “F”, Code of Conduct, be
amended by renumbering it as 8.9 Provision of services in sponsoring agency.

A further submission was made during 2006 with regard to the addition of two schedules to the Bylaws
stipulating the assessment of costs after an inquiry or discipline hearing. While submitted in 2006, these
schedules were not deposited with the Minister until early in 2007.

Additional efforts were devoted to the continued development of an advisory on the issue of maintaining
psychology records within the public institutional setting. Feedback and discussions with registrants working
in these settings continued and when the draft is finalized, it will be circulated to registrants.

With the Quality Assurance Committee having reached full stride in terms of its role in enhancing competent
practice, the increase in Board sophistication with regard to the College’s legislative mandate, and the process
of distribution of all practice advisories to all College statutory committees, it was decided that the functions
of the Legislation Committee have been appropriately addressed and that Committee will not continue into
2007.

Respectfully Submitted,

Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Chair, Legislation Committee, 2006
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FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

The College continues to stay well within budget projections. In addition, the staff continue to manage the
high work volume with just slightly under 6 FTE positions. Rather than budgeting for anticipating hearing
costs which are difficult to project, the Board directed the established of a contingency fund in 2006 with funds
earmarked to cover hearing costs. The tariff of costs submitted for deposit with the Minister will facilitate the
recovery of a portion of hearing and investigation costs.

Table 2: Comparative Expenses

1 Wages and Benefits Othef E}Z@p«snses*’:t ",_ Total Expeﬂses
1 : ' Statiitory : vt e
Expenses
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
2004 | 521,791 41 288,686 23 74,816 6 391,336 30 1,276,629 100
2005 554,704 48 128,899 11 70,563 6 403,717 35 1,157,883 100
2006 565,346 | 46 201,542 17 50,113 4 402,896 33 1,219,897 100

* This figure represents the cost of extraordinary hearings and preparations for discipline hearings.
** Included in these expenses are costs associated with committee meetings, Board expenses, travel, rent, office
supplies.

It is notable that while routine statutory expenses (including legal consultations) increased over 2005, the
amount remains considerably lower than routine statutory expenses in 2004 and in previous years. The
amount spent in issuance of citations and preparation for hearings was also less in 2006 than in previous years.

Respectfully submitted,

Derek Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Chair, Finance Committee 2006

REGISTRAR’'S REPORT

Below is the Registrar’s Report on the activities of the College for the year 2006. This report is divided into
three main sections:

1. Registration/Application Matters This section provides a description of the College Register
for 2006 and the status of applications for registration, as well as a summary of activities of the College
in this area.

II. Complaint and Investigative Matters The second section provides a descriptive and statistical
analysis of complaint and other investigative matters.

III. Administrative Matters The third section summarizes administrative activities related to
external relationships and our obligations under the Ombudsman and Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Acts.
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I. REGISTRATION/APPLICATION MATTERS

This section reviews activities at the College related to the status of the College Register during 2006, and
the status of applications for registration. It is divided into 8 sections as follows:

examinations

statistics summarizing length of application process
title issue investigations

extraordinary applicants

the College Register 2006
summary of application activity
status of application files

area of practice

P W=
PN w

1. The College Register 2006

As at December 31, 2006, the College Register showed a total of 1075 registrants, including one individual
who had temporary registration status during the 2006 year.

Table 3: The College Register as at December 31, 2006

Full Register 873 863 889 924 933 932

Suspended 1
| Limited Register- Inquiry Committee | 15 14 15 13 | 11
Limited Register- Inquiry Committee / | 1 1
{ Non-Practicing ]
Limited Register- Inquiry Committee/ , 1
Out of Province
Limited Register - Out-of-Province ) 57 58 43 29 28 27
Limited Register - Non-Practicing | 51 61 17 11 18 | 23
| Limited Register- Retired ] 19 17 | 15 13 ] 14 | 23
Limited Register- Registration Committee 1 2 % 5 » 22 57
Category Pending as at Dec. 31,2006 1 1 2
: Temporary Registration 1 | 2 3 v 2 1
| Total I 1000 1017 984 1002 1032 1075 |

As shown in the table below, a total of 79 new registrants were added to the Register in 2006. Of these, 30
were registered as psychological associates, including 26 individuals who applied under the extraordinary
provisions.

Table 4: New Registrants by Class of Registration

Psychologists 22 12 4 10 1 49
Psychological 0 4 0 26 0 30
Associates

TOTAL 22 16 4 36 1 79
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Table 5 below shows the breakdown of the 79 individuals registered in 2006 according to application type and
placement on the Full or Limited Register. Fifty-three percent (n=42) of the new registrants were placed on
the Full Register. Of these, most (90%, n=38) were in the psychologist class of registration, and 50% were
regular applicants. Thirty-six of the 37 new registrants who were placed on the Limited Register were
applicants under the extraordinary provisions. These individuals have completed all of the initial requirements
for registration with the College under the extraordinary provisions, and will complete any remaining
registration requirements (the EPPP or National Association of School Psychologists (NASP) examination,
internship equivalencies, and the Oral Examination) prior to approval for placement on the Full Register.

Table 5: New Registrants on Full and Limited Register by Application Type

Full Register

Psychologists 21 12 4 0 1 38
Psychological Associates ] 0 4 ] 0 0 0 4
Total on Full Register 21 16 4 0 1 | 42

Limited Register
Psychologists 1 0 10 0 11
Psychological Associates 0 26 0 26
Total on Limited Register 1 0 0 36 0 37
| Total 22 16 4 36 1 79

2. Summary of Application Activity

The table below summarizes the application activities at the College during the 2006 year, along with
comparison data from previous years. As shown in the table, a total of 55 applications were received during
the 2006 year. Of these, 60% (n=33) were regular applications. Twenty-four percent (n=13) were reciprocal
applications from another Canadian jurisdiction, and 13% (n=7) were mobility applications from jurisdictions
in the United States. No applications were withdrawn, ineligible, or disqualified during 2006.

Table 6: Application Activity Summary 2001-2006

# of
applications
received

# of 6 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
applications
withdrawn

# of 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
applications
not eligible

# of 2 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
applicants
disqualified
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3. Status of Application Files

Table 7 shows the status of all applications as at December 31, 2006. There were 81 open applications at
various stages of the application process.

Table 7: Status of Applications as at December 31, 2006

s memme—

' _-Agplication ,St»agéf-:,_lv :

L
Initial review
Under review for 12 - 2 0 0 - 14
credentials/consistency
EPPP 17 N/A N/A ¥ 17
Written Jurisprudence Exam 2 2 1 3 8
Oral Examination 9 N/A N/A 4 13
Ready for placement on 2 1 2 1 6
Register |
Total Open Files as at 58 9 4 10 81
12/31/06

*Extraordinary applicants complete the EPPP examination or equivalent while on the Limited Register
- rather than during the application process.

4. Area of Practice: Applicants and Registrants

Applicants must indicate one area of practice in psychology on the application form. This area is expected
to be the broad area of practice which best describes the individual’s training and competence. Table 8 below
represents the area of practice indicated by new applicants in 2006. All but four applicants selected Clinical
or Counselling as most descriptive of their area of practice.

Table 8: Area of Practice for New Applicants in 2006

i Areaof ‘Pragéti’ce

Clinical Psychology

Counselling Psychology 8 ' 1 1 10

Clinical Neuropsychology 1 2 1

{ School Psychology

Rehabilitation Psychology

Forensic/Corrections Psychology

o lolo |o |+

Undeclared as at December 2005

Total 33 13 7 2 55
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The area Research/Academic is not intended as a declared area of practice for applicants. The areas of Clinical
and Counselling are defined by the College as broad areas encompassing many sub-areas, while the areas of
Forensic/Corrections, Health, School, Rehabilitation, Industrial/Organizational and Clinical Neuropsychology
are seen as more narrowly defined areas of practice, sometimes including exclusive practice in a particular
setting.

Each year, registrants are required at renewal to report their primary area of practice. The Register indicated
the following breakdown for the self-declared primary area of practice indicated by Registrants on December
31, 2006, excluding retired registrants (n=23) and one temporary registrant:

Table 9: Self-Declared Primary Area of Practice for Registrants
as at December 31, 2006

Self-Declared Primary 1 Numberof

L. AeqrPwesies 0 | Regbtmne |
Clinical Psychology ‘ 582 55
Counselling Psychology | 228 21
Clinical Neuropsychology 60 6
School Psychology 65 6
Health Psychology | 6 1

! Rehabilitation Psychology ;' 14 : 1
Research/Academic Psychology ‘ 26 2
Forensic/Corrections Psychology 49 5
Industrial/Organizational Psychology 23 3
Total 1053+ 100

* This number does not include the 22 registrants who were in the retired category as at December 31, 2006.

5. Examinations

All regular applicants complete three examinations as part of the application process: the EPPP, the oral exam
(OE) and the Written Jurisprudence Examination (WJE). Reciprocal and mobility applicants are required to
successfully complete the WJE. Table 10 below summarizes examination results for 2006. In 2006, 39
extraordinary applicants completed Part A of the oral examination, which contains 10 questions covering aspects
of ethical conduct and knowledge of regulation. The Part A examination is the final step to be completed by
applicants under the extraordinary provisions prior to placement on the Limited Register. The Committee has
clear policies regarding the passing criteria for the Part A examination, including the requirement that all items
be successfully completed either through the examination process or through remedial work under supervision.

Table 10: Examination Results

Number of applicants who wrote EPPP 48 9

Number of Oral examinations (Regular) 44 13 15 34 25 26
Number of WJE examinations 0 21 19 68 117 47
Part A of Oral examination (Extraordinary) n/a n/a n/a n/a | 39 36
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The EPPP exam was taken 31 times in 2006 with no failures. The scaled score range for these applicants was
516-729 out of 800. Communication of exam results to applicants continues to be shortened due to expedited
transmission of results to the College from the testing service.

As in past years, the WJE examination is held at the College offices on a monthly basis. It was administered 47
times in 2006 to a total of 47 applicants, one of whom took the exam for a second time (the first time was in
2005). The College also conducts the Oral Examination on site. In 2006, 26 examinations took place, of which
2 were a second attempt. Typically, individuals who fail one or two areas on the examination agree to complete
a brief period of supervision (3-6 months) which targets the identified areas.

6. Length of Time from Application to Registration

As was the case in 2005, regular applicants typically complete all aspects of the application process in 6-7
months. A time frame of 3-4 months has remained typical for mobility and reciprocal applications. Applicants
can avoid delays by responding promptly to any questions about their qualifications or course work at the file
review stage of the application process. The time to registration increases when an applicant is not successful
in an examination and must retake the exam, or when a referee is not prompt in providing a requested reference
to the College. Applicants whose training or education are unusual may also require additional time to complete
the application process. Applicants with foreign credentials (excluding the United States) must have their
degree evaluated for Canadian equivalency prior to proceeding to a review of their application file.

7. Investigation of Title Issues under the Psychologists Regulation

The year 2006 saw an increase in the workload of the Committee as an expanding number of potential
violations of title use were brought to the Committee’s attention by members of the public and professionals.

Fifteen investigations into alleged violations of the Psychologist’s Regulation were opened by the Registration
Committee in 2006, two of which were with regard to former registrants.

8. Extraordinary Applicants

We have reported extensively on the provisions and process of the extraordinary period of application in
previous annual reports and the Chronicle. To summarize, the extraordinary provisions were undertaken by the
Registration Committee to facilitate the registration process for potential applicants in the new psychological
associate class of registration at the Master’s level of training, and to anticipate the removal by government of
exemptions to restrictions on title at certain employment settings. The guiding principle was that the
requirements for registration would be those elements essential for registration as a psychologist or
psychological associate in B.C., with the accommodation that some of these requirements could be completed
after placement on the Limited Register. Excluding expired, withdrawn, ineligible and halted applications, 80%
(55 out of 68) of the applicants under the extraordinary provisions had successfully completed all initial
registration requirements and were placed on the Limited Register by the end of 2006. One additional
placement on the Limited Register was pending at the end of the year, and a further five applicants were eligible
to take Part A of the oral examination, the final step prior to placement on the Limited Register.
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II. COMPLAINT AND INVESTIGATIVE MATTERS

This section contains information about complaints received in the year 2006 as well as a report on all
complaints closed during 2006. Included are descriptions of aspects of the complaints process and a sampling
of complaints received during the year. :

1. Complaint file status as at December 31, 2006

2. Descriptive complaint summary

3. Investigations opened by the Inquiry Committee

4. Length of time to close complaint files

5. Closing reasons for complaints closed in 2006 and comparison with previous years

6. Components of the complaint investigative process

7. Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements

8. Summary of a sample of Complaints in 2006

9. Complaints per year and number of registrants with complaints

1. Complaint file status as at December 31, 2006

Since the College of Psychologists came under the Health Professions Act, 370 complaints have been received,
50 of which were received during 2006. All complaints received prior to 2005 were closed by the end of 2006.
File status for the years 2005 and 2006 are as follows.

A. Complaints received in 2006 (n=>50): Thirty (30) of the complaints received in 2006 were also closed in
2006, leaving a total of 20 complaints received in 2006 open as at December 31, 2006.

B. Complaintsreceived in 2005 (n=44): Four complaint investigations begun in 2005 remained open at the
end of 2006. Negotiations were underway to resolve two of these complaints. Respondents in the
remaining two cases were being asked to respond to concerns of the Committee under section 33(5) of the
Health Professions Act.

C. All complaints received by the College under the Health Professions Act (n=370): As noted above, the total

number of complaints received under the Health Professions Act is 370. Of these investigations, 346 were
closed and 24 (20 from 2006 and four from 2005) remained open at the end of 2006.
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Table 11: Complaint File Status as at December 31, 2006 for all complaints received
under the Health Professions Act

Status | 20002004 2005 | 2006 | Tota
Awaiting Review —_r> 4 8 4
Active Review 4 8 4 1.1
Practice Records 1 2 1 3
33(5) 2 4.5 9 18 11 2.9
| HPA S.28 Inspections
Without Prejudice 1 2.3 | 1 2 2 .5
Meeting
Letter of Undertaking 1 | 2.3 1 3
Citation
| Total # apen'files
 Total # closed files
TOTAL

2. Descriptive Complaint Summary

Below are four descriptive variables (primary allegation, complaint context, area of practice, and complainant
type) on which all complaints are tracked:

a. Primary Allegation Table 12 contains a breakdown of complaint investigations according to the
primary allegation made by the complainant as it relates to the Code of Conduct. The most frequent primary
allegation for complaints opened in 2006 was general standards for competency. For complaints received since
the College came under the Health Professions Act, assessment procedures is the primary allegation in the largest
number of cases (n=138, 37.3%), followed by competency (n=50, 13.5%) and client relationships (n=48,
12.97%). Many of the cases in which competency is the primary allegation involved an assessment. It is often
challenging to determine which of competency or assessment procedures to record as the primary allegation.
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Table 12: Primary Allegation in Complaints Received 2000-2006

General Standards for Competency (CC

3.0)
Informed Consent (CC 4.0) 13 5 1 2 4 8 18 4.9
Relationships-Clients (CC 5.0) 42 15 5 11 1 2 48 13
Relationships-Work (CC 5.0) 2 1 1 2 2 4 5 1.4
| Relationships-Dual Roles (including 9 3 3 7 4 8 16 4.3
Prohibited Relationships/ Conduct and
Impairment) (CC 5.0)
| Confidentiality (CC 6.0) 14 5 2 4 16 4.3
Professionalism (CC 7.0) 36 13 3 7 10 20 49 13.2
Provision of Services (CC 8.0) 5 2 4 8 9 2.4
| Representation of Services/Credentials 2 1 2 5
1 (CC9.0)
Advertising/Public Statements (CC 4 1 2 5 1 2 7 1.9
10.0)
Assessment Procedures (CC 11.0) 119 43 11 25 8 16 138 37.3
Fees (CC 12.0) 8 3 8 2.2
| Maintenance of Records (CC 13.0) 1 5 1 3
Security/Access to Record (CC 14.0) 1 5 1 3
Compliance with Law (CC 18.0) 2 1 2 .5
| Total 276 | 100 | 44 100 50 100 | 370 | 100

b. Complaint Context Table 13 reports on the context within which complaints occurred. As has
consistently been the case in the past, in 2006 a substantial proportion (n=26; 52%) of the complaint concerns
arose in the context of an assessment, such as custody and access proceedings or insurance claims.

COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

22



Table 13: Complaint Context in Complaints Received 2000-2006

, _ Yea;' Ceinﬁlaiﬁt Receiveé

Complaint | 20002004 | | 2006 |

| Context 1 : _
Te s Al e w |

Assessment 162 58 30 68 26 52

Consultation 5 2 1 2 6 3

Intervention 66 24 8 18 8 16 82 22

Regulatory 7 3 3 7 6 12 16 4

Compliance

Other 36 13 2 5 10 20 48 13
| Totals 276 100 44 100 | 50 100 370 100

¢c. Area of Practice Table 14 below presents descriptive information on the area of practice within
which complaints occurred. In 2006, 48% (n=24) of the complaints received were in the broad area of clinical
psychology, and an additional 16% (n=8) occurred within the custody and access sub-area within clinical

psychology.

Table 14: Complaint - Area of Practice in Complaints Received 2000-2006

Complgint Area of L =
Practice ' ' :
Clinical Psychology 127 46 18 41 24 48 169 46
{ Custody and Access ‘ 75 27 ] 13 30 8 16 96 26
Counselling Psychology 20 7 3 7 10 20 33 9
Forensic /Corrections 28 10 ‘ 2 5 2 4 32 9
Industrial /Organizational 1 | 1 | 1 2 2 1
Neuropsychology 7 3 4 9 5 10 16 4
Rehabilitation Psychology 6 2 2 4 8 2
Research /Academic 2 1 2 4 4 1
School Psychology 6 1 6 2
N/A 4 1 4 1
Totals 276 100 44 100 50 100 370 100
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d. Complainant Type Asindicated in Table 15 below, 38% (n=19) of the complaints received in 2006
were filed directly by the clients of respondents. The Inquiry Committee opened 11 files (22%) on its own
motion based on information provided to it; colleagues, including other psychologists, lawyers or other
professionals, accounted for 14% (n=7) of the complaints received in 2006. Cumulatively since 2000, the most
frequent category of complainant has been third parties to services provided by a registrant, followed by direct
clients. Typically, third party complaints involve situations where the psychologist is hired by someone other
than the service recipient. The “other” category consists of former clients and members of the public with no
professional relationship with the registrant.

Table 15: Complainant Type in Complaints Received 2000-2006

Complainant

Client - 3™ Party
Client - Direct 52 19 11 25 ‘ 19 38 82 22
Client Relative 36 13 | 11 25 3 6 | 50 14
Colleague 43 16 11 | 25 7 14 61 16

' Inquiry Committee 26 | 9 4 9 11 | 22 41 11

| Other 24 9 3 | 7 6 12 33 | 9
Totals | 276 100 44 100 50 { 100 370 100

3. Investigations Opened by the Inquiry Committee

Under the Health Professions Act, the Inquiry Committee can open an investigation on its own motion involving
public protection concerns or when investigation of allegations made by complainants provides evidence which
on its face suggests a new area of concern. Most frequently, investigations initiated by the Committee arise in
the following circumstances: failure to comply with regulatory obligations in connection with another
complaint, receipt of information generally available to the public, information obtained through an inspection
of a registrant’s practice records, or through information provided to the College, that is deemed of sufficient
concern to initiate an investigation. In 2006, 11 complaint investigations were opened by the Inquiry
Committee. Fifty-five percent (n=6) of these files were opened to investigate issues of compliance with
regulatory obligations. The remainder were opened based on information brought to the attention of the
Inquiry Committee regarding possible breaches of the Code of Conduct.

4. Length of Time to Close Files
For complaints closed in 2006 (n=61), the number of months required to investigate and close a file ranged

from 1 to 33 months. The average time to closure was 8 months. Table 16 below contains the average length
of time to close complaint files across the years 2000-2006.
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Table 16: Time (in months) to Close Files by Year File Closed,
for Complaints Received 2000-2006

(N=346)
Year Complaint Closed: 12000-2004* 2005 2006
Length of Time to Close File: 8 months 11 months 8 months
n = 237 n =48 n==61

*29 complaints involving three individuals, closed in 2004, are not included in this tabulation because of
the atypically long resolution time that resulted from protracted negotiations.

5. Complaint File Closing Reasons

Approximately two-thirds of the complaints closed in 2006 were dismissed because of insufficient evidence
of a breach of the Code of Conduct, withdrawn, or not proceeded on for administrative reasons. This figure
has been reasonably consistent since the College became regulated under the Health Professions Act. For
complaints received and closed since 2000, about one-third were resolved by means of an undertaking or
agreement with the respondent, or by some action offered by the respondent that satisfied the Committee’s
concerns in the matter.

Table 17: Closing Reasons for Complaints Received and Closed 2000-2006
(N= 346)

o Year Complaint File Closed
Closing : ‘(;los’iﬁg
Category Reason
Dismissed for | Decision Not to
lack of Proceed
evidence or -
{ otherwise not Withdrawn 8 3 1 2 9 3
proceeded .
upon Insufficient 115 49 15 31 20 33 150 43
Evidence
Subtotal
Voluntary Letter of
Resolution Undertaking
Resolved 20
‘Subtotal € |
Resigned/ Resigned/Cancelled 8 3 12 1 2 21 6
Cancelled Referred to
Referred to | Registration or
RC or DC Discipline Committee
Totals 237 100 48 100 61 100 346 100

* This number was reported as 36 in error in the 2004 report.

COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 2006 ANNUAL REPORT

25



6. Components of the Complaint Investigation Process

Components of the complaint investigation process include without prejudice meetings, extraordinary
hearings, and citations and discipline hearings, described below.

a. Without Prejudice Meetings The term “without prejudice” is used to indicate that nothing that
occursin a without prejudice meeting or correspondence may be used in other proceedings. Without prejudice
meetings provide an informal and effective means for resolving complaint matters. Two without prejudice
meetings were held in 2006. Additionally, a number of without prejudice telephone conversations occurred,
and several without prejudice letters with proposals for complaint resolution were sent. By way of example,
a without prejudice meeting between the Inquiry Committee and a respondent occurred in the context of a
complaint involving a custody and access assessment. The complainant was concerned about psychometric
test security and non-standard circumstances in the assessment. At the conclusion of the meeting, the
respondent signed an agreement to safeguard test protocols, questions and forms, as well as to include
statements of limitations in assessment reports regarding any non-standard circumstances or events.

b. Extraordinary Hearings Sometimes concerns arise which necessitate immediate action on the part
of the Inquiry Committee, such as issues with sufficient public protection concern that the Committee believes
an immediate restriction on practice or license suspension may be warranted. There is no testing of evidence
at an extraordinary hearing. Rather, a decision is made on whether the available evidence, on its face,
supports action by the Inquiry Committee. Any extraordinary action or agreement is an interim measure,
designed to address immediate public protection concerns, while the complaint investigation continues and/or
pending a full hearing of the Discipline Committee. Extraordinary actions or agreements, therefore, do not
represent final resolutions of the complaint issues. In 2006, notice was issued for extraordinary hearings on
three files involving two registrants. In the case of the registrant with two complaint files, a Letter of
Undertaking was signed on an interim basis that satisfied the Committee’s concerns for public protection while
the complaint investigation continued. In the third case, an extraordinary hearing was held, and the
registrant was suspended on an interim basis pending a full hearing of the Discipline Committee.

c. Discipline Hearings & Citations In contrast to an extraordinary hearing, a discipline hearing is
the equivalent of a full trial on all issues, and a finding of fact is made at the end of the hearing. No
Discipline Committee hearings were held in 2006, although the Committee moved to issue a citation for a
hearing of the Discipline Committee on four files (3 registrants). In one file, the registrant elected to resign
prior to the hearing date; the second registrant signed a Letter of Undertaking to resolve two files before the
hearing was convened, and the final citation involved one registrant and one complaint file.

7. Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements

Table 18 below provides a summary of Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements signed with registrants
during the year 2006 as a means of bringing a complaint file to a close. The terms of such agreements are
determined on a case by case basis and are all signed on a voluntary basis. In a number of the more serious
complaints below, a hearing of the Discipline Committee would have been held had such a resolution not been
achieved.

COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 2006 ANNUAL REPORT 26



LT LH0d3Y TVANNY 900T VIGWNTOD HSILINY 40 S1SIDOTO0HIASd 40 393110)
uensidai 1
STUSUISSISSE ON uotsiazadng Aouaredwon-g0 wu| /S92y T
sampaoold JuauIssasse juensidar [
‘Krero o101 pasoidur] Aouaredurod-go [eurd /318 T
SIUSUISSISSE UL SUOTIBITUIL juensidar |
Jo JusWwanels pasordurf Kousredwron-gg [eurd /3U 1
sompaosord uensi3ar 1
1U3sU0d pauitojul pasoxdur] SIUBID)/[9Y-S0 reury /AT
juensidar 1
R o, 1oded HI0M/199-S0 [euld /P81
Asa11n 0o [e133[[0d
‘3urdasy-p1oda1 ‘sainpadoid uensidar 1
1UasU0D pauriojur pasoxdur] UONUSAISIUI-S(Q reurd /Ay 1T
s110da1 Uy suoneruyy ,
JO JUBWAIElS {AILINDaS saIpadold juensi3ar [
‘uolensIUTWIpE 1533 pasoxdul] JUDUISSISSY-TT [euld /38 T
10BIUOD /[3Y Jjuensi8al T
1adeq pauqryolid-so feutd /Py T
uoisiatadns
moym s1zodax $2INpadold Jrensi3aI |
M31ARX ON JUSWISSISSY-TT reurd /38 1
JIoM I9pUyO 1aded a11m S2INpadoid Juensi3ar |
snoIofueq oN 01 uoisiaradng 1adeq JUDWISSISSY-T T [eutd /S T
Juensidal |
S9A AKouaredwon-go reurd /s91Y S
VWSSO u TUIY uorsiazad A3o10d FOLIRIN dduey) sanoei syuensSox
¥ 5SOESY ORI uoisiasadng jody goReInpy D 220081 uonesony g
Arewnig adAy /SO JO &

Bunpemaapun Jo 9197 10 YRWENEIY JUISUO) JO SWLID],

9007 ul sjuswaalby Juasuo) /Bupjelsapln JO sia)a7 JO swid] jJo Alewwng "gST a|qeL




8. Summary of A Sample of Complaints Received in 2006

Below is a sampling of complaints received during the year. In each case, a brief review of the main allegations
raised by the complaint is provided, and a description of the process and outcome of the complaint
investigation. The Committee noted a continued trend towards more complaints in the context of insurance
claims.

The first two cases reviewed below were resolved by means of an agreement by the respondents to modify their
practice in ways that were viewed by the Committee as likely to assist the respondent in avoiding similar
complaints in the future. The first case involved a psycho-educational assessment of a child prepared some
years prior to the complaint. The complainant, also a registrant, requested the raw test data of the assessment
in order to facilitate comparison with an update assessment the complainant was undertaking. In reviewing
the data, the complainant became aware of errors in the scoring and norming of one of the tests administered
in the earlier assessment. The Committee reviewed the information provided by the complainant, obtained
the practice records of the respondent, and posed several questions to the respondent under section 33(5) of
the Health Professions Act. The registrant took the concerns of the Committee and the complainant seriously,
agreed to prepare an addendum to the report correcting the errors, and forwarded the addendum to the child’s
school.

A second case that wasresolved by means of an agreement serves as a reminder to registrants to maintain role
clarity when providing psychological services. The complaint involved a report containing child custody and
access recommendations by a registrant who was providing psychological treatment to one of the parents. The
complainant expressed concern that the respondent had entered into conflicting roles by making custody
recommendations for the child of an individual the respondent was seeing for psychotherapy. The Committee
carefully reviewed the documents submitted by the complainant, obtained the respondent’s practice records,
and asked the respondent a number of questions in a letter under section 33(5) of the Health Professions Act.
The complaint was resolved through an agreement by the respondent not to mix treatment and assessment
roles, and not to make custody and access recommendations without a full assessment.

A case which was resolved following without prejudice discussions with the respondent involved a
neuropsychological report prepared by the respondent in relation to a workplace accident. The complainant
alleged that the respondent’s report contained numerous factual errors, such as composition of the
complainant’s family, various dates, and names of individuals. The complainant also alleged bias on the part
of the respondent. The Committee carefully reviewed the documents submitted by the complainant, requested
and obtained the respondent’s practice records. A review of the records satisfied the Committee that no bias
was evident, and in order to resolve the issue of the factual errors, without prejudice discussions were held
with the respondent, who decided to prepare an addendum to the report correcting the errors. The respondent
forwarded the addendum to WorkSafe BC, and the file was closed.

In another complaint, involving assessment of cognitive impairment following a workplace accident, a
respondent prepared a neuropsychological assessment of an individual who subsequently complained that the
report contained numerous factual errors and incorrect conclusions. The complainant was also concerned
about the role of a neuropsychological fellow who assisted with the assessment, and alleged that this individual
was never properly explained to him. The Committee dismissed the case following a review of the documents
submitted by the complainant, and an inquiry to the respondent regarding the nature of information provided
to clients about the role of his assistants. This case highlights again the challenges confronted by many
complainants, who may have sustained cognitive impairments that affect their ability to understand
psychologists’ procedures and recommendations.

As a final example, the Inquiry Committee reviewed a complaint related to a custody and access assessment
in which the complainant alleged that the respondent did not inform her of the limitations to confidentiality
of the information she provided in an interview. The complainant disclosed sensitive personal information to
the respondent, and was unhappy that this information was included in the respondent’s report and
consequently was available to the court and other interested parties. The complainant also alleged that the
respondent was biased against her in the assessment. The Committee obtained the relevant practice records,
and posed the respondent a number of questions under section 33(5) of the Act, before dismissing the
complaint because of insufficient evidence of an ethical violation.
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9. Complaints per Year By # of Registrants and Number of Registrants with
Complaints

Table 19 below describes the number of registrants about whom complaints have been received since the

College was first granted responsibility for regulating the profession in 1993.

Table 19: # of Complaints per year from 1993 - 2006 and # Registrants
with Complaints

# ,complah;’ts” (thh named yegistrant) | : # Reglstrants
1993 ‘ 30 21
1994 26 22
1995 44 35
1996 38 30
1997 45 39
1998 . 47 32
1999 | 53 37
2000 | 64 48
2001 59 , 42
2002 54 38
2003 53 | 42
2004 46 | 31
2005 44 35
2006 : 50 42
Total 652 279%

* This figure is not a column total, as some registrants appear in multiple years.

A total of 168 registrants have had at least one complaint since January, 2000 as shown in the Table below.
Seven individuals resigned as a means of resolving matters with the College or in response to complaints
received. Approximately 15% of current registrants have had at least one complaint filed under the Health
Professions Act.
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Table 20: Number of Complaints since January 2000 Per Registrant

. # of Complaints #Named |  Total | public ~ Motion ;ofJ
S Registrants | complaints ~ complaints 1C

102 102 95 7

29 58 52 6

11 33 30 3

8 32 27 5

5 25 24 1

1 6 4 2

2 14 8

2 16 16 0

1 9 9 0

10 4 40 33 7

11 3 | 33 31 2

TOTAL 168** 368* 327 41

* Two complaints, opened in error, without a named respondent, are excluded.
** Seven of these are no longer registered as a result of the outcome of the complaint matters.

IV. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Ombudsman Investigations There were no investigations of the College by the Ombudsman’s
Office in 2006.

2. Requests under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act There were
four requests made under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act during 2006 that were
addressed by the College. In addition, the College participated in a series of invited consultations regarding
changes to that legislation.

3. Relationships with Other Regulatory Bodies in Psychology The College remained actively
involved with the other Canadian regulatory bodies through our involvement in CPAP and with the group of
regulators that meet in conjunction with the bi-yearly CPAP meetings. In addition, I continued to Chair the
Task Force on Model Regulations for the Association of State and Provincial Psychology Boards.

4. Acknowledgments It is my ongoing privilege to work with a team of highly dedicated and
enthusiastic individuals in the College office. The nature of the work requires an unwavering attention to
detail and an ability to change focus on a moment’s notice. The work produced reflects the experience,
expertise and commitment of this wonderful group of people and they each have earned my respect and
appreciation. The members of the College Board are generous with their time and expertise and devote many
hours to the careful consideration of policy development and decision-making. Appreciation is also expressed
to the many registrants who take the time to provide thoughtful comment and feedback.

Respectfully submitted

Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Registrar
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MINUTES OF THE MAY 2, 2006 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(For REVIEW OF THE 2005 YEAR)

The Annual General Meeting of the College of Psychologists of B.C. was held on May 2, 2006, at the Chan
Centre Auditorium at Children’s Hospital in Vancouver, the Queen Alexandra Centre for Children’s Health in
Victoria, Nanaimo Regional Hospital, Kelowna Regional Hospital, and the University of Northern British
Columbia in Prince George. There were 78 registrants in attendance in Vancouver, 23 registrants in Victoria,
6 registrants in Kelowna, 5 registrants in Nanaimo, and 6 registrants in Prince George.

Agenda

The table of contents in the Annual Report served as the agenda for the May 2, 2006 meeting.

Minutes

The Minutes of the 2004 Annual General Meeting held on May 9, 2005 were approved.

Report from the Chair

Dr. Michael Elterman referred registrants to his Report in the Annual Report. He highlighted the issues of
accountability to the public, relationship with the government, including the dialogue regarding exemptions
for government workers and school psychologists, and the Board’s commitment to holding information
meetings throughout the Province.

Inquiry Committee

Dr. Harder reported that the backlog of complaints has been cleared and the Committee is able to process
complaints in a timely manner. Registrants were referred to the Inquiry Committee’s report in the Annual
Report. Dr. Harder responded to questions from registrants.

Registration Committee

Mr. Colby referred registrants to his report on Page 6 of the Annual Report. He thanked the staff for their
support, which assisted the Committee in reviewing 217 application files.

Quality Assurance Committee

Dr. Joschko thanked the members of the Committee and the staff for their work during the year. He reported
on the Continuing Competency Program which allows registrants to self-manage their continuing education.
Registrants were referred to his report on page 10 and Dr. Joschko responded to questions.

Legislation Committee

Dr. Cohene outlined the issues reviewed by the Legislation Committee in 2005, including the changes made
to the Health Professions Act, scrutinizing the work of members of other Colleges governed by the HPA, and a
practice advisory regarding file storage in large institutions.

Finance Committee

Dr. Swain referred registrants to his report on Page 12 and to the Audited Financial Statements at the end of
the Annual Report and responded to questions.

COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 2006 ANNUAL REPORT 31



MINUTES CONTINUED

Registrar’s Report

Dr. Kowaz thanked the Board, Committee members and staff for their support and the huge volume of work
accomplished during the during the past year. An overview of the complaint process, files which potentially
could go to Discipline Committee Hearings, and the application and registration process was given. The
Registrar responded to questions from registrants.

Volunteer Recognition
Dr. Elterman recognized the contribution of volunteers to the College, including Board and Committee
members, Oral Examiners, and Supervisors. Also acknowledged were public members serving on the Board

and Committees.

The meeting adjourned at 5:57 p.m.
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The Raber Mattuck Group

Chartered Accountants

Suite 318, North Tower, Oakridge Centre, 650 West 41* Avenue, Vancouver, B.C. V5Z 2ZM9
Telephone: (604) 435-5655 Facsimile: (604) 435-1913 E-mail: info@rabermattuck.com

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Registrants of
College of Psychologists of British Columbia

We have audited the statement of financial position of the College of Psychologists of British
Columbia as at December 31,2006 and the statements of changes in net assets, operations and
cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
College's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the College as at December 31, 2006 and the results of its operations and the
changes in its net assets for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

“Sigsned” Raber Mattuck
Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
March 13, 2007

With Offices Across Canada
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2006
2006 2005
ASSETS $ $
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 1,053,794 1,253,613
Cash - restricted (Note 4) 250,000 -
Prepaid expenses 7.367 7.121
- - L3161 1,260,734
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 2) 33.023 44.087
_1.344.184 _1.304.821
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 100,823 61,412
Employee remittances payable 24,292 18,450
Deferred revenue (Note 3) 631,800 787.950
756,915 867.812
NET ASSETS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 33,023 44,087
INTERNALLY RESTRICTED
General Contingency Fund (Note 4) 250,000 -
UNRESTRICTED 304.246 392.922
587.269 437,009
1.344,184 _1.304.821
- Approved by the Board

“Signed” Derek A. Swain __, Director

“Sioned” Wayne Morson __, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

General Invested
Contingency  In Property
Fund and Equipment _Unrestricted Total Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2005
$ $ $ $ $

NET ASSETS, beginning of year - 44,087 392,922 437.009 253,105
Excess of Receipts Over Expenditures - (11,064) 161,324 150,260 183,904
Interfund transfers 250,000 - (250.000) - -
NET ASSETS, end of year 250,000 33,023 304,246 587.269 _437.009

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

2006 2005
$ $

RECEIPTS
Registration fees 1,208,190 1,171,540
Application and exam fees 87,110 78,015
Interest 37,629 21,489
Other income and cost recovery 37.228 70,743

1.370.157 1.341.787
EXPENDITURES
Administration 679,687 675,762
Audit 4,735 4,440
Board 38,489 34,956
Committees (meetings, travel and honoraria) 60,667 54,202
External relations (dues) 5,405 6,603
Extraordinary Hearings 10,051 17,460
Discipline Hearings (Including Preparation) 40,262 53,103
Operations 135,897 138,657
Registrant / Applicant services 43,162 43,801
Statutory functions (FOIL, investigations, routine legal 201.542 128.899
consultation)

1.219.897 1,157.883
EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES 150,260 183,904

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of receipts over expenditures

Adjustments for:

Amortization

Prepaid expense

Accounts payable

Employee remittances payable
Deferred revenue

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH, beginning of year

CASH, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2006 2005
$ $
150,260 183,904
17,520 19,510
(246) 6,636
39,411 (9,467)
5,842 8,976
(156,150) (279.500)
56.637 (69.941)
(6.456) (2.595)
50,181 (72,536)
1.253.613 1.326.149
1.303.794 1.253.613
The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2006

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund Accounting

Revenues and expenditures for general activities and administration are reported in the
General Fund.

The General Contingency Fund was established during the year to cover future unexpected
expenditures.

Property and Equipment
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost.

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution.
Amortization is provided on a declining balance basis at the following rates:

Office furniture and equipment - 20% declining balance
Computer equipment and software - 30% declining balance
Leasehold improvements - 5 years straight line

In the year of acquisition, only one-half of the normal amortization is recorded.
Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Asset Fund.
Revenue and Expense recognition

Registration fees are recognized as income in the fiscal year due. Expenditures are recognized
as incurred.

2. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2006 2005
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $
Office furniture and equipment 84,558 68,265 16,293 20,366
Computer equipment 98,124 81,394 16,730 16,060
Leasehold improvements 40,706 40,706 - 7,661
223,388 190.365 33.023 44,087
The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2006

3. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue represents membership fees for the 2007 calendar year received in
advance.

4. GENERAL CONTINGENCY FUND
The General Contingency Fund was established by the Board of Directors during the year.

The General Contingency Fund is to be used in special circumstances and subject to the
approval by the College of Psychologists of British Columbia Board of Directors.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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BOARD, STAFF, COMMITTEE MEMBERS, SUPERVISORS,
ORAL EXAMINERS AND NEW REGISTRANTS
FOR THE 2007 YEAR

BOARD
Michael Joschko, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair of the Board
Rebecca England, Ph.D., R.Psych., Inquiry Committee
Marguerite Ford, Public Member, Vice Chair of the Board, Public Member, Inquiry Committee
Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, Quality Assurance Committee
Michael Elterman, MBA, Ph.D., R.Psych. Chair, Registration Committee
Daniel Fontaine, Public Member, Chair, Patient Relations Committee, Public Member, Discipline Committee
Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair, Inquiry Committee
Wayne Morson, Public Member, Chair, Discipline Committee,

Public Member, Registration and Finance Committees

Derek Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair, Finance Committee

STAFF MEMBERS
Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych., Registrar
Cheryl Bradley, Ph.D., R.Psych., Deputy Registrar (until July 2007)
Colleen Wilkie, Ph.D., R.Psych., Deputy Registrar
Susan Turnbull, Ph.D. R.Psych, Deputy Registrar (from June 2007)
Maureen Olley, Ph.D., R.Psych. Deputy Registrar (from May 2007)
Gina Rowan, Inquiry Coordinator and Director of Records
Wendy Harris, Registration Coordinator
Avigail Cohen, Office Assistant
Alyson Budd, Office Assistant (from November 2007)
Judy Clausen, Registrar’s Assistant

DISCIPLINE COMMITTEE

Lynn Alden, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Bruce Clark, Public Member

Henry Hightower, Public Member
Lynn Superstein-Raber, Ph.D., R.Psych
Cheryl Washburn, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Wayne Morson, Public Member, Chair
Rosemary Alvaro, Ph.D., R.Psych. (to July 2007)
Daniel Fontaine, Public Member

Donna Paproski, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Susan Turnbull, Ph.D., R. Psych. (to May 2007)

INQUIRY COMMITTEE
Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair Kirk Beck, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Yaya De Andrade, Ph.D., R.Psych., (to February 2007) Rebecca England, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marguerite Ford, Public Member Jill Hightower, Public Member
Russell King, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Alexis Thuillier, Public Member
Joseph Zaide, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Hendre Viljoen, Ph.D., R.Psych.

QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

Marlene Moretti, Ph.D., R.Psych. (from Nov 2007)

Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair

Leigh Bowie, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Julia Hass, Public Member

Kathy Montgomery, Ph.D., R.Psych. (from Mar 2007)
Michal Regev, Ph.D., R.Psych. (from November 2007)

Santa Aloi, Public Member (from July 2007)

Chris Gibbins, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Leora Kuttner, Ph.D., R.Psych. (to September 2007)
Joan Pinkus, Ph.D., R.Psych. (to September 2007)

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE

Michael Elterman, MBA, Ph.D, R.Psych., Chair
Michael Fellman, Public Member (from May 2007)
Henry Hightower, Public Member . ,
Anne Marie Jones, Ph.D., R.Psych. (to March 2007)
Marvin McDonald, Ph.D., R.Psych. (to March 2007)
Donna Paproski, Ph.D., R.Psych. (from Feb 2007)

Catherine Costigan, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Sandy Gardner, Ph.D., R.Psych. (from March 2007)
Amy Janeck, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Robert Ley, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Wayne Morson, Public Member

Cheryl Washburn, Ph.D., R.Psych. (to March 2007)
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PATIENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE

Daniel Fontaine, Public Member, Chair
Rebecca England, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Derek Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair
Michael Joschko, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lynn Alden, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Eva Allan, M.Ed., R.Psych.

Elizabeth Bannerman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michael Boissevain, Ph.D., R.Psych.
John Carter, Ed.D., R.Psych.

Kenneth Craig, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Patricia (Trish) Crawford, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Anthony Dugbartey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Dolores Escudero, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lynda Grant, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lee Grimmer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lindsey Jack, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Rita Knodel, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Mary Korpach, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Barbara Madani, M.A.Sc., R.Psych.
Jennifer Mclvor, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Alison Miller, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Bruce Monkhouse, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Tavi Nicholson, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Martin Phillips-Hing, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ann Pirolli, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anneliese Robens, Ed.D., R.Psych.
James Roche, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ronald Samuda, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Noa Schwartz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Martin Shoemaker, Ph.D., R.Psych.
John Spencer, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Sujatha Srikameswaran, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Rhona Steinberg, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lynn Superstein-Raber, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Rene Weideman, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Michael Elterman, Ph.D., R.Psych.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

Michael Elterman, Ph.D., R.Psych
Wayne Morson, Public Member

SUPERVISORS

Victoria Alfonso, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Nicole Aubé, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Susan Baum, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Robert Carey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Sarah Cockell, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Joanne Crandall, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susan Cross, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marion Ehrenberg, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Maureen Godfrey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Joy Green, M.A., R.Psych.

Simon Hearn, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Krystyna Kinowski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
William Koch, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Leora Kuttner, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Todd Mason, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Deborah McTaggart, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Laura Mills, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marlene Moretti, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Maureen Olley, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lyne M. Piché, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Donald Read, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michal Regev, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marsha Runtz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susanne Schibler, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Edward Shen, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Kathy Simas, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Eric Speth, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Harilaos Stefanakis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Paul Sungaila, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Karen Tallman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michelle Worth, Ph.D., R.Psych.
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Victoria Alfonso, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Randall Atkinson, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Mark Bailey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Barbara Beach, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susan Blake, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michael Boissevain, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Geoffrey Carr, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michael Coles, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Evelyn Corker, M.A., R.Psych.
Joanne Crandall, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susan Cross, Ph.D., R.Psych.

David Eveleigh, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Mervyn Gilbert, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Joy Green, M.A., R.Psych.

Jordan Hanley, Ph.D., R.Psych.
John Higenbottam, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Elizabeth Huntsman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
David Katz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Krystyna Kinowski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Brenda Kosaka, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ulrich Lanius, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Phillipa Lewington, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anne MacGregor, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Jane McEwan, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Gregory Meloche, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Laura Mills, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Jennifer Newman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Martin Phillips-Hing, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Donald Ramer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Erica Reznick, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anneliese Robens, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Barbara Rosen, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ronald Samuda, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Myron Grant Schimpf, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Heather Scott, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Kathleen Simas, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Meagan Smith, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Sujatha Srikameswaran, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Harilaos Stefanakis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Janet Strayer, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lynn Superstein-Raber, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Karen Tallman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Inna Vlassev, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Rene Weideman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Maureen Whittal, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Marshall Wilensky, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Sheila Woody, Ph.D., R.Psych.

ORAL EXAMINERS

Verna-Jean Amell, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Nicole Aubé, Psy.D., R.Psych.
Susan Baum, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Carole Bishop, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Douglas Boer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Robert Carey, Ph.D., R.Psych.

John Carter, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Constance Coniglio, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Kenneth Craig, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Patricia (Trish) Crawford, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Jacqueline Douglas, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Jean Laura Ferri, Ph.D. R.Psych.
Brian Grady, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Susan Hackett, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Simon Hearn, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Grace Hopp, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Charlotte Johnston, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Margaret Kendrick, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Brenda Knight, M.A., R.Psych.
Randall Kropp, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ronald Laye, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Wolfgang Linden, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Barbara Madani, M.A.Sc., R.Psych.
Deborah McTaggart, Ph.D., R.Psych,
Nancy Meyer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Bruce Monkhouse, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Philip Perry, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lyne Piché, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Jennifer Reiss, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michal Regev, Ph.D., R.Psych.
James Roche, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Deborah Samsom, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susanne Schibler, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Noa Schwartz, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Ruth Sigal, M.Ed., R.Psych.

Cecelia Louise Smith, M.Sc., R.Psych.
Ingrid Séchting, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Runa Steenhuis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Rhona Steinberg, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Paul Sungaila, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Paul Swingle, Ph.D., R.Psych.
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Arianna Yakirov, Ph.D., R.Psych.
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Kevin David Miller Psy. D.
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REPORT FROM THE CHAIR

It was my pleasure to serve as Chair of the Board for the 2007 year and I am pleased to provide a report on College
activities for January through December, 2007.

Information Meetings The Board held information meetings in Vancouver on November 15,2007 and in Victoria on
November 22,2007. It is planning to hold a regular information meeting on the Island on a yearly basis. The Board also
reminds registrants that it is willing to provide “individualized” information sessions to groups of registrants in particular
work or geographic locations, given the importance for registrants to be informed about College activities and decisions
and to participate in discussions regarding the regulation of the profession in British Columbia.

Annual General Meeting The Annual General Meeting was held in Vancouver on May 10, 2007. Video links were
provided to Victoria, Nanaimo, Kelowna, and Prince George.

Board Elections A Call for Nominations was distributed to registrants in the fall of 2007, to fill one elected position
on the Board. Nominations were received for four individuals. Elected for a three year term was Valerie Whiffen with
a term to commence January 1, 2008.

Annual Evaluation of Registrar The objectives which provide the criteria for the annual evaluation of the Registrar
are those embodied in the College’s Strategic Plan, a copy of which is available on the College website. The annual
evaluation involves discussion about achievement of the objectives and the Board’s provision of sufficient resources and
support for their achievement. The Board was once again extremely pleased with the achievements of the Registrar and
her staff with regard to these objectives, as well as the efficient and effective coordination between staff and the Board
and College Committees in the highly collaborative venture of meeting these objectives.

Reviews of Inquiry Committee Decisions A total of 3 reviews of Inquiry Committee decisions on complaints were
heard by the Board in 2007. These reviews were requested by complainants under the Health Professions Act. In two
instances the Board upheld the decision of the Inquiry Committee, based on a review ofthe documents before the Inquiry
Committee when making its decision. The third was determined to be a new complaint and referred back to the Inquiry
Committee on that basis. In addition to these Board reviews, one decision of the Inquiry Committee was challenged in
the Supreme Court of British Columbia. In this case the respondent in a complaint matter requested judicial review on
an Inquiry Committee decision to suspend the registration of the respondent pending a hearing of the Discipline
Committee due to serious public protection concerns. The Supreme Court upheld the Inquiry Committee’s decision in
this matter. This case remained before the Discipline Committee through 2007.

College Workshops The 2007 year was a busy one in terms of workshops provided by the College, with three different
workshops offered during 2007. Dr. Thomas Nagy presented a two-day workshop entitled “Ethics in Plain English” on
March 9 and 10, 2007. Dr. Melba Vasquez presented a one-day workshop on May 11, 2007 on diversity and
multicultural issues in the practice of psychology. This workshop was held in conjunction with the 2007 AGM, as per
a decision of the Board to provide a continuing competency opportunity in proximity to the AGM. Finally, Dr. Tom
McGee presented a series of workshops on professional wills, including in Victoria on September 16, in Vancouver on
September 17, 18, 19, and 20, and in Kelowna on September 21, 2007. All of these workshops were well-attended. The
College is planning to offer another series of workshops on professional wills in 2008 for those registrants who were
unable to attend in 2007.

Participation with ASPPB The Registrar continued to chair an ASPPB task force on Model Regulations and
Legislation, and the College participated in ASPPB meetings in April in Louisville Kentucky and in Colorado Springs
in October. The Registrar presented on our continuing competence program in Colorado Springs.

Strategic Planning The Board approved the Strategic Plan as circulated to registrants in the February 2007 Chronicle.
A copy of the Strategic Plan is available on the new College website.

School Psychology The College has continued to work on establishing a relationship with the BC Association of School
Psychologists, who represent a large number of the practitioners who are currently exempted by legislation from the
requirement to be registered with the College. There are a number of areas of mutual interest. The College began
planning for the joint sponsorship of a workshop with the school psychologists to be held in 2008.
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Legal Consultation The College’s current reliance on legal services is divided into several main categories: A. Routine
legal consultations for Inquiry and Registration Committees, including potential attendance of legal counsel at committee
meetings; B. General legal counsel (Board legal consultation, legal matters such as lawsuits against the College); C.
Legal consultation on Freedom of Information requests; and D. Special legal consultation on discipline matters including
preparation for, and the conducting of, extraordinary hearings of the Inquiry Committee, Discipline Committee hearings,
and legal consultation for hearing panels.

Code of Conduct and Practice Advisories During the 2007 year work was begun on revision of the Code of Conduct
which was enacted in February 2002. The revision work focuses on : 1. Increasing clarity and consistency of language;
2. Review of scope of the Code to ensure inclusion of evolving issues; 3. Integration of those aspects of Practice
Advisories that rise to the level of Code standards in setting the conduct expected of registrants; and 4. Reviewing
registrant comments and feedback since introduction of the current Code.

Bylaw Changes Bylaws 57(5) and 59(6) and Schedules “J” and “K” were deposited with the Minister early in 2007.
These additions provide a schedule of fees for potential cost recovery of a portion of certain legal expenses.

In closing, it was a pleasure and privilege to serve as the Chair of the Board for 2007.

Respectfully submitted,
Michael Joschko, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair of the Board 2007

DISCIPLINE COMMITTEE REPORT

There was one hearing of the Discipline Committee in 2007, which was adjourned after two days. This matter remained
in adjournment on December 31, 2007.

Respectfully submitted,
Wayne Morson, Chair, Discipline Committee 2007

PATIENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

As per the Health Professions Act, the objectives of this Committee include: recommending to the Board specific
procedures for handling complaints of professional misconduct of a sexual nature; informing the public about the process
of bringing their concerns to the College; monitoring and periodically evaluating the operation of procedures established;
developing and coordinating educational programs dealing with professional misconduct of a sexual nature for registrants
and the public as required; establishing a patient relations program to prevent professional misconduct of a sexual nature;
and recommending to the Board standards and guidelines for the conduct of registrants and their patients.

Respectfully submitted,
Daniel Fontaine, Chair, Patient Relations Committee 2007

INQUIRY COMMITTEE REPORT

The Inquiry Committee (IC) dealt with a total of 74 complaints that were open for at least some part of 2007 and were
at various stages of investigation at any given point in time during the year. As of December 31,2007, 40 of these cases
had been closed. One open file had been referred to the Discipline Committee in 2006, and the remaining 33 files
remained open and actively before the IC as of December 31, 2007. Six ofthese 33 files had only recently been received
and were under preliminary review, 25 were at various stages of investigation, and 2 involved alleged conduct of
sufficient concemn that the IC directed citations be issued to take the matter to a hearing. Files closed during 2007 are
summarized in Table 1 on the next page along with the nature of the decision of the Inquiry Committee in closing the
complaint file. Please review the Registrar’s report for a comprehensive description and breakdown 0f 2007 complaint
investigations and resolutions.
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Table 1: Files Closed during 2007 (N=40)

C‘losing’Reason Number - %*
Letter of Undertaking or Consent Agreement 12 30
Resolved 6 15
Insufficient Evidence 13 325
Decision Not to Proceed (opened in error, no 9 225

jurisdiction, withdrawn, vexatious or frivolous)

Referred to Discipline Committee 0 0

Total 40 100
* percentages in this and subsequent tables may contain rounding errors

The Inquiry Committee consists of very hardworking and dedicated professional and public members who work in
consultation and cooperation with a very competent staffteam consisting of the Registrar, Deputy Registrars, and Inquiry
Coordinator. It has once again been a pleasure to serve as Chair for the 2007 year.

Respectfully submitted,
Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych. Chair, Inquiry Committee 2007

LEGISLATION COMMITTEE REPORT

As announced in the last Annual report, a decision was made to discontinue the Legislation Committee in 2007. This
step was taken because the Quality Assurance Committee had fully embraced its role in enhancing competent practice,
and the Board had achieved a high level of sophistication with regard to the College’s legislative mandate, and all
practice advisories are now submitted to all College statutory committees for their review. Thus, it was decided that the
functions of the Legislation Committee have been appropriately addressed and the Committee is no longer required.

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Exemptions The Chair of the Registration Committee and the Registrar met early in 2007 with the Minister of Health,
who informed the College that removing the exemptions to the Psychologists Regulation is not a current priority for the
Ministry. The Board reviewed how the College communicates with government and has taken steps to take a more
prominent position in projects where the College can provide its expertise in areas that are important to the government.

Mobility and Access to the Professions The College, along with other regulatory bodies in psychology across Canada,
signed the Mutual Recognition Agreement in 2001 allowing psychology practitioners more easily to become registered
in another province. Our bylaws are consistent with the MRA. The Trade, Investment, and Labour Mobility Agreement
(TILMA) between BC and Alberta came into effect April 1, 2007, to be fully implemented by April 1, 2009. TILMA
further increases mobility between BC and Alberta. The College had a productive meeting with the College of Alberta
Psychologists, the Ministry of Health, and representatives of the Alberta government with an agreement from the
Colleges to provide jointly prepared information to registrants in both provinces to answer questions about making an
application. The College has also participated in the Solutions for Access workshops hosted by the Ministry of Economic
Development, and has requested funding to make our website and application documents more user-friendly to applicants
from outside BC.

School Psychology An information meeting was held on January 16, 2007 for registrants practicing in school
psychology to update registrants regarding exemptions and to hear feedback regarding the regulation of school
psychology. Many of the attendees were new registrants who had applied under the extraordinary provisions. These
registrants commented on finding their registration with the College of Psychologists meaningful in their practice as well
as a source of support in the school system.
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Training in Psychology The committee is aware of training programs and private training in psychology that do not
meet the registration requirements, resulting in graduates not easily becoming registered to practice psychology. A
practice advisory has been drafted and is under review by the committee to provide guidance to registrants who offer
training and supervision to non-registrants (e.g., allied health professionals, students, and individuals wanting to learn
more about psychology).

Practice of Psychology by Non-Registrants The committee has under discussion ways of addressing non-registrants
who practice psychology by having them become registered with the College (e.g., use of the Limited Register, different
title, under delegation of a registrant).

Utendale Decision Asreported in the 2006 Annual Report, the Registration Committee decided to proceed on a serious
title issue with implications for public protection. The petition to the court was heard by the Supreme Court on April
26, 2007. The decision confirms the protection of the title “psychologist” and any of its derivatives, including
“psychotherapist.” The College will continue to update registrants as there is new information available.

Area of Practice Declarations The Registration Committee expects that both registrants who wish to change their area
of practice and applicants making their initial declaration of area of practice will be able to support their declaration by
reference to appropriate training, experience, and education. Steps were taken during 2007 to clarify this expectation.

Supervision  As reported in 2006, the Registration Committee decided to formalize the expectation as per the
Psychologists Regulation and the Code of Conduct that all applicants practice under supervision of a registrant when
providing psychological services in BC. Any applicant applying as of January 1,2008 is required to submit a supervision
plan if he or she is providing psychological services in BC while an applicant. Applicants can select their own supervisor,
who must be a registrant. Further specification of this requirement will be considered after the Committee has had an
opportunity to review a number of supervision plans.

Extraordinary Applications As previously reported, these individuals applied in 2003 and as part of the
accommodations made were placed on the Limited Register to complete outstanding requirements. Some needed to
complete outstanding supervision requirements and in 2007 the College offered intensive group supervision from Janet
Strayer, Ph.D., R.Psych. which was well-received. By the end 0f 2007, one individual remained at the application stage,
while the remainder were on the register. Of those on the Limited Register, 11 took the Examination for the Professional
Practice of Psychology (EPPP) in 2007 and all were successful (pass is equivalent to 70%) on the first attempt. The
remaining ten individuals completed all outstanding requirements in 2007 and are now on the Full Register.

Registration Requirements Document The Registration Committee reviewed the registration requirements and over
the course of the year, revised the document for increased clarity. Registrants who are involved in the training of
psychologists should review this document carefully with their students. It will take effect January 1, 2008.

Oral Examiner/Regulatory Supervisor Lunches A survey was sent to oral examiners and regulatory supervisors
regarding the monthly luncheon meetings which provided an opportunity for discussion among those providing these
services to the College. The feedback was that the support of the College is appreciated but that many oral examiners
and regulatory supervisors are pressed for time. There were 10 meetings held in 2007 and based on the feedback
received, quarterly meetings are scheduled for 2008 with varied times and days of the week to accommodate more
participants. An oral examiner/regulatory supervisor training session was held in Victoria on March 29, 2007.

Application to Registration Time Frame Applicants have two years to complete the application process including
successful completion of examinations. When applications are straightforward and applicants take examinations soon
after given permission to do so, the typical time from submitting an application to becoming registered is 8 - 9 months
for regular applicants and about 3-5 months for reciprocal or mobility applicants.

1 take this opportunity to thank the hardworking members of the registration committee who spend freely of their time
in reviewing all registration matters requiring policy development and decision-making and thank our competent staff
for their work in implementing these important policies and decisions. In addition, the ongoing volunteer time and
experience of oral examiners in providing oral examinations to new applicants is much appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,
Michael Elterman, MBA, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, Registration Committee 2007
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QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

In addition to the annual review of the Continuing Competency Program, the Committee was actively engaged in several
important initiatives. Below is a summary of the work of the Committee in 2007.

1. Continuing Competency Program Review The review for the 2007 year was conducted in January, 2008. A total
of 105 registrants were randomly selected to submit their completed Continuing Competency Activities log for 2007.
Several registrants were found not to be in compliance with the requirement, and the Committee followed up with these
registrants. The document “Continuing Competency Program Requirements” summarizes the policies and requirements
and is available on the College website.

2. Duty to report A special section of the Chronicle (Fall 2007) was devoted to the issue of the requirement to report
registrants of any College under the Health Professions Act for issues related to fitness to practice. Past editions of the
Chronicle, including the Fall 2007 edition, are available on the College website.

3. Designation of another registrant to take care of one’s practice records in the event of unexpected incapacity
or death This requirement will commence with renewal for the 2010 (rescheduled from 2009) calendar year, and will
involve listing the designated registrant on the renewal form. For the 2008 and 2009 renewals, registrants will be
encouraged, but notrequired, to designate another registrant. The Committee’s reasoning in establishing this requirement
includes awareness of the aging demographic of the College and the work of a task force established by the Committee
to assist in this matter.

4. Professional will workshops The Committee was pleased to organize a series of 10 workshops on professional wills
by Dr. Tom McGee that were offered in Vancouver, Victoria, and Kelowna in September of 2007. These workshops
were fully enrolled. As the College was unable to accommodate all registrants who wished to attend, additional
workshops on this topic are planned for 2008. The workshops covered the important topic of development of professional
wills, including the designation of a professional executor. There is no plan to require registrants to prepare a
professional will, although as noted above, they will be required to designate another registrant to be responsible for their
practices in the event of incapacity or death.

5. Other workshops The Committee was pleased to organize a two-day Ethics workshop by Dr. Thomas Nagy on
March 9 and 10, and an AGM workshop on diversity and multicultural issues in psychological practice by Dr. Melba
Vasquez on May 11, 2007.

6. Electronic storage of records The Committee has been pursuing information regarding the electronic storage of
records for College purposes and in order to provide information to registrants. Further investigation is required before
the Committee will be in a position to provide information to registrants.

7. Self-Care The Committee has been actively investigating issues related to self-care by registrants as a part of best
practice, and plans to prepare a practice advisory on this issue in the coming year.

Respectfully submitted,
Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych.,Chair, Quality Assurance Committee 2007
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FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

The College continues to stay well within budget projections and has maintained stable renewal fees for the past 5 years

with no

anticipated fee increases for 2008.

Table 2: Comparative Expenses

Year |  Wages énd ‘Routine | Hearings*_f 3;ther Ex‘p:eﬁsés:’:"* Total Expenses..
Benefits Statutory ‘ o S S
“Expenses
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
2004 521,791 41 288,686 23 74,816 6 391,336 30 1,276,629 100
2005 554,704 48 128,899 11 70,563 6 403,717 35 1,157,883 100
2006 | 565346 | 46 | 201,542 | 17 50,113 4 402,896 | 33 1,219,897 100
2007 571,315 44 210,917 16 101,350 8 414,650 32 1,298,232%** 100

* This figure represents the cost of preparing for and holding extraordinary and discipline committee hearings.
** Included in these expenses are costs associated with committee and Board meetings, travel, rent, and office
supplies.

*** This total differs from that reported on the attached financial statements by a total of $103,978 which is the sum
of $55,288 for workshop fees and $48,690 for recovered supervision expenses. Note that these sums are also
represented in the receipt side of the financial statements as additional income.

Respectfully submitted,
Derek Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych.,Chair, Finance Committee 2006

REGISTRAR’S REPORT

Below is the Registrar’s Report on the activities of the College for the year 2007. This report is divided into three main
sections:

L.

II.

.

Registration/Application Matters This section provides a description of the College Register for 2007 and
the status of applications for registration, as well as a summary of activities of the College in this area.

Complaint and Investigative Matters The second section provides a descriptive and statistical analysis of
complaint and other investigative matters.

Administrative Matters The third section summarizes administrative activities related to external relationships
and our obligations under the Ombudsman and Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Acts.

COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 2007 ANNUAL REPORT 11




I. REGISTRATION/APPLICATION MATTERS

This section reviews activities at the College related to the status of the College Register during 2007, and the status
of applications for registration. It is divided into 6 sections as follows:

1. The College Register 2007 4.  Area of practice
2. Summary of application activity 5. Examinations
3. Status of application files 6. Title issue investigations

1.  The College Register 2007

As at December 31, 2007, the College Register showed a total of 1109 registrants, including two individuals who had
temporary registration status during the 2007 year.

Table 3: The College Register as at December 31, 2007

Register Status on December31 | 2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005 | 2006 | 2
Full Register 863 889 924 933 932 974
Suspended 1 0
Limited Register- Inquiry Committee 15 14 15 13 11 11
Limited Register- Inquiry Committee / Non- 1 1 1
Practicing
Limited Register- Inquiry Committee/ Out of 1 0
Province
Limited Register - Out-of-Province 58 43 29 28 27 22
Limited Register - Non-Practicing 61 17 11 18 23 15
Limited Register- Retired 17 15 13 14 23 26
Limited Register- Registration Committee 1 2 5 22 57 53
Category Pending as at Dec. 31,2006 1 1 2 0
Temporary Registration 1 2 3 2 1 2
Cancelled 3
Total 1017 984 1002 1032 1075 1107

As shown in the table below, a total of 47 new registrants were added to the Register in 2007.

Table 4: New Registrants by Class of Registration

Psychologists 26 5 7 1 2 41
Psychological Associates 6 6
Total 26 5 7 7 2 47
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Table 5 below shows the breakdown of the 47 individuals newly registered in 2007 according to application type and
placement on the Full or Limited Register. Eighty-five percent (n=40) of new registrants were placed on the Full
Register. Of these, all were in the psychologist class of registration, and 65% were regular applicants. All seven of
the new registrants who were placed on the Limited Register were extraordinary applicants who have completed all
of the initial requirements for registration with the College under the extraordinary provisions, and will complete any
remaining registration requirements (the EPPP or National Association of School Psychologists (NASP)
examination, internship equivalencies, and the Oral Examination) prior to approval for placement on the Full
Register.

Table 5: New Registrants on Full and Limited Register by Application Type

Reg | Recip | Mobil | Extra | Temp | Total -

Full Register - Psychologists 26 5 7 0 2 40

Full Register - Psychological Associates 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total on Full Register 26 5 7 0 2 40

| Limited Register - Psychologists 0 0 0 1 0 1

Limited Register - Psychological 0 0 0 6 0 6
Associates

Total on Limited Register 0 0 0 7 0 7

Total 26 5 7 7 1 47

2. Summary of Application Activity

Table 6 below summarizes the application activities at the College during the 2007 year, along with comparison data from
previous years. As shown in the table, a total of 64 applications were received during the 2007 year. Of these, 61%
(n=39) were regular applications. Twenty-two percent (n=14) were reciprocal applications from another Canadian
Jjurisdiction, and 13% (n=8) were mobility applications from jurisdictions in the United States. One application was
withdrawn, and none were ineligible or disqualified during 2007.

Table 6: Application Activity Summary 2001-2007

R i | R
© Activity 2007 /

L Reg o [ mecip [ wiown [ e

# applications 328 33 14 8

received

# applications 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

withdrawn

# applications 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

not eligible

# of applicants 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

disqualified
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3.  Status of Application Files

Table 7 shows the status of all open applications as at December 31, 2007. There were a total of 85 open applications at
various stages of the application process. Fifty-nine additional applications were open at some point during 2007,
including the 47 that resulted in applicants being registered, 9 that expired, 1 that was withdrawn, and 2 that were placed

on hold.

Table 7: Status of Open Applications as at December 31, 2007

- — — -
L 2007 ,
Application Stage - ~ ' S & — e
S : Regular Reciprocal Mobility. - Extraordinary Total

Initial review 21 5 2 0 28

Under review for 9 1 0 0 10

credentials/consistency

EPPP 19 N/A N/A —* 19

Written Jurisprudence Exam 6 8 1 1 16

Oral Examination 4 N/A N/A 1 5

Ready for placement on Register 4 2 1 0 7

Total Open Files as at 63 16 4 2 85

December 31,2007

*Extraordinary applicants complete the EPPP examination or equivalent while on the Limited Register rather than
during the application process.

4. Area of Practice: Applicants and Registrants

Applicants must indicate one area of practice in psychology on the application form. This area is expected to be the broad
area of practice which best describes the individual’s training and competence. Table 8 below represents the area of practice
indicated by new registrants in 2007. Seventy-nine percent of applicants (37 out of 47) selected Clinical or Counselling as

most descriptive of their area of practice.

Table 8: Area of Practice for New Applicants in 2007

e S B B e e e
Clinical Psychology 17 5 4 1 2 29
Counselling Psychology 6 1 1 8
Clinical Neuropsychology 1 i 2
School Psychology 1 3 4
Health Psychology 1 1
Forensic/Corrections Psychology 1 2 3
Total 26 5 7 7 2 47

Note: The area Research/Academic is not intended as a declared area of practice for applicants. The areas of
Clinical and Counselling are defined by the College as broad areas encompassing many sub-areas, while the areas of
Forensic/Corrections, Health, School, Rehabilitation, Industrial/Organizational and Clinical Neuropsychology are
seen as more narrowly defined areas of practice, sometimes including exclusive practice in a particular setting.
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Each year, registrants are required at renewal to report their primary area of practice. The Register indicated the
following breakdown for the self-declared primary area of practice indicated by Registrants, as of December 31, 2007,
excluding retired registrants (n=26):

Table 9: Self-Declared Primary Area of Practice for Registrants as at December 31, 2007

Self-Declared Primary ~ Numberof %
Area of Practice . Registrants

Clinical Psychology 595 55
Counselling Psychology 231 21
Clinical Neuropsychology 62 6
School Psychology 67 6
Health Psychology 6 1
Rehabilitation Psychology 14 1
Research/Academic Psychology 31 2
Forensic/Corrections Psychology 52 5
Industrial/Organizational Psychology 23 3
Total 1081* 100

* This number does not include the 26 registrants who were in the retired category as at December 31, 2007.
5. Examinations

All regular applicants complete three examinations as part of the application process: the EPPP, the oral exam (OE)
and the Written Jurisprudence Examination (WJE). Reciprocal and mobility applicants are required to successfully
complete the WIE. Table 10 below summarizes examination results for 2007. In 2007, 4 extraordinary applicants
completed Part A of the oral examination, which contains 10 questions covering aspects of ethical conduct and
knowledge of regulation. The Part A examination is the final step to be completed by applicants under the extraordinary
provisions prior to placement on the Limited Register. The Committee has clear policies regarding the passing criteria
for the Part A examination, including the requirement that all items be successfully completed either through the
examination process or through remedial work under supervision.

Table 10: Examination Results

Number of applicants who wrote EPPP 9 16 22 16 31 35
Number of Oral examinations (Regular) 13 15 34 25 26 42
Number of WJE examinations 21 19 68 117 47 36
Part A of Oral examination (Extraordinary) n/a n/a n/a 39 36 4

The EPPP exam was taken 35 times in 2007 with no failures. The scaled score range for these applicants was 523-742
out of 800. The range of scores was similar between regular (551-742) and extraordinary applicants (523 -706).
Communication of exam results to applicants continues to be shortened due to expedited transmission of results to the
College from the testing service.

As in past years, the WJE examination is held at the College offices on a monthly basis. It was administered 36 times
in 2007 to a total of 36 applicants, one of whom failed and has not yet re-attempted the examination. The College also
conducts the Oral Examination on site. In 2007, 42 examinations took place, of which 4 ‘were second attempts by
individuals who had failed their first attempt in 2006. Typically, individuals who fail one or two areas on the
examination agree to complete a brief period of supervision (3-6 months) which targets the area(s) identified as in need
of remediation.
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6.

Investigation of Title Issues under the Psychologists Regulation

There were 11 investigations by the Registration Committee into alleged violations of title in 2007, on matters brought
to the Committee’s attention by members of the public and by registrants of the College.

II. COMPLAINT AND INVESTIGATIVE MATTERS

This section contains information about complaints received in the year 2007 as well as a report on all complaints closed
during 2007. Included are descriptions of aspects of the complaints process and a sampling of complaints received
during the year.

1.

1. Complaint file status as at December 31, 2007

2.  Descriptive complaint summary

3. Investigations opened by the Inquiry Committee

4.  Length of time to close complaint files

5. Closing reasons for complaints closed in 2007 and comparison with previous years
6. Components of the complaint investigative process

7. Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements

8. Summary of a sample of Complaints in 2007

9.  Complaints per year and number of registrants with complaints

Complaint file status as at December 31, 2007

Since the College of Psychologists came under the Health Professions Act, a total of 420 new complaints have been
received, including 50 that were received during 2007. This is the same number of complaints as the College received
in 2006.

A.

Complaints received in 2007 (n=50): Twenty-three (23) of the complaints received in 2007 were also closed in
2007, leaving a total of 27 complaints received in 2007 still open on December 31, 2007.

Complaints received in 2006 that remained open for at least part of 2007 (n=20): Fifteen of the 20 files remaining
open from 2006 were closed in 2007. Last motions of the Inquiry Committee on the other files as of December 31,
2007 included one to issue a letter asking the registrant to provide additional information related to the complaint,
three to issue a letter of undertaking or consent agreement, and one to send the matter to the Discipline Committee.
The 15 closed files originating from 2006 are included in the data on files closed in 2007 presented elsewhere in
this report.

Complaints received prior to 2006 and still open in 2007 (n=4): Four files opened in 2005 remained open in 2007.
Two of these were closed in 2007, and citations had been issued on the remaining two files. Closed files are
included in the data on files closed in 2007 presented elsewhere in this report.
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Table 11: Complaint File Status as at December 31, 2007 for all complaints received under the

Health Professions Act

Yeéf Complaint Received

s 2000-2005 2006 2007  Total

# % | & | % | & | % | 4 %
Awaiting or Under 7 14 7 1.7
Initial Review
33(4) 1 2 i 0.2
Practice Records 4 8 4 1.0
33(5) 1 2 11 22 12 2.9
HPA S.28 Inspections
Without Prejudice 1 2 1 0.2
Meeting
Letter of Undertaking 3 2 3 6 6 14
Citation 2 0.6 2 0.5
Extraordinary Hearing 1 2 1 0.2
Total#openfiles | 2 | o6 | 5 | 10 s | s | s
Total# closed files | 318 99 | 45 | o0 46 | 36 | 92
Total 320 100 50 100 50 100 420 100

2. Descriptive Complaint Summary

Below are four descriptive variables (primary allegation, complaint context, area of practice, and complainant type) on
which all complaints are tracked:

a. Primary Allegation Table 12 (see next page) contains a breakdown of complaint investigations according to the
primary allegation made by the complainant as it relates to the Code of Conduct. The most frequent primary allegation
for complaints opened in 2007 was assessment procedures (n=16, 33%). This is consistent with all complaints received

since the College came under the Health Professions Act; assessment procedures is the primary allegation in the largest

number of cases overall (n=154, 36.8%). General standards for competency was the next most frequent primary
allegation in 2007 (n=8, 16%) and overall (n=58, 13.8%), followed by professionalism (n=3, 6% in 2007, and n=52,
12.4% overall). For 2007, many of the cases in which competency is the primary allegation involved an assessment.
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Table 12: Primary Allegation in Complaints Received 2000-2007

e : Year Complaint Recelved
‘Primary Allegation , o R S
(Code of Conduct) 20002005 2006 - 2007 fotal
| - o lw | el ow | o | % | 8| %
General Stds for Competency (CC 3.0) 36 11 14 28 8 16 58 13.8
Informed Consent (CC 4.0) 14 4.3 4 8 2 4 20 4.8
Relationships-Clients (CC 5.0) 47 15 1 2 4 8 52 12.4
Relationships-Work (CC 5.0) 3 0.9 2 4 2 4 7 1.7
Relationships-Dual Roles (CC 5.0) 12 43 4 8 16 3.8
Confidentiality (CC 6.0) 14 4.4 2 4 16 3.8
Professionalism (CC 7.0) 39 12 10 20 3 6 52 12.4
Provision of Services (CC 8.0) S 1.6 4 8 4 8 13 3.1
Representation of Services/Credentials (CC 9.0) 2 0.6 2 0.5
Advertising/Public Statements (CC10.0) 6 1.9 1 2 1 2 8 1.9
Assessment Procedures (CC 11.0) 130 41 8 16 16 33 154 36.8
Fees (CC 12.0) 8 2.5 1 2 9 2.1
Maintenance of Records (CC 13.0) 1 0.3 1 0.2
Security/Access to Record (CC 14.0) 1 0.3 4 8 5 1.2
Compliance with Law (CC 18.0) 2 0.6 2 0.5
Application (CC 2.0) 2 4 2 0.5
No Standard Applicable 2 4 2 0.5
Total 320 100 50 100 49* 100 419 100

*Total is less than 50 because one complaint was opened in error and no primary allegation was recorded.
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b. Complaint Context Table 13 below reports on the context within which complaints occurred. As has consistently
been the case in the past, in 2007 a substantial proportion (n=24; 48%) of complaint concerns arose in the context of an

assessment, such as custody and access proceedings or insurance claims.

Table 13: Complaint Context in Complaints Received 2000-2007

. L . __ Year Complaint Received _
Complaint Context E o T :
‘ S 5 2000-2005 2006 S 2007 . Total =
# T . ; ,%. #. _% v ,# . ,'%"’
Assessment 192 60 26 52 24 48 242 57.6
Consultation 6 1.9 6 1.4
Intervention 74 23.1 8 16 15 30 97 23.1
Regulatory Compliance 10 3.1 6 12 3 6 19 4.5
Other 38 11.9 10 20 8 16 56 13.3
Total 320 100 50 100 50 100 420 100

c. Area of Practice Table 14 below presents information on the area of practice within which complaints occurred.
In 2007, 60% (n=30) of the complaints received were in the broad area of clinical psychology, and an additional 22%

(n=11) occurred within the custody and access sub-area within clinical psychology.

Table 14: Complaint - Area of Practice in Complaints Received 2000-2006

. Year Complaint Received

, 'Com‘plﬁintiArea of : 2000'2005 ' : 2006 2007 thal T
Pjracti,ce: e o ﬂ . % 'I : # o : T

] Clinical Psychology 145 453 24 48 30 60 199 47.3
Custody and Access 88 27.5 8 16 11 22 107 25.8
Counselling Psychology 23 72 10 20 3 6 36 8.6
Forensic /Corrections 30 94 2 4 4 8 36 8.6
Industrial /Organizational 1 0.3 1 2 2 0.5
Neuropsychology 11 34 5 10 | 2 17 4.0
Rehabilitation Psychology 8 2.5 8 1.9
Research /Academic 4 1.3 4 1.0
School Psychology 6 1.9 6 1.4
N/A 4 1.3 1 2 5 1.2
Total 320 100 50 100 50 100 420 100
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d. Complainant Type As indicated in Table 15 below, 26% (n=13) of the complaints received in 2007 were filed
directly by clients of respondents. The Inquiry Commiittee opened an additional 6 files (12%) on its own motion based
on information provided to it. Typically, third party complaints involve situations in which the psychologist has been
hired by someone other than the service recipient, and/or a complaint is filed by another professional involved in the
service recipient’s case. The “other” category consists of former clients and members of the public with no professional
relationship with the registrant. Please note that beginning in 2007, registrants who have laid a complaint in their role
as a third party in a case are now included in that category, and a separate statistic is reported regarding their status as
aregistrant. Most commonly, a registrant is the complainant in a matter in which they are also involved as a third party
(for example, as a subsequent treatment provider, or as someone providing assessment services to an individual who is
also receiving treatment from another registrant). The category of “Colleague” will now be reserved for those cases in
which the complainant is not also involved with the recipient of services (for example, a registrant who makes a

complaint after becoming concerned about a colleague’s conduct after observing him or her performing impaired in a
shared work environment).

Table 15: Complainant Type in Complaints Received 2000-2007

e Year Complaint Received
Complamﬁnt Type v ’ 2006 : l ' 2007 Total
Client - 3% Party 99 30.9 4 8 22% 44 125 30.0
Client - Direct 63 19.7 19 38 13 26 95 22.6
Client Relative 47 14.7 3 6 7 14 57 13.6
Colleague** 54 16.9 7 14 61 14.5
Inquiry Committee 30 9.4 11 22 6 12 47 11.2
Other 27 8.4 6 12 2 4 35 83
Total 320 100 50 100 50 100 420 100

*This total includes 13 cases in which the complainant was another registrant.
**As of 2007, this category reserved for colleagues not also involved as a third party with service recipient.

3. Investigations Opened by the Inquiry Committee

Under the Health Professions Act, the Inquiry Committee can open an investigation on its own motion when there are
public protection concerns or when an investigation of allegations made by complainants provides evidence which on
its face suggests a new area of concern. Most frequently, investigations initiated by the Committee arise in the following
circumstances: failure to comply with regulatory obligations in connection with another complaint; receipt of information
generally available to the public; information obtained through an inspection of a registrant’s practice records; or through
information provided to the College that is deemed of sufficient concern to initiate an investigation. In 2007, 6 complaint
investigations were opened by the Inquiry Committee. Two of these files were opened to investigate issues of
compliance with regulatory obligations. The remainder were opened based on information brought to the attention of
the Inquiry Committee regarding possible breaches of the Code of Conduct.
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4.  Length of Time to Close Files

For complaints closed in 2007 (n=40), the number of months required to investigate and close a file ranged from 1 to
15 months. The average time to closure was 6.45 months. Table 16 below contains the average length of time to close
complaint files across the years 2005-2007.

Table 16: Time (in months) to Close Files by Year File Closed,
for Complaints Received 2005-2007 (N=149)

. Year Complaint Closed: 2005 2006 2007
Length of Time to Close File: 11 months 8 months 6.45 months
n =438 n=06l n=40

5.  Complaint File Closing Reasons

Approximately two-thirds of the complaints closed in 2007 were dismissed because of insufficient evidence of a breach
of the Code of Conduct, withdrawn, or not proceeded on for administrative reasons. For complaints received and closed
since 2005, about one-third were resolved by means of an undertaking or agreement with the respondent, or by some
action offered by the respondent that satisfied the Committee’s concerns in the matter.

Table 17: Closing Reasons for Complaints Received and Closed 2005-2007 (N=149 )

~ Closing .~ | Clqsi‘n‘g-: .k 2005 , ' Totals
oCategory i Reason T e ;
Dismissed for | Decision Not to 3 6 17 28 6 15 26 17.4
lack of Proceed
evidence or
. Withdrawn or opened 1 2 3 7.5 4 2.7
otherwise not }
proceeded in error
upon Insufficient Evidence 15 31 20 33 13 32.5 48 322
Subtotal | 18 | 2 | 5 | 18 | 523
Voluntary Letter of Undertaking 14 29 12 20 12 30 38 255
Resolution
Resolved
oo
Resigned/ Resigned/Cancelled
Cancelled Referred to
Referred to Registration or
RCor DC Discipline
Committee
Total 48 100 61 100 40 100 149 100
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6. Components of the Complaint Investigation Process

Components of the complaint investigation process include without prejudice meetings, extraordinary hearings, and
citations and discipline hearings, described below.

a. Without Prejudice Meetings The term “without prejudice” is used to indicate that nothing that occurs in a without
prejudice meeting or correspondence may be used in other proceedings. Without prejudice meetings provide an informal
and effective means for resolving complaint matters. Three without prejudice meetings were held in 2007. Additionally,
a number of without prejudice telephone conversations occurred, and several without prejudice letters with proposals for
complaint resolution were sent. By way of example, a without prejudice meeting between the Inquiry Committee and a
respondent occurred in the context of a complaint involving a forensic assessment. The complainant in this matter was
concerned about the contents of the assessment report. Subsequent to the meeting, the respondent signed an agreement
to enter into supervision to improve report preparation practices.

b. Extraordinary Hearings Sometimes concerns arise which necessitate immediate action on the part of the Inquiry
Committee, such as issues with sufficient public protection concerns that the Committee believes an immediate restriction
on practice or license suspension may be warranted. There is no testing of evidence at an extraordinary hearing. Rather,
a decision is made on whether the available evidence, on its face, supports action by the Inquiry Committee. Any
extraordinary action or agreement is an interim measure, designed to address immediate public protection concerns, while
the complaint investigation continues and/or pending a full hearing of the Discipline Committee. Extraordinary actions

or agreements, therefore, do not represent final resolutions of the complaint issues. No extraordinary hearings were held
in 2007.

c. Discipline Hearings & Citations In contrast to an extraordinary hearing, a discipline hearing is the equivalent of a
full trial on all issues, and a finding of fact is made at the end of the hearing. No Discipline Committee hearings were
held in 2007, although the Inquiry Committee moved to issue a citation for a hearing of the Discipline Committee on two
files involving 2 registrants. In both of these cases, the citations remain in preparation.

7. Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements

Table 18 below provides a summary of Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements signed with registrants during the
year 2007 as a means of bringing a complaint file to a close. The terms of such agreements are determined on a case by
case basis and all are signed on a voluntary basis. In a number of the more serious complaints below, a hearing of the

Discipline Committee would have been held had such a resolution not been achieved.

Table 18. Summary of Terms of Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements in 2007

#ofFiles | Type | Primary Allegation | Terms of Consent Agreement or Letter of
1 file Final | 03-Competency Specify limitations in reports and testimony; maintain boundaries between
assessment and treatment
1 file Final | 03-Competency Specify sources of information and limitations in reports
1 file Final | 08-Provision of Services Specify nature of services and time-frames for delivery
2 files Final | 07-Professionalism Complete services in timely manner; respond promptly to requests from College
08-Provision of Services
1 file Final | 04-Consent Thorough documentation for cases involving multiple parties; written consent;
specify services
1 file Final 11-Assessment Procedures | Specify role and basis for opinion in assessments
1 file Final 11-Assessment Procedures | Improve supervision practices related to supervisees providing assessment
services; prepare addendum to correct report errors
2 files Final 11-Assessment Procedures | Undergo assessment of practice to determine whether supervision required; no
assessment services without supervision
2 files Final | 03-Competency No assessment without supervision
11-Assessment Procedures
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8. Samples of Complaints Received in 2007

Below is a brief review of the main allegations raised by a sample of complaints received in 2007, along with a description
of the process and outcome of the complaint investigation.

One case involved a complaint by a member of the court who was concerned about the possible incompetence of a
psychologist who had prepared a written report that was submitted in evidence in a court matter. In this case the Inquiry
Committee carefully reviewed the documents submitted by the complainant, obtained the respondent’s practice records,
and asked the respondent a number of questions in a letter under section 33(5) of the Health Professions Act. The
respondent in this case appeared to reflect carefully on questions posed by the Inquiry Committee, and identified steps
for enhancing practice. The complaint was ultimately resolved through a signed agreement that incorporated these
insights, and included an agreement to specify the purpose and limitations of any future reports or testimony, and an
agreement to seck consultation in response to specific future circumstances that might arise in the respondent’s practice.

A second case was resolved by means of an agreement to undertake supervision and involved a complaint regarding a
report submitted in a child custody and access case in which the respondent failed to obtain the consent and participation
of one of the parents in the matter. The complainant alleged that the respondent had failed to contact him or seek his
consent before assessing his children, had been non-responsive to him, had maintained contact with his children after the
assessment, and had caused harm to his children and his parenting relationship. The Committee carefully reviewed the
documents submitted by the complainant, obtained the respondent’s practice records, and asked the respondent a number
of questions in a letter under section 33(5) of the Health Professions Act. The Committee found no support for some of
the allegations made in this case, but did conclude that the respondent could improve practice and reduce the risk of future
complaints by undertaking supervision, with particular emphasis on establishing informed consent, and on recognizing
and specifying limits in offering opinions and recommendations in custody and access cases when not having completed
a thorough custody and access assessment.

A third case involved a complaint made by an individual who had undergone a psychological assessment as part of a
WorkSafeBC claim, and who alleged that the respondent had demonstrated bias by supporting WSBC policies, failing
to remember relevant aspects of his case or include documents in his file as requested, and failing to write him a letter.
The Committee obtained the relevant practice records and posed a number of questions to the respondent under section
33(5) of the Act, before dismissing the complaint because of insufficient evidence of an ethical violation. One issue
arising out of this investigation, namely signatures on electronically filed reports, contributed to revisions to the Code of
Conduct that are currently ongoing.

As a final example, the Inquiry Committee opened an investigation on its own motion after receiving a copy of a
newspaper article that quoted a registrant. The Committee carefully considered a range of public documents, documents
provided by the respondent, and additional information provided by the respondent in answer to questions posed under
section 33(5) of the Act. The complaint was ultimately resolved through actions initiated by the respondent, who proposed
to alter various advertizing materials and engaged with the Committee to achieve a mutually satisfactory set of
amendments.
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9. Complaints per Year By # of Registrants and Number of Registrants with Complaints

Table 19 below describes the number of registrants about whom complaints have been received since the College was
first granted responsibility for regulating the profession in 1993.

Table 19: # of Complaints per year from 1993 - 2007 and # of Registrants
with Complaints

: Yeaf‘ S E 3 # complaints (with nafmed_-registraﬁt) , # Registrants v
1993 30 21
1994 26 22
1995 44 35
1996 38 30
1997 45 39
1998 47 32
1999 53 37
2000 64 48
2001 59 42
2002 54 38
2003 53 42
2004 46 31
2005 44 35
2006 50 42
2007 50 37
Total 703 -*

*Column total not calculated, as some registrants appear in multiple years.
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A total of 180 registrants have had at least one complaint since January, 2000 as shown in Table 20. Seven of these
individuals resigned as a means of resolving matters with the College or in response to complaints received.
Approximately 15% of current registrants have had at least one complaint filed under the Health Professions Act.

Table 20: Number of Complaints since January 2000 Per Registrant

#of Complaints * | #N amed »Reg"istrants | Total complmts | : Public complaints - | Motion of IC
1 99 99 97 2
2 39 78 69 9
3 10 30 25 5
4 12 48 40 8
5 5 25 23 2
6 3 18 16 2
7 2 14 6 8
8 2 16 16 0
9 0 0 0 0
10 1 10 7 3
11 4 44 40 4
12 1 12 12 0
13 1 13 9 4
14 1 14 14 0
Total 180 421* 374 47

*Total does not equal 420 because one complaint did not name a respondent, was opened in error and is thus
excluded, and two complaints named two respondents within a single complaint and were tabulated as separate
complaints for purposes of calculating total complaints per individual registrant for this table.

III. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Ombudsman Investigations There were 3 investigations of the College by the Ombudsman’s Office in 2007, all
of which are now closed.

2. Requests under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act There were 8 requests made under
the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act during 2007, 4 of which are now closed.

3. Relationships with Other Regulatory Bodies in Psychology The College remained actively involved with the
other Canadian regulatory bodies through our involvement in CPAP and with the group of regulators that meet in
conjunction with the bi-yearly CPAP meetings. During the 2007 year preparations were made to separate the regulators
from the professional associations by creating a new group of the regulators called the Association of Canadian
Psychology Regulatory Organizations (ACPRO). The Registrar was elected acting vice-chair of this organization. In
addition, the Registrar continued to Chair the Task Force on Model Regulations for the Association of State and
Provincial Psychology Boards (ASPPB).

4. Acknowledgments It is my ongoing privilege to work with a dedicated and conscientious staff. The members of
the College Board and Committees are extremely generous with their time and expertise and devote many hours to the
careful consideration of policy development and decision-making. The combination of an excellent staff and a growing
community of professionals and public members on the Board and College committees greatly enhances our ability to
regulate our profession in the public interest.

Respectfully submitted
Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych., Registrar
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MINUTES OF THE MAY 10, 2007 “INFORMATION MEETING”
(FOR REVIEW OF THE 2006 YEAR)

Agenda The table of contents in the Annual Report served as the agenda for the May 10, 2007 meeting which was
called to order at 7:09 p.m. The Chair, Henry Harder, clarified that as quorum had not been reached, the meeting would
be an information meeting, rather than an Annual General Meeting.

Minutes The Minutes of the 2006 Annual General Meeting held on May 2, 2006 were approved.

Report from the Chair Dr. Michael Joschko welcomed registrants to the AGM and referred registrants to his Report
in the Annual Report. He acknowledged that without a quorum present, the meeting would continue as an information
meeting. He introduced fellow board members: Derek Swain, Henry Harder, Michael Elterman, Marguerite Ford, Wayne
Morson and Daniel Fontaine(regrets). He acknowledged the six years of dedicated service of Robert Colby and Henry
Harder and presented each with an engraved statue to mark their contributions. He also acknowledged the service of
the public board members with an inscribed gift clock engraved with names and the phrase “thanks for your time.”

Inquiry Committee Dr. Harder introduced the members of his committee and reported on the work of the Inquiry
Committee for the 2007 year and thanked the committee members for their hours of dedicated service to the College and
the profession. Dr. Harder also presented a brief report on the Patient Relations Committee on behalf of Daniel Fontaine

Registration Committee Dr. Elterman introduced the members of his committee and referred registrants to his report
in the Annual Report. He acknowledged the hard work of his committee in reviewing application files and thanked the
staff for their support. Two individuals who had completed six years of membership on the Registration Committee were
presented with a token of appreciation.

Quality Assurance Committee Dr. Cohene thanked the members of the Committee and the staff for their work during
the year. He reported on the Continuing Competency Program which allows registrants to self-manage their continuing
education. Registrants were referred to his written report. The six year service of Joan Pinkus and Leora Kuttner was
acknowledged with the presentation of an engraved statue, along with the introduction and acknowledgment of all
committee members.

Legislation Committee Dr. Cohene, who chaired this committee, reported that the work of this Committee had been
subsumed by the Board and other committees such as the Quality Assurance Committee and that the committee was
dissolved. He also spoke about the important issues of maintaining records in public institutions and that the College
would continue its efforts to provide helpful guidance to registrants in these settings.

Finance Committee Dr. Swain referred registrants to his written report and to the Audited Financial Statements at the
end of the Annual Report and responded to questions. He made note of the number of other jurisdictions increasing their
registration fees, while our rates have remained the same for the past five years. He noted that the Board had established
a contingency fund to help offset hearing costs.

Registrar’s Report Dr. Kowaz thanked the Board, Committee members and staff for their support and the huge volume
of work accomplished during the past year. The Registrar commented on the foundations established in the College’s
processes and procedures in meeting its legal mandate and that the existence of such foundations may allow for a
constructive review and refinement, as appropriate. The Registrar responded to questions from registrants.

Volunteer Recognition Dr. Joschko recognized the contribution of volunteers to the College, including Board and
Committee members, Oral Examiners, and Supervisors. He concluded by welcoming registrants to the First Annual
AGM Workshop on Friday, May 11,2007 on “Developing Competence in Ethical Practice for a Diverse World” at SFU
Harbour Centre, Segal Centre, from 9 a.m. - 4 p.m.
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BE The Raber Mattuck Group®
| Chartered Accountants .

Suite 318, North Tower, Oakridge Centre, 650 West 41st Avenvre, Vancouver, B.C., 'V5Z 2M9
Telephone: (604) 435-5655 Facsimile: (604) 435-1913 E-mail: info@rabermattuck.com

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Registrants of
College of Psychologists of British Columbia

We have audited the statement of financial poéition'of the College of Psychologists of British
Columbia as at December 31, 2007 and the statements of changes in net assets, operations
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

College's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. A

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the College as at December 31, 2007 and the results of its operations and the
changes in its net assets for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally

?ted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vancouver, British Columbia
March 11, 2008

* a partnership of professional iorporaﬁons
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2007

2007 2006
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash ‘ $ 1,515,970 $ 1,053,794
Cash - restricted (Note 4) 250,000 250,000
- Prepaid expenses 20,915 7,367
1,786,885 1,311,161
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 2) 43,435 33,023
$ 1,830,320 $ 1,344,184
LIABILITIES
CURRENT UIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 32,810 $ 100,823
Employee remittances payable 12,277 24292
Deferred revenue (Note 3) 1,109,475 631,800
1,154,562 756,915
NET ASSETS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 43,435 33,023
INTERNALLY RESTRICTED
General Contingency Fund (Note 4) 250,000 250,000
UNRESTRICTED 382,323 304,246
675,758 587,269
$ 1,830,320 $ 1,344,184

, Director

, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

General Invested
Contingency  In Property

Fund and Equipment Unrestricted Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
NET ASSETS, beginning of year $ 250,000 $ 33,023 ¢ 304,246 $ 587,269 $ 437,009

Excess of Receipts Over Expenditures - . 10,412

Interfund transfers

78,077 88,489 150,260

NET ASSETS, end of year 250,000 $ 43,435

$

382,323 § 675,758 $ 587,269

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

2007 2006
RECEIPTS
Registration fees $ 1,251,880 $ 1,208,190
Application and exam fees 81,900 87,110
Interest 47,051 37,629
Supervision cost recovery 48,690 24179
Other income and.cost recovery 61,178 - 13,049
1,490,699 1,370,157
EXPENDITURES
Administration 676,959 650,813
Audit 5,035 4,735
Board 58,446 38,489
Committees (meetings, travel and honoraria) " 72,566 60,667
External relations (dues) 5,805 5,405
Extraordinary Hearings - 10,051
Discipline Hearings (lncludlng Preparation) 101,350 40,262
Operations 132,428 135,897
Registrant / Applicant services 89,786 43,162
Statutory functions (FOI, investigations, routine legal consultation) 210,917 201,542
Supervision expenses 48,918 28,874
1,402,210 . 1,219,897
EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES $ 88,489 § 150,260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

The Raber Mattuck Group
3




COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

. 2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of receipts over expenditures $ 88,489 $ 150,260
Adjustments for:
Amortization 10,512 17,520
Prepaid expense (13,548) (246)
Accounts payable v (68,013) 39,411
Employee remittances payable (12,015) 5,842
Deferred revenue 477,675 (156,150)
483,100 56,637
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (20,924) (6,456)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 462,176 50,181
CASH, beginning of year 1,303,794 1,253,613
CASH, end of year $ 1,765,970 $ 1,303,794

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. .
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBlA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . -

DECEMBER 31, 2007

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund Accounting

Revenues and expenditures for general activities and admmtstratton are reported in the
General Fund.

The General Contingency Fund was established during the year to cover future
unexpected expenditures.

Property and Equipment
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost:

Contributed- property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of

contribution. Amortization is provided on a declining balance basis at the following
rates:

Office furniture and equipment - 20% declining balance
Computer equipment and software - 30% declining balance
Leasehold improvements - Syears straight fine

In the year of acquisition, only one-half of the normal amortization is recorded.
Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Asset Fund.

Revenue and Expense recognition

Registration fees are recognized as income in the fiscal year due. Expenditures are
recognized as incurred.

2. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
2007 2006
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $

Office furniture and equipment 102,652 73,333 29,319 16,293
Computer equipment 100,954 86,838 14,116 16,730
L easehold improvements 40,706 40,706 - -
244,312 200,877 43,435 33,023

The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2007

3. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue represents membership fees for the 2008 calendar year received
in advance. :

4. . GENERAL CONTINGENCY FUND
The General Contingency Fund was established by the Board of Directors.

The General Contingency Fund is to be used in special circumstances and subject

to the approva1 by the College of Psychologists of British Columbia Board of
Directors. )

5. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures have been changed to conform to the current year's
presentation.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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REPORT FROM THE CHAIR

It was my pleasure to serve as Chair of the Board for the 2008 year and | am pleased to provide a
report on College activities for January through December, 2008.

Information Meetings The Board held information meetings in Victoria on October 21, 2008,
Nanaimo on November 17, 2008, and Vancouver on November 20, 2008 in addition to meetings held
by registrant request at Children’s Hospital {(January 16, 2008), Vancouver General Hospital (February
23), and UBC (November 16, 2008). Given the importance for registrants to be informed and to
participate in discussions regarding the regulation of the profession in British Columbia, the Board
continues to remind registrants that it is willing to provide “individualized” information sessions to
groups of registrants in particular work or geographic locations.

Annual General Meeting The Annual General Meeting was held in Vancouver on May 22, 2008.
Video links were provided to Victoria, Kelowna, and Prince George.

Board Elections A Call for Nominations was distributed to registrants in the fall of 2008, to fill three
elected positions on the Board. Nominations were received for three individuals. Acclaimed for three
year terms were Russell King, and Leora Kuttner, with terms to commence January 1, 2009. John
Carter was acclaimed for a two year term commencing January 1, 2009.

Annual Evaluation of Registrar The objectives which provide the criteria for the annual evaluation
of the Registrar are embodied in the College’s Strategic Plan available on the College website. The
annual evaluation involves discussion about achievement of the objectives and the Board’s provision
of sufficient resources and support for their achievement. The Board was again extremely pleased
with the achievements of the Registrar and her staff with regard to these objectives, as well as the
efficient and effective coordination between staff and the Board and College Committeesin the highly
collaborative efforts to meet these objectives.

Reviews of Inquiry Committee Decisions A total of 10 reviews of Inquiry Committee decisions on
complaints were heard by the Board in 2008. These reviews were requested by complainants under
the Health Professions Act. The Board upheld the decision of the Inquiry Committee in each instance,
based on a careful review of the process followed by the Committee and the documents before the
Inquiry Committee when making its decision.

College Workshops A number of different continuing education opportunities were offered by the
College in 2008. College counsel Lisa Fong presented a workshop on “Release of Records: Legal Issues
for Psychology” immediately after the Annual General Meeting on May 22, 2008. Dr. Susan Jacobs
presented a one-day workshop jointly sponsored by the College and the BC Association of School
Psychologists (BCASP) on May 30, 2008 on “Ethical Issues in School Psychology,” and this was followed
the same day by “A Legal Issues Primer” provided by Lisa Fong. Finally, Dr. Tom McGee again
presented a series of workshops on professional wills, including in Nanaimo on May 11, Castlegar on
May 12,in Vancouver on May 14 and 15, and in Prince George on May 16, 2008. All of these
workshops were well-attended.

Strategic Planning A copy of the Strategic Plan is available on the new College website. The Board
reviews the Strategic Plan on an ongoing basis.
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Participation with ASPPB The College remained an active member of the Association of State and
Provincial Psychology Boards (ASPPB), and participated in ASPPB meetings in April in Vancouver, and
in October in Nashville. At the meeting in Nashville, the Registrar and College counsel gave a
presentation on Regulatory Supervision.

School Psychology The College was delighted with the jointly sponsored workshop on ethics in the
school setting and looks forward to further collaborative efforts with the British Columbia Association
of School Psychologists.

Legal Consultation The College’s use of legal services is divided into several main categories: A.
Routine legal consultations for Inquiry and Registration Committees, B. General legal counsel (Board
legal consultation, legal matters such as lawsuits against the College); C. Legal consultation on
Freedom of Information requests; and D. Special legal consultation on discipline matters including
preparation for, and the conducting of, extraordinary hearings of the Inquiry Committee, Discipline
Committee hearings, and legal consultation for hearing panels. These various types of consultation
are obtained through the services of a number of different individuals, as needed.

Code of Conduct and Practice Advisories During 2008 work continued on the revision of the Code
of Conduct which was first enacted in February 2002. The revision work focused on: 1. Increasing
clarity and consistency of language; 2. Reviewing the scope of the Code to ensure inclusion of evolving
issues; 3. Integration of those aspects of Practice Advisories that rise to the level of Code standards
in setting the conduct expected of registrants; and 4. Reviewing registrant comments and feedback
since introduction of the current Code. Registrants were sent copies of the proposed revised Code
and Advisories in August of 2008 and asked for their feedback. The feedback received was reviewed,
and final revisions of the Code were prepared and the new 2009 Code of Conduct took effect on
January 1, 2009. Work on Practice Advisories remains ongoing.

Legislative Changes The Board devoted considerable attention to changes that were proposed and
enacted to the legislation that governs the College, the Health Professions Act. Communication with
registrants and the various College committees was a focus of the Board to ensure that registrants
were aware of the scope and nature of these changes.

In closing, it was a pleasure and privilege to serve as the Chair of the Board for 2008, and | am very
pleased to welcome my successor, Rebecca England, who has assumed the Chair position as of January
1, 2009.

Respectfully submitted,
Michael Joschko, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair of the Board 2008

DisCIPLINE COMMITTEE REPORT

There were no hearings of the Discipline Committee in 2008. An outstanding matter from 2007
remained in adjournment through part of 2008, but was resolved without requiring a reconvening of
the Discipline panel. Another matter was referred to the Discipline Committee in 2008, but has not
yet been heard.

Respectfully submitted,
Wayne Morson, Chair, Discipline Committee 2008
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PATIENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

As per the Health Professions Act, the objectives of this Committee include: recommending to the
Board specific procedures for handling complaints of professional misconduct of a sexual nature;
informing the public about the process of bringing their concerns to the College; monitoring and
periodically evaluating the operation of procedures established; developing and coordinating
educational programs dealing with professional misconduct of a sexual nature for registrants and the
public as required; establishing a patient relations program to prevent professional misconduct of a
sexual nature; and recommendingto the Board standards and guidelines for the conduct of registrants
and their patients.

Respectfully submitted,
Daniel Fontaine, Chair, Patient Relations Committee 2008

INQUIRY COMMITTEE REPORT

The Inquiry Committee (IC) dealt with a total of 75 complaints that were open for at least some part
of 2008 and were at various stages of investigation at any given point in time during the year. As of
December 31, 2008, 49 of these cases had been closed, and the remaining 26 files remained open and
actively before the IC. Fourteen of these 26 files had only recently been received and were under
preliminary review, 9 were at various stages of investigation, 2 had involved the issuance of citations
in 2007 and remained in that process through 2008, and 1 involved alleged conduct of sufficient
concern that the IC moved to take the matter to an extraordinary hearing. Files closed during 2008
are summarized in Table 1 below along with the nature of the decisions of the Inquiry Committee in
closing the complaint files. Please review the Registrar’s report for a comprehensive description and
breakdown of 2008 complaint investigations and resolutions. In addition, as of November 1, 2008,
some types of resolutions are now published on the College website, in accordance with new
publication requirements under the revised Health Professions Act.

Table 1: Files Closed during 2008 (N=49)

tber

Letter of Undertaking or Consent Agreement 28 57.1
Resolved 1 2.0
Insufficient Evidence 12 245
Decision Not to Proceed (opened in error, no 7 14.3

jurisdiction, withdrawn, vexatious or frivolous)

Referred to Discipline Committee 0 -
Referred to Registration Committee 1 2.0
Total 49 100

* Percentages in this and subsequent tables may contain rounding errors.
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Much of the focus of the Committee centred on changes made to the Health Professions Act and
ensuring development of policies and procedures responsive to these changes. An enormous amount
of work was involved in the development of a step by step flow chart and accompanying tracking
documents which were integrated into existing procedures.

The Inquiry Committee consists of very hardworking and dedicated professional and public members
who work in consultation and cooperation with a very competent staff team consisting of the
Registrar, Deputy Registrar, and Inquiry Coordinator. It was my pleasure to serve as Chair for the 2008
year.

Respectfully submitted,
Rebecca England, Ph.D., R.Psych. Chair, Inquiry Committee 2008

Registration Committee Report

Mobility and Access to the Profession The College, along with other regulatory bodies in psychology
across Canada, signed the Mutual Recognition Agreement in 2001 allowing psychology practitioners
to more easily become registered in another province. The Trade, Investment, and Labour Mobility
Agreement (TILMA) between BC and Alberta, further increases mobility between the two provinces
and is now in effect. The College continued work on TILMA through the 2008 year. Improving the
College website to increase clarity and ease of access to application information and forms was a
major focus during 2008.

As a means of supporting these changes, the College applied for and received a “Solutions for Access”
grant from the Ministry of Economic Development. This funding will assist the College in making the
website and application documents more user-friendly to applicants from outside BC. The federal
Agreement on Internal Trade (AlIT) which came into effect in 1995 and was recently amended, is also
intended to increase mobility for professionals fully licensed in another Canadian jurisdiction. Recent
revisions to the Labour Mobility section of the AIT specify that any worker certified for an occupation
by a regulatory authority in another province or territory must be recognized as qualified to practice
that occupation by all other provinces and territories. In accordance with the spirit and intention of
these changes, the College extended an invitation to apply for registration in British Columbia to all
psychology practitioners registered as such with another Canadian psychology regulatory body. By
December 31, thirty (30) individuals had submitted applications during the time frame of this initiative.

Psychologist’s Regulation In October 2008, measures were taken to increase consistency of language
in regulations for all professions governed by the Health Professions Act. This modification reduced
the College’s ability to pursue matters related to protection of title where an individual is using
derivatives of the word “psychology.” The Regulation continues to protect the titles of Psychologist
and Psychological Associate and exemptions for persons working in certain contexts remain in place.

Utendale Decision As reported in the 2007 Annual Report, the Registration Committee decided to
proceed on a serious title issue with implications for public protection. The Supreme Court decision,
on April 26, 2007, confirmed the protection of the title “psychologist” and any of its derivatives,
including “psychotherapist.” However, as a consequence of the 2008 changes in the wording of the
Psychologist’s Regulation, this decision was no longer applicable and the case was closed.
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Training in Psychology The Registration Committee invited faculty from various training programs
in psychology and related disciplines to meet with the Committee during the 2008 year. The invitation
to dialogue with the College was well received. The Committee believes the meeting resulted in
greater appreciation of how training connects with registration, protection of the public and ways it
can impact the integrity of the profession.

Supervision Any applicant applying as of January 1, 2008 is required to submit a supervision plan if
he or she is providing psychological services in BC while an applicant. Applicants can select their own
supervisor, who must be a registrant. Further specification of this requirement will be considered after
this requirement has been in place for a longer period.

I have enjoyed my tenure as chair of this committee. My work on this committee has been greatly
facilitated by the hard work of the professional and public members of the registration committee
who spend freely of their time in reviewing all registration matters requiring policy development and
decision-making. |also take this opportunity to thank our staff for their work in implementing these
important policies and decisions and competently managing the enormous work volume. In addition,
the ongoing volunteer time and experience of oral examiners in providing oral examinations to new
applicantsis much appreciated. Our growing group of regulatory supervisors and registrants who are
providing supervision to applicants should also be acknowledged. All of these contributions combine
to enhance the regulation of our profession.

Respectfully submitted,
Michael Elterman, MBA, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, Registration Committee 2008

QuALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

In addition to the annual review of the Continuing Competency Program, the Committee was actively
engaged in important initiatives. Below is a summary of the Committee’s work in 2008.

Continuing Competency Program Review The review for the 2008 year was conducted in March,
2008. Several registrants were found not to be in compliance with the requirement, and the
Committee followed up with these registrants. The document “Continuing Competency Program
Requirements” summarizes the policies and requirements and is available on the College website.

Designation of another registrant to take care of one’s practice records in the event of unexpected
incapacity or death This requirement will commence with renewal for the 2010 {rescheduled from
2009) calendar year, and will involve listing the designated registrant on the renewal form. For the
2008 and 2009 renewals, registrants were encouraged, but not required, to designate another
registrant. The Committee’s reasoning in establishing this requirement included awareness of the
aging demographic of the College and the work of a task force established by the Committee to assist
in this matter.

Professional will workshops The Committee was pleased to organize a series of 8 workshops on
professional wills by Dr. Tom McGee that were offered in Vancouver, Nanaimo, Castlegar and Prince
George in May of 2008. These workshops were well attended. They were arranged after a series of
10 previous professional wills workshops had been offered in 2007, and it was clear that not all
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registrants who were interested had yet been able to attend. The workshops covered the important
topic of development of professional wills, including the designation of a professional executor. There
is no plan to require registrants to prepare a professional will, although as noted above, they will be
required to designate another registrant to be responsible for their practices in the event of incapacity
or death.

Other workshops The Committee was pleased to organize a one-day workshop by Dr. Susan Jacob
on May 30, 2009 entitled “Ethical Issuesin School Psychology,” and workshop presentations by College
counsel Lisa Fong entitled “Release of Records: Legal Issues for Psychology” immediately after the
Annual General Meeting on May 22, 2008, and “A Legal Issues Primer” in conjunction with Dr. Jacob’s
May 30, 2008 presentation.

Respectfully submitted,
Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych.,Chair, Quality Assurance Committee 2008

FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

The College continues to stay within budget projections and has maintained stable renewal fees for
the past 5 years with no anticipated fee increases for 2009.

Table 2: Comparative Expenses

Year | ‘Wages and Routine | 'H_éarings* , : ;General' . Total Exp,ebnses»'
: L Expenses ,EXp.ensés**’:';

Amount | % | Amount | % | Amount | % Amount | % Amount %
2004 521,791 41 288,686 23 74,816 6 391,336 30 1,276,629 100
2005 554,704 48 128,899 11 70,563 6 403,717 35 1,157,883 100
2006 565,346 46 201,542 17 50,113 4 402,896 33 1,219,897 100
2007 571,315 44 210,917 16 101,350 8 414,650 32 1,298,232%** 100
2008 634,602 44 267,106 19 46,627* 3 494,783 ** 34 1,443,118*** 100

* This figure represents the cost of preparing for and holding extraordinary and discipline committee hearings.

** Included in these expenses are costs associated with committee and Board meetings, travel, rent, and office
supplies. )

*** This total differs from that reported on the attached financial statements by a total of $57,002 which is the sum
of $16,970 for workshop fees and $40,032 for recovered supervision expenses. Note that these sums are also
represented in the receipt side of the financial statements as additional income.

Respectfully submitted,
Derek Swain, Ed.D., R.Psych.,Chair, Finance Committee 2008
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REGISTRAR’S REPORT

Below is the Registrar’s Report on the activities of the College for the year 2008. This report is divided
into three main sections:

L Registration/Application Matters This section provides a description of the College Register
for 2008 and the status of applications for registration, as well as a summary of activities of the
College in this area.

Il Complaint and Investigative Matters The second section provides a descriptive and statistical
analysis of complaint and other investigative matters.

lll.  Administrative Matters The third section summarizes administrative activities related to
external relationships and our obligations under the Ombudsman and Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Acts.

I. REGISTRATION/APPLICATION MATTERS

This section reviews activities at the College related to the status of the College Register during
2008, and the status of applications for registration. It is divided into 5 sections as follows:

1) The College Register 2008; 2) Summary of Application Activity; 3) Status of Application Files;
4) Area of practice; and 5) Examinations.

1. The College Register 2008

As of December 31, 2008, the College Register showed a total of 1121 registrants. An additional 10
registrants cancelled their registration within the 2008 calendar year, 3 registrants died, and 1
individual held temporary registration.

Table 3: The College Register as at Decemb
Full Register 974 988
Suspended 1 0 1
Limited Register- Inquiry Committee (IC) 14 15 13 11 11 13
Limited Register- IC / Non-Practicing 1
Limited Register- IC/ Out of Province 1 : 0 0
Limited Register - Out-of-Province 43 29 28 27 22 27
Limited Register - Non-Practicing 17 11 18 23 15 16
Limited Register- Retired 15 13 14 23 26 34
Limited Register- Registration Committee 2 5 22 57 53 42
Category Pending 1 1 2 0 0
Held Temporary Reg. During the Year 2 3 2 1 2 1
Cancelled Prior to End of Year 3 10
Total 984 1002 | 1032 | 1075 | 1107 | 1132*

*This total does not include 3 registrants who were deceased as of December 31, 2008.

COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRiTiSH COLUMBIA 2008 ANNUAL REPORT 12




As shown in the table below, a total of 50 new registrants were added to the Register in 2008.

Table 4: New Registrants by Class of Registration

Psychologists 27 15 5 0 0 47
Psychological Associates 0 3 0 0 0 3
Total 27 18 5 0 0 50

2. Summary of Application Activity

Table 5 below summarizes the application activities at the College during the 2008 year, along with
comparison data from previous years. As shown in the table, a total of 62 applications were
received during the 2008 year. Of these, 27% (n=17) were regular applications. Sixty-one percent
(n=38) were reciprocal applications from another Canadian jurisdiction, and 10% (n=6) were
mobility applications from jurisdictions in the United States. One application was withdrawn and
one application was reviewed but it did not meet entry requirements.

Table 5: Applic

ation Activity Summary 2001-2008

Aty | e 2008
‘Reg | Temp | Recip | Mobil | Ext Recip .| Mobil | Ext | Total

# applications 39 2 14 8 1 64 17 38 6 0 62
received
# applications 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1
withdrawn
# applications 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
did not meet
requirements

3. Status of Application Files

Table 6 shows the status of all open applications as of December 31, 2008. There were a total of

75 open applications at various stages of the application process.

Table 6: Status of Open Applications as at December 31, 2008

Initial review

December 31, 2008

Under review for 2 0 1 3
credentials/consistency

EPPP 19 N/A N/A 19
Written Jurisprudence 6 5 1 12
Exam

Oral Examination 3 N/A N/A 3
Total Open Files as of 42 29 4 75
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4. Extraordinary Applicants

In addition to the 75 open applications in the above three categories, 39 Extraordinary _
Applicants continued to work towards placement on the Full Register. Thirty-eight (38) of the
Extraordinary Applicants had been placed on the Limited Register prior to 2008. These
applicants complete examinations and other requirements of the Extraordinary process while
on the Limited Register. Of the 39 extraordinary applicants not yet on the Full Register, 33
were at the EPPP stage, 5 were at the Oral Examination stage and 1 was completing Part One
of the Oral Exam (an examination which, upon passing, allows for placement on the Limited
Register).

5. Area of Practice: Applicants and Registrants

Applicants must indicate one area of practice in psychology on the application form. This area is
expected to be the broad area of practice which best describes the individual’s training and
competence. Table 7 below represents the area of practice indicated by new applicants in 2008.
Seventy-four percent (74%) of applicants selected Clinical or Counseling as most descriptive of
their area of practice.

Table 7: Area of Practice for New Applicants in 2008

 AreaofPractice | Reg | Recip | Mobil | Temp | Total
Clinical Psychology 9 15 4 1 29
Counseling Psychology 3 14 0 17
Clinical Neuropsychology 1 2 2 5
School Psychology 2 3 0 5
Health Psychology 0 0 0 0
Rehabilitation Psychology 0 2 0 2
Forensic/Corrections 0 0 0 0
Psychology

Clarification Required 2 1 0 1 4
Total 17 37 6 2 62

Note: The areas of Clinical and Counseling are defined by the College as broad areas
encompassing many sub-areas, while the areas of Forensic/Corrections, Health, School,
Rehabilitation, Industrial/Organizational and Clinical Neuropsychology are seen as more
narrowly defined areas of practice, sometimes including exclusive practice in a particular
setting.

Each year, registrants are required at renewal to report their primary area of practice. The
Register indicated the following breakdown for the self-declared primary area of practice
indicated by registrants as of December 31, 2008, excluding suspended (n=1) and retired
registrants (n=34):
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Table 8: Self-Declared Primary Area of Practice for Registrants as at December 31, 2008

Clinical Psychology 606 56
Counseling Psychology 230 21
Clinical Neuropsychology 65 6
School Psychology 63 6
Health Psychology 6 1
Rehabilitation Psychology 15 1
Research/Academic Psychology 27 2
Forensic/Corrections Psychology ‘ 50 5
Industrial/Organizational Psychology 24 2
Total 1086* 100

* This number does not include the 1 registrant who was suspended or the 34 registrants who were in the retired
category as at December 31, 2008.

5. Examinations

All regular applicants complete three examinations as part of the application process: the EPPP,
the oral exam (OE) and the Written Jurisprudence Examination (WIJE). Reciprocal and mobility
applicants are required to successfully complete the WIE. Table 9 below summarizes examination
results for 2008. In 2008, 1 extraordinary applicant completed Part A of the oral examination,
which contains 10 questions covering aspects of ethical conduct and knowledge of regulation. The
Part A examination is the final step to be completed by applicants under the extraordinary
provisions prior to placement on the Limited Register.

Table 9: Examination Results

Number of applicants who wrote EPPP 16 22 16 31 35 37
Number of Oral examinations 15 34 25 26 25 29
(Regulars)

Number of Oral examinations - - - - 14 12

(Extraordinary)

Number of WJE examinations 19 638 117 47 36 62

Part A of Oral examination n/a n/a 39 36 4 1
(Extraordinary)

The EPPP exam was taken 37 times in 2008 with no failures. The scaled scores ranged from
505-749 out of 800 (Mean = 649.1; St Dev = 67.8).
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As in past years, the WJE examination is held at the College offices on a monthly basis. It was
administered 62 times in 2008. Fifty-seven (57) applicants passed on their first attempt, while
three failed. Of the three failures, two applicants retook the examination in 2008 and passed.

The College also conducts the Oral Examination on site. In 2008, 41 examinations took place, of
which 5 were second attempts by individuals who had failed (n = 4) or chose not to accept the
limitations as recommended by the Oral Examiners (n = 1), after their first attempt. All 5 of these
applicants passed and were placed on the Full Register.

Of the 36 first time examinees, 86% of the applicants (n = 31) passed the oral examination on their
first attempt and were placed on the Full Register. Five (5) applicants were placed on the Limited
Register and 1 failed, retook the examination in 2008, and passed.

1. COMPLAINT AND INVESTIGATIVE MATTERS

This section contains information about complaints received in the year 2008 as well as a report
on all complaints closed during 2008. Included are descriptions of aspects of the complaints
process and a sampling of complaints received during the year.

Complaint file status as at December 31, 2008

Descriptive complaint summary

Investigations opened by the Inquiry Committee

Length of time to close complaint files

Closing reasons for complaints closed in 2008 and comparison with previous years
Components of the complaint investigative process

Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements

Summary of a sample of Complaints in 2008

Complaints per year and number of registrants with complaints

LN R WNPRE

1. Complaint file status as at December 31, 2008

Since the College of Psychologists came under the Health Professions Act, a total of 461 new
complaints have been received, including 41 that were received during 2008. The College received
eighteen percent (18%) fewer complaints in 2008 than in 2007.

A. Complaints received in 2008 (n=41): Eighteen (18) of the complaints received in 2008 were
also closed in 2008, leaving a total of 23 complaints received in 2008 still open on December
31, 2008.

B. Complaints received in 2007 that remained open for at least part of 2008 (n=27): Twenty-six
(26) of the 27 files remaining open from 2007 were closed in 2008. These 26 closed files
originating from 2007 are included in the data on files closed in 2008 presented elsewhere in
this report.

C. Complaints received prior to 2007 and still open in 2008 (n=7): Five files opened in 2006 were

closed in 2008. Two files opened in 2005 remained open in 2008. Citations were issued in the
case of these latter two files and they remained in progress through 2008.
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Table 11: Complaint File Status as at December 31, 2008 for all complaints received under the
Health Professions Act

Awaiting or Under 7 17.1 7 1.5
Initial Review
33(4)
Practice Records 7 17.1 7 1.5
33(5) 1 2.0 4 9.8 5 1.1
HPA S.28 1 24 1 0.2
Inspections
Without Prejudice
Meeting
Letter of 3 7.3 3 0.7
Undertaking
Citation 2 0.5 2 04
Extraordinary 1 2.4 1 0.2
Hearing

Total # open files 1 26

|,-::> ' '{:‘3:;' i e — - o
3T0ta|.#ficlcs;edfilzves: ] 368 | 995 | ] 435
Total 370 100 461 100

2. Descriptive Complaint Summary

Below are four descriptive variables (primary allegation, complaint context, area of practice, and
complainant type) on which all complaints are tracked:

a. Primary Allegation Table 12 (see next page) contains a breakdown of complaint investigations
according to the primary allegation made by the complainant as it relates to the Code of Conduct.
The most frequent primary allegation for complaints opened in 2008 was assessment procedures
(n=13, 31.7%). This is consistent with all complaints received since the College came under the
Health Professions Act; assessment procedures is the primary allegation in the largest number of
cases overall (n=167, 36.3%). General standards for competency was the next most frequent
primary allegation in 2008 (n=8, 19.5%) and overall (n=66, 14.3%), followed by professionalism
(n=4, 9.8% in 2008, and n=56, 12.2% overall). For 2008, many of the cases in which competency
is the primary allegation involved an assessment.
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Table 12: Primary Allegation in Complaints Received 2000-2008

General Stds for Competency (CC 3.0) 50 13.5 8 16.3 8 19.5 66 14.3
Informed Consent (CC 4.0) 18 4.9 2 4.1 1 2.4 21 4.6
Relationships-Clients (CC 5.0) 48 13.0 4 8.2 1 2.4 53 11.5
Relationships-Work (CC 5.0) 5 14 2 4.1 1 24 8 1.7
Relationships-Dual Roles (CC 5.0) 16 43 4 9.8 20 4.4
Confidentiality (CC 6.0) 16 43 2 49 18 3.9
Professionalism (CC7.0) 49 13.2 3 6.1 4 9.8 56 12.2
Provision of Services (CC 8.0) 9 2.4 4 8.2 1 2.4 14 3.0
Representation of Services/Credentials (CC 9.0) 2 0.5 2 04
Advertising/Public Statements (CC10.0) 7 1.9 1 2.0 2 4.9 10 2.2
Assessment Procedures (CC 11.0) 138 37.3 16 32.7 13 317 167 36.3
Fees (CC 12.0) 8 2.2 1 2.0 9 2.0
Maintenance of Records (CC 13.0) 1 0.3 1 0.2
Security/Access to Record {CC 14.0) 1 0.3 4 8.2 5 1.1
Compliance with Law (CC 18.0) \ 2 0.5 2 49 4 0.9
Application (CC 2.0) 2 4.1 2 0.4
No Standard Applicable 2 4.1 2 49 4 0.9
Total 370 100 49* 100 41 100 459 100

*Total is less than 50 because one complaint was opened in error and no primary allegation was recorded.

b. Complaint Context Table 13 on the next page reports on the context within which complaints
occurred. As has consistently been the case in the past, in 2008 a substantial proportion (n=21;
51.2%) of complaint concerns arose in the context of an assessment, such as a custody and access
proceeding or a correctional assessment. ‘
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Table 13: Complaint Context for Complaints Received 2000-2008

Assessment 218 | 58.9 24 48.0 21 51.2 263 57.0
Consultation 6 1.6 1 24 7 1.5
Intervention 82 22.2 15 30.0 12 29.3 109 23.6
Regulatory Compliance | 16 4.3 3 6.0 1 2.4 20 4.3
Other 48 13.0 8 16.0 6 14.6 62 13.4
Total 370 100 50 100 41 100 461 100

¢. Area of Practice Table 14 below presents information on the area of practice within which
complaints occurred. In 2008, 34.1% (n=14) of the complaints received were in the custody and
access sub-area within clinical psychology. An additional 7 complaints (17.1%) were in the broader

clinical psychology area.

Table 14: Complaint - Area of Practice in Complaints Received 2000-2008

Year’cdmplafnt Réceived ,

't“",;-cdrﬁplaintAr,ea'of | 20002006 ] 2008 . Total 4

Practlce — . -
Clinical Psychology 169 | 45.7 | 30 60 7 17.1 | 206 | 447
Custody and Access 96 | 25.9 11 22 14 34.1 121 26.2
Counselling Psychology 33 | 89 3 6 3 7.3 39 8.5
Forensic /Corrections 32 8.6 4 8 5 12.2 41 8.9
Industrial /Organizationél 2 0.5 2 0.4
Neuropsychology 16 4.3 1 2 4 9.8 21 46
Rehabilitation Psychology 8 2.2 8 1.7
Research /Academic 4 1.1 4 0.9
School Psychology 6 1.6 2 4.9 8 1.7
N/A 4 11 1 2 6 14.6 11 2.4
Total 370 | 100 50 100 41 100 461 100
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d. Complainant Type Asindicated in Table 15 below, 39% (n=16) of the complaints received in
2008 were filed directly by clients of respondents. These files are referred to as “public
complaints” in subsequent tables. The Inquiry Committee opened an additional 8 files (19.5%) on
its own motion based on information provided to it (these files are referred to as “IC motion” in
subsequent tables). The category of “Colleague” is now reserved for those cases in which the
complainant is not also involved with the recipient of services (for example, a registrant who
makes a complaint after becoming concerned about a colleague’s conduct after observing him/her
performing impaired in a shared work environment). Previously these files had been categorized
in the “Client - 3" Party” category.

Table 15: Complainant Type in Complaints Received 2000-2008

p | Client - 3 Party 103 | 278 |22% | 44 | 2** | a9 | 127 | 275
g Client - Direct 82 | 222 | 13| 26 16 | 390 | 111 | 241
L | client Relative 50 | 135 | 7 | 14 8 | 195 ]| 65 | 141
Ic Colleague*** 61 | 16.5 | 5 122 | 66 | 143
Other 33 |89 |2 | 4 2 49 | 37 8.0
ic | Inquiry a1 | 111 | 6 | 12 8 | 195 ] s5 | 119
Committee
Total 370 | 100 | 50 | 100 | 41 | 100 | 461 | 100

*This total includes 13 cases in which the complainant was another registrant.
**This total includes 1 case in which the complainant was another registrant.
***As of 2007, this category reserved for colleagues not also involved as a third party with service recipient.

3. [Investigations Opened by the Inquiry Committee

Under the Health Professions Act, the Inquiry Committee can open an investigation on its own
motion when there are public protection concerns or when an investigation of allegations made
by a complainant provides evidence which on its face suggests a new area of concern. Most
frequently, investigationsinitiated by the Committee arise in the following circumstances: failure
to comply with regulatory obligations in connection with another complaint; receipt of
information generally available to the public; information obtained through an inspection of a
registrant’s practice records; or through information provided to the College that is deemed of
sufficient concern to initiate an investigation. In 2008, 8 complaint investigations were opened
by the Inquiry Committee. One of these files was opened to investigate issues of compliance with
regulatory obligations. Five were opened subsequent to a practice inspection undertaken as part
of an investigation into complaint matters, and two involved fitness to practice issues.
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4. Length of Time to Close Files

For complaints closed in 2008 (n=49), the number of months required to investigate and close a
file ranged from 1 to 36 months. Excluding eight (8) outlier files involving three different
registrants in which protracted legal negotiations were involved, the average time to closure was
8.1 months. Table 16 below contains the average length of time to close complaint files for 2006,
2007 and 2008.

Table 16: Average Time (in months) to Close Files for Complaints Closed 2006-2008

Average Length of Time to 8 months 6.45 months 8.1
Close File n=61 n=40 n=41*%

*Excluding 8 files involving 3 respondents in which protracted legal negotiations resulted in unusually long
closure times

5. Complaint File Closing Reasons

Slightly more than one-third of the complaints closed in 2008 were dismissed because of
insufficient evidence of a breach of the Code of Conduct, withdrawn, or not proceeded on for
administrative reasons. For complaints received and closed in 2008, 59% were resolved by means
of an undertaking or agreement with the respondent, or by some action offered by the respondent
that satisfied the Committee’s concerns in the matter.

Table 17: Closing Reasons for Complaints Closed 2005-2008

Year Complain‘t File Closed

Closing | closing | 2006 | 2007 | 2008 Totals
~ Category | Reason = p— L - 1 . e

e | % n] % e ]| % |e| %

Dismissed- Decision Not to Proceed 17 28 6 15 7 14.3 | 30 | 20.0
lack of
) Withdrawn/opened in error 1 2 3 7.5 4 2.7
evidence or
otherwise not | |nsyfficient Evidence 20 | 33 |13 | 325 | 12 | 245 | 45 | 30.0
proceeded  t— r— , — e —————————
upon SUthtal :: 1¢ 388 1 79 52-7
Voluntary Letter of undertaking or 12 20 12 30 28 571 1 52 | 34.7
Resolution resolution agreement
Resolved 17 | 11.3
Resigned/ Resigned/Cancelled 2 1.3
Cancelled Referred to Registration or
Discipline Committee
Total 61 | 100 | 40 | 100 49 100 | 150 | 100
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6. Components of the Complaint Investigation Process

Components of the complaint investigation process include without prejudice meetings,
extraordinary hearings, and citations and discipline hearings, described below.

a. Without Prejudice Meetings The term “without prejudice” is used to indicate that
nothing that occurs in a without prejudice meeting or correspondence may be used in other
proceedings. Without prejudice meetings provide an informal and effective means for
resolving complaint matters. Two without prejudice meetings were held in 2008. Additionally,
a number of without prejudice telephone conversations occurred, and several without
prejudice letters with proposals for complaint resolution were sent. By way of example, a
without prejudice meeting between the Inquiry Committee and a respondent occurred in the
context of a complaint involving a forensic assessment. The complainant in this matter was
concerned about the assessment process and impact of the assessment report. Subsequent to
the meeting, the respondent signed an agreement to enter into supervision to improve report
preparation practices.

b. Extraordinary Hearings Sometimes concerns arise which necessitate immediate action on
the part of the Inquiry Committee, such as issues with sufficient public protection concerns
that the Committee believes an immediate restriction on practice or license suspension may
be warranted. There is no testing of evidence at an extraordinary hearing. Rather, a decision
is made on whether the available evidence, on its face, supports action by the Inquiry
Committee. Any extraordinary action or agreement is an interim measure, designed to
address immediate public protection concerns, while the complaint investigation continues
and/or pending a full hearing of the Discipline Committee. Extraordinary actions or
agreements, therefore, do not represent final resolutions of the complaint issues. One
extraordinary hearing was held in 2008.

c¢. Discipline Hearings & Citations In contrast to an extraordinary hearing, a discipline
hearing is the equivalent of a full trial on all issues, and a finding of fact is made at the end of
the hearing. No Discipline Committee hearings were held in 2008, although citations for a
hearing of the Discipline Committee on two files involving 2 registrants that were issued in
2007 remained in preparation as of December 31, 2008.

7. Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements

Table 18 on the next page provides a-'summary of Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements
signed with registrants during the year 2008 as a means of bringing a complaint file to a close.
A total of 20 such agreements were signed in 2008 relating to 28 complaint files. The terms of
such agreements are determined on a case by case basis and all are signed on a voluntary
basis. In a number of the more serious complaints below, a hearing of the Discipline-
Committee would have been held had such a resolution not been achieved.
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Table 18. Summary of Terms of Letters of Undertaking/Consent Agreements in 2008 {n=20)

1 1file No Standard Applicable Restrict amount of time practicing psychology
2 1file 11-Assessment Procedures No assessment without supervision
3 1 file 11-Assessment Procedures Modify file keeping practices and confirm conduct
is consistent with Code of Conduct
4 4 files | 05-Prohibited No psychological services without supervision
Relationship/Contact
05-Relationships-Client x2
03-Competency
5 1file 07-Professionalism Ensure professionalism of communication
6 1 file 03-Competency Supervision of assessment practice
7 1 file 02-Application Confirm understanding that agreements with
College are legally binding and no practice outside
practice restriction without consent of
Registration Committee
8 2 files | 05-Prohibited Supervision regarding office procedures and
Relationship/Contact x2 treatment issues
9 1 file 04-Consent Supervision of psychological practice
10 4 files 11-Assessment Procedures x2 Agreement not to practice as a psychologist and
02-Application not to reapply for registration.
07-Professionalism
11 1 file 08-Provision of Services Clarify timelines and fees, and complete work in
timely fashion
12 2 files | 05-Relationships-Client No custody and access or multiparty assessments
11-Assessment Procedures without supervision, and supervision of
psychological practice
13 1 file 03-Competency Ensure professionalism of communication, obtain
and document informed consent, and no opinion
without sufficient contact
14 1 file 11-Assessment Procedures Voluntary resignation and Inquiry Committee can
resume investigation if reapplies for registration
15 1file | 04-Consent Modify practices regarding informed consent and
structuring relationships
16 1file 03-Competency Supervision of assessment practice
17 1 file 03-Competency Supervision of assessment practice
18 1 file 08-Provision of Services Modify informed consent process and record
keeping practices
19 1 file 11-Assessment Procedures Supervision of psychological practice
20 1 file 05- Relationships-Client Supervision of practice

COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUumMBIA 2008 ANNUAL REPORT

23




8. Samples of Complaints Open During 2008

Below is a brief review of the main allegations raised in a sample of complaints open during
2008, along with a description of the process and outcome of the complaint investigation.

One case arose in the context of a custody and access evaluation. The complainant, one of the
parents who was the subject of the assessment, alleged that the respondent was biased and had
reported personality issues that were contradicted by other assessorsinvolved in the matter. The
Committee requested that the complainant provide all the documentation referenced as
forthcoming in the original complaint, carefully reviewed these extensive documents once they
arrived, and provided the respondent with an opportunity to provide any information in
accordance with Section 33(5) of the Health Professions Act. The Committee found no support
for any the allegations made in this case, and closed the complaint pursuant to Section 33(6)(a)
of the Health Professions Act, on the basis that careful review of complaint materials yielded
insufficient evidence supporting allegations of professional misconduct.

A second case involved a complaint by an administrator of an organization who alleged that a
registrant providing services tothe organization’semployees was engagingin inappropriate billing
practices, had refused to answer questions about treatment and billing practices, had made a
number of unprofessional statements, was using a treatment approach that lacked empirical
validation, had abandoned a client, and had tried to involve a client in difficulties with the
organization. The Inquiry Committee sought additional documentation from the complainantin
this case, and then asked the respondent to address questions posed under Section 33(5) of the
Act. After carefully reviewing all of the documentation before it, the Committee found
insufficient evidence to support any of the allegations made with the exception of that pertaining
tounprofessional communications. The Committee asked and the respondentagreed, to provide
written confirmation that henceforth communications would be appropriately professional.

A third case involved a complaint made by an individual who alleged that the respondent had
prepared an assessment report in a corrections context without interviewing the complainant
or obtaining informed consent to do so. The Committee obtained the relevant practice records
and posed a number of questions to the respondent under Section 33(5) of the Act. The
Committee found evidence supporting the allegations made in this case, and after a without
prejudice meeting with the Committee the respondent entered into an agreement to undergo
supervision of practice to enhance assessment practices, informed consent processes, and
record keeping, and to address Code of Conduct application within the employment context.

In a fourth situation, a colleague made a complaint alleging that a registrant was believed to
have become romantically and sexually involved with a client. The Inquiry Committee
commenced an investigation and moved in this case to hold an extraordinary hearing pursuant
to Section 35(1) of the Health Professions Act in response to immediate public protection .
concerns. The extraordinary hearing was settled by the registrant entering into an agreement
that the registrant would not practice psychology or provide psychological services until the
complaint was resolved.

As a final example, the Inquiry Committee opened an investigation on its own motion after
receiving documentation regarding a registrant’s alleged mental health status. The registrant
was asked to provide medical information pertaining to this issue, and then was asked and
agreed to sign an agreement regarding a specific limitation on practice that reflected the
medical information and medical advice.
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9. Complaints per Year and Number of Registrants with Complaints

Table 19 below describes the number of registrants about whom complaints have been
received since the College was first granted responsibility for regulating the profession in 1993.
As shown in the Table, in 2008, 41 complaints were received. These 41 complaints were with
regard to 31 different registrants. Thus some registrants were named in more than one
complaint file.

Table 19: # of Complaints per year from 1993 - 2008 and # of Registrants with Complaints

1993 30 21
1994 26 22
1995 44 35
1996 38 30
1997 45 39
1998 47 32
1999 53 , 37
2000 64 48
2001 59 42
2002 54 38
2003 53 42
2004 46 31
2005 44 35
2006 50 42
2007 50 37
2008 41 31
Total 703 -*

*Column total not calculated, as some registrants appear in multiple years.

Since January 2000, 202 registrants have had at least one complaint as shown in Table 20 on
the next page. Ten of these individuals resigned as a means of resolving matters with the
College or in response to complaints received. Approximately 15% of current registrants have
had at least one complaint filed under the Health Professions Act.

Table 20 shows the number of complaints in which a registrant is named since January 2000.
The table makes a distinction, discussed in Section 2d on page 20 above, between complaints
received directly from members of the public (public complaints) and files that are opened by
motion of the Inquiry Committee (Motion of IC). The breakdown for 2008 is as follows: 1
registrant was named in 4 files (all opened by the Inquiry Committee on its own motion), 1
registrant had 3 complaints, 5 registrants had 2 complaints (all public complaints except for
one registrant for whom the Inquiry Committee opened a file as a result of files reviewed
during a practice inspection), and 24 registrants had 1 complaint. Of the 24 registrants with a
single complaint file, two of these were opened by the Inquiry Committee on its own motion in
order to investigate issues relating to fitness to practice.
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Table 20: Number of Complaints since January 2000 Per Registrant

Total Public complaints |

1 120 120 112 8
2 38 76 68 8
3 i 33 29 4
4 10 40 34 6
5 7 35 32 3
6 3 18 ‘ 16 5
7 2 14 6 3
8 1 8 3 S
9 0 0 0 o
10 2 20 17 3
11 3 33 31 5
12 2 24 23 1
13 2 26 22 4
14 0 0 0 0
15 0 0 0 o
16 1 16 16 0
Total 202 463* 409 )

*Total does not equal 461: one complaint did not name a respondent and was opened in error and is thus
excluded, and two complaints named two registrants within a single complaint and were tabulated as separate
complaints for purposes of calculating total complaints per individual registrant for this table.

Itl. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1. Ombudsman Investigations There were 2 investigations of the College by the Ombudsman’s
Office in 2008. One was closed and the other remained open at December 31, 2008.

2. Requests under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act There were 7
requests received under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act during 2008,
all of which are now closed.

3. Relationships with Other Regulatory Bodies in Psychology The College remained actively
involved with the other Canadian regulatory bodies through our involvement in the Association of
Canadian Psychology Regulatory Organizations (ACPRO). The Registrar was elected vice-chair of
this organization.

4. Acknowledgments. The members of the College Board and Committees are extremely
generous with their time and expertise and devote many hours to the careful consideration of
policy development and thoughtful decision-making. The combination of an excellent staff and a
growing community of professionals and public members on the Board and College committees
greatly enhances our ability to regulate our profession in the public interest.

Respectfully submitted,
Andrea Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych., Registrar
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Minutes of the 2008 Year Annual General Meeting

Agenda The table of contents in the Annual Report served as the agenda for the May 22, 2008
meeting, which was called to order at 5:10 p.m.

Minutes The Minutes of the 2007 Annual General Meeting held on May 10, 2007 were approved.

Report from the Chair Dr. Michael Joschko welcomed registrants to the AGM and referred
registrants to his Report in the Annual Report. He introduced fellow board members: Lee Cohene,
Rebecca England, Michael Elterman, Daniel Fontaine (in absentia), Marguerite Ford, Wayne Morson
and Valerie Whiffen. Dr. Joschko also presented a brief report on the Patient Relations Committee on
behalf of Daniel Fontaine.

Inquiry Committee Dr. England introduced the members of her Committee, reported on the work of
the Inquiry Committee for the 2008 year, and thanked the Committee members for their hours of
dedicated service to the College and the profession.

Registration Committee Dr. Elterman introduced the members of his Committee and referred
registrants to his report in the Annual Report. He acknowledged the hard work of his Committee in
reviewing application files and thanked the staff for their support.

Quality Assurance Committee Dr. Cohene thanked the members of the Committee and the staff for
their work during the year. He reported on the Continuing Competency Program, which allows
registrants to self-manage their continuing education. Registrants were referred to his written
report. The six-year service of Leigh Bowie was acknowledged with the presentation of an engraved
statue, along with the introduction and acknowledgment of all committee members.

Finance Committee Dr. Swain referred registrants to his written report and to the Audited Financial
Statements at the end of the Annual Report, and responded to questions. He noted the number of
other jurisdictions increasing their registration fees, while our rates have remained the same for the
past six years.

Registrar’s Report Dr. Kowaz thanked the Board, Committee members, and staff for their support
and the huge volume of work accomplished during the past year. The Registrar commented on the
strong platform created by the College’s established processes and procedures in meeting its legal

mandate, and noted that the existence of such a foundation may allow for constructive review and
refinement, as appropriate. The Registrar responded to questions from registrants.

Volunteer Recognition Dr. Joschko recognized the contribution of volunteers to the College,
including Board and Committee members, Oral Examiners, and Supervisors. He concluded by
welcoming registrants to the 2nd Annual AGM Workshop “Release of Records — Legal Issues for
Psychologists,” which was to follow after the refreshment break.
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Statement of Operations

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

The Raber Mattuck Group
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The Raber Mattuck Group*

Chartered Accountants

Suite 318, North Tower, Oakridge Centre, 650 West 41st Avenue, Vancouver, B.C., V5Z 2M9
Telephone: (604) 435-5655 Facsimile: (604) 435-1913 E-mail: info@rabermattuck.com

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Registrants of
College of Psychologists of British Columbia

We have audited the statement of financial position of the College of Psychologists of British
Columbia as at December 31, 2008 and the statements of changes in net assets, operations
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
College's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. -

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the College as at December 31, 2008 and the results of its-operations and the
changes in its net assets for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

Qo v

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Vancouver, British Columbia
March 19, 2009

* a partnership of professional corporations
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008

2008 2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 1,270,677 $ 1,515,970
Cash - restricted (Note 4) 600,000 250,000
Prepaid expenses 3,929 20,915
1,874,606 1,786,885
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 2) 44,455 43,435
$ 1,919,061 $ 1,830,320
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 88,149 $ 32,810
Employee remittances payable 13,807 12,277
Deferred revenue (Note 3) 1,156,875 1,109,475
1,258,831 1,154,562
NET ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSET FUND 44,455 43,435
INTERNALLY RESTRICTED
General Contingency Fund (Note 4) 600,000 250,000
UNRESTRICTED 15,775 382,323
660,230 675,758
$ 1,919,061 $ 1,830,320

Approved by the B/o(a\rgv
m , Director

.j\ Mor

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

General
Contingency  Capital Asset

Fund Fund Unrestricted Total Total

2008 2008 2008 2008 2007
NET ASSETS, beginning of year $ 250,000 $ 43,435 $ 382,323 $ 675,758 $ 587,269
Excess of Receipts Over Expenditures .
(Expenditures over Receipts) - 1,020 (16,548) (15,528) 88,489
Interfund transfers (Note 4) 350,000 - (350,000) - -
NET ASSETS, end of year 600,000 $ 44455 $ 15775 $ 660,230 $ 675,758

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

2008 2007
RECEIPTS : '

Registration fees $ 1,273,588 $ 1,251,880
Application and exam fees 94,850 81,900
Interest ’ 42,872 47,051
Supervision cost recovery 43,932 48,690
Other income, cost recovery, and grants 29,350 61,178

1,484,592 1,490,699

EXPENDITURES

Administration 761,609 676,959
Audit 5,141 5,035
Board 95,567 58,446
Committees (meetings, travel and honoraria) 76,065 72,566
External relations (dues) 6,089 5,805
Extraordinary Hearings 22,367 -
Discipline Hearings (Including Preparation) 24,260 101,350
Operations 139,544 132,428
Registrant / Applicant services 61,814 89,786
Statutory functions (FOI, investigations, routine legal consultation) 267,106 210,917
Supervision expenses : 40,558 48,918

1,500,120 1,402,210

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENDITURES
(EXPENDITURES OVER RECEIPTS) $ (15,528) $ 88,489

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of receipts over expenditures (expenditures over receipts) $ (15,528) $ 88,489
Adjustments for: _
Amortization 11,665 10,512
Prepaid expense 16,986 (13,548)
Accounts payable 55,339 (68,013)
Employee remittances payable 1,530 (12,015)
Deferred revenue 47,400 477 675
117,392 483,100
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (12,685) (20,924)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 104,707 462,176
CASH, beginning of year 1,765,970 1,303,794
CASH, end of year “ $ 1,870,677 $ 1,765,970

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund Accounting .

Revenues and expenditures for general activities and administration are reported in the
General Fund.

The General Contingency Fund was established in 2006 and is being increased when
possible to an amount equal to 50% of the College’s annual budget.

Capital Assets

Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost.
Amortization is provided on a declining balance basis at the following rates:

Office furniture and equipment - 20% declining balance
Computer equipment and software - 30% declining balance
Leasehold improvements - 5 years straight line

in the year of acquisition, only one-half of the normal amortization is recorded.
Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Asset Fund.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Registration fees are recognized as income in the fiscal year due. Expenditures are
recognized as incurred.

Financial Instruments

The following policies and assumptions were used to determine the fair value of each
class of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Cash, cash restricted term deposits, and accounts payable:

The carrying amount of each item is this class is approximately equivalent to its
fair value due to the approaching maturity of these financial instruments.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2008

2. CAPITAL ASSETS
2008 2007
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
Office furniture and equipment $ 109,373 $ 79,868 $ 29,505 $ 29,319
Computer equipment 106,918 91,968 14,950 14,116
Leasehold improvements 40,706 40,706 - -
$ 256,997 $ 212,542 $ 44,455 $ 43,435
3. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue represents membership fees for the 2009 calendar year received
in advance.

4, GENERAL CONTINGENCY FUND
The General Contingency Fund was established by the Board of Directors.

The objective of the Fund is to provide for sufficient funding in case of law suits,
hearings and other matters that may require significant expenditure. ltis the
intention of the College to maintain this fund at 50% of its operating budget. In the
current year the fund has been increased to $600,000.

Expenditures from the General Contingency Fund are subject to approval by the
College of Psychologists of British Columbia Board of Directors.

The Raber Mattuck Group
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INTRODUCTION TO THE COLLEGE OF PSYCHOLOGISTS OF B.C. 2009 ANNUAL REPORT

MANDATE

To regulate the profession of psychology in the public interest in accordance
with the Health Professions Act of British Columbia by setting the standards for
competent and ethical practice, promoting excellence and taking action when
standards are not met.

This 2009 Annual Report provides a summary of the College’s regulatory
activities for the 2009 year, including reports on the processing of applications
for registration from Canadian and international applicants, the investigation of
complaints from the public of British Columbia about services received from a
Registrant of the College, and activities to enhance the competency and level of
practice of Psychologists.

Readers of this report are also encouraged to visit the College’s website for
copies of the Annual Reports of previous years, the Chronicle publication, and
other information and resources about the regulation of the profession of
Psychology in British Columbia.

www.collegeofpsychologists.bc.ca

The College is committed to meeting its public protection mandate with
professionalism, objectivity, transparency, accountability, stakeholder
involvement/participation, and clear communication. The College is especially
pleased to provide in this report information about efforts in the 2009 year to
increase policies and activities to enhance 1) mobility in psychology across the
country, 2) the accessibility of its website and application processes to foreign
trained applicants, and 3) accountability to the new Health Professions Review
Board. Questions about this report or other College publications or activities
are invited in writing to the College.
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2009 BOARD, STAFF, COMMITTEE MEEMBERS, SUPERVISORS,
ORAL EXAMINERS AND NEW REGISTRANTS

BOARD
Rebecca England, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair of the Board, Finance Committee
John Carter, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair, Finance Committee
Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair, Quality Assurance Committee
Daniel Fontaine, Public Member, Chair, Patient Relations and Discipline Committees
Marguerite Ford, Public Member, Vice Chair of the Board, Inquiry Committee
Henry Harder, Ed.D., R.Psych. (From December 15, 2009)
Russell King, Psy.D., R.Psych., Chair, Inquiry Committee
Leora Kuttner, Ph.D., R.Psych., Quality Assurance Committee
Wayne Morson, Public Member, Chair, Registration Committee and Finance Committees

Valerie Whiffen, Ph.D., R. Psych., Registration Committee (until December 15, 2009)

STAFF MEMBERS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2009
Andrea M. Kowaz, Ph.D., R.Psych., Registrar
Lysandra Bumstead, M.A.,Project Analyst
Naomi Clarke, Registration Coordinator
Lucas M. Cupps, Director of Investigations
Amy S. Janeck, Ph.D., R.Psych., Deputy Registrar
Susan D. Turnbull, Ph.D. R.Psych, Deputy Registrar
Susan D. Wynn, Registrar’s Assistant

DiscIPLINE COMMITTEE
Wayne Morson, Public Member, Chair Bruce Clark, Public Member
Michael Fellman, Public Member Daniel Fontaine, Public Member
Henry Hightower, Public Member Ingrid Sochting, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Stacy Sprague, Ph.D., R.Psych. Lynn Superstein-Raber, Ph.D., R.Psych

Cheryl Washburn, Ph.D., R.Psych.

INQUIRY COMMITTEE

Russell King, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair Kirk Beck, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anthony Dugbartey, Ph.D., R.Psych. Marguerite Ford, Public Member
Lindsay Jack, Ph.D., R.Psych. Marlene Moretti, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Donna Paproski, Ph.D., R.Psych. Judy Thau, Public Member

Francesca Zumpano, Public Member

QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMITTEE

Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych., Chair Santa Aloi, Public Member

Chris Gibbins, Ph.D., R.Psych. Sandy James, Public Member
Leora Kuttner, Ph.D., R.Psych. Kathy Montgomery, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michal Regev, Ph.D., R.Psych. Runa Steenhuis, Ph.D., R.Psych.

REGISTRATION COMMITTEE

Wayne Morson, Public Member, Chair Marion Ehrenberg, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michael Elterman, Ph.D., R.Psych. Michael Fellman, Public Member
Sandy Gardner, Ph.D., R.Psych. Henry Hightower, Public Member
Robert Ley, Ph.D., R.Psych. Cheryl Washburn, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Valerie Whiffen, Ph.D., R.Psych.

PATIENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE
Daniel Fontaine, Public Member, Chair Rebecca England, Ph.D., R.Psych. Lee Cohene, Ph.D., R.Psych.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

John Carter, Ed.D., R.Psych., Chair Rebecca England, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Daniel Fontaine, Public Member Wayne Morson, Public Member
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REGULATORY SUPERVISORS APPOINTED THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2009

Lynn Alden, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Susan Baum, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Robert Carey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Joanne Crandall, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Maureen Godfrey, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lee Grimmer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Krystyna Kinowski, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Mary Korpach, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Todd Mason, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Deborah McTaggart, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Bruce Monkhouse, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lyne M. Piché, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anneliese Robens, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Susanne Schibler, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Sujatha Srikameswaran, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Paul Sungaila, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Allan Thornton, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Victoria Alfonso, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Mark Bailey, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Carole Bishop, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Geoffrey Carr, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Constance Coniglio, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Patricia (Trish) Crawford, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Mervyn Gilbert, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Joy Green, M.A., R.Psych.

Simon Hearn, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Charlotte Johnston, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Brenda Knight, M.A., R.Psych.
Ulrich Lanius, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Wolfgang Linden, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Jane McEwan, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Nancy Meyer, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Martin Phillips-Hing, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Anneliese Robens, Ed.D., R.Psych.
Ronald Samuda, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Noa Schwartz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Kathleen Simas, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ingrid Sochting, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Harilaos Stefanakis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Paul Sungaila, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Karen Tallman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Larry Waterman, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Maureen Whittal, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Rosemary Wilkinson, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Victoria Alfonso, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Michael Boissevain, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Sarah Cockell, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Patricia (Trish)Crawford, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Lynda Grant, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Simon Hearn, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Rita Knodel, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Stephen Lustig, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Laurel Lee Mayo, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Alison Miller, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Tavi Nicholson, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Ann Pirolli, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Michal Regev, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Noa Schwartz, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Harilaos Stefanakis, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Lynn Superstein-Raber, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Janice Thompson, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Verna-Jean Amell, Ph.D., R.Psych.
Susan Baum, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Susan Blake, Ph.D., R.Psych.

Robert Colby, M.A., R.Psych.

Evelyn